
AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND ♦ CITY COUNCIL 

September 29, 2014        6:30 p.m. 

MAYOR 
Tom Reid 

Keith Ordeneaux 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

Position No. 4 

COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Tony Carbone 
Position No. 1 

Gary Moore 
Position No. 3 

Jon R. Branson 
Deputy City Manager 

Darrin Coker 
City Attorney 

Clay Pearson  
City Manager 

Scott Sherman 
Position No. 2 

Greg Hill 
Position No. 5 

Trent Epperson 
Assistant City Manager 

Young Lorfing 
City Secretary 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public 
information, at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting 
on the bulletin board located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



Page 1 of 4 – 9/29/2014    

 
 

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2014│6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS│PEARLAND CITY HALL│3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
281.652.1600  

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II.  INVOCATION AND THE PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE UNITED STATES OF 
AMERICA FLAG AND TEXAS FLAG     

  
III. ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone, 

Sherman, Moore, and Hill. 
 

IV. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  In order to hear all citizen comments at a reasonable 
hour, the City Council requests that speakers respect the three-minute time limit 
for individual comments and the five-minute time limit for an individual 
speaking on behalf of a group.  This is not a question-answer session, however, 
it is an opportunity to voice your thoughts with City Council. 

 
V.  PUBLIC HEARING:  To gather public comment for Creation of a Reinvestment Zone –
 Keystone Engineering, 1424 North Main Street.   

 

I. STAFF REVIEW  
 

 II. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

 III. COUNCIL/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 

 IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA:   
 

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine and 
require little or no deliberation by the City Council.  These items will be 
enacted/approved by one motion unless a councilmember requests separate 
action on an item, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered by separate action (VI. matters removed from Consent 
Agenda).  Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation.  
  
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 – 9/29/2014    

 
 

 
 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes:     

1. Minutes of the July 21, 2014, Joint Public Hearing held at 6:30 p.m. 

2. Minutes of the August  25, 2014, Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 

3. Minutes of the September 2, 2014 Special Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 

4. Minutes of the September 8, 2014, Special Meeting held at 6:30 p.m. 

5. Minutes of the September 15, 2014, Special Meeting held at 6:00 p.m. 

 

B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No.  2000M-118 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of 
certain real property, being a tract of land containing 2.939 acres out of Lots 
20, 21 and 22 of the George W. Jenkins Subdivision, in Brazoria County, 
Texas, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 2, Page 20, 
of the Brazoria County, Texas Plat Records (located at the northeast corner 
of Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, Pearland, Texas), Zone Change 
2014-12Z; a request of Brian Allen, Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of 
George Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from General 
Commercial (GC) to a non-residential Planned Development known as Baks 
Brewery; on approximately 2.94 acres of land, providing for an amendment 
of the zoning district map; containing a savings clause, a severability clause 
and an effective date and other provisions related to the subject. 

 

C. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2000M-119 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of 
certain real property, being a tract of land containing 142.9664 acres of land 
out of Pearland Town Center, a subdivision of 143.6500 acres as recorded 
under File Number 2007008914 of the Plat Records of Brazoria County, 
Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 300, 
Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas, (located on the south side of Broadway 
Street, east and west of Kirby Drive, and west of Business Center Drive, 
Pearland, Texas), Zone Change Application 2014-13Z; a request of Alysia 
Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael Lebovitz, 
Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for Pearland 
Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of a change in zoning to amend the 
sign regulations contained within the Pearland Town Center PUD; on 
approximately 142.97 acres of land, providing for an amendment of the 
zoning district map; containing a savings clause, a severability clause and 
an effective date and other provisions related to the subject. 

 



Page 3 of 4 – 9/29/2014    

 
 

 

VI.     MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA   

 

VII.  NEW BUSINESS:    

  

1. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of Ordinance 
No. 1505 – An Ordinance adopting a tax rate of $0.7121 and levying taxes for the 
use and support of the Municipal Government of the City of Pearland, Texas, and 
providing for the interest and sinking fund of the taxable year 2014.  

 

2. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of Ordinance 
No. 1506 – An appropriation ordinance adopting a revised budget for the fiscal 
year ending September 30, 2014 and adopting a budget for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015, and pay plans for 
fiscal year 2015.   

 

3. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of Ordinance 
No. 1358-11 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
amending non-development usage and service fees; containing a savings clause, 
a severability clause and a repealer clause; providing for publication and an 
effective date. 

 

4.  Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. 2014-121 –  A Resolution 
of the City Council of the City Of Pearland, Texas, approving and adopting the 
Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2015-2019.  

 

5. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No. 1507 – 
An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, finding that the 
City has established Guidelines and Criteria for Granting Tax Abatement pursuant 
to Resolution No. R2013-14; designating and describing a Reinvestment Zone (to 
be known as Reinvestment Zone #26) generally located at the intersection of 
McHard Road and SH35,  in accordance with the Property Redevelopment and 
Tax Abatement Act; finding that the improvements sought are feasible and 
practical and would be a benefit to the land to be included in the zone and the 
municipality after the expiration of the Tax Abatement Agreement; authorizing the 
City Manager to sign tax abatement agreements when approved by the City 
Council; having a savings clause and a severability clause; and an effective date. 

 

6. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-117 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the City 
Manager or his designee to enter into an Amended Development Agreement with 
MHI Compressor International Corporation and MHI Compressor Manufacturing, 
LLC. 



Page 4 of 4 – 9/29/2014    

 
 

 

 

 

7. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-119 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the City 
Manager or his designee to enter into a Letter Financing Agreement with the 
Lower Kirby Municipal Management District and Engineering Service Agreements 
with LJA Engineering, Inc. associated with the Hooper Road Reconstruction 
Project. 

 

8. City Council Policy Discussion Regarding Approach to requested In-City 
Municipal Utility Districts for developers’ rebate of portion of property tax. 

 

9. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-118 – A 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, directing staff to 
prepare a service plan for the proposed annexation of 12.29 acres located on the 
west side of County Road 48, west of Southern Trails Subdivision and 
approximately 2000 feet south of  Broadway Street. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS: None 
 

VII. MAYOR/COUNCIL ISSUES 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT  
 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call Young 
Lorfing at 281.652.1840 prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.   
 
 
 



Public 
Hearing 
Agenda 



Public Hearing













Consent 
Agenda 
Item A 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes: 
Minutes of the July 21, 2014, Joint Public Hearing held at 6:30 p.m. 
Minutes of the August  25, 2014, Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
Minutes of the September 2, 2014 Special Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 
Minutes of the September 8, 2014, Special Meeting held at 6:30 p.m. 
Minutes of the September 15, 2014, Special Meeting held at 6:00 p.m. 



 

Page 1 of 7 – 7/21/2014    
 

 

MINUTES OF THE JOINT PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON  
JULY 21, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL - 3519 
LIBERTY DRIVE 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux called to order the series of public hearings at 6:30 p.m. 
for the City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
The following were present: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux   Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
Council Member Greg Hill    Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
Council Member Tony Carbone   P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed 
Council Member Scott Sherman   P&Z Commissioner Elizabeth McLane 
       P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
       P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr 
 
Also present were City Attorney Darrin Coker, City Planner Johnna Matthews, Senior 
Planner Ian Clowes, Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao, Interim City 
Engineer Richard Mancilla, Deputy City Manager Jon Branson, City Manager Clay 
Pearson, Director of Capital Projects and Engineering, Executive Director of Community 
and Economic Development Matt Buchanan and Office Supervisor Judy Brown. 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews presented the public hearing process and order of the 
agenda. 
 
PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 

P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes read the purpose of the hearing into the record. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux opened the public hearing for Zone Change Application 
No. 2014-11Z at 6:32 p.m. 

 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-11Z 

 
A request of Salim Obeid, LJA Engineering, applicant; on behalf of Robert Lee Alexander, 
owner; by his attorney A.G. Crouch; for approval of a change in zoning from Office 
Professional (OP), General Business (GB) and Single Family Residential 2 (R2) to a non-
residential Planned Development (PD) known as Pearland Marketplace on approximately 
26.5 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 26.524 acres of land located in the Thomas J. Green Survey, 
Abstract No. 198, Brazoria County, Texas, more particularly being a portion of the residue 
of that certain called 140.6899 acre tract conveyed to Martha Alexander Crouch by 



Joint Public Hearing Minutes 
July 21, 2014 
Page 2 of 7 

 

instrument of record in Volume 1595, Page 422 of the Deed Records of said Brazoria 
County (B.C.D.R.) and a portion of the residue of that certain called 172.0566 acre tract 
conveyed to Robert L. Alexander by instrument of record in Volume 1725, Page 193 
(B.C.D.R.), Brazoria County, Texas  
 
General Location:  Southeast corner of Pearland Parkway and Barry Rose Road, 
Pearland, TX 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes read the purpose of the hearing. 

 

City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report stating the applicant was proposing 
a zone change to a non-residential Planned Development, Pearland Marketplace, to be 
developed with a mix of neighborhood service retail and pad sites anchored with a grocery 
store.  Staff recommended approval with concerns to be addressed on screening 
requirements adjacent to residential including the buffer that abuts the residential 
subdivision, Banbury Cross; a list of deviations from the standards in the base zoning 
districts; north arrow to be corrected; page numbers within the PD to be corrected; 
codification of enhancements that are mentioned throughout the PD; a legend to be 
included on the design plan; clarification of the lighting standards and a street light exhibit 
would be required.  Staff received 8 phone calls inquiring about the proposed zone 
changed.  Staff recommended approval with the referenced changes addressed. 
 
Mr. Salim O’Beid, applicant, LJA Engineering, spoke of the proposed grocery store, retail 
strip center, gas station and 2 pad sites. 
 
Ms. Wendy Wittman, 2127 Tower Bridge Rd. Pearland, TX spoke with concerns of the 
number of empty, unoccupied retail spaces in Pearland; how many businesses fail; heard 
the grocery store was Kroger and that we already had one; did not feel it would provide 
more jobs; and the only people to benefit would be Mr. Alexander. 
 
Ms. Shelly Hardy, 2108 Tower Bridge, Pearland, TX spoke with regards to the loading 
dock; property originally zoned residential; noise, lighting, and need for vegetative 
material between residents and business. 
 
Mr. George King, Jr. 2008 Tower Bridge Rd., Pearland, TX stated he agreed with Ms. 
Shelly Hardy and expressed concern with runoff water flooding, as the area had flooding 
in 2004.  He also inquired about the detention pond being wet or dry; concerned with the 
Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA), and hoped the community would have a say in what was 
allowed. 
 
Mr. Thomas Guerrierre, 3201 London Ct, Pearland, TX spoke in favor of the planned 
development stating it was a good plan, Pearland Parkway would succeed, and 
expressed concern for the traffic on London Court. 
 
Anselmo Lozano of 3213 London Ct., Pearland, TX spoke of concerns with the phases 
and thoroughfare approval. 



 

Page 3 of 7 – 7/21/2014    
 

 
Ms. Wendy Wittman, 2127 Tower Bridge Rd., Pearland TX spoke again regarding 
concern of the zone change as it was originally residential. 
 
Mr. A.G. Crouch, 235 Sealy St., Alvin, TX spoke stating he developed Banbury Cross and 
was related to the Alexander family.  He stated when Banbury Cross was developed, it 
was 70% Business, 15% office and 15% residential.  They also donated a large part to 
the drainage district and the area drains a lot better.  Mr. Crouch stated he would work 
with staff to enhance the area. 
 
Council Member Scott Sherman asked staff what the property was previously zoned, 
when did Pearland Parkway go in, did the zoning change with the parkway. City Planner 
Johnna Matthews stated she would have to research his questions and would get back 
with answers, following the meeting. 
 
Council Member Tony Carbone inquired when the drainage report and TIA be done; 
would the drainage be a negative impact on the neighbors. 
 
Council Member Scott Sherman inquired what would happen if it does have a negative 
impact on the neighbors.  Need to be diligent in designing the drainage plan. 
 
Council Member Greg Hill inquired about the engineering stands for the pump out 
facilities.  Need to be specific if it is wet or dry.  He was concerned with wet detention.   
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated the city always had engineering look at changes as it 
could become a problem with the developer and the Homeowners Association. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux stated that it is not the position of the city council to tell 
a business if they can or cannot open.  He stated the business could come in under the 
General Business zone without approval of a PD.  Kroger is in the private domain and 
bought the property outright.  City Council does not have a say in what people can and 
cannot do with their own land. 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall inquired if a bar-restaurant would be allowed in the 
zone without a Conditional use Permit.  He also asked what the adjoining PD was. 
Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao stated the adjoining PD was for a 
church, and that the Commission would look at the allowable uses. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed asked what other ways there were to get out of the 
subdivision.  City Planner Johnna Matthews stated London Court and Barry Rose, as well 
as Westminister to the south. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux stated that until the TIA was complete, the thoroughfare 
would not change.  Both City Attorney Darrin Coker and Interim City Engineer Richard 
Mancilla agreed. 
 



Joint Public Hearing Minutes 
July 21, 2014 
Page 4 of 7 

 

P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed inquired about a masonry wall.  City Planner Johnna 
Matthews stated a 25 foot landscape buffer, or a 30 foot vegetation screen would be 
required per the Unified Development Code. 
 
Council Member Tony Carbone stated the GB zone allowed many things and thanked the 
applicant for submitting a planned development (PD) with a better result.  A lot of uses 
could go in without a PD. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux adjourned the public hearing for Zone Change No. 
2014-11Z at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux opened the public hearing for Zone Change No. 2014-
10Z at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Zone Change Application No. 2014-10Z 

 
A request of James Johnson, Lake Park Pearland, Ltd., applicant; on behalf of James 
Johnson, FYCW, Ltd, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from Single Family Estate 
District (RE) to a mixed- use Planned Development (PD) known as Pearland’s Lake Park; 
on approximately 47 acres, to wit: 

 
Legal Description:  Being a 47.717 acre tract of land located in the W.B. Dobson Survey, 
Abstract-1 87, in Brazoria County, Texas; said 47.717 acre tract being the remainder 
of a called 48.35 acre tract recorded in the name of Bruno Bagnoli in Volume 339, Page 
319, of the Brazoria County Deed Records (B.C.D.R.), Brazoria County, Texas, Brazoria 
County, Texas  

 
General Location:  Northeast corner of Brookside Road and Cullen Parkway, Pearland, 
TX 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes read the purpose of the hearing into the record. 
 
City Planner Johnna Matthews read the staff report stating that all the concerns from the 
February 2014 workshop had not been addressed.  Staff was not opposed to the Zone 
change for the mixed-use PD but asked City Council for guidance. 
 
The applicant, Mr. James Johnson, 206 Riverfront Lane, Lafayette, LA spoke in detail of 
the planned development, adding that if an area was not addressed in the PD, then it 
would refer back to the Unified Development Code. 
 
Ms. Lucy Gehring, 1129 Stone Road, Pearland, TX spoke of a pipeline that blew up in 
Brookside, years ago.  She expressed concern with people living that close to a pipeline.  
Also, she felt that McHard Rd. should be done prior to this development. 
 
Council Member Tony Carbone inquired as to what safety issues staff had looked at with 
regards to pipelines, such as setbacks.  City Planner Johnna Matthews stated the plan 



 

Page 5 of 7 – 7/21/2014    
 

was to address pipeline setback in the next UDC update, T-17, in 2015. 
 
Mr. James Johnson stated a block valve was installed approximately 18 months ago and 
that the federal guidelines stipulate where the block valve needed to be placed. 
 
Council Member Greg Hill asked about the security of the public and private areas.  He 
inquired about some of the features in Phase 1 of the land plan. 
 
Council Member Tony Carbone stated he would like to see Phase 3 done after Phase 1, 
but ahead of Phase 2. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux stated he would like to see Phase 3 done as soon as 
possible. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Derrick Reed expressed concern with staff receiving comments up to 
the time of the meeting from the applicant. 
 
Mr. James Johnson stated he had met with staff numerous times in the last two weeks 
and asked if the plan could be approved with contingencies. 
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated yes, but cannot go before city council until completed. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes asked if the drawings were to scale.  Mr. Johnson replied 
yes. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux stated that it was his understanding that Pearland ISD 
had no comments in favor or opposition. 
 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall stated he was not in favor unless the lots could be 
moved away from the pipelines. 
 
Council Member Greg Hill inquired if the setback requirements would be met.  Mr. 
Johnson stated they would.  They must be met at 50 feet and this plan exceeds it by 
showing 110 feet. 
 
Council Member Scott Sherman asked Director of Community Development to provide a 
map with all the pipelines running through the city. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux adjourned the public hearing for Zone Change No. 
2014-10Z at 8:41 p.m. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux opened the public hearing for Conditional Use Permit 
Application No. 2014-05 at 8:41 p.m. 
 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2014-05 
 



Joint Public Hearing Minutes 
July 21, 2014 
Page 6 of 7 

 

A request of Raymond JJ Zhuo, applicant for Houston Chinese Church, owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow for a Church, Temple, or Place of Worship 
in the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District, on the following described property, 
to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being 5.00 acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-304 
in Brazoria County, Texas. Being the same land described as 5.00 acres in a warranty 
deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, dated July 5, 2007 and recorded 
as document No. 2007039242, official records of Brazoria County, Texas.  

 
General Location:  2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd.   

 

P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes read the purpose of the hearing into the record 
 
Senior Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating the Houston Chinese Church was 
seeking approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to construct a church campus on 
5.00 acres of land, with plans to construct the church campus in 3 phases.  The applicant 
previously was approved for the CUP; however the one year time frame was almost up 
and must begin construction or seek a one (1) year extension to avoid expiration of the 
CUP.  Therefore, the applicant was seeking the one year extension of the originally 
approved CUP.  Mr. Clowes stated the only change was the detention pond would be 
moved to the back with parking in the front.  Staff asked that one condition be placed 
upon the CUP, that the site be developed in accordance with the attached site plan 
provided by the applicant. 
 
Mr. Raymond Zhou, 10002 Autumn Lake Rd., Pearland, TX stated the church was doing 
a fundraiser and would be ready to begin construction soon. 
 
There was no one present to speak for or against the conditional use permit. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux commented that staff received only one public comment 
form in opposition, but gave no reason. 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes stated the CUP would expire on August 26, 2014 if the 
extension was not granted.  Senior Planner Ian Clowes concurred. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux adjourned the public hearing for Conditional Use Permit 
Application No. 2014-05 at 8:53 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Keith Ordeneaux adjourned the series of public hearings at 8:53 p.m. 
 
Mayor Tom Reid adjourned the series of public hearings at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 



 

Page 7 of 7 – 7/21/2014    
 

These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 

______________________________________________ 
Judy Brown, Community Development Office Supervisor 
 

Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 29th day of September, 2014 

A.D. 

_________________________________ 
Mayor Tom Reid 

 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS.  

 
Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with the following present: 
 
 

Mayor     Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem  Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore  
Councilmember  Greg Hill 
City Manager Clay Pearson 
City Attorney Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  

 
Others in attendance: Claire Bogard Director of Finance; Jon Branson Deputy City Manager; 
Matt Buchanan President of Pearland Economic Development Cooperation; J.C. Doyle 
Police Chief; Trent Epperson Assistant City Manager; Michelle Graham Director of Parks and 
Recreation; Lata Krishnarao Director of Community Development; Kim Sinistore Executive 
Director of the Convention/Visitors Bureau; Sparkle Anderson Communications Manager; 
Rick Overgaard Assistant Finance Director; Bob Pearce Purchasing Officer.  

 
The invocation was given by Councilmember Carbone and the Pledge of Allegiance was led 
by J.C. Doyle Chief of Police. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, 
Moore, and Hill. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS:   
 
Quentin Wiltz, 4105 Summer Lane, addressed Council stating he has questions regarding 
the Modern Green Development. How many mixed use projects have been proposed since 
the WaterLights District. Is the City certain this project, and amenities is what the community 
needs. What are the benefits working with Modern Green, and has the City done a gap 
analyses. He stated if Council wants to know what the residents think, give them an 
opportunity outside of social media and social network. If Council wants the residents to buy 
into this development then Council needs to sell it. 

 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



CONSENT AGENDA:   
 
 

A. Consideration And Possible Action – Approval Of Minutes:     
 
1. Minutes of the July 28, 2014, Regular Meeting, held at 6:30 p.m. 

 
B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 

Ordinance No. Cup 2014-05 An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, approving a Conditional Use Permit for certain property, 
being 5.00 Acres out of the G.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, A-304 in 
Brazoria County, Texas being the same land described as 5.00 Acres in a 
warranty deed from Steven C. Muth to Houston Chinese Church, dated July 
5, 2007 and recorded as Document No. 2007039242, official records of 
Brazoria County, Texas. (located at the 2500 Block of Miller Ranch RD., 
Pearland, TX Conditional Use Permit Application No. CUP 2014-05 to allow 
for a church, temple, or place of worship in the single family residential-1 (R- 
1) District at the request of Raymond JJ ZHUO, Applicant, on behalf of 
Houston Chinese Church, owner, containing a savings clause, a severability 
clause, an effective date and other provisions related to the subject. 

 
C. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-106 – A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, awarding a 
unit bid for water and wastewater analysis services to Eastex Environmental 
Laboratory, Inc. in the estimated amount of $80,605.00. 

 
D. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-105 – A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, accepting the 
City’s Investment Report for the quarter ending June 2014. 

 
E. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-107 – A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the 
City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with the 
Pearland Independent School District for School Resource Officer Program. 

 
F. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-101 – A 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, adopting the 
updated Parks and Recreation Programming Standards of Care for youth, 
ages 5-13 years. 

 
Councilmember Carbone made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Sherman, to adopt 
Consent Agenda Items A through F as presented on the Consent Agenda. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 
 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA: None.   
 
 

Page 2 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



NEW BUSINESS:     
 
Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-108 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City 
Of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the sale of undeveloped property abutting the Sam Houston 
Toll Way (between south Wayside Drive and Mykawa Road) to the Harris County Toll Road 
authority in the amount of $1,371,356.00. 
 
Councilmember Sherman made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, to 
approve Resolution No. 2014-108.  
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked to approve a land acquisition 
sale with Harris County Toll Road Authority for the grand total of $1,371,356. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Hill, Moore, Ordeneaux, Sherman, and Carbone. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 
 
Council Action – Resolution No. R2014-102 – A Resolution of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Interlocal 
Agreement with Brazoria County for certain road overlay projects: 1) Hatfield Road, FM 518 
north to Rice Road; 2) Veterans Drive, Walnut Street south to Magnolia Drive; and 3) Harkey 
Road, Magnolia Drive south to Bailey Road. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Carbone, to 
approve Resolution No. 2014-102.  
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked to approve the annual Interlocal 
Agreement between the City of Pearland and Brazoria County that covers the construction, 
maintenance, improvement and repair activities on certain streets in the City. The City will 
provide the materials and the County will provide the equipment and labor for the work 
performed. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
First Reading of Ordinance No. 1502 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, repealing Chapter 4, Alcoholic Beverages, of the City of Pearland Code of 
Ordinances, in its entirety, and adopting a new Chapter 4 for the purposes of complying with 
state law; having a savings clause, a severability clause, and a repealer clause; providing for 
publication, codification, and an effective date. 
 
Councilmember Moore made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Hill, to approve 
Ordinance No. 1502 on its First Reading. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson reported Council is being asked to approve the revision of the 
City’s Alcohol Ordinance. The City’s current ordinance was drafted in 1960 and does not 

Page 3 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



comply with state law. The City’s practice of issuing alcohol permits has always followed the 
state’s guidelines. The purpose for the new ordinance is to make the City’s ordinance 
consistent with state law and how the City processes permits. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Attorney Darrin Coker regarding a hospital or 
church that builds next to an existing establishment that sells alcoholic beverages would not 
be in violation of the City’s ordinance. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Hill, Moore, Ordeneaux, Sherman, and Carbone. 
 
Voting “No” None. 
 
Motion Passed 5 to 0. 

 
Council Action – Regarding the appointment to the Parks, Recreation and Beautification 
Board to Position No. 5 for unexpired term expiring November 1, 2017.   
 
Councilmember Hill made the motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, regarding the 
appointment to the Parks, Recreation and Beautification Board to Position No. 5 for 
unexpired term expiring November 1, 2017. 
 
Mayor Reid stated he would like to nominate Valerie Marvin. 
 
Councilmember Moore stated he would like to nominate Bethany D. Earl, she has experience 
in sales and marketing, and could possibly assist the Parks Department in advertising and 
bringing people to the parks. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated of the candidates listed, Kevin Lucas, Jessica Fernandez, Ted 
Mittica, and Valerie Marvin are the only ones that applied for a position on the Parks, 
Recreation and Beautification Board. The other candidates asked to be placed as an 
alternate. He thinks Council should look at the candidates that would primarily like to be 
placed on the Parks Board. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux agreed with Councilmember Hill. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he would like to see Valerie Marvin on the Parks, Recreation 
and Beautification Board. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated Valerie Marvin and Ted Mittica each listed a City of Pearland 
employee as a reference. He further stated Ted Mittica is retired, and Valerie Marvin is 
employed. 
 
City Attorney Darrin Coker stated to clarify regarding the three potential candidates for the 
vote that will take place in a few minutes; there were 2 hands for Ted Mittica, 2 hands for 
Valerie Marvin, and 1 hand for Bethany D. Earl. 
 
Councilmember Moore stated he would like to change his vote from Bethany D. Earl to Ted 
Mittica. 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



Councilmember Hill made the motion to amend the motion, seconded by Councilmember 
Moore, to approve the appointment of Ted Mittica to the Parks, Recreation and Beautification 
Board for Position #5 for unexpired term expiring November 1, 2017.  
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” Councilmember Carbone. 
 
Motion Passed 4 to 1. 
 
Mayor Reid called for the vote on the original motion as amended. 
 
Voting “Aye” Councilmembers Sherman, Ordeneaux, Moore, and Hill. 
 
Voting “No” Councilmember Carbone. 
 
Motion Passed 4 to 1. 
 
Mayor Reid stated New Business, Item 5, Ordinance No. 2000M-117 has been removed from 
the agenda to be considered at a future date.  

 
                      First Reading of Ordinance No. 2000M-117 – An ordinance of the City Council of the City 

of Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of Pearland, 
Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification of certain real property, being that 
portion of Lot 5 of the subdivision of James Hamilton Survey, Abstract No. 881, a portion 
lying within Harris County, Texas and the remainder lying within Brazoria County, Texas, 
according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 83, Page 342 of the deed records of 
Harris County, Texas, (located at the southwest corner of Spectrum Boulevard and State 
Highway 288, Pearland, TX), Zone Change 2014- 02Z; a request of Kevin Cole, applicant; on 
behalf of American Modern Green Development, LLC., owner; for approval of a zone change 
from the Waterlights Planned Development (PD) to the Modern Green-Ivy District PD, on 
approximately 48.5 acres of land, providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; 
containing a savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other provisions 
related to the subject.  

 
 Council Input and Discussion on:  FY2015 Budget and Multi-Year Plan: 

• General Fund Budget Further Reductions/Revenue Enhancements 
• Take Home Fleet Expansion  
• Police Staffing and Resources 
• City Hall Renovations 
• Water/Sewer Rates 
• Water Meter Change-Out Program 
• Other Budget Discussion  Items   

 
City Manager Clay Pearson and the Finance Department Budget Office provided responses 
to Council’s questions regarding the specifics of the FY 2014-2015 Proposed Budget for the 
City of Pearland through a PowerPoint presentation. 
Discussion ensued between Council and Chief of Police J.C. Doyle regarding clarification on 
the Fleet Expansion deferral option, FY2015 assignment for officers with 6 year’s service, 
then back to 5 years of service for FY2016. 

Page 5 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



 
Finance Director Claire Bogard stated it is the same affect through the 5 year period. The 
General Fund Balance will still be in this position in 2016, 2017, and 2018. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he would like the policy to stay with what was set last year. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated he agrees with Councilmember Carbone regarding staying with 
the policy that was set last year. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated until four weeks ago Council did not have a real sense of 
the financial situation the City was going to be in this year. Staff had to cut $285,000 from a 
wide range of departments. He thinks the right financial move at this point is to put this on 
hold. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to see more information regarding the turn 
over schedule for purchasing new police vehicles.  
 
Finance Director Claire Bogard stated over a 5 year period 39 officers will qualify with 5 years 
of service. With shared vehicles that will cut the number of vehicles the City has to purchase. 
Over a 5 year period the City is looking at purchasing 24 new vehicles for the 39 officers that 
qualify. The replacement life for take home vehicles that are not being driven 24 hours 7 days 
a week is 5 to 6 years. The City can get 2 more years of life out of the shared vehicles. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson stated this is staff’s collective recommendation to defer the 
Police Home Fleet Expansion because the City does not want to start the expansion service, 
and not be able to sustain for the next 2 or 3 years. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated the City created a Fund Balance Policy for a reason and 
we need to stick by that Policy. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the 2013 
Citizen Satisfaction Survey. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated he is for cutting the sidewalk repair for 2015 to be able to put four 
new police officers on the streets in the City of Pearland.  
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he agrees somewhat in concept when it comes to public 
safety. He would hate to cut the sidewalk program, but if it means being able to put more 
patrol officers on the streets where they are needed that is a choice he would make. 
 
Councilmember Sherman stated the Pearland Police Department does an excellent job. He 
has not seen anything that says the City is deficient to the point that the citizens are at risk. It 
is unfair to the citizens that have come to Council wanting their sidewalks repaired. There are 
tough choices to be made, but he does not think all the tough choices need to be used to 
shift to one department. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated some of the police officers receive an automatic cost of 
living increase every year on top of the salary increase. He suggested cutting the 2% salary 
increase this year to those police officers. The officers will still receive a higher bump in their 
salary with the cost of living increase. If a department is wanting something for their 
department the first cut should be from within that department. 

Page 6 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



 
Discussion ensued between Council and Chief of Police J.C. Doyle regarding the difference 
between priority 1 and priority 2 calls. 
 
Mayor Reid stated another way to address this issue is the tax rate. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated the City can go over the rollback tax rate, and 7% of the 
residents could call for an election. The rollback tax increase would pass if this is what the 
residents want.  
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Finance Director Claire Bogard regarding the 
General Government overview of expenditures. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated if Council is going to cut the budget to be able to add to 
the police department he would like to see how much the City would save regarding the 
police officers that receive the cost of living increase, and not receive the 2% salary increase. 
He further stated if the City wants to spend more, the City needs to do the conservative thing 
and cut spending from the top and not have to cut after the City already has the budget. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the funding 
for the City Hall Complex renovation will be from Certificates of Obligation. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he would like to see if staff could make some budget cuts 
from the City Hall Complex renovations. He has a problem spending from Certificates of 
Obligation when the City still has 2007 Bond Projects to be completed.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux and Councilmember Moore stated they would like to see a 
detailed list of the renovations for the City Hall Complex. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated regarding the Water Sewer Rate Options he does not have 
any objections to Option 1. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Finance Director Claire Bogard regarding the new 
Water-Sewer system and increase in revenues. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated the City will have to issue debt in 2016. He would like to see 
options of different types of amortization on the debt service. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated he talked to the Manager at Strickland Chevrolet regarding 
donating a fifteen passenger van to the Citizens Police Academy. That would be a big 
savings in the budget. The Manager will get back with him regarding his decision. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated a couple of ways the City may cut the budget is to consider 
pushing the donation fund for Needs Assessments for Animal Services closer to the time the 
City is ready to start the project. He further stated the City can build the energy efficient 
buildings, but do not apply for the Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) 
Certification and save $637,000. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Finance Director Claire Bogard regarding the 
Library Book Lease Program between the City of Pearland and Brazoria County, and credit 
card fees. 

Page 7 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



 
Councilmember Carbone thanked Staff for all their hard work and information in putting the 
budget together. 
 
City Manager Clay Pearson asked Council in the next couple of days to contact Staff if they 
have more suggestions or thoughts that may help Staff bring back information regarding the 
budget. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS: None. 
 
MAYOR/COUNCIL ISSUES: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:38 p.m. 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ______ day of ____________, A.D. 
2014. 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Tom Reid 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 8 – 8/25/2014    
 

 



 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with the following present: 
 

Mayor Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore 
Councilmember Greg Hill 
City Manager Clay Pearson 
City Attorney  Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  
 

Others in attendance: Daniel Baum Deputy Fire Chief; Claire Bogard Finance Director; 
Jon Branson Deputy City Manager; Matt Buchanan President of Pearland Economic 
Development Cooperation; J.C. Doyle Police Chief; Trent Epperson Assistant City 
Manager; Michelle Graham Director of Parks and Recreation; Bonita Hall Director of 
Human Resource and Safety Management; Lata Krishnarao Director of Community 
Development; Skipper Jones Assistant Director of Capital Projects; Johnny Spires 
Assistant Police Chief. 
 
Purpose of Hearing – Public comment and testimony regarding the proposed 2014 Tax 
Rate for the 2014–2015 Budget.   

 
Staff Review – Proposed 2014 Tax Rate for the 2014 – 2015 Budget.   
 
Finance Director Claire Bogard gave a presentation on the Tax Rate for the 2014 – 2015 
Budget. 

 
Citizen Comments: 
 
Robert Fawcett, 2112 Birdie Court, addressed Council stating what brought his family to 
Pearland 28 years ago were Mayor Reid’s words that safety and security has afforded 
residents to live in Pearland. He would like to ask Council to look carefully at any reduction 
with the City departments including the first responders. In the system of priorities public 
safety and security should come first. 
 
Jerry Joseph, 3506 Lauren Trail, addressed Council stating he has some thoughts 
regarding the City budget. He is concerned with the cost to purchase and maintain Police 
equipment. If the crime rate has increased in Pearland, the Police budget needs to be 
increased. He believes the most important thing for the City is to pay down debt, and as 
time progresses the City can look at increasing law enforcement and fire protection. 
 
 

Page 1 of 5 – 9/2/2014    
 



 

Council/Staff discussion: 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated regarding the Historical Tax Rate Allocation the tax 
rate has not changed very much. What has changed is the amount for debt service. He 
would like for everyone to think about how the City is going to attack the debt problem. 
 
Mayor Reid stated he agrees with Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux. This is something Council 
needs to be very careful and work on the debt. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated the tax rate purposes the highest in effect the City can 
have without having to go for a rollback election.  
 
Adjournment: 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:49 p.m. 
 
Mayor Reid called the Public Hearing to order at 6:50 p.m. 

 
Purpose of Hearing – Public comment and testimony regarding the proposed Fiscal 
Year 2014-2015 Budget.  

 
Staff Review – Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Budget.  
 
City Manager Clay Pearson and Finance Director Claire Bogard gave a presentative on 
the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Proposed Budget. 

 
Citizen Comments: 
 
Adam Carroll, 2502 Alexander, addressed Council stating as the President of the 
Pearland Police Officers Association he is representing the Pearland Police Officers. He 
wanted to clarify the cost of living expense. It is not a cost of living expense, it is an 
adopted Step Pay Plan. The Police Officers would like for this Pay Plan to be left alone. 
The Police Officers are asking Council not to cut the budget any further, the Officers need 
the appropriate tools to do their job and to get home safe. 

 
Council/Staff Discussion: 
 

                   Councilmember Carbone stated regarding Master Plans, there was a study done in 2010 
in terms of Fire and EMS. He has not seen anything regarding Public Safety from the 
Police Department. The City should be planning for Public Safety to make sure crime 
does not get out of control. He commended Pearland Economic Development 
Corporation for paying off their debt service.  

 
                   Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to clarify his statement he made 

regarding the Police Officers receiving a cost of living increase. He has been corrected. 
A Step Pay Plan increase is completely different than a cost of living increase. He would 
like to retract his statement regarding taking the cost of living expense from the Police 
Officers. 

Page 2 of 5 – 9/2/2014    
 



 

                   Councilmember Moore stated the Police, Fire, and EMS are of the most importance, and 
should be on Council’s mind when discussing the budget. 

 
Adjournment:   
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 

 
 NEW BUSINESS:     

   
COUNCIL INPUT AND DISCUSSION: Regarding the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget, and 
Multi-Year Financial Plan: 

• Police Staffing and Funding 
• Review of all changes to Budget from filed Budget 
• Other Budget Discussion Items 

 
City Manager Clay Pearson provided information regarding the Fiscal Year 2015 Budget, 
and Multi-Year Financial Plan through a PowerPoint presentation. 
 
Councilmember Hill stated it is important to plan for the future in regards to growth. It is 
also important that Pearland continues to be a safe City. The City needs to figure out how 
many Police Officers need to be hired per year based on the growth of the City. He stated 
for him the issue is not about hiring, it is about budgeting. To have the ability in the budget 
to hire as many as you need. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the Raise 
Processing Fee and the Natatorium HVAC system. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Police Chief J.C. Doyle regarding the number 
of Police Officers hired last year and the number to be hired this year. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to find a balance to keep Pearland’s 
infrastructure up. Without that infrastructure, home values go down.  
 
Councilmember Sherman stated this is a large budget that covers a lot of different issues. 
He is looking at the needs of the City as a whole. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the 
importance of having a Business Analyst and Chief Information Officer. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he would like to see a study of other like size Cities, 
metropolitan areas, average home value, things of that nature, and look at staffing across 
the board to see how Pearland compares. He agrees with option number two, hiring two 
Sergeants and three Police Officers. 

 
Mayor Reid stated he would like to try to use a technique to address some of these issues.   
 

Page 3 of 5 – 9/2/2014    
 



 

City Manager Clay Pearson stated he has been pushing for multi-year long range 
budgeting. Reality is Council needs to make a budget allocation with the various 
departments and support a certain number of positions. If hiring Police Officers is 
approved, Staff will start the recruitment, and hold to the City’s standards. Staff will come 
back to Council with an update on where the City stands regarding the recruitment of 
Police Officers.  
 
Councilmember Hill stated regarding the Police Personnel Service Options he agrees 
with option number three, hiring two Sergeants and four Police Officers. 
 
Discussion ensued between Council and Police Chief J.C. Doyle regarding the increased 
time on calls with Dispatch. 
 
Councilmember Moore stated regarding the Police Personnel Service Options he would 
like to see hiring two Sergeants and four Police Officers. If that is not possible he could 
compromise and go with hiring two Sergeants and three Police Officers. 
 
Councilmember Carbone stated he agrees with option number three, hiring two 
Sergeants and four Police Officers. At midyear this can be revisited at the Budget Update. 
If the positions have not been filled Council can reallocate the funds to sidewalks and 
streets. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS:  
 
Council adjourned into Executive Session under Texas Government Code at 8:23 p.m. to 
discuss the following: 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 

 
1.   Section 551.087 – Consultation with City Attorney – Regarding 

Economic Development Negotiations.  
 

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED:   
 
Council returned from Executive Session at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Consideration and Possible Action – Regarding Economic Development Negotiations. 
 
No Council Action taken.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 – 9/2/2014    
 



 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ____ day of ______________, 
A.D., 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Tom Reid 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

Page 5 of 5 – 9/2/2014    
 



 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 8, 2014, AT 6:30 P.M., IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with the following present: 
 

Mayor Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore 
Councilmember Greg Hill 
City Manager Clay Pearson 
City Attorney  Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  
 

Others in attendance: Daniel Baum Deputy Fire Chief; Claire Bogard Finance Director; 
Jon Branson Deputy City Manager; J.C. Doyle Police Chief; Trent Epperson Assistant 
City Manager; Roland Garcia Fire Marshal; Michelle Graham Director of Parks and 
Recreation; Bonita Hall Director of Human Resource and Safety Management; Lata 
Krishnarao Director of Community Development; Vance Riley Fire Chief; Kim Sinistore 
Executive Director of the Convention/Visitors Bureau; Sparkle Anderson Communications 
Manager; Skipper Jones Assistant Director of Capital Projects; Bob Pearce Purchasing 
Officer. 
 
Purpose of Hearing – Public comment and testimony regarding the proposed 2014 Tax 
Rate for the 2014–2015 Budget.   

 
Staff Review – Proposed 2014 Tax Rate for the 2014 – 2015 Budget.   
 
City Manager Clay Pearson stated this is the second formal Public Hearing on the 
proposed 2014 tax rate. 
 
Finance Director Claire Bogard gave a presentation on the Tax Rate for the 2014 – 2015 
Budget. 

 
Citizen Comments: None. 
 
Council/Staff discussion: 
 
Finance Director Claire Bogard stated the first reading of the ordinance is scheduled for 
September 22, 2014 with the second and final reading scheduled for September 29, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 – 9/8/2014    
 



 

Adjournment: 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 

 NEW BUSINESS:     
   

COUNCIL INPUT AND DISCUSSION: Regarding the proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 
2015, and Multi-Year Financial Plan and 5 Year Capital Improvement Program. 
City Manager Clay Pearson and Finance Director Claire Bogard gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2015, and Multi-Year Financial Plan 
and 5 Year Capital Improvement Program. 
Councilmember Carbone stated he realizes Staff recommended Option three to hire two 
Sergeants and three Officers. He prefers Option one, hiring two Sergeants and four 
Officers. Regarding the Five Year Forecast Impact, he is concerned if the City is getting 
their money’s worth on the Information Technology side. He is not comfortable with that 
being a priority over requests for sidewalks and staffing for Public Safety. Reviewing the 
Fee Ordinance and looking at comparative Cities, the City of Pearland is the only City to 
charge for foster home permits. He does not think that is right, the City should waive that 
charge. 
Councilmember Sherman stated regarding the three options for Police staffing he cannot 
support any of the options. He appreciates what Staff has done putting the information 
and budget together. At this point he is not sure if he can support the budget at all. 
Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux stated he does not like the idea of raising the permit fee, if it 
was covering cost for the Permit Department he would feel different. When looking at the 
Police Department budget he would like to take the funds at the end of each month if a 
Police Officer has not been hired, move them to the sidewalk fund. Instead of those funds 
setting there use those funds for repairs before the damage gets worse and costs the City 
more. He prefers Option two, hiring two Sergeants and three Officers is the best option 
regarding the budget. 
Councilmember Moore stated he is concerned with the 563 requests for sidewalk repair 
since 2009. He prefers Option one, but he could be persuaded to go with Option two if he 
knew the City would aggressively use the funds and time for the infrastructure repairs. 
Councilmember Hill stated he agrees with Councilmember Carbone regarding the permit 
fee for a foster home, the City should waive that fee. With regards to the Police Staffing, 
Option One, hiring two Sergeants and four Officers is the better option. 
Discussion ensued between Council and Police Chief J.C. Doyle regarding the four 
positions that are currently open in the Police Department do not count the two Sergeants 
and four Officers that are being discussed in the Police Staffing Five Year Forecast. 
Discussion ensued between Council and City Manager Clay Pearson regarding the 
Information Technology budget and the 563 requests for sidewalk repair. 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 – 9/8/2014    
 



 

OTHER BUSINESS: None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ____ day of ______________, 
A.D., 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Tom Reid 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

Page 3 of 3 – 9/8/2014    
 



 

MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2014, AT 6:00 P.M., IN 
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
Mayor Reid called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with the following present: 
 

Mayor Tom Reid 
Mayor Pro-Tem Keith Ordeneaux 
Councilmember Tony Carbone 
Councilmember Scott Sherman 
Councilmember Gary Moore 
Councilmember Greg Hill 
Deputy City Manager Jon Branson 
City Attorney  Darrin Coker 
City Secretary Young Lorfing  
 

Others in attendance: Trent Epperson Assistant City Manager; Matt Buchanan President 
of Pearland Economic Development Cooperation. 
 
Call to Order 
 
Roll Call: Mayor Reid, Mayor Pro-Tem Ordeneaux, Councilmembers Carbone, Sherman, 
Moore, and Hill. 
 
New Business:     

 
Council adjourned into Executive Session under Texas Government Code at 6:01 p.m. to 
discuss the following: 

 
Executive Session under Texas Government Code 

 
1.   Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters – Regarding appointments 

to the Boards and Commissions.    
 

New Business Continued: 
 
Council returned from Executive Session at 6:18 p.m. 
 
Council Action – Regarding appointments to the Boards and Commissions.   

 
No Council action taken. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 – 9/15/2014    
 



 

Adjournment: 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 6:18 p.m. 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected this the ____ day of ______________, 
A.D., 2014. 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Tom Reid 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Young Lorfing, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 – 9/15/2014    
 



Consent 
Agenda 
Item B 

B. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No.  2000M-118 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of 
the City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification 
of certain real property, being a tract of land containing 2.939 acres out of 
Lots 20, 21 and 22 of the George W. Jenkins Subdivision, in Brazoria 
County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 2, 
Page 20, of the Brazoria County, Texas Plat Records (located at the 
northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, Pearland, 
Texas), Zone Change 2014-12Z; a request of Brian Allen, Baks Brewery, 
applicant; on behalf of George Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in 
zoning from General Commercial (GC) to a non-residential Planned 
Development known as Baks Brewery; on approximately 2.94 acres of 
land, providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a 
savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other 
provisions related to the subject. 



1 

AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: September 29, 2014 ITEM NO.:   Ordinance No. 2000M-118 

DATE SUBMITTED: September 16, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Johnna Matthews PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao 

REVIEWED BY:  Lata Krishnarao   REVIEW DATE:  September 17, 2014 

SUBJECT: A request of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of 
George  Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from 
General Commercial  (GC) to a non-residential Planned Development 
known as Baks Brewery; on  approximately 2.94 acres of land, to wit: 

 General Location: Northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel 
Street, Pearland, TX 

ATTACHMENTS:    Ordinance No. 2000M- 118 and Exhibits (Exhibit A –
   Legal Description; Exhibit B – Location Map; Exhibit C - 
   Legal Ad; Exhibit D- Planning and Zoning Commission 
   Recommendation Letter; Exhibit E – Baks Brewery PD 
   document); Attachment A:  Joint Public Hearing Packet  

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
  Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The subject property includes approximately 2.939 acres of land, of which the applicant 

is requesting approval of a Planned Development (PD) in order to operate a micro-

brewery. The existing primary building on site will be converted into a micro-brewery 

that will brew and distribute beer, as well as provide a tasting room and retail operation 

open to the public.  A small area inside of the brewery will be available to the general 



2 
 

public to rent for special events, such as birthday parties, wedding receptions, corporate 

functions, etc. 

 

Proposed improvements include compliance with the requirements of the Corridor 

Overlay District (COD), with few exceptions listed within the PD.  The applicant 

proposes enhanced landscaping, including the addition of shrubs and trees along 

Broadway and Shauntel Streets and internal landscaping; construction of a trail, when 

the City constructs the proposed hike and bike trail along Mary’s Creek; and a large 

area towards the rear of the property that will be maintained as open space. 

 

It is important to note that the existing zoning district permits a host of various non-

residential uses, including the applicant’s proposed retail component of the brewery and 

the hosting of special events.  The purpose of the PD is to allow the “brewery” portion of 

the business, categorized as a manufacturing use; “Manufacturing, Industrial Storage or 

Assembly Process Not Prohibited by Law.”   The Unified Development Code (UDC) 

defines the manufacturing component of the business as a facility that houses 

manufacturing, storage, and assembly operations including, but not limited to, beverage 

plant, fabrication, metal finishing, foundry, ice plant, machine shop, mill, printing plant, 

publishing and bindery plant, masonry products manufacturing, refinery for 

nonagricultural products, food products, processing and packaging plant, and precision 

instruments manufacturing.” 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were 
mailed to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property under consideration for the change in zoning.  Staff received three (3) returned 
notices from property owners within 200 feet of the site; one (1) in support of and two 
(2) in opposition to the proposed Baks Brewery PD. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on August 18, 2014, Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Daniel Tunstall made a motion to approve the change in zoning.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr, with conditions regarding minor 
staff concerns, including details regarding the phasing plan and revision of the deviation 
table.  The motion passed 7/0. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Consider Zone Change Application 

2014-12Z to change the zoning of the approximately 2.9 acre site from General 

Commercial (GC), to Baks Brewery PD. 

  



Ordinance No. 2000M-118 
 

 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, amending 
 Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of Pearland, Texas, for the 
 purpose of changing the classification of certain real property, being a tract of 
 land containing 2.939 acres out of Lots 20, 21 and 22 of the  George W. Jenkins 
 Subdivision, in Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof 
 recorded in Volume 2, Page 20, of the Brazoria County, Texas Plat Records 
 (located at the northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, 
 Pearland, Texas), Zone Change 2014-12Z; a request of Brian Allen, Baks 
 Brewery, applicant; on behalf of George  Gartner, owner; for approval of a 
 change in zoning from General Commercial (GC) to a non-residential Planned 
 Development known as Baks Brewery; on approximately 2.94 acres of land, 
 providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a 
 savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other 
 provisions related to the subject.  

 

 WHEREAS, Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of George 

Gartner, owner; is seeking approval of a change in zoning from General Commercial 

(GC) to a non-residential Planned Development known as Baks Brewery; on 

approximately 2.94 acres of land; said property being legally described in the original 

application for amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as 

Exhibit “A” and more graphically depicted in the location map identified as Exhibit “B”; 

and 

WHEREAS, on the 18th day of August, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "C", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 19th day of August, 2014, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council 

regarding the zone change application of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on 

    
   



behalf of George Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from General 

Commercial (GC) to a non-residential Planned Development known as Baks Brewery; 

on approximately 2.94 acres of land, said recommendation attached hereto and made a 

part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “D”; and  

 
WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 22nd day of September 

2014 and the 29th day of September 2014; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of George 

Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from General Commercial (GC) to a 

non-residential Planned Development known as Baks Brewery; on approximately 2.94 

acres of land, presented which, in the judgment of the City Council, would justify the 

approval of said application; now, therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 
 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the General 

Commercial (GC) zoning district, is hereby granted a change in zoning to a Planned 

Development (PD), known as Baks Brewery PD district; said PD attached hereto as 

Exhibit E; in accordance with all conditions and requirements of the current Unified 

Development Code and incorporated for all purposes, such property being more 

particularly described as: 

 
 Being a 2.939 acre tract out of Lots 20, 21 and 22 of the George W. Jenkins 
 Subdivision, in Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof 

Page 2 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 recorded in Volume 2, Page 20, of the Brazoria County, Texas Plat Records 
 
 GENERAL LOCATION:   Northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel 
 Street, Pearland, TX 
 

     Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that  
the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 
prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 
proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 
that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 
presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 
City Council for consideration and decision. 

 

  Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

 

                                  Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

 

 Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

 

 Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

approval on second and final reading. 

Page 3 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 

          PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 22nd day of 

September, 2014. 

 

 
       _________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC  
CITY SECRETARY 
 
 
 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 29th      

day of September, 2014.       

 

       __________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 4 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 
Exhibit A 

Legal Description 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 
Ex

hi
bi

t B
 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

M
ap

 
 

 
P

ag
e 

6 
of

 1
0 

O
rd

. N
o.

 2
00

0M
-1

18
 

 



 
Exhibit C 
Legal Ad 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 
Exhibit D 

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 19, 2014 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 
 
Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-12Z, Baks Brewery 

Planned Development (PD) 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
At their meeting on August 18, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
the following:   
 
 A request of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on behalf of George 
 Gartner, owner; for approval of a change in zoning from General Commercial 
 (GC) to a non-residential Planned Development known as Baks Brewery; on 
 approximately 2.94 acres of land, to wit: 
 
 Legal Description:  Being a 2.939 acre tract out of Lots 20, 21 and 22 of the 
 George W. Jenkins  Subdivision, in Brazoria County, Texas, according to the 
 map  or plat thereof recorded in Volume 2, Page 20, of the Brazoria County, 
 Texas Plat Records 
 

 General Location:  Northeast corner of Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, 
 Pearland, TX 

Commissioner Daniel Tunstall made a motion to approve the zone change request, 
known as Baks Brewery PD.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Mary Starr. 
 
 
 

Page 8 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 
The motion passed 7/0, with the following conditions: 
 
 1.  Provide details within the PD regarding the phasing of improvements,   
      including the proposed trail system. 
 
 2.  Revise the Design Standards Deviation Table regarding outdoor activities with 
      specifics, as opposed to the current statement “Activities including, but not  
      limited to, a covered seating area for customers. 
 
 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Johnna Matthews 
 
City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



 
Exhibit E 

Baks Brewery Planned Development (PD) 
 
 

See Following Page 

Page 10 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-118 

 



BAKS Brewing Management, Inc.
Planned Development District (PD)

for City of Pearland



Description of the Subject Property.

Subject property is located at 1231 Broadway Street, in Pearland, Texas.  It sits on 2.94 acres of which 
approximately half is developed and fenced and contains the primary building which is ± 8,753 SF 
total.  This building includes a 2,000 SF showroom, 849 SF Office/s and 5,144 SF warehouse.  Within the 
developed fenced area is an additional 1500 SF wash bay and 400 SF storage building.  Besides facing 
Broadway, Shauntel Street runs adjacent to the property.   The back section of the property is undevel-
oped green area which borders along Mary’s Creek.

CURRENT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

1.3480 Acres Developed Area
1.2748 Acres Undeveloped Area
0.316 Acres Dedicated Street Easement

2.9388 Acres Total Tract



PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT DESCRIPTION 
The proposed development will be to convert the use of the building to a working production craft 
brewery with a public taproom (Think: wine tasting room).

COMPANY DESCRIPTION
BAKS Brewing Management Inc. is a privately held corporation owned and managed by its found-
ers, Brian Allen and Kris Szecsy. The business of the company is the production of quality, fresh, 
flavorful beer for the local market. BAKS believes that when looking at local breweries around the 
Houston area there are very few options for the Southern Houston region. Pearland is not only the 
town where Brian grew up, but with its growth over the last 10 years, it provides a prime market 
that can and will support a local brewery.

BAKS Brewing will initially produce five different styles of beer and a non-alcoholic root beer.  These 
styles include: a Belgian Texas Blonde, American Pale Ale, Session India Pale Ale (IPA), Porter and 
American IPA . These products will be distributed in kegs to licensed retail outlets. The beers of the 
BAKS Brewing Company will be sold to bars and restaurants in the greater Pearland area with our 
initial focus being on the communities south of downtown Houston, including Pearland, Friend-
swood, Clear Lake, League City, Alvin, Webster, Kemah, Dickinson & Galveston.

BAKS Brewing will produce beer with a 20 barrel, stainless steel brewing plant. Production capacity 
of our 20-barrel plant with five fermenters is approximately 5000 barrels a year (1 barrel equals 31 
gallons, which equals two standard 15.5-gallon kegs).

BAKS Brewing will have a tap room where customers may come to view and tour the operation of 
the brewery. They will also be able to purchase our beers at retail prices for both on-site consump-
tion and beer to go in the form of growler fills (and eventually 6-packs & 22oz. bottles).   Promotion-
al merchandise with our name/logo such as pint glasses, t-shirts and growlers will also be sold.

Additionally, BAKS will have a dedicated area within the actual brewery warehouse that will be 
available for rental and special events, such as corporate meetings, wedding receptions and fund 
raising events.

BAKS will also provide scheduled tours of the brewery that will give an intimate and hands on expe-
rience.  These tours will be reserved in advance and will take place with one of the owners or brew-
ers.  The tours will allow patrons to see, experience and taste the complete brewing process.  They 
will be able to sample the ingredients (ie. Malt, hops, etc.), that go into making the beer as well as 
sample the beer at different stages of fermentation.  We will be able to help educate them on the 
actual process of making the beer.

BAKS BREWING WILL 
PRODUCE ITS OWN 

NON-ALCOHOLIC ROOT 
BEER



POTENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS & BENEFITS  
PROPERTY IMPROVEMENTS AND BENEFITS
• Improved landscaping - will not only improve and add additional landscaping where available 

(currently most green area in and directly surrounding the property is already landscaped) but 
will add a row of shrubs along back fence to add one more layer of concealment from residential 
neighborhood

• Improved building façade - will cover the metal exterior with stucco, masonry or stone
• Will include a small rental area inside of the brewery (but separated from any brewing equipment) 

for event rentals such as birthdays, wedding receptions, corporate functions, etc.)
• New sprinkler system for both warehouse and retail area (tap room)
• Minimal building changes and renovations required to support the brewery - some minimal cos-

metic improvements made to the front retail area to convert it to the tap room, installing trench 
drains are all that is required

• Improved green (outdoor) area behind property by adding seating & picnic nodes
• Will add a trail connecting to the proposed hike & bike trail to the brewery and will provide an 

area to park bicycles
• Will add park benches to green area between brewery and hike & bike trail

NEARBY AREA BENEFITS
• Green area behind property will be maintained as a buffer to residential community located on the 

opposite side of Mary’s Creek
• Will add an additional line of shrub coverage (eg. Large wax myrtles) along the outside of the 

back property fence
• Will support local eating establishments as we do not serve food and patrons will want some 

place to eat before/after visiting the tap room.
• Will also work with local area Pearland dining establishments to create custom beers based on 

their style preference
• Heavy equipment and large truck traffic will decrease as we will only have 1 small refrigeration 

truck stop by for loading/unloading kegs 1-2 times a week

OVERALL CITY BENEFITS
• Additional tourism and related financial benefit for Pearland (Saint Arnold Brewery is currently a 

top 10 tourist destination for Houston)
• Hike & Bike Trail destination
• Additional tax dollars 
• A destination for local residents seeking entertainment other than just a restaurant
• Pearland will have its own brewery producing and selling craft beer to the greater Houston area

Land Acreage Description
The attached site survey shows the total property acreage to be 2.9388

PD Purpose & Intent Statement
The purpose and intent of the PD established is to allow a new use ‘Manufacturing, Industrial Storage or Assembly 
Process Not Prohibited by Law’ (which has been identified by the city as the most appropriate) on this property 
which is currently zoned as General Commercial (GC).

This new use is described as a facility that houses manufacturing, storage, and assembly operations including, but 
not limited to, beverage plant, fabrication, metal finishing, foundry, ice plant, machine shop, mill, printing plant, 
publishing and bindery plant, masonry products manufacturing, refinery for nonagricultural products, food prod-
ucts, processing and packaging plant, and precision instruments manufacturing. 

This use is not permitted by right in the GC zoning district and thus would require a zone change to operate. Based 
on this information and guidance from the city’s planning/zoning department, the applicant determined the best 
path forward would be to apply for a Planned Development to operate a small craft brewery.

 
BAKS PLANS TO 

SUPPORT PISD BY 
PROVIDING ITS SPENT 

GRAIN AT NO COST 
TO THE SCHOOL’S FAA 
PROGRAM FOR USE AS 

LIVESTOCK FEED.

 
BAKS BREWING WILL 
WORK WITH OTHER 
LOCAL BUSINESSES 
SUCH AS PEARLAND 

COFFEE ROASTERS TO 
PROVIDE INGREDIENTS 
FOR SPECIALITY BEERS 
(EG. COFFEE PORTER)



1. Increased traffic into neighborhood located behind property.

There is only 1 access gate onto Shauntel that would allow patrons to drive into the neighbor-
hood.  BAKS will post signage on both sides of gate upon exiting that states: ‘DO NOT TURN 
RIGHT NOT A THRU STREET’.  This should eliminate the majority, if not all traffic from accident-
ly turning into the neighborhood.  We will also be able to close this gate when not needed to 
limit any traffic from entering/leaving our property via the Shauntel street entrance.

2. Patrons being able to see, watch or speak to people (employees or children) located 
at the business and home 2 lots over.

BAKS will install (2) gates approximately 6’ high gates blocking all traffic from entering the 
property on the East side and North side of the building.  (See attached site plan for proposed 
gate locations)  This will prohibit any and all traffic from being able to see, watch or speak to 
any persons on the adjacent property.

Additionally, the outdoor seating area is located adjacent to the building on the opposite side 
of the business which prevents any chance of anyone seeing or speaking to anyone else out-
side of the property.

3. Smells

The only smell produced by brewing beer is the smell of boiling grain to produce wort.  The 
smell is not unpleasant and is similar to cooked oatmeal.  Additionally, the smell will be con-
tained and disbursed within the warehouse.

Additional Community Involvement

We will work with other local Pearland businesses to help promote both enterprises.  For in-
stance, we have spoken with the owners of Pearland Coffee Roasters about providing roasted 
coffee beans to be used in speciality beers such as a coffee porter.

One of the only by-products from brewing is spent grain (the grain we have boiled to produce 
wort).  This makes great livestock feed and generally, breweries work with local farmers to 
pick-up and use the spent grain.  We have spoken with the Agriculture Department of Pear-
land Independent School District and  will work with them (Hunter Morgan) to provide our 
spent grain at no cost to students to use for their livestock.

Lastly, we plan to hire locally and provide jobs for Pearland.  Our first and currently only em-
ployee (part time book keeper) is a Pearland resident.

POSSIBLE CITIZEN’S CONCERNS  



ZONING & LAND USE  
Existing zoning district and boundary description

The property is currently zoned as a General Commercial District (GC) which is intended to permit a wide 
variety of businesses characterized by those uses that may require an extensive amount of land for the 
conduct of business and/or that may require outside storage uses.  The front South West property line runs 
along a major thoroughfare, West Broadway, on which the other side is also zoned ‘GC’ (and includes a 
restaurant).  The North West property line runs along Shauntel Street, on which the opposite property is 
zoned as ‘General Business Retail District (GB).  The North East property line runs along Mary’s Creek, for 
which the District on the other side is zoned as a Single-Family Residential-3 (R3).  Lastly, the South East 
property line runs adjacent to a property which is zoned as Office & Professional District (OP).

  1231 E. Broadway Property

Base zone description

The base zone to be overlaid will be GC.

This zone will encompass the entire property which has the same district boundaries as mentioned 
above, “The front South West property line runs along a major thoroughfare, East Broadway, on 
which the opposite side property is also zoned ‘GC’.  The North West property line runs along Shaun-
tel Street, on which the opposite property is zoned as ‘General Business Retail District (GB).  The 
North East property line runs along Mary’s Creek, for which the District on the other side is zoned as 
a Single-Family Residential-3 (R3).  Lastly, the South East property line runs adjacent to a property 
which is zoned as Office & Professional District (OP).”

Use Acres Percentage of Total Acres Zoning District
Single Family n/a n/a
Multiple Family n/a n/a
General Business/Commercial 1.5 50% GC w/PD
Parkland to be dedicated to the city n/a n/a
Common Open Spaces/Trails/Recreation 1.44 ~49% GC w/PD
Detention n/a n/a
Thoroughfares/ROW n/a n/a
Internal Streets/Vehicular Circulation n/a n/a
Others n/a n/a



DESIGN STANDARDS  
All zoning standards not expressly set forth for the district in the adopting ordinance shall be as provided in 
the base zoning district(s), and that any standard in this ordinance that has not been expressly varied in the 
adopting ordinance shall be applicable to subsequent development permits for land within the PD district.

The following standards will be improved to meet both the ‘GC’ and ‘Corridor Overlay District’ UDC require-
ments:

• Building Facade - we will cover the existing metal facade with stucco in a neutral color (from the ap-
proved color palate) to match the existing brick.  See attachment for rendering.

• Signage - Once the building facade has been covered will install sign with our company name that is 
not more than 15% of surface area.  We will also update the existing monument sign which is also within 
the COD UDC requirement (ie. replace Sunbelt with BAKS)

• Landscaping - The current landscaping exceeds the UDC COD requirements, but we will replace all 
dead and diseased trees and shrubs, as well as lay all new mulch and ensure the installed irrigation 
system is working correctly.

• Screening/Fencing - The entire property (excluding open green area) is fenced with a 6’ black rod iron 
fence which is surrounded by additional landscaping.  We will fix and replace any bent or damaged 
fencing as well as plant additional trees along the back of the property fence for additional screening.

• Lighting - All current (3) light poles on the property along with building lighting will be inspected and 
updated to meet current COD Standards

The following standards exceed both the ‘GC’ and ‘Corridor Overlay District’ UDC requirements:

• Green Area - BAKS Brewing currently provides approximately 49% of its property as green area and we 
plan for it to remain that way.   Almost half of the property is an open green area (outside of the prop-
erty fence) located at the rear of the property which end long Mary’s Creek.  BAKS intends to promote 
the green area in support of the city’s proposed hike & bike trail by adding seating and picnic nodes, 
additional bench seating and a compacted gravel trail connecting the hike & bike trail to the rear of the 
brewery, where we will locate a (lockable) gate to provide access onto the brewery.  We will also install 
a security camera to monitor traffic and provide an additional level of security

• Bicycle Parking - BAKS will have at least (2) separate bicycle parking facilities; one in front and one 
located at the back of the property where there will be a gate and pathway connecting the brewery 
to the city’s proposed hike & bike trail.  BAKS will also support and promote local running and biking 
organizations.

Parking Table
Existing Spaces: 16

Additional Proposed Spaces: 17+

Total Spaces: 33+



PD Districts are “intended to encourage flexible and creative planning and property development” and 
this PD is for an existing property that already meets most of the standards.

We understand that “the Corridors Overlay District (COD) is intended to help the City exercise greater 
control over the aesthetic, functional and safety characteristics of development along newly construct-
ed major thoroughfares within the City where higher development standards can effectively enhance 
the City’s image as a desirable place to live, work, and shop.”

Due to the existing layout with existing parking lot, fence, irrigation system and landscaping that 
exceeds COD Standards, as well as several utility connections (including: AT&T box with 6 surrounding 
bollards, storm water access, fire hydrant, light pole, water line access and waste water lift station), we 
are proposing to build the sidewalk within the TxDOT ROW similar to what was done (2) lots down.  We 
will work within the area to provide a 6’ wide side walk and are currently working with Johnson Traffic 
Engineers for the TxDOT application.   (See attachment for graphical presentation).

Additionally, where our sidewalk will end at the east end of property, there is only approximately 1100’ 
to the end of the city limits.  

DESIGN STANDARDS (Cont.)  

View of west frontage, looking west View of far west frontage @ Shauntel Street View of center frontage looking west

View of smaller eastern frontage looking east
towards Friendswood

View of property located (2) lots to the west



DESIGN STANDARDS DEVIATION TABLE  

Standard GC/COD Requirement PD Deviation

Parking
One space for each 1.5 em-
ployees = 4.5 spaces

We will exceed by providing 
33 spaces that meet UDC 
standards

Sidewalk

6’ wide, 6’ separation from 
back of curb with 80% 
curved alignment

Due to existing conditions 
sidewalk will be 6’wide and 
constructed within TxDOT 
ROW but will not provide 
6’ separation from curb nor 
80% curved alignment

Use

Does Not Allow for ‘Manu-
facturing, Industrial Storage 
or Assembly Process Not 
Prohibited by Law’

Allows for ‘Manufacturing, 
Industrial Storage or Assem-
bly Process Not Prohibited 
by Law’

Landscaping

- 15% of gross lot area shall 
consist of landscaped open 
areas 

- Large shade trees (2”) cali-
per for each (10’) of frontage 
= 78” for 386’ frontage

- Ornamental trees (1”) cali-
per for each (15’) of frontage 
= 26” for 386’ frontage

- We will exceed standard 
with ~50% of area for land-
scaped open areas

- We will exceed standard 
with 94” tree calipers on 
386’ of frontage

- We will exceed standard 
with 65” tree calipers on 
386’ of frontage

- Large undeveloped green 
area in back of property 
provides an additional 40+ 
shade trees 20’ - 50’ in 
height

- Will support future Hike 
& Bike train along Marys’s 
Creek by connecting to it 
with a path and providing 
seating/picnic nodes

Bicycle Parking

Amount equal to 5% of total 
parking spaces

We will exceed standard 
with an amount of 20% of 
total parking spaces provid-
ed for bicycle parking



SCHEDULE  

PD is approved
Lease is signed

Month 1
- Brewing equipment is ordered
- Apply for TABC & TTP Licences

Months 1-3
- 450 SF cold room assembled and attached to back of warehouse
- Trench floor drains are installed in the warehouse
- Sprinkler system installed in warehouse and public area (eg. Tap room)
- Electrical and plumbing provisions are made to support forthcoming brew system
- Showroom is renovated to support the tap room
- Landscaping improvements are made
-     Stuuco is added to exterior of building
- Sidewalk is constructed in front of property

Month 4
- Brew system arrives and is installed
- Building inspections approved
- New signage goes up

Month 5
- Grand Opening…. Beer is made and happily served to excited customers!

Month 6
- Picnic and seating nodes are added to undeveloped green area.  A trail and bicycle 
parking will be added once the city has constructed the Hike & Bike trail along Mary’s 
Creek in order to maximize the location and layour of the trail to best serve the public.

“BAKS Brewery would be an asset to Pearland in providing group tours 
and tastings as well as providing a venue for corporate/social events.  

This can only aide Pearland in its growth of tourism businesses.”

Kim Sinistore, Executive Director 
City of Pearland Convention & Visitors Bureau (CVB) 



Today America, and especially Texas, is experiencing a revival of its brewing 
tradition. Craft breweries are defined by the Brewers Association as small 
(producing less than 6 million barrels), independent (less than 25% of 
the craft brewery is owned or controlled by alcoholic beverage industry 
member that is not a craft brewer) and traditional (all malt flagship or at 
least 50% of its volume in all malt beers which use adjuncts to enhance 
rather than lighten flavor).  2,347 craft breweries operated for some or all 
of 2012, comprised of 1,132 brewpubs, 1,118 microbreweries and 97 regional 
craft breweries, this is the most in operation since the pre-Prohibition era.  
Growth of the craft brewing industry in 2012 was 15% by volume and 17% by 
dollars compared to growth in 2011 of 13% by volume and 15% by dollars. 
 
INTRODUCTION TO CRAFT BREWERIES

Craft breweries are a historic means for satisfying the public’s demand for 
a greater variety of fresh quality beer.  In the late nineteenth and early 
twentieth centuries, the United States supported nearly four thousand (4000) 
breweries, the majority being independent local and regional operations 
producing a vast array of Old World beer styles.  Without question, 
Prohibition nearly destroyed this American brewing history and tradition.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INDUSTRY DESCRIPTION

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND

ADVANTAGES OF CRAFT BREWERIES

One of the advantages of a craft brewery is its ability to supply its product 
to the consumer when it is at its peak of freshness.  Craft breweries are 
brewing a handcrafted product on a more limited scale where quality is 
the most important concern.  For this reason, using the highest quality 
traditional ingredients – malted barley, hops, yeast and water – is justified, 
rather than the chemicals and cheaper adjuncts such as corn and rice which 
are used by large scale brewers to cut costs.  Fresh quality beer produced 
locally, without chemicals in processing or for preservation, is the key note 
of the craft beer industry.

The craft brewery has the additional advantage of bringing the beer 
drinking public into immediate contact with the equipment, people and 
operation associated with the beer production.  A well designed craft 
brewery with tap room allows the public to witness first-hand the creation 
of the handcrafted beer they are drinking, feel like they are part of the 
process, and take pride in their ‘local’ beer.

 
“LIGHT BEER IS CEDING 
GROUND AS CABERNET-
LOVING BABY BOOMERS 

AND MILLENNIALS WEANED 
ON EXOTIC COCKTAILS SEEK 
MORE COMPLEX FLAVORS IN 

THEIR BREWS.”

- BLOOMBERG NEWS, MARCH 
2012 



LOCAL MARKET ANALYSIS Craft breweries & brewpubs in the greater Houston area. 

BREWERY CITY BREWERY SIZE PRODUCTION
Saint Arnold Houston 120 bbl brew system & 

240 bbl fermentors
49,112 bbls in 2012 
(Projected 60,000 bbl 
2013)

Karbach Houston 30 bbl brew system 
& 60 bbl fermenting 
tanks

30,000 bbls Annually

No Label Katy 15 bbl brew system & 
(2) 15 bbl / (1) 30 bbl 
fermenting tanks & 30 
bbl conditioning tank

700 bbls in 2011

1700 bbls in 2012

5000 bbls in 2013

8th Wonder Brewing Houston 20 bbl 1000 bbls Annually
Buffalo Bayou Brewing Houston 1000 bbls Annually

Lone Pint Magnolia 30 bbl 2000 bbls Annually
Galactic Coast Dickinson 3 bbl Upgrading to 7 

bbl
1000 bbls Annually

Southern Star Beaumont 15 bbl (upgrading to 60 
bbl in 2014)

8,000 bbls in 2012

10,000 bbls in 2013
Fort Bend Brewing Missouri City 30 bbl w/(4) 30 bbl & 

(2) 60 bbl fermenters & 
(1) 60 bbl bright tank

3000 bbls Annually

Cycler’s Brewing Montgomery 8 bbl <500 bbls Annually
Texian Brewing Richmond 30 bbl brewhouse & 60 

bbl hot liquor tank
n/a

Houston Budweiser 12.5 million bbls

TOTAL: 101,500

INDUSTRY OUTLOOK (cont.) 

 
EVEN CEDAR RAPIDS, 

IOWA, WITH A 
POPULATION ALMOST 

EQUAL TO PEARLAND’S, 
IS HOME TO THREE (3) 

LOCAL CRAFT BREWERIES!



PARCEL MAP

1231 East Broadway

Shauntel Street

FM518, East Broadway



 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  August 18, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-12Z 

 A request of Brian Allen with Baks Brewery, applicant; on 
        behalf of George  Gartner, owner; for approval of a   
        change in zoning from General Commercial  (GC) to a  
        non-residential Planned Development known as Baks  
        Brewery; on approximately 2.94 acres of land. 

 

Proposal 

The subject property includes approximately 2.939 acres of land, of which the applicant 
is requesting approval of a Planned Development (PD) in order to operate a brewery.  
The applicant’s intent is to convert the primary building on site into a micro-brewery that 
will brew and distribute beer to licensed retail outlets, as well as provide a tasting room 
and retail operation open to the public. Customers will have the ability to purchase beer 
at retail prices for both on-site consumption and beer to go in the form of growler fills, 
and eventually 6 packs and 22 ounce bottles.  A small area inside of the brewery will be 
available to the general public to rent for special events, such as birthday parties, 
wedding receptions, corporate functions, etc. The applicant intends to construct an 
additional building of less than 500 square feet for storage of ingredients and products 
and will utilize all other existing primary and accessory buildings on site.   

The overlay zoning district for the proposed development, is General Commercial (GC), 
with the addition of the proposed use.  It is important to note that the existing zoning 
district permits a host of various non-residential uses, including the applicant’s proposed 
retail component of the brewery and the hosting of special events.  Additionally, a 
restaurant that serves alcohol would also be allowed at the subject location.   The 
purpose of the PD is to allow the manufacturing component of the business, categorized 
by the Unified Development Code (UDC) as “Manufacturing, Industrial Storage or 
Assembly Process Not Prohibited by Law,” and is defined as a facility that houses 
manufacturing, storage, and assembly operations including, but not limited to, beverage 
plant, fabrication, metal finishing, foundry, ice plant, machine shop, mill, printing plant, 

Attachment A 
Joint Public Hearing Packet 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

publishing and bindery plant, masonry products manufacturing, refinery for 
nonagricultural products, food products, processing and packaging plant, and precision 
instruments manufacturing.” 

Various improvements are proposed, including over 49% open green space, including 
the area towards the rear of the existing buildings (north of the site), along Mary’s 
Creek.  This area will remain as undeveloped open green space with park benches, and 
a small picnic area.  In support of the City’s hike and bike trail, the applicant proposes a 
trail that will eventually connect to the city’s trail, where a gate will provide access to the 
brewery.  This area will provide a significant natural buffer between the existing single 
family subdivision and the brewery and should mitigate the majority of potential negative 
impacts. Other improvements include façade upgrades.  The current façade is metal 
and the applicant will cover with masonry materials.  Baks Brewey will provide at least 
two (2) separate bicycle racks; a new sprinkler system; installation of sidewalks; and 
removal and replacement of dead and diseased trees and shrubs.  The trail will be 
constructed with other site improvements, prior to the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy.  It is important to note that the Parks Department has indicated that the 
proposed trail in the area is listed on their long range plan and there are no active 
planning efforts for construction of the proposed hike and bike trail in the area.  

A variance was approved by the ZBA in April, 2014 to reduce the lot size for a non-
residential PD.  At the public hearing nearby residents raised concerns regarding the 
following: 

• Consumption of alcohol on site 
• Odor from the brewing process 
• Potential for loud music and noise 
• Proximity of proposed use to a daycare 
• U-Turns into the daycare to access the Brewery from the east bound lanes on 

Broadway 
• Hours of operation 
• Increase in traffic along Shauntel Street 

 
The applicant addressed traffic issues, screening/buffering and smells in the PD 
document.  Staff addressed concerns as well below: 
   
Traffic: 
There is only one (1) driveway with a gate onto Shauntel Street that would allow patrons 
to drive into the neighborhood.  Baks proposes signage on both sides of the gate upon 
exiting that will state “DO NOT TURN RIGHT. NOT A THRU STREET.”  The proposed 
signage should prevent patrons of the brewery from entering the neighborhood.  The 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

applicant also proposes to close the gate when not needed to limit any traffic from 
entering/leaving the property via Shauntel Street. 
 
Screening: 
Baks proposes to install two (2) gates, approximately 6 feet in height to block vehicles 
from accessing the rear and side yards of the property, adjacent to the east and north 
sides of the building.  According to the applicant, this will prevent traffic from being able 
to see, watch or speak to anyone on adjacent property.  Additionally, the outdoor 
seating area will be on the west side of the building, which according to the applicant 
will also prevent anyone from seeing/speaking to any persons on adjacent property. 
 
Additionally, the applicant proposes over 49% open /green space, most of which is 
located on the north side of the site near Mary’s Creek and the existing single family 
subdivision.  This area will provide a significant natural buffer and will reduce any 
negative impacts to the existing neighborhood. 
 
Smells: 
According to the applicant, the only smells produced by brewing beer would be the 
smell of boiling grain.  The smells will not be unpleasant and will be similar to cooked 
oatmeal. 
 
Noise: 
The City of Pearland has a noise ordinance that would be applicable to the property, 
similar to other properties on Broadway Street, and throughout the City of Pearland.  
According to the City’s Charter, it is unlawful for any person to knowingly make, cause 
to be made or allow any loud, disturbing or unnecessary noise in the City which is 
offensive to the sensibilities of a reasonable prudent person, so that it renders the 
enjoyment of life or property uncomfortable, or interferes with the public peace and 
comfort.  There is no mention of decibel (loudness) levels. 
 
Proximity to Daycare: 
The applicant has contacted TABC, and the separation requirements are met.  The 
daycare is not directly adjacent to the subject property, and is separated by two (2) 
tracts to the east. 
 
Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the Baks Brewery PD.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing 
was published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

property by the applicant. As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any 
returned notices from property owners within 200 feet of the site.  

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the site from General 
Commercial (GC), to a non-residential PD, with a base zoning and overlay zoning 
district of GC, with the addition, of the proposed use; for the following reasons: 

1. The property is located within the General Commercial (GC) zoning district, and 
within the Corridor Overlay District (COD) overlay district.  The applicant 
proposes to conform to the standards of both.  Improvements will be made to the 
existing building, which will be an enhancement to the neighborhood and will 
create an enhanced aesthetic appeal.  These improvements include façade 
upgrades to the existing metal building, which will be covered with stucco; over 
49% of landscaped/open green space will not be altered and provides a natural 
buffer between the brewery and the single family subdivision to the north.  
Improvements will be made to the existing decorative fencing, which 
encompasses the entire property with the exception of the open green area.  
Baks Brewey will provide at least two (2) separate bicycle racks; a new sprinkler 
system; installation of sidewalks; and removal and replacement of dead and 
diseased trees and shrubs. 

2. The applicant has attempted to address concerns raised by the neighborhood, as 
illustrated on pages 2 and 3 of this memo. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. PD Document 

 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The subject property includes approximately 2.939 acres of land, of which the applicant 
is requesting approval of a Planned Development (PD) in order to operate a brewery.  
The applicant’s intent is to convert the primary building on site into a micro-brewery that 
will brew and distribute beer, as well as provide a tasting room and retail operation open 
to the public.  A small area inside of the brewery will be available to the general public to 
rent for special events, such as birthday parties, wedding receptions, corporate 
functions, etc.  The applicant proposes to add a small cold room, of less than 500 
square feet, directly to the rear of the building for storage of ingredients and products.  

Currently the existing primary building is comprised of a metal façade. The applicant 
intends to improve the façade of the primary building by upgrading the metal façade 
with masonry materials. This will create a more attractive building with frontage along 
Broadway Street, and will be in compliance with the façade requirements of the Corridor 
Overlay District. The site has a variety of landscaping on site which includes street trees 
and shrubbery planted along Broadway Street and Shauntel Street. The site includes a 
black wrought iron fence along Broadway Street and Shauntel Street, which the 
applicant intends to repair, where needed, while also adding new shrubbery and trees 
along Broadway and Shauntel Street, as well as internal landscaping on site. 
 
As part of the micro-brewery concept the applicant intends to transform the existing 
outdoor breezeway area into outdoor seating that will be available when the brewery is 
open for tours and tastings to the public. There is a proposed trail in the rear of the 
property which will run along Mary’s Creek. The applicant intends to construct a trail 
connecting this development to the City’s trail in order to promote walkability and access 
to the trail along the creek. This large green space at the rear of the property will be 
maintained as a landscaped open space buffer to the residential neighborhood located 
across Mary’s Creek.  The applicant will also construct picnic and seating nodes in this 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

area to enhance the hike and bike trail and open green area.  This area will be available 
to the public. 
 
Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property is located at the northeast corner of Broadway and Shauntel 
Streets.  Broadway Street is a major thoroughfare to be widened.  The ultimate right-of-
way required is 120 feet.  Shauntel Street is a local street which requires an ultimate 
right-of-way of 50 feet.  According to the survey provided Broadway Street has an 
existing right-of-way width of 100 feet and Shauntel Street width varies.  Additional right-
of-way will be required along Broadway Street at the time of platting and possibly along 
Shauntel Street. 
 
Site History 

The subject property is developed with an approximately 8,753 square foot building, and 
an approximately 400 square foot accessory building used for storage that was 
constructed in 1998.  The property was annexed into the City of Pearland in June, 1960 
and was most recently occupied by Sunbelt Rentals; a construction equipment and tool 
rental company.  Staff began discussions with the applicant regarding a micro-brewery 
at the subject location in January 2014, when a pre-development meeting was held with 
the applicant.  The applicant indicated that the intent was to convert the primary building 
on site into a micro-brewery that will brew and distribute beer, as well as provide a 
tasting room and retail operation open to the public. The brewery component of the use 
is categorized as “Manufacturing, Industrial Storage or Assembly Process Not 
Prohibited by Law” by the UDC and is not permitted within the existing zoning district.  
All other uses proposed are permitted.  Staff discussed the idea of a Planned 
Development (PD) to allow for the development, as proposed. 

Chapter 2 of the Unified Development Code requires a gross contiguous area of at least 
3 acres for a non-residential Planned Development district. As the site is currently 
developed and a recent survey of the property has been completed, the property 
includes 2.939 acres.  On April 3, 2014, the Zoning Board of Adjustment approved a 
variance to allow a reduction in the minimum district size of a nonresidential PD.   

During the public hearing for the variance, nearby residents raised concerns regarding 
the following: 

• Consumption of alcohol on site 
• Odor from the brewing process 
• Potential for loud music and noise 
• Proximity of proposed use to a daycare 
• Access issues regarding the use of nearby properties 
• Hours of operation 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

• Increase in traffic along Shauntel 
 
The applicant addressed traffic issues, screening and smells in the PD document.  Staff 
addressed concerns as well below: 
   
Traffic: 
There is only one (1) driveway with a gate onto Shauntel Street that would allow patrons 
to drive into the neighborhood.  Baks proposes signage on both sides of the gate upon 
exiting that will state “DO NOT TURN RIGHT. NOT A THRU STREET.”  The proposed 
signage should prevent patrons of the brewery from entering the neighborhood.  The 
applicant also proposes to close the gate when not needed to limit any traffic from 
entering/leaving the property via Shauntel Street. 
 
Screening: 
Baks proposes to install two (2) gates, approximately 6 feet in height to block vehicles 
from accessing the rear and side yards of the property, adjacent to the east and north 
sides of the building.  According to the applicant, this will prevent traffic from being able 
to see, watch or speak to anyone on adjacent property.  Additionally, the outdoor 
seating area will be on the west side of the building, which according to the applicant 
will also prevent anyone from seeing/speaking to any persons on adjacent property. 
 
Additionally, the applicant proposes over 49% open /green space, most of which is 
located on the north side of the site near Mary’s Creek and the existing single family 
subdivision.  This area will provide a significant natural buffer and will reduce any 
negative impacts to the existing neighborhood. 
 
Smells: 
According to the applicant, the only smells produced by brewing beer would be the 
smell of boiling grain.  The smells will not be unpleasant and will be similar to cooked 
oatmeal. 
 
Noise: 
The City of Pearland has a noise ordinance that would be applicable to the property, 
similar to other properties on Broadway Street, and throughout the City of Pearland.  
According to the City’s Charter, it is unlawful for any person to knowingly make, cause 
to be made or allow any loud, disturbing or unnecessary noise in the City which is 
offensive to the sensibilities of a reasonable prudent person, so that it renders the 
enjoyment of life or property uncomfortable, or interferes with the public peace and 
comfort.  There is no mention of decibel (loudness) levels. 
 
 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

Proximity to Daycare: 
The applicant has contacted TABC, and the separation requirements are met.  The 
daycare is not directly adjacent to the subject property, and is separated by two (2) 
tracts to the east. 

 
The site is surrounded by a mix of various uses, including Hazeldale Estates to the 
north, single family subdivision; and various non-residential uses such as restaurants, 
skate center and a strip retail center to the south; a daycare to the east and 
undeveloped land to the west.  The below table identifies surrounding uses and zoning 
districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North Single Family Residential 3 (R3) Hazeldale Estates Single 
Family Subdivision 

South General Commercial (GC) Undeveloped Land, 
Restaurants, Skate Center 

East General Commercial (GC) 
Office Professional (OP) 

Undeveloped, 
Daycare 

West General Business (GB) Undeveloped Land 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The proposed micro-brewery is categorized as “Manufacturing, Industrial Storage or 
Assembly Process Not Prohibited by Law” by the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
The proposed use is defined as a facility that houses manufacturing, storage and 
assembly operations, including, but not limited to, beverage plant, fabrication, metal 
finishing, foundry, ice plant, machine shop, mill, printing plant, publishing and bindery 
plant, masonry products manufacturing, refinery for nonagricultural products, food 
products, processing and packaging plant and precision instruments manufacturing.  
Additionally a variance was approved by the Zoning Board of Adjustment to allow a 
reduction of the land area for a PD.  The PD, if approved, will conform to the regulations 
of the GC zoning district, as well as the Corridor Overlay District, with few exceptions. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject property is located within the Retail, Offices and Services Future Land Use 
Designation, which incorporates neighborhood or convenience shopping centers, or 
developed or separate uses located on major street intersections, with limited outdoor 
retail activities, adequate buffers from adjacent single family subdivisions.  Appropriate 
zoning districts include OP, NS and selected GB uses. 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

Platting Status 

The subject property is not platted. Improvements that increase the impervious surface 
area on site will trigger platting of the property. 

Availability of Utilities 

According to GIS data, there is an existing 12 inch water line running along the frontage 
of the property along Broadway Street and an 8 inch water line along Shauntel Street.  
The property has a pump system which is connected to a sanitary force main for sewer 
services. 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The property is zoned as GC, General Commercial district and abuts GB, General 
Business district to the west across Shauntel Street, the R-3, Single-Family Residential 
district to the north across Mary’s Creek, and the GC, General Commercial district to the 
east and south across Broadway Street.  
 
The site is currently developed and the applicant intends to add a cold room of less than 
500 square feet for storage of ingredients and products.  There should be no major 
impact on existing and future developments.  Due to the amount of open space (49%) 
near the rear of the property along the north side, this area will provide a natural buffer 
between the brewery and the single family subdivision to the north. 
 
Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC), and 
there are no further comments. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed Baks Brewery PD. 

 

 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to change the zoning of the site from General 
Commercial (GC), to a non-residential PD, with a base zoning and overlay zoning 
district of GC, with the addition, of the proposed use; for the following reasons: 

1. The property is located within the General Commercial (GC) and within the 
Corridor Overlay District (COD) overlay district.  The applicant proposes to 
conform to the standards of both.  Improvements will be made to the existing 
building, which will be an enhancement to the neighborhood and will create an 
enhanced aesthetic appeal.  These improvements include façade upgrades to 
the existing metal building, which will be covered with stucco; over 49% of 
landscaped/open green space will not be altered and provides a natural buffer 
between the brewery and the single family subdivision to the north.  
Improvements will be made the existing decorative fencing, which encompasses 
the entire property with the exception of the open green area.  Baks Brewey will 
provide at least two (2) separate bicycle facilities; a new sprinkler system; 
installation of sidewalks; and removal and replacement of dead and diseased 
trees and shrubs. 

 

6 | P a g e  

 



BROADWAY ST

SHAUNTEL S
T

HAZEL S
TLEROY ST

PIN
E V

AL
LE

Y D
R

JAMES ST

SANDRA
JACK ST

1111

2730

1302

1001A

1302

1302

1325

1130

1302

1111

1310

1302

1107

1107

2719

1111

10001302

1329

102

2717

2721

104

2701

2715

1302

2713
1401

1402

27112716
2713

2715

3513

2717

1307

1301
1404

1403

2719

2719

3515

1304

3517

2706

2706

2726

2728

2722

106

1406

2723

2703

2723
2719

2709

2703

2711

1309

1301

1231

1231
1231

1230

35193524

2725

3522

2714

2708

2718

2724
2722

2710

2720

3521

2712

2716

1303
1305

2718

2718

2708

2712
2714

2722

2716

2720

2716

2710

2715

2726

2720

2724

2717

2707
2705

2713

2719

2713
2715

2707
2709

2717

2721

3526

2711

2714

2709

2705

2717
2715

2713

2709
2707

13072705

1305

2714 2708

1329

3523

1405 2711 2712
1408

3520

1402

906

108

2707

1303

2719

2711

1303

3501

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE 
2014-12Z

BAKS BREWERY PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



GC

MF

R-1

R-3

GBOP

R-4

BROADWAY ST

SHAUNTEL S
T

HAZEL S
TLEROY ST

PIN
E V

AL
LE

Y D
R

JAMES ST

SANDRA
JACK ST

1111

2730

1302

1001A

1302

1302

1325

1130

1302

1111

1310

1302

1107

1107

2719

1111

10001302

1329

102

2717

2721

104

2701

2715

1302

2713
1401

1402

27112716
2713

2715

3513

2717

1307

1301
1404

1403

2719

2719

3515

1304

3517

2706

2706

2726

2728

2722

106

1406

2723

2703

2723
2719

2709

2703

2711

1309

1301

1231

1231
1231

1230

3519
3524

2725

3522

2714

2708

2718

2724
2722

2710

2720

3521

2712

2716

1303
1305

2718

2718

2708

2712
2714

2722

2716

2720

2716

2710

2715

2726

2720

2724

2717

2707
2705

2713

2719

2713
2715

2707
2709

2717

2721

3526

2711

2714

2709

2705

2717
2715

2713

2709
2707

13072705

1305

2714 2708

1329

3523

1405 2711 2712
1408

3520

1402

906

108

2707

1303

2719

2711

1303

3501

ZONING MAP

ZONE CHANGE 
2014-12Z

BAKS BREWERY PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



Retail, Offices and Services

Medium Density Residential

Low Density Residential

High Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

BROADWAY ST

SHAUNTEL S
T

HAZEL ST

LEROY ST
PIN

E V
AL

LE
Y D

R

JACK ST

1111

2730

1302

1001A

1302

1302

1325

1130

1302

1111

1310

1302

1107

1107

2719

1111

10001302

1329

102

2717

104

2701

2715

1302

2713
1401

27112716
2713

2715

3513

2717

1307

1301
1404

1403

2719

3515

1304

3517

2706

2706

2726

2728

2722

106

1406

2723

2703

2723
2719

2709

2703

2711

1309

1301

1231

1231

2721

1231

1402
2719

1230

35193524

2725

3522

2714

2708

2718

27242722

2710

2720

3521

2712

2716

1303
1305

2718

2718

2708

27122714

2722

2716

2720

2716

2710

2715

2726

2720

2724

2717

2707
2705

2713

2719

2713
2715

2707
2709

2717

2721

3526

2711

2714

2709

2705

27172715

2713
2709

2707

13072705

1305

2714 2708

1329

3523

1405 2711 2712 1309
1408

3520

1402

906

108

2707

1303

2719

2711

1303

3501

FLUP MAP

ZONE CHANGE 
2014-12Z

BAKS BREWERY PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



BROADWAY ST

SHAUNTEL S
T

HAZEL S
TLEROY ST

PIN
E V

AL
LE

Y D
R

JAMES ST

SANDRA
JACK ST

1111

2730

1302

1001A

1302

1302

1325

1130

1302

1111

1310

1302

1107

1107

2719

1111

10001302

1329

102

2717

2721

104

2701

2715

1302

2713
1401

1402

27112716
2713

2715

3513

2717

1307

1301
1404

1403

2719

2719

3515

1304

3517

2706

2706

2726

2728

2722

106

1406

2723

2703

2723
2719

2709

2703

2711

1309

1301

1231

1231
1231

1230

35193524

2725

3522

2714

2708

2718

2724
2722

2710

2720

3521

2712

2716

1303
1305

2718

2718

2708

2712
2714

2722

2716

2720

2716

2710

2715

2726

2720

2724

2717

2707
2705

2713

2719

2713
2715

2707
2709

2717

2721

3526

2711

2714

2709

2705

2717
2715

2713

2709
2707

13072705

1305

2714 2708

1329

3523

1405 2711 2712
1408

3520

1402

906

108

2707

1303

2719

2711

1303

3501

NOTIFICATION MAP

ZONE CHANGE 
2014-12Z

BAKS BREWERY PD

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 250 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT



NAME ADRESS ADDRESS 2 CITY STATE ZIP

HOBBS HELEN MERRITTIA 2722 SHAUNTEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

RIVERA PEREZ RAFAEL A & MARIA D CRISPIN 2723 LEROY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BOYKIN DIXIE L 3703 W PINE ORCHARD DR PEARLAND TX 77581

DAHSE JENNIFER L 2719 SHAUNTEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BURGE-MAREZ NAOMI DELORA 2726 SHAUNTEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BEAN JENNIFER H & BRENT D 2722 HAZEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BELKANP PETER W & LINDA G 2723 SHAUNTEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

HENDERSON CLARENCE J & VERONICA M 2725 SHAUNTEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

EAVES JONATHAN 2719 HAZEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

OLALDE FRANCISCO & MELVINETTE 1304 JACK ST PEARLAND TX 77581

MAULDIN TROY L & LOIS 1302 JACK ST PEARLAND TX 77581

EAVES JONATHAN 2719 HAZEL ST PEARLAND TX 77581

DOCKSIDE THREADING INC 1020-789W PENDER ST E VANCOUVER BC  V6A 1V8 CANADA

CLEMMONS LAURIE G 1111 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

GARTNER INTEREST LTD 2433 MAX RD PEARLAND TX 77581

CLEMMONS LAURIE G 1111 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

FLOYDS PEARLAND DEVELOPMENT INC 1300 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

JRC 1300 LLC 6307 WASHINGTON AVE HOUSTON TX 77007

FLOYDS PEARLAND DEVELOPMENT INC 1300 BROADWAY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

MOORE MARTIN R 2404 LONGWOOD DR PEARLAND TX 77581

ACHOUR BECHIR 2730 LEROY ST PEARLAND TX 77581

BRIAN ALLEN 2914 PICCADILLY CIR PEARLAND TX 77581











Consent 
Agenda 
Item C 

C. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of 
Ordinance No. 2000M-119 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City 
of Pearland, Texas, amending Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of 
the City of Pearland, Texas, for the purpose of changing the classification 
of certain real property, being a tract of land containing 142.9664 acres of 
land out of Pearland Town Center, a subdivision of 143.6500 acres as 
recorded under File Number 2007008914 of the Plat Records of Brazoria 
County, Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, 
Abstract 300, Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas, (located on the south 
side of Broadway Street, east and west of Kirby Drive, and west of 
Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas), Zone Change Application 2014-
13Z; a request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of 
Michael Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and 
Administration for Pearland Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of a 
change in zoning to amend the sign regulations contained within the 
Pearland Town Center PUD; on approximately 142.97 acres of land, 
providing for an amendment of the zoning district map; containing a 
savings clause, a severability clause and an effective date and other 
provisions related to the subject. 



1 

AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: September 29, 2014 ITEM NO.: Ordinance No. 2000M-119 

DATE SUBMITTED: September 16, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PREPARED BY: Johnna Matthews PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao 

REVIEWED BY:   Lata Krishnarao    REVIEW DATE:  September 17, 2014 

SUBJECT: A request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of 
Michael Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and 
Administration for Pearland Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of a 
change in zoning to amend the sign regulations contained within the 
Pearland Town Center PUD; on approximately 142.97 acres of land 

 General Location: South side of Broadway Street, east and west of 
Kirby Drive, and west of Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas 

ATTACHMENTS:      Ordinance No. 2000M- 119 and Exhibits (Exhibit A –            
 Legal Description; Exhibit B – Location Map; Exhibit C - 
 Legal Ad; Exhibit D- Planning and Zoning Commission\ 
 Recommendation Letter; Exhibit E – Pearland Town Center 
 PUD Addendum); Attachment A: Joint Public Hearing 
 Packet; Attachment B:  Existing Sign Regulations        

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
  Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The applicant proposes to amend Section XVII, Signage; of the Pearland Town Center 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) to remove a number of restrictions on off-premise 
wall signs which are interior to the development, and not visible from public streets.  In 



2 

this context, off-premise signs are those signs that advertise businesses within the 
Town Center and throughout the development; and will allow businesses not located 
within the Town Center to advertise within the Town Center.   

The existing restrictions include limitations on the number, location, size, color, 
background, etc.; and require approval from the City of Pearland.  According to the 
applicant, because of the existing restrictions, many of the signs are not being utilized 
because advertisers typically have their own “branding” advertising materials, color 
schemes and backgrounds.  The amendment, as proposed would allow businesses to 
utilize their own branding elements with no restrictions on the look, pattern, colors, etc.     

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were 
mailed to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject 
property under consideration for the change in zoning.  Staff received two (2) returned 
notices from property owners within 200 feet of the site; one (1) in support of and one 
(1) in opposition to the proposed amendment to the Pearland Town Center PD. 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION:  At the regular meeting of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on August 18, 2014, Planning and Zoning 
Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made a motion to approve the PD amendment.  The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Linda Cowles.  The motion passed 7/0, with the 
following conditions: 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved
by the owner.  City approval, other than the normal permitting process will no
longer be required.  Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting
process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of new
frames.

2. Exhibit B-2 requires a revision to reflect changes proposed regarding advertising
on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (H and C).

3. A red-line and an addendum is required and will be added to the master PD
document for the Pearland Town Center.

4. Adjust discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the
removal of Sign G.

All above concerns have been addressed. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Consider Zone Change Application 
2014-13Z to amend the sign regulations of the Pearland Town Center PD. 



Ordinance No. 2000M-119 
 

 An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, amending 
 Ordinance No. 2000M, the zoning map of the City of Pearland, Texas, for the 
 purpose of changing the classification of certain real property, being a tract of 
 land containing 142.9664 acres of land out of Pearland Town Center, a 
 subdivision of 143.6500 acres as recorded under File Number 2007008914 of 
 the Plat Records of  Brazoria County, Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
 Company Survey,  Abstract 300, Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas, (located 
 on the south side of Broadway Street, east and west of Kirby Drive, and west of 
 Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas), Zone Change Application 2014-13Z; a  

request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael 
Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for 
Pearland Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of a change in zoning to amend 
the sign regulations contained within the Pearland Town Center PUD; on 
approximately 142.97 acres of land, providing for an amendment of the zoning 
district map; containing a  savings clause, a severability clause and an effective 
date and other provisions related to the subject.   

 

 WHEREAS, Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael 

Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for Pearland 

Town Center, LP, owner; are seeking approval of a change in zoning to amend the sign 

regulations contained within the Pearland Town Center PUD; on approximately 142.97 

acres of land; said property being legally described in the original application for 

amendment attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit “A” and 

more graphically depicted in the location map identified as Exhibit “B”; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 18th day of August, 2014, a Joint Public Hearing was held 

before the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council of the City of 

Pearland, Texas, notice being given by publication in the official newspaper of the City, 

the affidavit of publication being attached hereto and made a part hereof for all 

purposes as Exhibit "C", said call and notice being in strict conformity with provisions of 

Section 1.2.2.2 of Ordinance No.  2000T; and 

 

WHEREAS, on the 19th day of August, 2014, the Planning and Zoning 

    
   



Commission of the City submitted its report and recommendation to the City Council 

regarding the zone change application of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; 

on behalf of Michael Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and 

Administration for Pearland Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of an amendment to 

the sign regulations of the Pearland Town Center PD; on approximately 142.9664 acres 

of land, said recommendation attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes 

as Exhibit “D”; and  

 
WHEREAS, upon receipt of the report from the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, City Council considered this application and the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission at regular meetings on the 22nd day of September 

2014 and the 29th day of September 2014; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council having fully heard the testimony and argument of all 

interested parties, and having been fully advised in the premises, finds that in the case 

of the application of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael 

Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for Pearland 

Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of an amendment to the sign regulations of the 

Pearland Town Center PD; on approximately 148.9664 acres of land, presented which, 

in the judgment of the City Council, would justify the approval of said application; now, 

therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 
 

Section I.  The following described property located within the corporate City 

 Limits of the City of Pearland, Texas, and presently located within the Pearland Town 

Center PD, is hereby granted an amendment to the sign regulations; said PD 

addendum attached hereto as Exhibit E; in accordance with all conditions and 

requirements of the current Unified Development Code and incorporated for all 

Page 2 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 

 



purposes, such property being more particularly described as: 

142.9664 acres of land out of Pearland Town Center, a subdivision of 
143.6500 acres as recorded under File Number 2007008914 of the Plat 
Records of  Brazoria County, Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey,  Abstract 300, Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas  

GENERAL LOCATION:   South Side of Broadway Street, east and west of Kirby 
Drive, and west of Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas 

     Section II.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that  
the recitations in the preamble hereof are true and that all necessary 
prerequisites of law have been accomplished and that no valid protest of the 
proposed change has been made.  The City Council further finds and determines 
that there has been compliance with the mandates of law in the posting and 
presentation of this matter to the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the 
City Council for consideration and decision. 

Section III.  The City Council of the City of Pearland finds and determines that 

the amendment adopted herein promotes the health, safety, and general welfare of the 

public and is a proper valid exercise of the City's police powers. 

Section IV.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions thereof. 

Section V.  All rights and remedies, which have accrued in the favor of the City 

under this Ordinance and its amendments thereto, shall be and are preserved for the 

benefit of the City. 

Page 3 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Section VI.  This Ordinance shall become effective after its passage and 

approval on second and final reading. 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on First Reading this 22nd day of 

September, 2014. 
_________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR  

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED on Second and Final Reading this 29th 

day of September, 2014.  

__________________________ 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
_____________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

Page 4 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description 

142.9664 acres of land out of Pearland Town Center, a subdivision of 143.6500 acres 
as recorded under File Number 2007008914 of the Plat Records of  Brazoria County, 
Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 300, Section 81, 
Brazoria County, Texas  

Page 5 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
M

ap
 

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 1

0 
O

rd
. N

o.
 2

00
0M

-1
19

 



Exhibit C 
Legal Ad 

Page 7 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Exhibit D 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation Letter 

August 19, 2014 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
3519 Liberty Drive 
Pearland, TX 77581 

Re: Recommendation on Zone Change Application No. 2014-13Z; an amendment to 
the Pearland Town Center Planned Development (PD), regarding off-premise 
wall signs 

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members: 

At their meeting on August 18, 2014, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered 
the following:   

A request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; on behalf of Michael 
Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of Development and Administration for 
Pearland Town Center, LP, owner; for approval of a change in zoning to amend 
the sign regulations contained within the Pearland Town Center PUD; on 
approximately 142.97 acres of land, to wit: 

Legal Description:  142.9664 acres of land out of Pearland Town Center, a 
subdivision of 143.6500 acres as recorded under File Number 2007008914 of 
the Plat Records of  Brazoria County, Texas, and situated in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Company Survey,  Abstract 300, Section 81, Brazoria County, Texas 

General Location:  South side of Broadway Street, east and west of Kirby Drive, 
and west of Business Center Drive, Pearland, Texas 

Page 8 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Commissioner Elizabeth McLane made a motion to approve the zone change request, 
to amend the sign regulations regarding off-premise advertising for the Pearland Town 
Center PD.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Linda Cowles. 

The motion passed 7/0, with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved
by the owner.  City approval, other than the normal permitting process will no
longer be required.  Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting
process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of new
frames.  Please clearly indicate this in the PD document.

2. Staff requests that Exhibit B-2 is updated to reflect changes proposed regarding
advertising on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (H and C).

3. Staff requests a red-line and an addendum to be added to the master PD
document for the Pearland Town Center.

4. There is a discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the
removal of Sign G.

Sincerely, 

Johnna Matthews 

City Planner 
On behalf of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Page 9 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



Exhibit E 
Pearland Town Center Planned Development (PD) 

See the Following Pages 

Page 10 of 10 
Ord. No. 2000M-119 



CHD-639004-67 

AMENDMENT TO 

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER PUD 

(PUD DISTRICT) ORDINANCE

Article XVII, Section 13 (Off-Premises Advertising Signs) is hereby amended as follows: 

1. Subsection a(1) is hereby amended by deleting Exhibit B-2 (on Page 39) and substituting
the attached Exhibit B-2 in its place.

2. All off-premise wall advertising signs are approved by the owner. City approval, other than
the normal permitting process will no longer be required. Staff recommends City approval
once, through the permitting process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and
structural integrity of new frames. This does not apply to existing frames. This does not
apply to creative design.

2. Subsection a(2) and Exhibit D are hereby deleted, and the following is substituted in their
place:

2(A) OFF-PREMISES ADVERTISING WALL SIGN DESIGN GUIDELINE

USE: 

The purpose of these Off-Premises Advertising Wall Sign Design Guidelines is to 
communicate the design guidelines and establish responsibilities for design, review 
and implementation of the signs.  Design character, specific detail of the structure 
as well as general quality standards are to be considered by the advertiser and its 
Graphic Designer & Advertiser.  The Design Criteria will provide specific aesthetic 
examples and outline acceptable guidelines to insure a cohesive vision for Pearland 
Town Center. Specific topics concerning location, size and Pearland Town Center 
Design Vision are addressed.  In addition, individual signs must adhere to specific 
criteria which is determined by their location and their specific architectural 
context.  In this way, each sign will be reviewed on an individual basis in context to 
ensure diverse and creative design solutions.  The Graphic Designer and installer 
should also understand this criteria in order to expedite design approval.  All signs 
shall be subject to the approval of the Owner. 

(B) OVERALL CONCEPT:

Signage should be inviting and easily understood. Awareness of the contextual 
complexities of the surrounding wall and common outdoor areas and how that 
applies to the overall center and the individual advertising sign is critical.  With that 
in mind, the Owner encourages a wide range of design freedom within this context 
for the signage contractor and advertiser to express their corporate image and 
individuality. The entirety of the wall sign may be used by the advertiser to express 
their corporate image, products and services.  Ultimately, exciting design with 
quality, durable materials will be the primary criteria. 



 

2 
CHD-639004-67 

 
The advertiser shall not display or permit to be displayed any sign that (i) contains 
material that is obscene or defamatory, (ii) is not suitable for all audiences, (iii) 
contains material of a graphic nature, which includes but is not limited to violent or 
pornographic imagery, (iv) advertises for or otherwise relates to tobacco or tobacco 
products, firearms, political figures, candidates or issues, religion, religious figures, 
or places of worship, or (v) otherwise includes material inimical to the retail 
environment that Owner seeks to maintain with respect to the Shopping Center. 
 
Advertising Signs are intended to be fixed to the existing frames that are currently 
on the façade of the building at established locations and be non-illuminated. They 
are intended as much for their decorative value to the buildings and streetscape as 
for their advertisement of the advertiser’s identity.  The Owner encourages the use 
of identity graphic elements and/or creative color and material innovations. 
 
The Owner is anticipating a wealth of unique and tasteful means of Advertiser 
expression establishing appropriate levels of distinction and authenticity within the 
project adding variety and visual character to the overall center.  Off-premises 
Advertising Signs shall provide a friendly, pedestrian scale with attention directed 
to those strolling along the sidewalks and driving through the center. 

 
 (C) OWNER APPROVAL: 
 

All signage, including signs of a temporary nature, must be approved by the Owner 
in writing before use. 
 
The sign contractor is to provide a dimensioned color layout showing the proposed 
image for approval by the Owner. 
 

(D) SIGN CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
The Sign Contractor is responsible for field verifying the actual sign frames. 
 
All signs remain subject to Owner’s Advertising Wall Sign Design Guidelines and 
Owner approval. 
 
The Sign Contractor is responsible for installing and removing all graphic panels. 
Frames are to remain as part of the Owner’s property.  If frame is damaged during 
install or removal of panels, Sign Contractor is responsible for repair or 
replacement. 
 
Sign Contractor is responsible for reinstalling Owner’s placeholder graphics once 
Sign Contractor provided graphics are removed. 
 



3 
CHD-639004-67 

(E) OWNER RESPONSIBILITIES:

To ensure the off-premises advertising signs compliment the overall architectural 
character of the Pearland Town Center. 

3. Subsection (a)(4) is hereby deleted.

4. The following Subsection (b) is hereby added:

Off-Premises Banners, etc., shall be permitted as follows:

Off-Premises advertising banners and windblown signs, such as pennants, banners, flags
and streamers, provided each does not exceed 432 SF in area.  There shall be no limit on the
amount of advertising pennants, banners, flags and streamers along Town Center Drive,
East or West Main Streets or other circulation routes within the PUD, provided they are not
visible from public streets.  All pennants, banners, flags and streamers shall be submitted to
the Owner for review and approval.

5. The following Subsection (c) is hereby added:

Tower advertising shall be permitted as follows:

Off-Premises wall signs shall be permitted on the Main Tower and the two Lower Towers
designated on Exhibit B-2. All signage must be approved by the Owner in writing before
use.  Tower signage shall comply with the requirements of Section a(2) above.Tower
Signage is defined as a Wallscape Sign that has elevation.













































































 

 

Memo 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  August 18, 2014 
 
Re: Zone Change Application Number 2014-13Z 

 A request of Alysia Gordon and Teir Allender, applicants; 
       on behalf of Michael Lebovitz, Executive Vice President of 
       Development and Administration for Pearland Town  
       Center, LP, owner; for approval of a change in zoning to  
       amend the sign regulations contained within the Pearland  
      Town Center PUD; on approximately 142.97 acres of land. 

 

Proposal 

The applicant proposes to amend Section XVII, Signage; of the Pearland Town Center 
Planned Unit Development (PUD).  The existing regulations within the PUD impose a 
number of restrictions on off-premise wall signs which are interior to the development, 
and not visible from public streets.  In this context, off-premise signs are those signs 
that advertise businesses within the Town Center and throughout the development; and 
will allow businesses not located within the Town Center to advertise within the Town 
Center.  The existing restrictions include limitations on the number, location, size, color, 
background, etc.; and requires approval from the City of Pearland.  According to the 
applicant, because of the existing restrictions, many of the signs are not being utilized 
because advertisers typically have their own “branding” advertising materials, color 
schemes and backgrounds.  The amendment, as proposed would allow businesses to 
utilize their own branding elements with no restrictions on the look, pattern, colors, etc.      

The below table indicates existing regulations regarding off-premise advertising, the 
page number in which the existing sign regulation is to be found in the latest approved 
amendment (November, 2009) to the  PUD and the proposed amendments: 

Existing Sign Regulation Page 
Number 

Proposed Amendment 

Replace Exhibit B-2, which 39 Sign G will be completely removed, 

Attachment A 
Joint Public Hearing Packet 

1 | P a g e  

 



removes a 227.33 sf. sign 
identified as “Sign G.”  

which decreases the total square 
footage for all off-premise advertising 
signs from 2,218.28 sf. to 1,991.21 sf. 

Applicant is advised to adjust the total 
square footage on Exhibit B-2, as it 
illustrates 2,190.95 sf. 

Section 13. A. 2 refers to Exhibit 
D which imposes the following 
restrictions on off-premise wall 
signs: 

• Location restrictions
• Design guidelines
• City of Pearland approvals
• Color palette
• Background patterns
• Patterns
• Imagery

Harvest;
Commerce/Business;
Holiday/Seasonal;
Rodeo/Cowboy;
Miscellaneous Imagery

• Over 60 Frame Options

Exhibit D 
Page 42 

Amend/Remove the following pages 
from Exhibit D (Page 42): 

• Page 1 to remain
• Page 2 to be amended to

remove “an approved City of
Pearland sign permit must be
obtained.”  Add “A sign permit
shall be approved once by the
City of Pearland for all new
frames to ensure public safety
and structural integrity.

• Remove Location Plan for off-
premise signs and legend, as
the applicant proposes no
restrictions on the location of off-
premise signs, interior to the
development, which are not
visible from public roadways.

• Add 2(A): Off-Premise 
Advertising Wall Sign Design 
Guideline Use, essentially 
authorizes Graphic Designer 
and Advertiser to consider 
design character to ensure a 
cohesive vision and authorizes 
the owner to approve off-
premise wall signs. 

• Add 2(B) Overall Concept
which allows design freedom of 
advertising for off-premise wall 
signs, with restrictions on 
obscene or defamatory imagery. 

2 | P a g e



• Add 2(C) Owner Approval,
requires sign contractor to 
provide a dimensional color 
layout and proposed imagery for 
approval by the owner. 

• Add 2(D) Sign Contractor
Responsibilities 

• Add 2(E) Owner 
Responsibilities, which places 
square footage limitations of 432 
square feet on off-premise 
advertising banners and 
windblown signs, such as 
pennants, banners, flags and 
streamers, and there shall be no 
limit on the amount of 
advertising pennants, banners, 
flags and streamers along Town 
Center Drive, east and west of 
Main Streets or other circulation 
routes within the PUD, provided 
they are not visible from public 
streets. 

• Add C, Tower Advertising,
which allows advertising on the 
Main Tower and the 2 Lower 
Towers designated on the new 
Exhibit B2. 

• Pages 3-28 to be deleted,
which restrict color, imagery,
etc., as indicated above.

• Pages 29-34 to remain, with
the exception of Page 32, 
regarding Sign G, which is 
proposed to be removed, as 
part of the proposed 
amendment.  These pages 
provide square footage and 
height regulations for Signs A-F 
and H-J, as indicated on the 

3 | P a g e



 

revised Exhibit B-2. 
Replace Exhibit B-2, which 
removes a 227.33 sf. sign 
identified as “Sign G.”  

39 Sign G will be completely removed, 
which decreases the total square 
footage for all off-premise advertising 
signs from 2,218.28 sf. to 2,190.95 sf. 

 

Public Notification/Comment 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the amendment to the Pearland Town Center PUD amendment.  
Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was published in the local newspaper, 
and a notification sign was placed on the property by the applicant. As of the date of this 
writing, staff has not received any returned notices from property owners within 200 feet 
of the site.  

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the amendment to the Pearland Town Center PUD, to 
remove various restrictions, as it relates to off-premise wall signs, for the following 
reasons: 

1. As used within the Pearland Town Center PUD, “off-premise wall signs” are signs 
attached to exterior walls of structures within the Town Center that display 
advertising throughout the entire development.  Advertising of businesses not 
located within the Town Center will also be allowed.  Although the PUD is a 
mixed use development, with a plethora of various uses including residential, 
retail, restaurants, etc., the PUD is one cohesive development, owned and 
operated by Pearland Town Center, LP.  Current regulations pertaining to off-
premise signage do not consider the internal nature of the development and 
signage, nor do the current regulations allow for design freedom, individuality and 
“branding” of commercial uses, as it relates to advertising.  Signage located 
within the development are similar to signage within an enclosed mall, which are 
not visible from public streets and are not regulated by the City of Pearland.  

2. The proposed amendment restricts off-premise advertising, where visible from 
public streets, obscene or defamatory imagery, including pornography or 
advertising related to tobacco/tobacco products, firearms, political figures, 
candidates or issues, or religious issues, and will provide a pedestrian scale. 

3. The proposed amendment places responsibilities on the owner and sign 
contractor related to the design character and details of off-premise wall signs, to 

4 | P a g e  

 



 

ensure a cohesive vision for the Pearland Town Center, with specific criteria 
regarding individual signs which will be determined by location and specific 
architectural context, and will be reviewed on an individual basis to ensure 
diverse and innovative design standards. 

Staff Condition/Addition 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved 
by the owner.  City approval, other than the normal permitting process will no 
longer be required.  Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting 
process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of new 
frames. 

2. Staff requests that Exhibit B-2 is updated to reflect changes proposed regarding 
advertising on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (H and C). 

3. Staff requests a red-line and an addendum to be added to the master PD 
document for the Pearland Town Center. 

4. There is a discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the 
removal of Sign G. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Staff Report 

2. Aerial Map 

3. Zoning Map 

4. Future Land Use Map 

5. Notification Map 

6. Notification List 

7. Red-lined Sections of PD to be Amended 

8. Proposed Amendment 

5 | P a g e  

 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of Request 

The Pearland Town Center Planned Unit Development (PUD) was originally approved 
in October, 2005.  To date, eighteen (18) amendments to the original PUD have been 
approved between 2005 and 2009.  The applicant proposes a 19th amendment to Article 
XVII as it relates to design standards for off-premise wall signs.   In this context, off-
premise signs are those signs that would advertise businesses within the Town Center 
and throughout the development; and will allow businesses not located within the Town 
Center to advertise within the Town Center; and not visible from any public streets.  
Specifically, the amendment proposes the following changes: 

• Removal of exhibits and language which restrict the location, imagery, colors, 
background patterns, etc., of off-premise attached signs, which are not visible 
from public streets; 

• Off-premise wall signs are subject to approval of the owner, and not the City, with 
the exception of the “normal” permitting process.  Staff proposes clarification 
authorizing City approvals for all new frames to ensure public safety and 
structural integrity. 

• Wall signs shall be permitted on the main tower and the two lower towers. 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has frontage on Broadway Street, a major thoroughfare of 
sufficient width which requires 120 feet of right-of-way; Kirby Drive; a secondary 
thoroughfare of sufficient width in certain areas and to be widened in certain areas.  The 
ultimate right-of-way for Kirby Drive is 100 feet.  The subject property also has frontage 
on Business Center Drive, also a secondary thoroughfare of sufficient width which 
requires 100 feet of right-of-way.  Most of the property is platted, with the exception of 
minimal acreage along the west side of Kirby Drive.  The development generally 

Exhibit 1 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 

1 | P a g e  

 



 

conforms to the thoroughfare plan. 
 
Site History 

The subject property is currently developed with a mix of uses including residential, 
commercial, including retail, office and restaurants.  The PD was originally approved in 
October, 2005 and has been amended several times. 

The site is surrounded by a mix of various uses, including single family subdivisions to 
the north and south; and various non-residential uses on all other sides.  The below 
table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts: 

 Zoning Land Use 

North General Commercial (GC) 
WCF PUD 

Shadow Creek Town 
Center, Restaurants, Office, 

Retail 

South Single Family Residential 2 (R2) South Gate, Sections 1 and 
2 Single Family Subdivision 

East Business Park 288 (BP-288) 
General Commercial (GC) 

Park & Ride 
Storage Facility 

West PUD 
Single Family Estate (RE) 

Single Family Residential 3 (R2) 

South Gate Section 1 
Single Family Subdivison, 

Fire Station # 5 and 
Undeveloped Land 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

The Pearland Town Center PUD was originally approved on October 3, 2005, prior to 
the adoption of the current Unified Development Code (UDC).  The PUD meets the 
requirements of the PUD and amendments approved. 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 

The subject property is located within four (4) future land use designations; Business 
Park within the eastern most portion of the site; Retail, Offices and Services within the 
center of the site; Low Density Residential within the western most portion of the site 
and Major Nodes just south of Broadway Street, within the northwest portion of the site.  
A brief description of each future land use designation follows: 

Business Park Future Land Use Designation, generally encompasses the SH 288 
corridor and portions of Beltway 8 nearest SH 288.  The Comprehensive Plan indicates 
a mixed use area developed in coordinated, master-planned campus-like settings with 

2 | P a g e  

 



 

interdependent and complimentary uses.  Preferred uses include office buildings of 
various heights, regional shopping centers and malls, research and development 
facilities and light manufacturing. 

Retail, Offices and Services Future Land Use Designation, incorporates neighborhood 
or convenience shopping centers, or developed or separate uses located on major 
street intersections, with limited outdoor retail activities, adequate buffers from adjacent 
single family subdivisions.  Appropriate zoning districts include OP, NS and selected GB 
uses. 

Low Density Residential Future Land Use Designation is designed for the conventional 
single-family detached subdivisions at a density of 0-4 dwelling units per acre with an 
average lot size of 7,500 square feet.  Smaller lots may be acceptable if common open 
space is provided and overall density is not increased.  Appropriate zoning districts are 
R-1 and R-2. 

Major Nodes Future Land Use Designation is intended to have an approximate 
minimum of 50 acres zoned for retail, office and service uses and is generally located at 
key intersections such as Broadway Street and Kirby Drive; major and secondary 
thoroughfares, respectively.   

The Pearland Town Center PUD generally meets the intent of all future land use 
designations in which it is located with the exception of the “low density” future land use 
designation.  However, the Comprehensive Plan anticipated that the City would likely 
encounter development proposals that do not directly reflect the purpose and intent of 
the Comprehensive Plan.  However, the Plan recognizes that developments, such as 
PUDs/PDs which may be contrary to the Plan could be an improvement that exceeds 
recommendations of the Plan. 

Platting Status 

The majority of the property is platted in the Pearland Town Center Subdivision.  
Portions of the land included within the PUD located on the west side of Kirby Drive are 
platted in the Kirby Section 1 and Kirby Water Plant and Fire Station 35 subdivisions.  
There is a small portion on the west side of Kirby Drive that is not platted. Platted of the 
property will be required prior to the issuance of permits. The proposed amendment to 
the sign regulations do not affect the platting status. 

Availability of Utilities 

The subject PUD is served by public water and sewer.  The proposed amendment does 
not require any changes to existing utilities. 

 

3 | P a g e  

 



 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

It is not anticipated that the proposed amendment to the sign regulations of the 
Pearland Town Center PUD will have any significant impact on existing or future 
developments.  The changes proposed are interior to the development similar to an 
enclosed mall, and will not be visible from public streets 

Additional Comments 

The request has been reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC), and 
there are no further comments. 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the zone change.  Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

As of the date of this writing, staff has not received any comments either in opposition to 
or in support of the proposed change in zoning request to amend the off-premise wall 
sign regulations of the Pearland Town Center PUD..   

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the request to amend the sign regulations for off-premise 
wall advertising of the Pearland Town Center PUD, for the following reasons: 

1. As used within the Pearland Town Center PUD, “off-premise wall signs” are signs 
attached to exterior walls of structures within the Town Center that display 
advertising throughout the entire development.  Advertising of businesses not 
located within the Town Center will also be allowed.   Although the PUD is a 
mixed use development, with a plethora of various uses including residential, 
retail, restaurants, etc., the PUD is one cohesive development, owned and 
operated by Pearland Town Center, LP.  Current regulations pertaining to off-
premise signage do not consider the internal nature of the development and 
signage, nor do the current regulations allow for design freedom, individuality and 
“branding” of commercial uses, as it relates to advertising.  Signage located 
within the development are similar to signage within an enclosed mall, which are 
not visible from public streets and are not regulated by the City of Pearland.  

2. The proposed amendment restricts off-premise advertising, where visible from 
public streets, obscene or defamatory imagery, including pornography or 

4 | P a g e  

 



advertising related to tobacco/tobacco products, firearms, political figures, 
candidates or issues, or religious issues, and will provide a pedestrian scale. 

3. The proposed amendment places responsibilities on the owner and sign
contractor related to the design character and details of off-premise wall signs, to
ensure a cohesive vision for the Pearland Town Center, with specific criteria
regarding individual signs which will be determined by location and specific
architectural context, and will be reviewed on an individual basis to ensure
diverse and innovative design standards.

Staff Condition/Addition 

1. The applicant proposes that all off-premise wall advertising signs are approved
by the owner.  City approval, other than the normal permitting process will no
longer be required.  Staff recommends City approval once, through the permitting
process for all new frames, to ensure public safety and structural integrity of new
frames.

2. Staff requests that Exhibit B-2 is updated to reflect changes proposed regarding
advertising on the main tower (J) and the two (2) lower towers (H and C).

3. Staff requests a red-line and an addendum to be added to the master PD
document for the Pearland Town Center.

4. There is a discrepancy regarding the total square footage on Exhibit B-2, with the
removal of Sign G.

5 | P a g e



SH 288 S
SH 288 N

KIRBY DR

BROADWAY ST

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
N

GRIMES AVE

FREESTONE AVE

TARA PL
DAWSON RD

SH 288 RAMP

INDIGO DR

KERR LN

AERIAL MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-13Z

PEARLAND TOWN-
CENTER PD 
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 844 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



PUD

R-2

GC

RE
SD

BP-288

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

KIRBY DR

BROADWAY ST

BUSINESS CENTER DR

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

CARSON AVE

GRIMES AVE

SH 288 FNTG N

FREESTONE AVE

TARA PL
DAWSON RD

INDIGO DR

KERR LN

ZONING MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-13Z

PEARLAND TOWN-
CENTER PD 
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 844 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

PUD



Business Park

Medium Density Residential

Parks

Low Density Residential

Major Nodes

Public / Semi-Public

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

KIRBY DR

BROADWAY ST

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

CARSON AVE

GRIMES AVE

SH 288 FNTG N

FREESTONE AVE

TARA PL
DAWSON RD

SH
 28

8 R
AM

P

INDIGO DR

KERR LN

FLUP MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-13Z

PEARLAND TOWN-
CENTER PD 
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 844 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



CR 59

SH 288 S
SH 288 N

KIRBY DR

CR 94

BROADWAY ST

CARSON AVE

GRIMES AVE

SMITH RANCH RD

FREESTONE AVE

TARA PL

KAY LN
BRISCOE LN

DAWSON RD SH 288 FNTG S

YOAKUM ST
SH

 28
8 F

NT
G 

N

RASHELL WAY

PA
RK

 FA
LL

S D
R HIDDEN LANDING

SH
 28

8 F
NT

G 
S

NOTIFICATION MAP

ZONE CHANGE 2014-13Z

PEARLAND TOWN-
CENTER PD 
AMENDMENT

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 1,125 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE



Owner Name C/O Address Suite City
288/SUGARLAND LP 10575 WESTOFFICE DR HOUSTON
518 AT KIRBY LLC 3606 WILLOW SPRINGS DR MANVEL
ABBOTT CHANDA JO & CLIFFORD 11215 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
ALDI LLC 2500 WESTCOURT RD DENTON
ALVIN INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 301 E HOUSE ST ALVIN

AMREIT SPF SHADOW CREEK LP

%AMREIT REALTY 
INVESTMENT 
CORPORATION 8 GREENWAY PLZ HOUSTON

BARLAS ENTERPRISES 4407 W FUQUA ST STE A HOUSTON
CAMARA VICTOR MANUEL GARCIA 11405 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
CARTER ALLEN F JR & ANGELA R 11303 GRIMES AVE PEARLAND
CBL & ASSOCIATES MANAGEMENT 2030 HAMILTON PLACE BLVD STE 500 CHATTANOOGA
CENTERPOINT ENERGY INC ELECTRIC OPERATIONS PO BOX 1475 HOUSTON
CHALITA JUAN & VICTORIA 11211 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
CITY OF PEARLAND 3519 LIBERTY DR PEARLAND
FUENTES JOSE D 11301 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
GLOBAL NEW MILLENIUM PTNRS LTD 4415 HIGHWAY 6 SUGAR LAND
GOLDENFASE DEVELOPER 1618 SHADYBROOK DR HOUSTON
GORBY CHARLES W & TERRI L 11201 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
HAYES KENNETH R & JOHNNIE S 11311 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
HOPKINS MELVIN & JOLYNN 11203 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
JAMES JONATHAN M & QIANA J 11307 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
JEFFERSON FREDERICK R & WANDA G 11207 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND

JOHNSON HARRY J & SYLVIA S
LEATHERWOOD BRIAN & 
MITZI 11409 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND

LAND DEADROL 11401 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
LANGHAM PAUL W III & PAMELA 11217 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
LEFTWICH JAMES J & SHIRLEY R 11411 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
LINGO SOUTHGATE LTD 3900 MAGNOLIA ST PEARLAND
MACYS RETAIL HOLDINGS INC ATTN: TAX DEPARTMENT 7 W 7TH ST STE 1100 CINCINNATI
METHODIST HOSPITAL 6565 FANNIN ST HOUSTON
NEC PEARLAND ASSET HOLDINGS INC 10223 BROADWAY ST STE P PEARLAND



NEW BROADWAY LTD
% DEAN LANE NEWQUEST 
PROPERTIES 8807 W SAM HOUSTON PKWY N HOUSTON

PEARLAND INVESTMENTS LTD PRT PO BOX 95398 LAS VEGAS
PEARLAND TOWN CENTER LP %MARK STEPHENS 2030 HAMILTON PLACE BLVD STE 500 CHATTANOOGA
PLANT DALE W & JAN W 11202 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
PROSPERITY BANK 1301 N MECHANIC ST EL CAMPO
REALTEX REIT LLC PO BOX 841094 PEARLAND
RENFRO ROCHELL 11305 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
RENFROE JAMISON L 11309 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
RILEY HOLDINGS LTD PO BOX 258 NORWALK

RL PTX LLC
PROPERTY TAX 
DEPARTMENT PO BOX 695019 ORLANDO

SANDERS JOHN & JEANETTE 11403 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
SHADOW CREEK RANCH MAINTENANCE 
ASSOCIATION 12234 SHADOW CREEK PKWY BLDG 3 PEARLAND
SNS REAL ESTATE HOLDINGS 2245 TEXAS DR STE 300 SUGARLAND
SOUTHGATE COMMUNITY ASSOC PO BOX 3217 PEARLAND
STRASSERKING FIONA E 11213 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
VIRANI AHMADALI 2814 ACORN WOOD WAY HOUSTON
VO VIET V 11407 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
WATSON ANTHONY R 11205 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
WC WALSH FAMILY LTD PO BOX 760 PEARLAND
WEBBER EFFRUM G & SHAPEL M 11209 HARRIS AVE PEARLAND
WEEMS F CARRINGTON 1603 W CLAY ST HOUSTON
ZAPATA ALFONSO 10190 KATY FWY STE 510 HOUSTON



State Zipcode
TX 77042
TX 77578
TX 77584
TX 76207
TX 77511

TX 77046
TX 77045
TX 77584
TX 77584
TN 37421
TX 77251
TX 77584
TX 77581
TX 77584
TX 77478
TX 77094
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584

TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
OH 45202
TX 77030
TX 77584



TX 77040
NV 89193
TN 37421
TX 77584
TX 77437
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77584
OH 44857

FL 32869
TX 77584

TX 77584
TX 77479
TX 77588
TX 77584
TX 77059
TX 77584
TX 77584
TX 77588
TX 77584
TX 77019
TX 77043







Article XV.   Utilities.

1)  All proposed utility lines within the PUD development including water

supply,  sanitary sewer service,  electricity,  telephone and gas as well as

their connections shall be placed underground,  with the exception of the

existing overhead electric lines crossing through or adjacent to the PUD or

installed along Kirby Road,  Broadway or Business Center Drive.

Meters, transformers,  etc. may be placed above ground provided they are

located within screened areas or are otherwise screened from view to the

general public.     Approved screening techniques include masonry,

evergreen vegetative screens, landscape berms, existing vegetation or any

combination thereof.  Location and size of Loading Spaces can be adjusted
as approved by planning director.

2)  If required to accommodate utility extensions through the PUD District, a

sixteen -foot  (16')  wide utility easement along the rear lot line or other

approved onsite utility corridor shall be provided to accommodate

underground utility distribution lines, including but not limited to, electric,

phone, and cable television.

Article XVI.  Storm Water Management

1)  The proposed storm water management area in sub area F shall be designed to control

storm water run -off from Sub Areas A through D.  Water Quality will be controlled

through the use of a wet detention basin(s), and by methods as required by Pearland's

engineering design criteria manual in force as of the date of this ordinance.  Separate,
stand alone storm water management facilities will be provided on Sub Areas E and

G to accommodate runoff from that sub area.  All Storm water management plans
must be approved by the City Engineer

2)  Storm water management will be designed in accordance with generally accepted
engineering practice and in accordance with methodology recommended by the

drainage district and the City of Pearland.

3)  Cross access easements shall be provided between each parcel that is created within

this PUD to insure conveyance of storm water to the storm water management area.

Article XVII. Signage

1)  General Standards Requirements

a)  Applicability.   All signs shall be erected,   displayed,   altered and

reconstructed in conformance with this division.  Where the requirements
of this division for a particular sign are different than comparable
requirements contained in any other law,  ordinance or regulation,  the

requirements and standards established in this PUD text shall govern.

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November I. 2009 Page 31

Attachment B
Existing Sign Regulations



2)  Signage has been classified by the following types:

a)  Town Center identification signs, including Pylon Sign.
b)  Department Store and Event Center exterior signs.
c)  Main Street Tenant exterior signs.
d)  Free Standing Out Parcel Building signs.
e)  Directional, Informational and Traffic Control signs.
f)   Service Door signs.
g)  Announcement Signs
h)  On- premise Wayfinding Signs
i)   Interior Project Boundary
j)   Off Premise Advertising Wall Signs

3)  General Criteria

a)  No exterior sign shall be permitted upon any parcel comprising the

Pearland Town Center PUD that:

flashes, blinks, rotates, moves, is animated or emits any sound,

provided; however, that any theater, event center or developer
information kiosk, reader boards or electronic displays located

within Sub -areas "A" or "C" shall not be deemed to be flashing or

moving signs for the purpose of this criteria.

is painted on the exterior surface of any building, installed upon

the roof of any building. In Sub Area A, exterior wall treatments

may include painted wall or advertising signs, provided that such

painted signs are designed as an integral part of the architectural

theme being developed for the Town Center and Tenant Store.

The architectural character of signs shall complement and be

coordinated with building designs.

4)  Town Center Identification Signs

a)  One ground monument Town Center identification sign shall be permitted
for each of the six (6) driveway entrances to the development. The Ground

signs may be mirrored on both sides of each entry driveway to create a

gateway entry feature.  Each sign shall be limited to 15' height including
the base and support structures.   Each sign shall not exceed 100 square

feet per face, per side of entrance including exposed supporting structure

or associated decorative walls.  The portion of the base of the sign within

two(2)  feet of the grade of the ground shall not be included in area

calculations if that portion has no signage, logo,  or lettering.  In the event

Town Center identification is incorporated into any proposed entry wall or

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Cage 32



landscape feature only the actual area of sign text and any logo identifying
the development shall be measured.

b)  One additional ground monument identification sign shall be permitted in

Sub -Area E and one for Sub Area G, provided it is coordinated with the

design of the ground monument signs at the Kirby Road entry drives. Sub

Area E and Sub Area G signs shall meet the size requirements of

Paragraph 4 a) above.

c)  One overhead gateway feature identification sign shall be permitted for the

main Town Center entry driveway (at FM 518).The sign shall have a

vehicle clearance of at least 14' and a maximum overall height of 24'.

Letter height and sign area are not limited. The sign is restricted to include

only the name of the project and any logos or graphics associated with the

identity of the Town Center.  Refer "Exhibit A- Town Center feature

identification sign" of the attached appendix.

5)  Department Store and Event Center Exterior Signs

a)  The maximum allowable number of signs per Department Store or Event

Center is Four (4).  Signs on one elevation must be contained in one area

and not exceed 400 s.f.  per sign.
b)  The maximum height of all individual sign letters shall not exceed 96" for

capital and lower case letters,  with the top of the department store

exterior signs being limited to a height of 40'  above the average exterior

grade.
c)  As an alternative to the above,  one  (1)  Primary Wall Sign may be

permitted with 96"  high letters,  provided the remaining three permitted
wall signs are limited to 60" high letters.

d)  Any Event Center may have an electronic changeable message sign not

to exceed 400 SF. See UDC Section 4.2.5.3 par. 7 for requirements.

6)  Main Street Tenant Exterior Signs

a)  All tenant stores located within sub -area "A" shall be permitted an exterior

building sign for each separate exterior "customer" entrance.  Tenant signs
shall not exceed 70% of the store front length on which the sign is placed.
Letter height shall not exceed 36" in height except hotels which shall be

permitted 60"  high letters.    Blade signs,  canopy signs and three

dimensional signs are also permitted,  provided the total tenant signage
does not exceed the maximum calculated square footage available based

on tenant frontage.

7)  Free Standing Out Parcel Buildings Signs (Sub areas B, C, and D only)

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November lb, 2009 Page 33



a)  The maximum allowable number of signs per free standing building is

one.  (1) sign for each public street or circulation drive frontage.  Signs
must be contained in one area on the facade and shall not exceed 70 of

length of the building face to which it is attached. Letter height shall not

exceed 36" in height except hotels which shall be permitted 60" high
letters.  One detached ground monument sign shall be permitted within

Sub Areas B through D for each individual building and such sign shall

not exceed five (5') feet in height and not exceed 45 square feet in surface

area per face.  Monument sign base shall match the primary exterior

building materials, and shall conform to a standardized ground monument

sign detail to be established by Developer.
b)  Flat wall signs shall not extend more than 8"  beyond the face of the

surface to which the sign is mounted. Blade signs, canopy signs and three

dimensional signs are also permitted,  provided the total tenant signage
does not exceed the maximum calculated square footage available based

on tenant frontage.
c)  Signs shall be composed of individual, free standing letters.  No "belt" or

box" type signs or "pillow" signs will be permitted unless they are part of

a tenants national identity.   All necessary sign supports and electrical

connections shall be concealed.

d)  All signs must be illuminated and shall derive light from a concealed

source.  No exposed lamps,  globes or tubes will be permitted.  Minimum

return depth for illuminated signs shall be 5 Illuminated signs may be

pegged out" from mounting surface for silhouette effects.

e)  Lettering on all store signs shall be limited to business or trade name of

the premises. No sign manufacturer's name, union labels, or other lettering
shall be visible.  Logo signs will be reviewed on an individual basis by
Developer, but in general, national tenants with recognizable logos within

or adjacent to their trade name are acceptable. All logos shall adhere to the

requirements of this criteria.

f)   No exterior sign or sign panel will be permitted to extend above any roof

line.

8)  Directional, Informational and Traffic Control Signs

a)  All traffic control signage on public streets shall conform to the size

requirements of the "Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices and the

City of Pearland."

b)  Pedestrian directional signs,   information kiosks and electronic

information devices shall be permitted throughout the Town Center Sub

Area A and Event Center Sub Area C without limitation, provided that

they are used solely to convey directional,  town center special event,

public service and related information to the general public.

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 34



c)  Directional signage identifying receiving and loading areas, access routes

and other elements requiring further identification are permitted provided
they have a consistent design and appearance coordinated with the other

Town Center identification signs.

9)  Service Door Signs

a)  Each Tenant shall be permitted to install one sign on a service door to

identify the name of the business.  The content of the sign shall be limited

to the name of the business only.
b)  The lettering shall be consistent color and type style, two inches high, and

shall be located no higher than 5' -6" above finish floor.

10)  Announcement Signs

a)  The following types of Announcement signs shall be permitted within the

PUD:

Project Announcement Signs Limited to two  (2)  Overall

Development Signs not exceeding 96 SF per face each sign,  and

one  (1)  additional sign for each sale or lease parcel created by
Developer, not exceeding 64 SF per face for each additional sign.
Banners,  Pennants and Temporary Signs used for advertising
purposes provided that they are not visible from public streets.  On

premise externally illuminated portable signs,   banners,   and

windblown signs such as pennants, flags, and streamers for special
events and grand openings shall be permitted provided they do not

exceed 20 SF in area.   There shall be no limit on the amount of

Developer placed Banners,  flags or signs along Town Center

Drive, East or West Main Streets or other circulation routes within

the PUD.

Project Announcement signs shall be removed within 30 days after

an occupancy permit is issued.

Land Available and Real Estate Signs.    Signs offering land

available for sale or lease shall be limited to 64 SF per sale or lease

parcel provided that no more than one sign be installed for each

500 feet of frontage.

11) On- Premise Wayfinding Signs

a)  On- premise way finding signs are permitted within the PUD for the

specific purpose of directing vehicular traffic around the site and to major
anchor stores,  Hotels,  Residential,  Offices and amenities.  (12)  signs are

permitted.

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16.2009 Page35



b)  Maximum Height:  The maximum height of any vertical On- premise way

finding sign shall not exceed 12' -0" (refer to exhibit C on page 40).

c)  Maximum Sign Area:  The maximum effective sign area shall not exceed

174 square feet (refer to exhibit C on page 39) including the sign base, and

supporting structures and associated decorative walls.

12)  Interior Project Boundary

a)  Signs located within the Interior Project Boundary, (refer to Exhibit B on

page 38) are considered interior signage and therefore exempt from PD

and UDC requirements.  These signs shall not exceed the height of the

buildings to which they are attached or immediately adjacent.  These

include signs such as: mall directories, traffic control, way finding,
banners, flags, tenant advertising, portable sidewalk signs, information

kiosks and electronic information devices.

b)  For Signs A -J in Exhibit B -2 on page 39, refer to Article XVII Signage:13
Off Premise Advertising Wall Signs.

13)  Off Premise Advertising Wall Signs

A)  Off premise Advertising Wall Signs shall be permitted as follows:

1.  Shall be located as indicated on the attached Exhibit B -2 (on page 39).
2.  Proposed designs must conform to the Off Premise Advertising Wall

Sign Design Guidelines called Exhibit D (on page 42).
3.  No more than 7 of the 10 specified Off Premise Advertising Wall Signs

shall be utilized for off premise advertising concurrently at any time.

All Off Premise Advertising Wall Signs may be used for On- premise or

Town Center advertising at any time.

4.  Signs designated as A -J shall be submitted first to the Owner for

approval and then to the City of Pearland to obtain an approved sign

permit prior to the installation of any sign.

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 36



Appendix

Exhibit A Town Center Feature Identification Sign

11 11 II

ENR/ SIGN

SIGN LOCATION PLAN

1/32 1' -0"

FAINTED 8UMINUM

BACKGROUND

WHTEFACE LIT

32' -1 3/8" CHANNELff7TERS

d Town3VearlanLd  ,ATS 4Prater
FAINTED BUMINUM

ARCH

FAMED STEEL ROD

AND CEVIS HARD/ARE

FABRCATED FAINTED

AWMINUM CON

io

STONE CLADDIN>mMATCH

BUILDINGIONE S3

3' -7 7/8'

SIGN NATION

1/8"  1' -0"

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 37



Exhibit B:  Interior Project Boundary

V

T

v j

F;
e

OETENTYJN POND

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November '16, 2009 Page 38



Exhibit B -2:  Off premise Advertising Signs

f
CAT

Er 1.
WALL SIGN LOIONS

1 say
y_am k w

it
j

F

t 11:
4 ail

1

Sign Visible Opening  (tall x wide) Area (SQ. FT.)

A 24' -0" x 18' -0" 432.00

B 12' -0" x 18' -0" 216.00

C 10' -6 3/8" x 15' -4 3/4" 162.14

D 10' -0" x 18' -0" 180.00

E 14' -0" x 10' -0" 140.00

F 10' -0" x 15' -8" 156.67

G 20' -8" x 11' -0" 227.33

H 10' -6 3/8" x 15' -4 3/4' 162.14

16' -0" x 9' -6" 152.00

J 13' -0" x 30' -0" 390.00

Totals 2218.28

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 39



Exhibit C On- Premise Wayfinding Signs

sIGN LIMB AREA
174 SQUARE FEET

3' h'

t. TENANT ONE

4 TENANT TWO TENANT SEVEN

MEMBEMIll
F TENANT FOUR

TENANT TEN

ELEVATION HORIZONTAL EXAMPLE

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3. 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 40



1

1
6 1 4'

efi
ALIGN
WITH TENANT ONE

ICIP OF
2M) TENANT TWO

COURSE

4-TENANT THREE

4-TENANT FOUR

4- TENANT RVE

Cia=2131111.111

4- TENANT EIGHT

0=CM.
TENANT TEN

i
UMI t ARIA:

174 SQUARE I Et

0
ELEVATION-VE.1411CM EXAMPLE

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October3,2005 ilev.November 16, 2009 Page 41



Exhibit D:  Off premise Advertising Wall Sign Design Guidelines

PEARLAND TOWN CENTER

PUD (PD District) Ordinance

October 3, 2005 Rev. November 16, 2009 Page 42



4dVitn:k

ilacaNWA-Viii1g.4„     J

Es
vgdorwlitIVVIlit 1 -1
tigillaCtf4M9-0-,1 CCI

0

uJw

D c
C3 z,
Z

r -I-1 5'1
r f)

O a,

Z LI;

C•
fuzl

1.4
c.)   

7c:17LE)

aig)
P

LL

F4 I:I
C3

K

V:;ZtirFS4:ZtgfW

OfialM,1**WOR0

APWW4gi.atiilaZi,it

Mii 0



L
6

F
Ii '1 ttf!ioill

XI Z .10.0.1..." '
t

N r wr.r.fi

c

k

0 y.wwrw

k

A A 0 w.r.w

75
40ROkfoono3 i 4 yfn_

f

y

iA

Al Z `r

14
L

Mr

t lr
w

a

r
4 4ii

i

Alglir t4

i

TAIr'

iO.     t4 z

i.,

z
0

a
2

0o O
LLLn

IL.,' Zc d

cr
N j J

W

c W

H d m N

1'6' O Cn
Z

Q O N
w

V D W
x d a A m D v W moc c

O0.   d N
3

1, °
m c p o v

am 2 o
1

x 9.
J G N E Op V1 Y

V O
X

C N N T H

a N
Q

N I a °p T a H W r p N ' O V
w e7 V v E M—m s c n a o
W 3

c o

m m O L
N Er N N

C N ' a
N
co 1

t7 OV V,vV owv QOvia dv avi d 3

CI z

Q)
i



aY

3NN0 a3Ui33 ssamsne
s5

if

r

616 g
4

4 Z

J
s 11 LU oiliimisio

1143-2 Z 4
mss 4

M

r v

I
t i Q

9 i 1 SI C7 w
1 i 9 S I

I 5

i
4 a 4.4 1

iftwomeseme

Z

r owirmigliII i
ir EI

I i i

I si i

1
1

6' 161 2 E

cc

d it u

i ri

amiiiii
01111100•111111

4 1
I

2422' YMBAl1

momemmit

4

4 IY V
pMxYYWIY0

a
I

1
it

ef
4e.t, 4,1 111

W c w ,.6' -0 3
o

a al c E
Z

y w a, o iO c c w c c g a`'

W 5 a G a. a'   v v O a c
0 l7 d A o m.-  W o C

orn

c a Va o c al 3 c v la a

VI VI

c s
c

a
a w a Z Z

of 0F MI r a   Y w a O OW of 25 N C H v N 0=     u pO O
Y°  S

N 01' L L x g Z'
P

o v a a a

m°  a
a

v
Q V

w
z

O+ 'O U C w NO u O l7
O c "O O O

17 s C ' v, To N 7 u Y E N 3> J 0 J OC

J a O O C C a V 7 O O O Z O
J t o o v 3 a v a c

a o a Q Q Z u.

C Q V2 oa IC 1 U c C E,  A
U

W 0 W
M c c a y c 3 v fO p .'a c

N Z H Z Z

0 a 3 2 pi O O n3~  7 0 7 Y -O
A J Q Q J O

M E c c,,  y Eo c E c y o N o a 0 0 Q O
d

H n' rn p v R
c a H 3H Z

6

W
O a

O. io a w c a N c c Z F 3 Z j Q

Y E a
O

o a v a` U i W 0 2 O V

Q a
a;     

0 a Ico o N Q m j Q m d 0
7 r,

W OE >COa0OC -
a c97, a CC 'nn w

O.   2'   TIn u-  O.  N  ' o a d W O F w OCC

a° c °n o=a c a a 2 s H u H a z

z
iL W O'., -o It y

o X Z W
11 VI L v y v 0, Ln E to N

7
U

O M 1-     o

O

a 0...C..  c c 3 E 1
z

4)
H



rn

r p 4 W
e Z

i

4

4 k

t ii:

W

J W

I u, is ii -"
3- taor—f

Z
Y fi o- C7

11

1!
4 p o

ommoiimoi

i•
z

Y 4 C7 300olisalho

F

C7
A Z

mimilleit

I CC rw••••
W isiolowlaiN

art

C
j0110

1

c W Mwwhice

L.L.

CC liiPololis4

A.
i
t

s r ,Y i Q l' w  '' s

r
s

o

r 4----,...
e,

i

r
kM

i
44006W

moromie

c  .11
o

A 3 a° m'o a ;n c°  w
X 

O j N O. A 0
N 4, v N 01 y 0

E 0.= E v N m vo a' E 2
L o v A c Y m a c T,

cr o v Q c a7 vco o m t Noo
w 8,v c o 'el 'E c o E E
j o X a

E 2 N c N A w ca'  N C t c

w C w w
L

C N 0 b'   w O A2'.
3 3'O 2,4--  w a V C

2 a g X N
E

C

c =a.    E
E

o a 6 c o c w
N 2

r

w 0 v r
0 N O 0 C

R
C O, 2 C

O N v% C«   w C
7

c

V ' O, d
E.  

O
E °2,occ•  w allo ti'°

0
h fl T u c

a) 
w

w L a
a

o
EL a'  wt w c gc2oo;-w,.,vocEo   woa

S.-     3 31 72 L"2 y

E y C v 5 o f a a m c
z

c o A o c 0
v a v w T v N c 5',  c 2, 

a
N N g

O
N

Eoo3w 't 47 o a Z
c

H
H r A y t u 7 A

L L O A 0
a A C c 0 a a, a o a'   5 c O O. N

v> Y w a o c a o C E A 2  ,,1 w

Z c ;g,oc 0

w0 a cu'" 5-oca,wo   2
E°    aa..

ad

z rnv v_ "
3

o- o a a w-o n
Z. 

c E F
wto

c
c v2

v .Z C O F, A$ o c

w 2a A'  v v o-D q a ,o 0

0 4
cd z

F



R y v y O **Nil
O C V 7

E a 0 6 A

p V
O p C y 2 . rte.. p

o
a L.. a O To

olowim

p C o I y C "c Q. W
O O G a 1- 11.0

2-013 e gip. IS

i
E

i
Ov M!i! 

a V.. O iO
W

ti)   
o C

a E Z
3 r0

a

C M7
H

N , a w

V V a

y>  0 o a r
o E

a O

Q

w 72
a N a) a y O p a r O E V°  N a' Z l 1'

V N7 N a 2 V 0) N i a V v 64, 2 Q N MM

E a d v C T w
V V W

a rn v E•°  aao
c 3 0 o a,  a w o Oa v c-  a La ono*" 

a, a,  awe c fl. o o a E> Y.,-  3 5 m 5
0. a o. 3 m E E o .n I-- _2 5 u` v  A J=J

tIti  =f' arvcwm•

a

t 1.95141.53#414

Q apooftwon

e'     r% w
wa

A e

a

cc 4sevemoven

O a r iir.V
w

h

r

Q A E o a E a c
O in

C v7i 7 p a
C

V

a W N a a -p N a a
a

o ".7.. d C V L  ._n V Z L L

N
O C N 3 w N v.

E a a
o

a 0, a a

L a >-0 c m
alonnaureo

v E u
c c 2 m o'  N

R .La. a y C N
T p H N •O

o a E c a c R
c c a`,  o E  ` a a o E E 3 a

a TA

c>  7o 0...

0.  

a y c Q. a v c°  a a v v

o p F., m v o v v
NORMOMa

o E o 5
a 2 tH a2 a o.     a c'?  V

v,

N c H o a-  N 3 L co N T Q A E,
a E O a .L-.  a h 7

c. E E o.    c o m R a o E
o

a,  .
o m:

a

w
7 v E° c v 0

O Q 'O v fl. C
YO

E
w O

N a a .2 c ate
C 3 c a a , a w c+ v 2 aa sa a a
e' o 2

v o c v a o
y

c c

inou,     a 33   x Arzc

F,,     O 30 Av m
r.  

3
7,  N 7

C
a L C >7 C 4,     C .T

C Y
O O'

Nv o w O ' O 1O io O O 10 N N
a a s c c v o c c c 7

ao 3
a r A'  i aw? L 0 F

N a,  a ra C`  G v a) ta. a
c E C 0 c 3

a N
w

Ell a
a

7
o a°   o a3 o Z

o r O w  `o a
r R a m  ` o a c m O

a a
a E o 2 c 0 3 rn 0,   a y r c 3°   c

i a a a c 7.     c
v i-  o

a
a

v to LL E a 0, 0 i

a,     Q;  cu a, 4.—.   
c
0 o o Q

0-   w y
a a° V a E y -5.. x c N .r. D. .t c0

ILI

w c E
w 7 -

0
m c 0 0 m m o ao o

V o c "T., a v
c

x z 3 O
E 2

ZO o Y Q o`     c o c v j N E a  "

1.1 po a 0,     oY c F 01 E a
v aE

ch -a nwc aArn O30, a5 0c; a5E
A

aA V
J d a E a a N c c a s

CU F

WW a c 00 R7 L N ' O a N C a p O 0
a s

C C a C

C

L 7 a or a O.   C
a m

C

p 0 V

crj z

f•



o g....
c.

istimovo
T- **ma*

w.
z 00.1.1414

J

W srrerrir
w

CD

of s

co .rte
LL1 w.i+si i

0 4

Z

I 1111110. 111011

A

AelP

s.....

Z

en en

UV
CL diorieogr

l 1 w Q

CC g=     

tA0

W

Nz
LL

M

O ate+
i= larl

J

J O

V

aielmio

oromiloa

iM11MM.
Mimiroi

0A

r 0.
2 16 0._

W R C
v P.  vM

0 3 a 1

1

op.,: CQ aD u O7
C 11 S I

c

L

v Oi
C f  

O
Z y m

o
1

err
v 1

C

v C
Z a o r

N a, '
Y

d

Z
N A 0, a! c S t,' E i

a E E A i
C

v c a.1 1 w
x mo c v a, a, CA z

QgQ „9 c 6 ar

I
9

x,  x

v
o

4

Q as U

Z p g O 0 4
N O 2 a,  N

Q

W
a
vo N E W

rz a,     
n 00

W tO , 9 —0 Q
a, Y 1

z

C C

N 0
Q j V N

u
w O J

LL
a, m fo v C QO a v R a, z O 0

Z Cf,O a u:
w o+ Y a 73 w

UAa, d o+ N o z

0 U, C m C zj

Q L m a a a t, U
0 H a a,   a,  a, 111

c z

o

F



Pa

4

y

G

CC ,001016101

iiIIIMINI

i

il
040.

iiiii
limoomPli

a E a d ro O O
iokatalpor

v
O 2 E„ o

O E O a Milwim1
ioosovstkoL

V q v

m m v'  E m 3 c O
v c ra rir

E a>  o- a O a a 0 v c u

rn N A a v o -
5,..  

E c
o A

formodow

C E a o f c 5 a` c
c

1.1 0 0 3 E E V VOCOMMIA

3 a .0 ow O Ev on 2 c a r
O O to

1 0 C 4., LL A
V V

at o N
C a,  C v a

0 N

v m 75 o v ma O a j d
0

a,  a N E
C 7 Q C N Q

0

E o, aCrc.0 m m
c

0 p a 0 c
Yz E o a a of

a 0

c
c a V

O
o v c W

a

A c
O' T,  O Q1

O
0 0 a, F

y
C O p N r E c a,     la w N J

O A cc m
2

N
N O 0' c O. m

3 o, C a,   01 W
C 0.     

C
0'     0. E

E
5

C C N V,   
a 0.     O c

Z
O

o 3 z o 2 a 8 E
0

ca o
0 o a c

E

m V A E. c O
5 a

a,     
o 0

3
0 N a

a 3 in o'   a o
o

c c a,     o w

c c co W c o ac A a c c

S J 0 o E A a cc E

oc o tea, m c o° rn v c

S. Q
E E

u
m

a 7 v> o N E 0 E8 c m o O

Q d n a c
O s w o A E o w v a

cc

0 0 H 3 a 01 tea,  c v v m a
0

p E v W o O m c O Q 0 ro 0 0 v Q
Ce71

J
p'     0

w io 3 c, a i c0 C 00 m E W

Q a'     N E 0- 0 4V c

a 4 a a a a E N Q a Z

c Q y H
o 1 a

c o a
Z00.-   a Z V

o 0 V ,n -2  `
c

Q
V N E a a, X

O N m
O C O

o S
p

y V o C 2 V 0 c
a O o o o Y N

E 30.
Q E E C Z 0 E c O 0 0 C A 2 A a C v. c W
C O3 p Ti, O a E a,   c o c J c N C r-a

F
c

c

Z
LIJ

o'     01 a,a'     
Z

al C 0 a2'a voc v0 Z av z

O t p d L 0 Nt'   0 R a 0 L N W

O a S' o`  V o 1 1 a ar in aE'   v>     0 Y 1
ct z



N

o
c  ** now

1

Meemmio

weawieeme
z

RpnMorM

W
o

o
z

0 mwoumwm

z

o

C7

Z

MOMPAr

Z W

a
w

lamostoge

Roftworaave

1111111111
ata..99341

SffiStSWAVASYS

c
W

W Mapwasmats

11.11
owstaxene

a

Z

0.
a

O

F
F
w
J

a

z

J

1



rn

0,

q
m

000041000'W

rx o

g ....
mow,w

0 1110.010

c
t

W J L.M.Mi..

ErD
F

J J iMMMMM

Er 0 4

V X ZEw Z mow

li 11 q
cc .10.44.0*

W b Z Q
is a a cc

F
Q
d

0 JO

T
Y

C

C al o L  ,0 A Y
i,

IH
a!     

a

w
r

Ern v v
a,  

E
a

E
a a     rn o 0400000000

Y
at

000000
O

C, 
L a'

ov o v
a o rn n a

o p

o c w c
74,  m 0 K

E E
H O x

e A d O
e44

4
7'

O d.     O d
2

a v ie}     t 11.1111

O a'
y 1i1wiYt11u1O

tilil
O

c
v

0 ON F
oo

O O

O
o

N
O

v c'  a

g E

fi
o

o
o

aw

a'     E. E. ..
c E

EO 8 N iJ CC
y o

T c w v v c c n H
0 O ', 2 4;     y a'  `p

f'

H
y c L 1 N O t d

c N 0
0 w A w m W O

p

vv O w 5 O N a a 0
J O y c E CI L C y a'

Z

J
co-  H L e. v v F Oo

Y

C C 0 O O O,a.

a -8 pE a
o w a a

a

Q 2< o m rn-     2 2 w
Q C L o al 10 O, f-

W C w O w
a' f.     4, Fv

z a     Y 7 a a
o

a' v 0
J

a y o Q

00
T

C N t R O A a a.
Q

7-    m Y
o w°  c' v

O va c av E vY E* x

w p.   O c E to v  `

4";
a'  d W

F m E e,  rn O A E E•.

rc v c E E 8-- E o v 0,    E w

as 1-E-2 o o v::   1° s oc u T. 4
ct z



o'>

1

E
s 4000106

0 Z
U-I 0

CD UN 4
o

rill C teZ, i Z

w 0
k s w4 4:

n $
40.004

t
S 4=

t Z IfP,

44/004, a ii

a o

rf w
w

1 cc irowome2 Val

7 44$0,44„.../.W

gi 40r 7r

imoop

ik,
ter+•

r
4.   ice»P o

I
g

c o E a T i f
N

T Q TN

A a

E
H E

V 1 Y
O E  ;t I iN C s Q p YYY

A Q

r o E a o

m c 3 c

IL u i v ie
a rn E

d 1 O

E v 00
x E o Z

T
n, rn O

v N. 1
I I H

LO E'Y7
E p

Q y
11111* w

O Ti E a
v

a a rn
f, 

W E 22 o
s

C

x

H F.x

H vc mo.,7 zW a) a E C v

I.

c z

01F



s,..

o 4....m.

W
Z

W
a s r

tn
N

U V V z

W

an Z **nel4M

v rn ill rn
N J

0
z

co

ilimmilwo

Oo N
co

CC 7,tl1*,tla

M 00 r
W

V U V U U 0
Q

asemalsolois

Lu 4, 004004

erg," `
41

CD 00

W

7: 4........
cc 44000

N N N N LL

U Ar:dv v v v v U— Notaillow.

7 .ec

fir;

OA00010

0

MMnrN

ilidalliNa

d

v

A

c_
TS
a

7 C
as a'

E
o a,

E Z
m 1.,

WI 70 aZz
0 1

17 W
ac F *

w

U 1—
W

z J pip

O o a
P o
O 0 3 x

W N E x

I;     
O

H

fl. z
J

N a

a A i-1
c z

P•



C

cc

3 q

a

R

d

LL
z

0 C

c ?,

74

co

a a U;
LL

9'' 7 fro, z

v'  .l v  _„N
o f kr:4 CD

ct

G

cr

z cc

ke.,   7*,  --4,- 77`''' ,t
ft

u_a^*; 7 r` r,,     
a I', r LL

C S r r r

3

i

I

Wr
P1

66 ,040htispi &jib
krloaradok*

d
d_

a

a
o'v
o N

c",)' 
L

O

O CI C

C C
N

C

C
76O

V z,
O

E
v z
7 N

z
0
r

F-   v v 0
A

0
w

o ovo wL O W

Z N F-  V J

O s Qa
a
o

a

o
w o

o o H
F c u

ZW

J v Y
a a c a

c z

CU
c

h



c'I

c)

1

1 Jam,

E

4

z
k-, 1

0

j: 1
o

L1

T

1

r rryy rya

z

2

0
1

1

1-

1!
1

1•-

4

w
J

4_•:--
AE



o.
co *woww

liwoorio.

aiRiokim

otiailimo

UJ
z

WPM
0 4

5

z

0

I W
0 LO Z

ww

U mow'

lawfoONOw

r= loomillomi
N

h

d

fl11414aLL
m

U m j
oimeomim

U

r 1 ilf weasm

a. 
immoims'FA 4 LL miodOsmir*

0

oftiONAII

x`' u43.}s
r

ii*P*

mow
rAwsimosom

m w000meat

rz4-,,,.„ c.)

ii,...a.

j ri i to, Hw
r

w1

i
r- samowilow

borpow000mi

MINIMMOVW
41 4

r m

Opiassiew
1—_

z

6

2
Isnossopee

vs

W
trs nlM.wf

Alkoompo

V1
soissesmest

CO kw

I—

O

Iii

2

CC
IL

EiLor
a

er.eew.r.

W
0 I—  reseseee

1— inoknon
IL!  rnososss.

onsiossm,

O a wry5".

a
O
us

W

0

CC



C7

w

A

A of

Ca *4a  , IT!  Alle
OD

ma j

LOP
g

Z

0

It r.**
Z

1
E

R iriiNlel

a „.

4"

f. W MYr

a.
c;1 Q

ePo
Q MwrF!N

a 2
U./ iii.Olim
CC itill"04

U-

r

1

O

ailV

1
i aimilkiiiii

at

CID

N
co

v_w i41/
400 411 r,..,...

x 04-,

LuZ`
t

O

O
w

r' liw: 1, ww

O u`' a

w
x jr W

0 110

W w r"``
z

J
3 U W

et 2

as z

P-4



rn
o

wi a rs i

v r

T 41.1101011.0
cc

Z
Ea J

t: W VANSNIMAI

4 CD 6.1.1WOM

D swoon*

Z

i IWOMISOIVAIN

Zr

N

v 4` aswvwts+vrn

CO goaftilawstak

Z 4.1011154.1.

a

LU 4.44-444:4.4. ,

F' ti
0 eat

14
1 YNtllW4s

t C inawsestomo

N
ISRMISMM

V
Li_ i01,0041.4.

U a as U 017-
CCU

s aiw

MASOWIIIIIIM

4 IMINKNINEM

Y

r 41-::::'
MAW=

g
MIlteaVISIO

rIlaiteekarrOf

t 7 ate 0 .610 0
IMOSAKIWOR

O.)    416..74.

r

gg

CC
Ili

2

r
i v

p
m

Lb o
a

W O

N W

f

v. Wcc

Z Y ft J

O U a
P

0 x

r H

u z

J

o.

Giz



0

cn

co

0 ti...000

0
LU IOW**
Z 011040#

11,

4 yoltit n
I

rz

cl
CR :f*ffiff-
LU

fauffrafifiCI /amps*

0

v iiiNOINIMI

J 01/1011001.
1

jill°'
10101001110

5. SIONINIfii

a toolo

wago#0,
CR 1,61
77

Ec
u..1 ........0ui

CNI
e., 1110011000110
000,4060

LC)
001.001001111111 1 M C.011.0.1foli

t tt i ll plamNoili
aloomps.

a 1 f" met.rim
UJ t01110001PMe

r i'  i 1 tat LA

g
LL 000.00044
LL 11106000101

0 IIMMINIMIN

k
2

1

1100MMONIM

0111101100411f V
4,...

miiimmor

040000

sialioNftimi1 441
lir 1, 0, i AV 0

i 79,,,,,, a'"'   

1

7—

AM

t. 4t.   ii, A

4

cc

4

cr,

C1
la

z f 11011.1" r. ia
i il

I
LLJ

0

0 0.

co0

z
I

0.
i

CCS Z



W itswearoMpa

Z

J IIIMINVSMO
W gewafficero

seamsam

BISIMIMMing

Z
711,1.0.1116(2

awslowasvl

W
0

1
WOO

J

0z
Z

CC WalliWra

W smaimg

0

seowsoom

a
C.0 tiffaa,"1701

2
obroOMMat

aftreinittaln

W

o

MININIONSI

IIISOOVOWA

IJ_

z

0
1-
a

0
W

2

cc
LL

eztPz

c V

z



Lac_
0,.....
5,._.
0...,....

0
w
z

saws

a

r„ C!1

H

V

1

cal:
J

c
J

x z !+w

w 000,00

c-5 a
LL .1.4,16000

0 A a

r

I
4

Ili mow+
LII d is" 

i u_-_,604
I 0 1 i 4,4%  dI

i

t

is
4

5 J i
000,00400

moprtliiii

E.

I I I I i

E00000000**7a,oma puej.zPad
47 a) 2 1' 0- 6:1N N 6

ND

C y N N 2' O

O= N Q C a v
ii!.r~awa
di*MiMIlI
i410O
taimioso

0 O O Z  *7400.0
VI 2 -0
J Y o

V., Y
03

a O 0010*
n

d w,  A 0
a a

d

g u: s' o O  *u....
Q w O N A N W
W 0 m-0...  0w GL

Z N m O g
O ocv E o u.

O.    E .0
E N o o

O ELV, ga li
W

C N H N
9

OO N
i

ce
E L

v
0

E
4

u.   ii w u m Q.



a

N_ Z
W

p Z
J

a a

z

al 0 C
rt i

CO

w

z

gin

a Q a

W 7 W Z

w 0 w
W v

n fi W An H
on m 0

o Q w

w Q w 0
G

cc

Q
V N O

a
CY

a4:   ul a
U...
LL

0

0 ofLu

J Z J WW
F

0 w w w

c
co

VW

0 m

O O w
r Q

cc

n 0 i 0
cc

Q

iLL H

6
w

a

s-

z

N

V1
z
0
1-
a

0
W

2
Q

z LL
cc

0
0.
o. a
O w
W

2 z

c
U

LL

etS z

43
e



i
mom

MAN

C asottranue
0 ONAMINA

6

101!"
i r— ANNOONNA

r L11 OfoRNONNOO

f ''....1iii 0 rri..a..n
n.xowr

0 ANMANN

ANANNINA

Z gillatemlforol

L
lelearetatiffat

up iioamtamos.

LIJ
NANNSANN

CI wothitekifisi.

N
z

Z
N h w w
J W WH

w nr, t:
CO F

J

Qw

OO j OaS

L"
CC VI 0 Z

O T
u.

v Cn
T

F— t

C cD W

0
ANOMONA

4
MANNONO

r sv qt r Yr tar"
U) ONAN"v'

11111111111111111 d.x
gPBv rte

1111111.

W
Yv` i. yY cc r

a

LL., imoompio

H LL. aosiYWMi

1- 
w N z

O
ww.los

w w
wv I
m H w ON e•g+ 

I.1.1 Vi ONNOMOON0 CC

1— 1- MAP
p O w 0•10

w rr Mrra
CC willameose

CC W isolate! Wm
C

osaliakplooliI' VI CC
mss

F. tyl „ 0 0111111101101.

T amm.rl®
F 01111Y.1.r

a.ommas

o va

liZINED NALO1

Tpusilzug,,

x

o x'
N t

z
O 71 w m

w t
w X a

Dw r o W A r

Zmy Q, l7
0 as

w0 a iX Vf

2 Jr-.: Z

O I 1 O

f. Or
WW

C

0
I ILNa3 NA1()I LL

P g4114A1 PU1!T z

LL

P-4 r



gis. 
71

c) 0,000•40
6 tatIMINO*

cf 00.0000,400000:t
r viponim,

U-I

Z0`,;*:, 1
0 te 4,.. i

7_,

v..,
U-I

M Mesa*
Pa**

is iiis .0060
a 0 foloilio

a mom**
z kiwi*"

otioNowi

Fri oiiiii
1.1.1 .0.:-.

O
L.,.,
N Z

LL1 tr,
co

O ES
0 40..gaINOLu

t cc Z 114111100
1

2 i__ volaioitS
1— iiiormoi

dai

02 itotoirog

7:4,U&IViilli‘akotiliNikiktilal,41470' 2 000 .ii•074
11.1 proem*

U- ....W."
LL 100

0 01111000004

2
Lu

I=

tempawmp
iiioira

immoio
O Es k c. F_ iiiiimii
1— k 0.00#0,00

0 11110****

CC
1000.0.414
via,11.4100
ilill.***

1 VI 0 100

Illii.00

3.1 El I 1 SI 3 14 It. 0 Ji.

i)

1[Pa tc'T ITT r
CA  , f) 1

L.

0

Z

4:
w 4'.. I— IL

14 6.:.
n Lu o-

co F t' t 1.-

z
t-7

0 Ef, g, cc

0 7:5,.: kr, 0
Lu I

LL K z

IC)
t

eZ

z 21HIN:43 NANOI
cc
u

pup'0 li,ELU el Z.
fi

Ct 40° a-1

cc sr

Ct z

114.4 i--



i
N

G7

0.00.0.#

C° 
loPlinkr

Koixoloto

f

Ks W wnamiir
Z

a
J
W

5

0 "".""°"1

Z

0 f)

6 F- J4.- 
W Z

MatafeRtf

W L.) 11 11
L.1 r 4' to

w
CC O JO

C
C.) co

WSt

Q

G 7140.1111168400

W mamsoce

CC AVXMONSIOM

0 LL. SOW

N Z 0 Li.
I

w N Q

WJ W
11.114001.91.

W V1 f
Mans NYm1

0
F W Niislrs

O m

Q
O

111•i1MIB11/
Q aRWyggMIF

v
F CC

W d w
0

i
1.

1
O

auesao+are

r wlMewr.r
WOottemiego

S

xwx;kwX''X,Ax'xAli& v

x 2 K
0X J Z K

0
LAJw

JZ
w v1 d

F

w
m F.-- K

Z

O W j v
L c

zLIQ vi0 K
O

H
K

F

10
I; OW

x vx.',.%   X.x yo' .X(,x.V' X.
Q

0 2I3.LNaD Nj O1 LL

T.n. puntW

w

Oh
F

C z
LL t

at z

L)



VI

0 ra,

o

4444441,4
H 041440

w
Z

r
0

CD
z wwwwwwe

O 841144541464

0 WOW

0
z
0 ‘41004.44.4

J w J
H J

xs
m2 ryf—  ;

t
Z

a o 7 w Z

Q WI

1
m

r

i- Cr 414.6.01492

Qo w

ch t
H

2 n nboeWM

W

ac 43 ”40444

ci
44.441.1011.

LL
W .1.01.6411

0
wa

0

II
w

n E 4104.1440

7 w I w
w VI W t%1

9
m r m h—

O cc

Q Q K

V1 O O s

H
w

I, I
LL

x t x +x x

o

Ch
O Z J W
J w C

w w 2
w n

wvi mh

mR ow r
ow 4

w0 vz

Ns

a o

H
O

E....
W

W

a

i K +x F V
Z

71
N
Z
O
P
a

O
IL

E
cc

Iz L'

CCS z



6

0
w
Z

G

q

Q
e

oseweemetay

N
LiJ

F F
N

z WW.*

J w

n w w V'1 ilinillW

w mP; C7

O w Cr)

a 0 w (.3 J assamataftpx

ct a Q cc
C

0 v10 7
2

Fr Z ".MI„"""'

Faareeber a
01 W LL kileite.81.

W

W

a

N Z O LL ...rr..1
H N

Z
Q

picomermit

w t.,1 I= Z
Lu i 4100

w 10 W W
V1

r
MY

I O CC 4011141010
wwwqmes

a h t
a cc a 3 OlIMIIIMMO
VI O L4J

4 Ii ININSItOralit
CL

H 0 r -+.a
w

1/1YINNOIt

ommomi

worilluppos

yypp g yy .fir +r  p ii

AINIMIMIN

E aJLH as 17 0 1 i

N LO

A

N Z 1

w LL
0

1 w d
pU mp x r

w 4 O Z
mp ao t7

o11 o N

z
a [C r

1- K

HLL l Q. 
Q.

f W

a

z
21:4.LN LD N/no.1. LL

iiti,    7 pu z
zw
LL

U

crj z

A_ c
F



5 N

0

1

Z

le770.61M

Eiiiii
5

V

z a......r

O
1

CO AMMINVN

W
LI 4414144110014

Cn yugww

J n

1_ wamswaa

77.77117.0

o
MOMNOM

Z 4004414414

0w
F—

1)
NJ
J 7

A
W

q,F S
D W 8 7-7 Z 1.

CO h A j Q
O CC

w Q MANNIMH W

od 1 W
d

sdCC

m
44444,40410

u

w
i— W

t. J W 5- N
MINIM**

W ut V=AiYM=.

W v1 W VI

CO r CO H suiwui

as MONNIMIN

w0 w d ftrawassita

VI
w

N 1

II. IMMTNON

N

Vt

D

mp C(f ra'" 

IMINOMM

mdi 0 cc
w

a w dcc

N O
w

H

x

410,,E rY.:,  ilpsl:. A C

V'
W

1—

Z

L

Z

0
P
a

0
W

2
Q
cc

z
0

LL

1-
a x

O m

W H

E z

cc a

cc
LL

Mt z



c.,.._, ..
w...«e

m rs

1
Usiwoi+
0........

orommo
lea r

W .rar..p

Z

2- 
Mixtfatiadat*

v W

0

0
Z

Cf) M9140"4

0 fpkatason

N J  3 V 11 4lBY

R. CO rommeehaNt

ER- InniVmaiatela; J
m J

CO
O Q

OW r
ilatairsesOM

w
c

Q p

0 Nww

cc Malffillse.

C.,     4 p 0 W .14.1.011000

a.:

C.40 * met

i 4
W t

Miaolexoro

WataraliMei

0_ 
arfastlwaksw

MiltiliMilI

LL

O

N r

J w

W

O W 0

atmowesmot

L6L15
CC goleMelmail

SAMINIMIMIN

t tommavierste

nrilinflOWS

1K II R 0 MIAMI
4-

SI1.71.7107N9

ammegierom

pia C try' 6

0
M,

NZ m

4 w

or jwj
CL

4 O
ww Xr F
m r w Z

a cc ,

o V1

cc

l(j
r

x O

2
a

z x 'a 1NRD M OI LL
0

0. puijrjW
a z

ac
v w

LL t U

z
1)

Ai
l'
F



r...4

a
z III

rt

tt
70

ja
Z

3
3
m

m 0
7z1 13

I

71
5

73
Z

D

rn

0
0

I

5
z
0

0

5
z

1

m 4.. X;ccW47.:Wz:R.. Pr

i

0 0

now*

immosomwor

MASANNAM tr r,..,
I 00

I co

rawommaAs 2: .'...6.'
7 m 7 M

m c
m c

AMNAMMIN I
NOIMANAN

I
MI

rrt F
NANANAMAN rn r

Z 2
110.0.1610 X r:L, I rr.;1 I I. 1
NRISKONAPRON

AirMaiNati, 0 0 Oki

IVINMAINN. VC:I .7.   N Q
MAINANONS

MONN.A.

4

INAMONN.

8

teettexaytto r'rer17Pr'rrie'r.rV.ItrIltr'    N
mm

NANNIMANN
41~4611. 4 I

M
IWOOMONNIN

tettmememe

10.
JO

m
0 0

MMAMANNI
rrl H

MANNAMAN x o

INNOMON.
til

17 m 7 m

whavomposit z rr, c i. m c
aftweloospiet

09(6111.1"010 rtle1.4.1100.80 Z Z
NANNOMMA

I rnh4
twistattotan

t
rr,

a0

a. 11
71

UNNON.M. ..X
MMINMANN

NAMANNOM m

8

u) 1
ANANNAN.

IN 4".
N

M
A.

MemillmuN

IN.M.M. 4. Cr3 7
atlasKostwo 4..

r 70 S.
AMMANNANN M

H
MANANAMA rrt

j)
0

a

AIRMANIAM Z 7 m 4
00011410.1*

i

anatorwoyok 5
m F

NOMMINAMI
Z

1.i
01.1006.116¢ 4, m

0

0......r.

W61.14. 
u)

5
RMNEMMAN

Z

0
raitlaeSsostrio M
MOM* cr)

INM.AAN Z
RIPAIIMMO

1.9.160 0
i.....o. C

0.6."11101P 0
OVOMNIYINI m
WINOWINIS r—

Millarpell Z
PKOMax. m

0
000

CI)

11"001MOR
NOPLWOW
06.000
APIMPAI
10.
0/10.010611111 G.)

00111/0121.1. ‘C)



eD
z pip

T

D
z 3

m

0
x

m
O

2D
Z

x.

3
m

0

z land
in TOWN CENTER

z 4 4;
1

m D
o

i
m sc̀ w

7 f
1

s. O N T

Q m
321 0

D
D

vo O
7 m m
m v+ m

m

m- CI y.,.
m

m I N

0 m

O

WtA.. .J.
w N

SOMM761.
a ge0.101648.116

TI
aluMMIMM -n

VINAMMV011 . 4) r s

M
AMISNIIRMO 2..
regvemaIWPS4 fi

cn
m

o 1 IMINIMIMMO

C S S

rn o 7

70 D D

D D

Z O DOO
0 I CO

I
m
CU

n m 7
m

otoommlo

D o u m F m,
t A D Z

N N

IMM•1406 r--

DO D
m

01610.86M
cr) 

5
IMMISNAM 7:1 O

Z I W

IIIIIMMI

MINIIKIIIAVAld

0
m

loommOMMO

a n
r^ 

F

N

OZ
mommiamO L
AlommosIMMO c

WAMOMMI

r
Z

mommaleM

N
x



Z 1
CD ci ci

z AD
z

4
z

n li rin

NI
nt

n-:

Z Di
c
F-

0 0
x

z Z
C% et
o

X 8 i
rt 12'-0"

E i-

jiblijillit.1
n

Z
1/1

11111110111111elerlinipirlirNana. IINIIIIIIIMIIIIIIIIIIMINILA
1

r
rt
4

0

o

17,".: ...1l.e.:::

fl*tfr',1,Virina,',1kMt.
F.;

M

m

77. M

0

0
4

24-0

604 !*1140, 0 I

0
Z

l (3) 1
Z

01 ,4

rnM
I

rl
7

o el;

IC*1401 c'    11 ii

7 4i i
1



z

z

m

X

V1
1

Z

Z

N+riwNie

ai°

rignnrt

m
T

e

m
zM!+

D
m

m

c
a63/8

wFsu*

1.01101- ABA 111
D o e•es4a1
U A

illaWANIIP

z
tumor om

filkaNtrerlard# 0

Z

m

z
m
Cn r

in

III



lotN' M

z
Z

m
m p

z co

x Z z
es

X 18 8
a

Z

G

Z

oorrawati 1a' -0"

MONIVAtes

NWIMMOTS
WINIVOM

tOSIONMNIIR

14-0

a

n

m s/

1

I

I

0

r
r

o
r

z
M x

s

m
11 11

snyH,ti
11



i

2

144w 44

yy
C

r

z

M

K o
taromarom 111

WrYr 1 Z
a0011.r1.  

2 0

tomrogells L1 a
Z r

H

IMMINIUMW

nab

wwwrw

a

b

a.wri.e
mepormieesta

L. N
iSMOSOMMIN

Msa irstafte 0

e z i

PAINOMOOK

VasWitableo

aottaMistadaite

aosmaran

wontortaer

i+r ii

roommmomp

J

OPOWidia

O
m
CA

M
w.,,  o

1o. -0•

Ct

Z

v

1

Z

is* m

Icimeait
pois z

0

ofolooio
Ommommi M

z
m

i004 (j)

A

r..W.

u

iliMa bi
W



N

v

CI

x g
A1r..111104 1./1 01

Z
G1

Oppilerliiia
1

00 444001aiWIMg
00‘ Uge55151Aftfift
No. toixiawgioomopi u

4000000 i;Vaittraiate41,070g

8.888.888128.8
yosksmoi

13-0"

W

O W
91 11

T1
O

m
ommomm 7
immomm N

m z

v
wookivim m
40.1000 70 m

warri+R
wWNw'ra (Q 10' -63/8"

Z Z

J

o818.88888/188 0

O

r

Z

74"4"4114#1 k4

C
m

Aix.,     g0,10,1 itlyollog

10210111101/4
0)    11
o

O

w



z AD 1

z
c

i

x z
0

1 0

m

x 0

r7.
1

z

z
c)
v.

5 I=
z
vi

16-0"

J

x:;:oiff
V.

1 i

I
i

411 I

4

II&
i

11s.
iIivilis L

1

11
WAPSARMINNIt - 71 1 i

1

0.119100416 — ri
I 1

II
KIIN.91.0. XII 3

1
I! I

04.4108.1, M
I 11 1

3.6601M1.44

ROXCV...01

I 11
74.1...d4C or, 1 il

M

iik
1 il

NW

2Nati41044. r7

I 11 11
MONWOMM

I

01.110181.0.0 m
3.0.2.5.312 DJ

i I 1!
0.0.11MbitIVO

H I Li,
malsempluao Ct

I

woommoy..,

mom. Z 11111111111111111k1vousam., 0 I-I-1 I -I I 1 h

MITOIVIVIS.R. 5 IIIIIMMtlffiltaa. I r Li
r

50101171.110 I I
7.(5.41111P

INIRWOMM 0

4.13.7.910114
17

141.0.1.90 M
tAll... Cr)

INAMINIMPE C
WWI z
IRMAMOM

159410=1.060 LI
OVIRMIINOW

OVINIX011.#41 0
1$90.**1011419f M

r

z
m.o.. m

10000
itletalskoli

I

MliNI

opkmilo
7,

m000f
11111 C)

7 u
I



New 
Business 
Item No. 1 

1. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of
Ordinance No. 1505 – An Ordinance adopting a tax rate of $0.7121 and
levying taxes for the use and support of the Municipal Government of the
City of Pearland, Texas, and providing for the interest and sinking fund of
the taxable year 2014.



AGENDA REQUEST BUSINESS OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL CITY OF 

PEARLAND, TEXAS 

ITEM NO.: AGENDA OF: 09/29/2014 

DATE SUBMITTED: 09/08/2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN:  Finance 

PREPARED BY: Claire Bogard PRESENTOR: Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY: Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE: September 11, 2014 

SUBJECT: Second and Final Reading of Ordinance Adopting a Tax Rate of 
$0.7121 and Levying Taxes for the Uses and Support of the Municipal Government 
of the City of Pearland, Texas, and providing for the interest and sinking fund of 
the taxable year 

EXHIBITS:  Ordinance No. 1505 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash Opns 

Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.: 
ACCOUNT NO 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.: 
PROJECT NO.: 

To be completed by Department: 
X Finance X Legal X  Ordinance Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

Tax Code Section 26.05 requires a taxing unit to adopt its tax rate before 
September 30 or by the 60th day after the taxing unit receives the certified 
appraisal roll, whichever day is later. 

The tax rate as proposed for the City of Pearland for tax year 2014, for fiscal year 
2015, is $0.7121 per $100 valuation, which is 5.62% greater than the effective tax 
rate of $0.67423 but lower than the rollback rate of $0.71215.   As such, the City of 
Pearland was required to hold two public hearings on the tax rate pursuant to truth- 
in-taxation requirements.  The public hearings were held on September 2 and 
September 8, 2014. 

Ordinance No. 1505

2014.



The City must adopt the tax rate in two components: operations & maintenance 
and debt service.  The operations & maintenance rate is $0.2221 and the debt 
service rate is $0.4900.   The debt service component of the tax rate is the same 
as the current debt service tax rate; however the operating component of the tax 
rate increased from $0.2151 to $0.2221, or .007 cents. 

The tax rate along with property valuations provides the property tax revenues 
needed for the payment of debt service obligation and for operating costs for 
departments such as public safety, parks, and public works. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The City of Pearland is proposing a tax rate of $0.7121, and increase of .007 cents 
from the current tax rate of $0.7051 per $100 valuation.  The increase is attributable to 
the operations component of the total tax rate.  There had been a $0.010 increase 
anticipated in the original budget and as shown in prior year’s multi-year financial plan, 
however, the tax roll calculations for the rollback rate necessitated a lesser increase. 

POLICY/GOAL CONSIDERATION: 

Adoption of a tax rate that will provide for payment of debt service and for the program 
of services for fiscal year 2014-2015. 

The motion to adopt the Ordinance must be made in the following form: 

I move that the property tax rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.7121, 
which is effectively a 5.62% increase in the tax rate. 

The vote must be a record vote. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of the Ordinance adopting a tax rate of $0.7121 and 
levying taxes for the use and support of the municipal government of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, and providing for the interest and sinking fund of the taxable year 
2014. 



ORDINANCE NO.1505      

An Ordinance adopting a tax rate of $0.7121 and levying taxes for the 

use and support of the Municipal Government of the City of Pearland, 

Texas, and providing for the interest and sinking fund of the taxable 

year 2014.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That there is hereby levied and there shall be collected for the 

use and support of the Municipal Government of the City of Pearland, Texas, and 

to provide Interest and Sinking Fund for the Year Two Thousand Thirteen upon all 

property, real, personal, and mixed within the corporate limits of said City subject 

to taxation, a tax of $0.7121 on each One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) valuation of 

property, said tax being so levied and apportioned for the specific purpose herein 

set forth: 

(1) For the maintenance and support of the General Government (General 

Fund), the sum of $0.2221 on each $100 valuation of property, and 

(2)  For the Interest and Sinking Fund, the sum of $0.4900. 

Section 2.  All monies collected under this ordinance for the specific items 

therein named, be and the same are hereby appropriated and set apart for the 

specific purpose indicated in each item and that the Assessor and Collector of 

Taxes, the Director of Finance, and the City Manager shall so keep these accounts 

as to readily and distinctly show the amount collected, the amounts expended, and 

the amount on hand at any time belonging to such funds.  It is hereby made the 

duty of the Tax Assessor and Collector of Taxes and every person collecting money 

for the City of Pearland to deliver to the Director of Finance and the City Manager, 



ORDINANCE NO.1505  

2 

at the time of depositing of any monies, a statement showing to what fund such 

deposit should be made, and from what source received.  All receipts for the City 

not specifically apportioned by this ordinance are hereby made payable to the 

General Fund of the City. 

PASSED and APPROVED ON FIRST READING this the _____ day of 

____________________________, A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 

TOM REID 

MAYOR 

 ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 

YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 

CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED and APPROVED ON SECOND and FINAL READING this the ______ 

day of ___________________, A. D., 2014. 

________________________________ 

TOM REID 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 



3 

___________________________ 

YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 

CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ 

DARRIN M. COKER 

CITY ATTORNEY 



New 
Business 
Item No. 2 

2. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of
Ordinance No. 1506 – An appropriation ordinance adopting a revised
budget for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2014 and adopting a
budget for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014, and ending
September 30, 2015, and pay plans for fiscal year 2015.



AGENDA  REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

The City Council has reviewed the fiscal year 2014-2015 budget through a series of 
budget workshops and held a public hearing on the budget. The operating budget for 
fiscal year 2014-2015 totals $166,250,407 and the capital improvement program (CIP) 
totals $60,750,139 including transfers. The capital improvement program is year one of 
the five-year CIP (2015-2019) and the action tonight will appropriate funds for 
anticipated 2015 spending. The operating budget is for one year and capital 
improvements are for project length.  

ITEM NO.: 

DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PRESENTOR:  Clay Pearson 

AGENDA OF: 9/29/2014 

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/8/2014 

PREPARED BY: Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY:  Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE: September 12, 2014 

SUBJECT:  Second and Final Reading of the Appropriation Ordinance 
Adopting a Revised Budget for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014 and 
Adopting a Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning October 1, 2014, and Ending 
September 30, 2015, and Pay Plans for Fiscal Year 2015. 

EXHIBITS:  Ordinance No. 1506  
 Exhibit A Revised 2014 Budget, Exhibit B Adopted 2015 Budget 
 Exhibit C Pay Plans (attachment) 
 FY2014 and FY2015 Final Budget Changes (attachment)   

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: N/A PROJECT NO.: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: N/A 
PROJECT NO.: N/A 
To be completed by Department: 

 Finance  Legal  Ordinance  Resolution 

1

Ordinance No. 1506



Pursuant to City Charter, Section 8.10, the budget shall be adopted no later than the 
last regularly scheduled council meeting in September. The second and final reading of 
the ordinance will be on September 29, 2014.  

Also for Council consideration is the adoption of a revised budget for the 2013-2014 
fiscal year. The revised budget is based on revenue and expenditure projections for the 
year. Adopting a revised budget more accurately reflects the City’s financial position, as 
well as preserves a fund balance that was used in the preparation of the 2014-2015 
operating budget. The revised budget also includes the Capital Improvement Funds and 
changes from the adopted budget include carryover of funding of projects that were still 
in progress as well as identified savings. 

The proposed pay plans for the 2015 fiscal year for all civil service and all civilian 
positions are being presented for your consideration and adoption. Public Safety 
departments have individual pay plans; Police as they are Civil Service; and Fire/EMS 
because they work a different number of hours per pay period.  Police and Civil Service 
includes a 2% step increase and any new positions added into the pay plan. Also, Fire 
and EMS have been consolidated into one plan.  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The proposed FY2015 budget was filed with City Council on July 28, 2014. Since that 
time, there have been a few changes to the 2015 budget as well as projections for 
2014. These changes are incorporated into the final budget ordinance attached for 
Council consideration on September 22 and 29.  

The budget, as filed, incorporated a property tax rate of $0.7201 per $100 valuation to 
fund basic services, provide for growth and development and fund select capital 
requests. Pursuant to truth-in-taxation laws Council voted on August 13, 2014 to reduce 
the rate below the rollback rate to $0.7121 per $100 valuation. The proposed operating 
tax rate is $0.2221, an increase of .0070 from the current year, and the proposed debt 
service tax rates is $0.4900, the same as the current tax rate. A list of General Fund 
expenditure reductions were presented to Council on August 25th to offset the lowering 
of the property tax rate. The first reading of the tax ordinance is scheduled for 
September 22, with the second and final reading scheduled for September 29, 2014. 

The General Fund budget, as filed, totaled $67,175,937. Subsequent changes to the 
budget presented to Council on August 25th include the property tax and TIRZ rate 
revenue reduction of $259,774 due to Roll-Back Calculation and an increase of $20,000 
in the KPB contract. Reductions to expenditures of $265,578 were needed to offset the 
reduction in tax revenue. The August 25th expenditure reduction proposal include the 
elimination of a proposed Patrol Sergeant, proposed PT Fire/Investigator, shared cost of 
the Facilities Superintendent position from the Water/Sewer Fund that originally was 
supported entirely by the General Fund and the elimination of a vacated Parks 
Maintenance Worker. Other reductions are provided in Trail Connectivity, $5,920; 
Custodial - Janitorial Supplies, $7,500; Paving/Sidewalks, $5,416; Ditch Cleaning, 
$20,000; and Tuition Reimbursement, $5,000. Due to the potential emergency 

2



replacement of the Natatorium HVAC, $500,000 in contingency is included. Revenue 
increases related to adjustments to service fees, including a $20 building permit 
processing fee, as well as increases to health and planning fees are included in the 
proposed budget. 

Additional changes were proposed at the September 2nd and 8th Council meeting to 
include a budget sufficient for an additional four Police Officers budgeted for 8 months 
and reinstate the Proposed Sergeant recommended for elimination on August 25th. An 
additional Sergeant had already been included in the budget, creating funding for a total 
four (4) new police officer positions and two (2) new sergeant positions in FY15.  

Sources for funding the additional Police Positions at $599,364, require reductions and 
additional revenue sources to the Proposed Budget. Reductions for Parks Mowing 
Equipment, $28,450; Parks Software, $37,106; Pavement/Sidewalks, $262,331; defer 
the Business Analyst position, $57,477; and lower General Fund Contingency by 
$50,000 are related to funding the additions to Police. The budget incorporates a police 
vacancy savings of $54,000 due to the current four vacant positions in Police that are 
actively being recruited, but will not realistically be filled for an entire year, as well as 
increasing the new building permit processing fee that had been proposed from $10 to 
$20 resulting in an additional $110,000 in revenue. 

The budget for General Government totals $10,373,879, a $2,066,763 increase from 
fiscal year 2014 projections and includes funding needed for capital outlay to implement 
technology improvements and software related to ERP.   

The budget for Public Safety, which includes Police, and Fire totals $ 35,389,548, a 
$1,701,272 increase from fiscal year 2014 projections and includes organizational 
reassignment of Animal Control and Health/Code Enforcement under Public Safety. 
Police is increasing $1,410,749 over 2014 projections for 2 Patrol Sergeants, 4 Police 
Officers starting February 2015, and normal replacement of Police vehicles and 
equipment. Animal Control is increasing $26,534 mainly due to a scheduled vehicle 
replacement. Fire includes the integration of Emergency Medical Services and 
reassignment Health/Code Enforcement under the Fire Marshal. Total Fire related 
services is budgeted at $12,167,894. Excluding the reassignment Health Code 
Enforcement, Fire decreased by $956,362 mainly due to the 2014 purchase of 3 fire 
trucks ($1.6 million) and City of Houston Radio transition ($500K). The Fire budget 
includes $59,890 for additional FFE for both Station 2 and 3, $50,000 for training tower 
structural repairs, and $134,045 for ambulance remount and SUV vehicle replacement. 

The Community Services budget totals $2,949,771. This is a decrease of $986,915 from 
fiscal year 2014 projections mainly due to organizational restructuring with Health/Code 
Enforcement and Animal Control assigned to Public Safety. Community Development 
includes $41,587 for an additional Permit Clerk, $50,000 for plan review services in lieu 
of hiring a planner, $34,244 to advance the department use of electronic filing with the 
assistance of a part-time Intern.  

3



Public Works budget totals $10,486,794, a $1,106,910 increase from 2014 projections. 
The increase can be attributed to the overall organizational restructuring with Facilities 
Maintenance with a budget of $985,347, Custodial Services, with a budget of $317,089, 
and Right-of-Way Maintenance with a budget of $731,463. For 2015, $231,712 is under 
Information Systems as part of the overall reorganization. Public Works budget includes 
additional equipment and capital improvements budgeted in FY 2015 for Traffic 
Management, including $192,000 for intersection upgrades, $138,186 for a flashing left 
turn arrow program, $38,760 for school flasher replacements, and the replacement of a 
dump truck.  As part of police officer funding, pavement/sidewalk funding has been 
reduced by $262K. 

The budget for Parks & Recreation totals $ 6,773,623, a decrease of $1,466,266 from 
fiscal year 2014 projections. The decrease is related to the department restructuring, 
transferring $985,347 for Facilities Maintenance and $317,089 for Custodial Services to 
Public Works. A portion of Park Maintenance related to right-of-ways also is transferred 
to Public Works. Parks & Recreation includes $106,840 Shadow Creek Sportsplex 
operation and maintenance for last 2 months of 2015, $39,921 Centennial Park 
operation and maintenance for last 4 months of 2015 and a full year funding for Max 
Road Sportsplex. 

As proposed for adoption, the General Fund fiscal year 2015 revenues are $63,692,881 
with expenditures of $67,520,359.  Revenues are under expenditures by $3,827,478. 
This is a planned drawdown of fund balance, as the City is using fund balance to fund 
its non-recurring purchases totaling $3.4 million. Ending balance at 9/30/2015 is 
estimated to be $11.7 million which is over the two month reserve policy requirement by 
$1.3 million.   

Changes to the budget since filed on July 28, 2014 includes changes to several other 
funds. Water/Sewer Fund includes an adjustment of $36,132 for the 33.3% share of a 
Facilities Superintendent position. The City-Wide Donation Fund includes the reduction 
and removal of the Animal Control Study. CIP changes are related to FY2014 Projected 
inter-fund transfers and funding related to Shadow Creek Ranch Park, Lift Station 
projects, and lowering expenditures for Hillhouse Annex Phase II. The PEDC Fund 
added funding for the Pearland Chamber of Commerce contract as approved by the 
Board in July. 

The Water and Sewer Fund totals $37,017,108. The 2015 budget includes funding 
enhancements of $4,764,782, $1,252,059 recurring and $3,512,723 non-recurring, and 
include funding for one Wastewater Treatment Utility Inspector with vehicle ($79,784), 
auto dialer alarm system ($231,000), automatic priming centrifugal pump ($40,000), lift 
station rehabilitation ($500,000), sludge dewatering/hauling ($525,000), interior lining for 
three ground storage tanks ($400,000), pigging of water lines ($300,000), analyze and 
improve SCADA System ($100,000), painting of exterior piping at water facilities 
($59,000), replacement of two Ford F350’s with vehicles having larger towing capacity 
($120,470), Vacuum Truck ($459,026), quick valve insertion machine ($65,422), 100M 
pump on a trailer ($42,072), laser excavator system ($45,770), two trailers ($58,332), 

4



Longwood Street manhole rehabilitation ($159,600), backbone to wireless read system 
($304,790), and pro-rata share of ERP ($802,797).  In order to fund water/sewer 
operations, a 4.63% revenue increase is needed due to annual debt service and bond 
coverage requirements. 

The Capital Project portion of the budget totals $55.1 million, excluding inter-fund 
transfers, for Parks, Streets, Drainage, Facilities, Water and Sewer. Projects include but 
are not limited to: Tom Bass Park Loop, Regency Park Subdivision 8” Waterline, SWEC 
Filter and Bar Screen Improvements, Southdown WWTP Rehabilitation, Green Tee 1 to 
Riverstone Wastewater Diversion, McHard Road extension, Bailey Road, Fite Road, 
Max Road, Regency Park Subdivision Paving, Hooper Road Extension, Industrial Drive 
Realignment, Tom Reid Library, City Hall Complex, Orange Street Service Center, Old 
Townsite Drainage, and Centennial Park Phase II. 

The City’s budget also includes other funds, such as the Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax Fund, 
CDBG Fund, Grant Fund, Police State Seizure Fund, Solid Waste Fund, and the Pearland 
Economic Development Corporation.  

The vote to adopt the budget must be a record vote, as the adopted budget must contain a 
cover page stating the record vote of each member of the governing body. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of the Ordinance amending the budget for fiscal year 2013-
2014, adopting a budget for the 2014-2015 fiscal year and adopting the fiscal year 
2014-2015 pay plans.   

5



ORDINANCE NO.1506       

An appropriation ordinance adopting a revised budget for the 
fiscal year ending September 30, 2014 and adopting a budget 
for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2014, and ending 
September 30, 2015, and pay plans for fiscal year 2015. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City Manager' s est imated 2013-2014 Budget and 

proposed 2014-2015 Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit  ‘‘A’’  and Exhibit  ‘‘B’’ , be 

adopted in compliance w ith provisions of Art icle 8 of the Home Rule Charter of the 

City of Pearland, Texas w hich sets forth certain specif ic requirements as to the 

City of Pearland, 

Section 2. The City Council hereby adopts a revised budget for the current  

f iscal year ending September 30, 2014 consist ing of certain appropriat ions, more 

specif ically identif ied on Exhibit  ‘‘A’’  attached hereto.  

Section 3. That City Council hereby appropriates certain sums, more 

specif ically identif ied on Exhibit  ‘‘B’’  attached hereto, for the proposed f iscal year 

2014-2015 Budget. 

Section 4. That the City Council hereby confers upon the City Manager 

general authority to contract for expenditures w ithout further approval of the 

Council for all budgeted items the cost of w hich do not exceed the constitut ional 

and statutory requirements for competit ive bidding. 

Section 5. That the City Council deems the Pay Plans (Exhibit  ‘‘C’’ ) and 

Organizat ional Plan contained in the 2014-2015 Budget to be in the best interest of 

the City and is hereby adopted. 

Section 6. That this ordinance shall become effect ive from and after its 

passage on second and f inal reading. 

6



PASSED and APPROVED ON FIRST READING this the _______ day of 

______________________, A. D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

PASSED and APPROVED ON SECOND and FINAL READING this the ______ 

day of  ___________________, A. D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

7



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

8



Fund # Fund Description
2014

Adopted
2014

 Revised $ Change
2014

Adopted
2014

 Revised $ Change
010 General 60,161,236      63,245,053      3,083,817        63,349,499      66,336,042      2,986,543        

015 P.E.D.C. 9,126,881        9,003,762        (123,119)          6,819,102        6,946,723        127,621           

020 Debt Service-General 28,070,980      61,612,893      33,541,913      28,842,896      62,228,869      33,385,973      

Proprietary Funds
030 Water and Sewer 32,380,706      32,488,364      107,658           31,086,191      31,814,713      728,522           
031 Solid Waste 8,458,930        6,916,829        (1,542,101)       8,520,935        6,739,002        (1,781,933)       

Special Revenue Funds
017 Municipal Court 66,417             54,683             (11,734)            78,678             78,457             (221) 
018 Citywide Donation 30,632             69,235             38,603             81,185             103,094           21,909             
019 Court Technology 78,420             62,246             (16,174)            77,790             339,994           262,204           
023 Court Juvenile Management 39,265             37,249             (2,016)              43,074             44,092             1,018 
033 Street Assessment Fund - 62,588             62,588             - 62,588             62,588             
035 Traffic Impact Improvement 870 42,850             41,980             10,625             10,625             - 
043 Regional Detention - - - - - - 
045 Hotel/Motel 1,151,088        1,429,994        278,906           761,195           780,922           19,727             
046 Parks Donations 81,100             104,165           23,065             71,500             136,367           64,867             
047 Park & Recreation Development 51,200             225,081           173,881           48,700             248,023           199,323           
049 Tree Trust 25 854 829 5,000 5,391 391 
055 Sidewalk 5,300 33,715             28,415             - 14,652             14,652             
060 Police State Seizure 15,132             47,187             32,055             102,733           113,637           10,904             
062 Federal Police 50 9,326 9,276 29,000             31,842             2,842 
101 Grant 378,838           630,514           251,676           393,263           650,915           257,652           
111 Community Development 333,253           753,146           419,893           333,253           753,146           419,893           
140 University of Houston 258,447           340,935           82,488             258,266           340,935           82,669             
141 University of Houston Capital Renewal Fun - 330 330 - - - 
145 Municipal Channel 234,105           265,407           31,302             40,500             46,546             6,046 

Internal Service Fund
095 Property/Liability Insurance 1,355,938        1,209,206        (146,732)          1,355,888        1,271,354        (84,534)            
099 Medical Self-Insurance 5,499,891        6,810,948        1,311,057        5,505,785        6,292,592        786,807           

Sub-Total Operations 147,778,704    185,456,560    37,677,856      147,815,058    185,390,521    37,575,463      

EXHIBIT A

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Revised Budget 
City of Pearland

9



Fund # Fund Description
2014

Adopted
2014

 Revised $ Change
2014

Adopted
2014

 Revised $ Change

EXHIBIT A

REVENUES EXPENDITURES

Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Revised Budget 
City of Pearland

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP)
Water/Sewer CIP

042 Utility Impact Fee 20,364,862      13,506,154      (6,858,708)       21,333,184      16,009,968      (5,323,216)       
044 Shadow Creek Impact Fee 1,399,320        2,149,066        749,746           2,692,612        3,992,612        1,300,000        
064 1998 Certificate of Obligation - 1,702 1,702 - 847,080           847,080           
067 1999 W & S Revenue Bonds 1,658,326        4,102,909        2,444,583        2,164,747        9,793,754        7,629,007        
301 Water/Sewer Pay As You Go 250 66,100             65,850             - 2,068,713        2,068,713        
302 MUD 4 Capital Program - 2,423 2,423 503,763           477,802           (25,961)            

Capital Projects Funds
050 Capital Projects   293,500           3,341,177        3,047,677        292,500           4,827,434        4,534,934        
068 Capital Projects-CO 2001 5,391,413        6,140,223        748,810           5,438,240        6,150,089        711,849           
070 Capital Projects Mobility CO 2001 - 1,110 1,110 510,084           829,651           319,567           
200 Capital Projects-CO 2006 2,145,000        3,000 (2,142,000)       2,879,889        2,002,170        (877,719)          
201 Capital Projects-CO 2007 - 80 80 - 66,043             66,043             
202 Capital Projects-GO 2007A 400,000           453,445           53,445             1,464,922        2,032,595        567,673           
203 Capital Projects-GO 2009 23,630,615      18,092,067      (5,538,548)       24,297,286      25,566,988      1,269,702        

Sub-Total CIP $55,283,286 $47,859,456 ($7,423,830) $61,577,227 $74,664,899 $13,087,672

TOTAL: $203,061,990 $233,316,016 $30,254,026 $209,392,285 $260,055,420 $50,663,135

10



REVENUES EXPENDITURES
Fund Fund Description 2015 Adopted 2015 Adopted
OPERATIONS-
010 General 63,692,881$       67,520,359$  

015 P.E.D.C. 9,415,766$         14,708,556$  

020 Debt Service-General 29,869,444$       29,749,859$  

Special Revenue Funds
017 Municipal Court Security 57,208$              99,497$  
018 Citywide Donation 23,250$              22,000$  
019 Court Technology 65,510$              66,665$  
023 Court Juvenile Management 38,322$              44,229$  
033 Street Assessment -$  -$  
035 Traffic Impact Improvement 1,800$  91$  
043 Regional Detention -$  -$  
045 Hotel/Motel 1,393,078$         819,213$  
046 Parks Donations 81,140$              80,000$  
047 Park & Recreation Development 51,100$              118,532$  
049 Tree Trust 45$  69,100$  
055 Sidewalk 5,240$            67,224$               
060 Police State Seizure 20,100$              54,100$  
062 Federal Police 15$  -$  
101 Grant 262,297$            276,959$  
111 Community Development 313,794$            313,794$  
140 University of Houston 339,955$            339,915$  
141 University of Houston Capital Renewal Fund 8,376$  -$  
145 Municipal Channel 270,500$            83,700$  

Internal Service Fund
095 Property/Liability Insurance 1,390,375$         1,374,360$  
099 Medical Self-Insurance 6,821,888$         6,821,888$  

Proprietary Funds
030 Water and Sewer 35,583,118$       37,017,108$  
031 Solid Waste 6,616,649$         6,603,258$  

SUB TOTAL - OPERATIONS 156,321,851$     166,250,407$               

Water/Sewer Capital Projects Funds
042 Utility Impact Fee 4,760,368$         3,438,770$  
044 Shadow Creek Impact Fee 556,186$            623,018$  
064 Certificates of Obligation 1998 -$  -$  
067 1999 W & S Revenue Bonds 2,705,415$         2,949,746$  
301 Water/Sewer Pay As You Go 224,500$            424,947$  
302 MUD 4 Capital Program -$  22,431$  

Capital Projects Funds
050 Capital Projects   3,835,500$         3,884,372$  
068 Capital Projects-CO 2001 10,928,569$       10,956,770$  
070 Capital Projects Mobility CO 2001 -$  75,841$  
200 Capital Projects-CO 2006 -$  -$  
201 Capital Projects-CO 2007 -$  -$  
202 Capital Projects-GO Series 2007A -$             805,296$             
203 Capital Projects-GO Series 2009 37,965,612$       37,568,948$  

SUB TOTAL - CIP 60,976,150$       60,750,139$  

GRAND TOTAL: 217,298,001$     227,000,546$               

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Adopted Budget
City of Pearland

EXHIBIT B

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP)- 

11



Position Title Salary 
Range

Minimum 
Annual

Minimum 
Hourly

Midpoint 
Annual

Midpoint 
Hourly

Maximum 
Annual

Maximum 
Hourly

City Manager, City Attorney and 
Municipal Court Judge Determined By City Council

Department Heads

Deputy City Attorney 72 $84,949 $40.8408 $106,186 $51.0510 $127,423 $61.2612

71 $82,877 $39.8447 $103,596 $49.8058 $124,315 $59.7670

Assistant Police Chief 70 $80,856 $38.8729 $101,069 $48.5911 $121,283 $58.3093

69 $78,883 $37.9247 $98,604 $47.4059 $118,325 $56.8871

Vice President - EDC 68 $76,959 $36.9997 $96,199 $46.2497 $115,439 $55.4996

67 $75,082 $36.0973 $93,853 $45.1216 $112,624 $54.1460

Assistant City Attorney 66 $73,251 $35.2169 $91,564 $44.0211 $109,877 $52.8253

65 $71,465 $34.3579 $89,331 $42.9474 $107,197 $51.5369

Assistant Director, Finance 64 $69,721 $33.5199 $87,152 $41.8999 $104,582 $50.2799
Capital Projects, Assistant Director 64
Fire Marshal / EMC 64
City Planner 64

Assistant City Engineer 63 $68,021 $32.7024 $85,026 $40.8780 $102,031 $49.0536
Assistant Director, Public Works 63

62 $66,362 $31.9048 $82,952 $39.8810 $99,543 $47.8571

Assistant Director, Parks & Recreation 61 $64,743 $31.1266 $80,929 $38.9083 $97,115 $46.6899
Redevelopment Manager 61

Budget Officer 60 $63,164 $30.3674 $78,955 $37.9593 $94,746 $45.5511
Building Official 60
Director, Marketing (EDC) 60
Manager, Information Technology 60
Facilities Manager 60
Purchasing Officer 60

59 $61,624 $29.6267 $77,030 $37.0334 $92,435 $44.4401

Associate City Attorney 58 $60,121 $28.9041 $75,151 $36.1302 $90,181 $43.3562
Planner, Senior 58

Project Manager 57 $58,654 $28.1992 $73,318 $35.2490 $87,981 $42.2987
Municipal Court Prosecutor 57

Determined by City Manager

12



Position Title Salary 
Range

Minimum 
Annual

Minimum 
Hourly

Midpoint 
Annual

Midpoint 
Hourly

Maximum 
Annual

Maximum 
Hourly

Accounting Supervisor 56 $57,224 $27.5114 $71,530 $34.3892 $85,836 $41.2671
Manager, Fleet 56

Manager, GIS 55 $55,828 $26.8404 $69,785 $33.5505 $83,742 $40.2606
Municipal Court Administrator 55
Manager, Animal Control 55
Manager, Water Billing & Collection 55
Manager, Sales and Event (CVB) 55

Network Administrator 54 $54,466 $26.1857 $68,083 $32.7322 $81,699 $39.2786
System Administrator 54
Superintendent, Parks Dev. & Operations 54
Superintendent, Recreation 54
Superintendent, Streets & Drainage 54
Superintendent, Treatment Plant 54
Superintendent, ROW 54
Superintendent, Water & Sewer 54

Manager, Acquisition 53 $53,138 $25.5471 $66,422 $31.9338 $79,707 $38.3206

Planner, Associate 52 $51,842 $24.9240 $64,802 $31.1549 $77,763 $37.3859
Budget Analyst 52
Management Assistant 52
Crime Analyst 52
Grants Coordinator 52
Manager, Traffic 52

Sales and Event Manager (CVB) 51 $50,577 $24.3161 $63,222 $30.3951 $75,866 $36.4741
Deputy Fire Marshal 50 $49,344 $23.7230 $61,680 $29.6537 $74,016 $35.5845
Jail Division Supervisor 50
Police Support Services Supervisor 50
Staff Accountant 50

Construction Inspector, Chief 49 $48,140 $23.1444 $60,175 $28.9305 $72,210 $34.7166

Emergency Management Planner 48 $46,966 $22.5799 $58,708 $28.2248 $70,449 $33.8698
Fire Inspector/Investigator 48
Health & Environmental Services Supervisor 48
Manager, Resource Development 48
Planner 48
Marketing Manager (CVB) 48

Deputy City Secretary 47 $45,821 $22.0291 $57,276 $27.5364 $68,731 $33.0437
Executive Assistant 47

Water Billing & Collection Asst. Manager 46 $44,703 $21.4918 $55,879 $26.8648 $67,055 $32.2378
HR Generalist 46
Plans Examiner 46

Building Inspector 45 $43,613 $20.9677 $54,516 $26.2096 $65,419 $31.4515
Police Telecommunications Coordinator 45

13



Position Title Salary 
Range

Minimum 
Annual

Minimum 
Hourly

Midpoint 
Annual

Midpoint 
Hourly

Maximum 
Annual

Maximum 
Hourly

Aquatics Supervisor 44 $42,549 $20.4562 $53,186 $25.5703 $63,823 $30.6844
Recreation Center Supervisor 44
Recreation Program Coordinator 44
Senior Center Supervisor 44
Special Events Coordinator 44
Communications Specialist 44
Building Maintenance Supervisor 44
Park Supervisor 44
Construction Inspector 44
Engineering Technician 44
Maintenance Supervisor 44
Treatment Plant Supervisor 44
Crime Victim Liaison 44
Multimedia Specialist 44

Computer Support Technician, Senior 43 $41,511 $19.9573 $51,889 $24.9466 $62,267 $29.9360
Project Coordinator 43
Vol Fire Recruit/Retention Coordinator 43

Buyer 42 $40,499 $19.4706 $50,623 $24.3382 $60,748 $29.2058
Chief Mechanic 42
Safety Officer 42
Therapeutic Recreation Specialist 42

GIS Specialist 41 $39,511 $18.9957 $49,389 $23.7446 $59,266 $28.4935
Telecommunications Operator, Lead 41
Lead Jailer 41
Urban Forester 41

Accounts Payable Supervisor 40 $38,547 $18.5324 $48,184 $23.1654 $57,821 $27.7985
Code Enforcement/Health Officer, Senior 40
Legal Secretary 40
Office Supervisor 40
Customer Service Supervisor 40
Volunteer Coordinator 40

Electrician 39 $37,607 $18.0803 $47,009 $22.6004 $56,411 $27.1205

GIS Technician 38 $36,690 $17.6394 $45,862 $22.0492 $55,035 $26.4590
Planning Technician 38
Maintenance Crew Leader 38
Utility Maintenance Technician, Senior 38
Treatment Plant Operator II 38
Program Specialist 38
Recreation Program Coordinator, Assistant 38
Recreation Specialist 38
Utility Field Service Technician, Lead 38
Videographer / Editor 38

14



Position Title Salary 
Range

Minimum 
Annual

Minimum 
Hourly

Midpoint 
Annual

Midpoint 
Hourly

Maximum 
Annual

Maximum 
Hourly

Code Enforcement / Health Officer 37 $35,795 $17.2091 $44,744 $21.5114 $53,692 $25.8137
Crime Victim Specialist 37
Jailer 37
Telecommunications Operator 37

Administrative Assistant 36 $34,922 $16.7894 $43,652 $20.9867 $52,383 $25.1841
Building Maintenance Technician 36
Traffic Signal Technician 36

HR Assistant 35 $34,070 $16.3799 $42,588 $20.4749 $51,105 $24.5698
Park Maintenance Crew Leader 35

Payroll Technician 34 $33,239 $15.9804 $41,549 $19.9755 $49,859 $23.9706
Computer Support Technician 34
Recycling Center Supervisor 34
Treatment Plant Operator I 34
Utility Maintenance Technician 34
CCTV Technician 34
Pre-Treatment Technician 34

Property Room Technician 33 $32,428 $15.5906 $40,536 $19.4883 $48,643 $23.3859

Custodial Crew Leader 32 $31,638 $15.2104 $39,547 $19.0130 $47,456 $22.8155
Mechanic 32
Records and Information Coordinator 32
Traffic Signal Technician, Trainee 32
Humane Officer, Senior 31 $30,866 $14.8394 $38,582 $18.5492 $46,299 $22.2591

Accounts Payable Clerk 30 $30,113 $14.4774 $37,641 $18.0968 $45,170 $21.7162
GPS Specialist 30
Heavy Equipment Operator 30
Water & Sewer Equipment Operator 30
Plans Expediter 30
Police Records Clerk, Lead 30
Utility Billing Specialist 30

Animal Shelter Supervisor 29 $29,379 $14.1243 $36,723 $17.6554 $44,068 $21.1865
Deputy Court Clerk, Senior 29
ROW Inspector 29
GPS Field Technician 29
Humane Officer 29

Office Assistant, Senior 28 $28,662 $13.7798 $35,828 $17.2248 $42,993 $20.6698

Court Bailiff 27 $27,963 $13.4437 $34,954 $16.8047 $41,944 $20.1656
Utility Field Service Technician 27

15



Position Title Salary 
Range

Minimum 
Annual

Minimum 
Hourly

Midpoint 
Annual

Midpoint 
Hourly

Maximum 
Annual

Maximum 
Hourly

Equipment Operator 26 $27,281 $13.1158 $34,101 $16.3948 $40,921 $19.6738
Fleet Services Assistant 26
Records and Information Coordinator, Ass't 26
Recycling Center Specialist 26
Senior Center Shuttle Bus Driver 26
Utility Maintenance Worker 26

Deputy Court Clerk 25 $26,616 $12.7960 $33,269 $15.9949 $39,923 $19.1939

Customer Service Representative 24 $25,966 $12.4839 $32,458 $15.6048 $38,950 $18.7258
Permit Clerk 24
Police Records Clerk 24
Sign Technician 24

23 $25,333 $12.1794 $31,666 $15.2242 $38,000 $18.2691

Building Maintenance Worker 22 $24,715 $11.8823 $30,894 $14.8529 $37,073 $17.8235
Office Assistant 22
Park Maintenance Worker 22
Receptionist 22

Humane Officer, Trainee 21 $24,112 $11.5925 $30,140 $14.4906 $36,169 $17.3887

20 $23,524 $11.3098 $29,405 $14.1372 $35,286 $16.9646

Custodian 19 $22,951 $11.0339 $28,688 $13.7924 $34,426 $16.5509

Animal Shelter Attendant 18 $22,391 $10.7648 $27,988 $13.4560 $33,586 $16.1472

17 $21,845 $10.5022 $27,306 $13.1278 $32,767 $15.7533
16 $21,312 $10.2461 $26,640 $12.8076 $31,968 $15.3691

Water Safety Instructor 15 $20,792 $9.9962 $25,990 $12.4952 $31,188 $14.9943
Camp Coordinator 15

14 $20,285 $9.7524 $25,356 $12.1905 $30,427 $14.6285

13 $19,790 $9.5145 $24,738 $11.8931 $29,685 $14.2718

12 $19,307 $9.2824 $24,134 $11.6031 $28,961 $13.9237

Head Lifeguard 11 $18,837 $9.0560 $23,546 $11.3201 $28,255 $13.5841

Recycling Center Attendant 10 $18,377 $8.8352 $22,971 $11.0440 $27,566 $13.2527

Lifeguard W/WSI 9 $17,929 $8.6197 $22,411 $10.7746 $26,893 $12.9295

8 $17,492 $8.4094 $21,865 $10.5118 $26,237 $12.6142

Ballfield Attendant 7 $17,065 $8.2043 $21,331 $10.2554 $25,598 $12.3065
Fitness Attendant 7
Lifeguard 7
Camp Counselor 7
Recreation Attendant 7

16



CITY OF PEARLAND

 POLICE PAY PLAN
 FY 2015

0 - 6 mos.
Police $16.1600

Cadet

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Police $24.6607 $25.4005 $26.1625 $26.9474 $27.7558 $28.5885 $29.4462 $30.3295 $31.2394 $32.1766 $33.1419 $34.1362

Officer $4,274.52 $4,402.75 $4,534.84 $4,670.88 $4,811.01 $4,955.34 $5,104.00 $5,257.12 $5,414.83 $5,577.28 $5,744.60 $5,916.93

$51,294.23 $52,833.06 $54,418.05 $56,050.59 $57,732.11 $59,464.07 $61,247.99 $63,085.43 $64,978.00 $66,927.34 $68,935.16 $71,003.21

1st year 2nd year 3rd year 4th year 5th year 6th year Education / Incentive Pay
$35.1602 $36.2151 $37.3015 $38.4205 $39.5732 $40.7604

Sergeant $6,094.44 $6,277.28 $6,465.59 $6,659.56 $6,859.35 $7,065.13 All officers shall receive certification pay as follows,
$73,133.31 $75,327.31 $77,587.13 $79,914.74 $82,312.18 $84,781.55 after successful completion of their probationary period:

1st year 2nd year 3rd year 4th year
$41.9832 $43.2427 $44.5399 $45.8761 TCLEOSE BASIC CERTIFICATE $  .00/hr.

Lieutenant $7,277.08 $7,495.40 $7,720.26 $7,951.86 TCLEOSE INTERMEDIATE CERTIFICATE $  .29/hr.
$87,324.99 $89,944.74 $92,643.09 $95,422.38 TCLEOSE ADVANCED CERTIFICATE $  .58/hr.

1st year 2nd year 3rd year TCLEOSE MASTER PEACE CERTIFICATE $  .87/hr.
$47.2524 $48.6700 $50.1301

Captain $8,190.42 $8,436.13 $8,689.22 In addition, add the following to the above, if the officer
$98,285.05 $101,233.60 $104,270.61 holds an Intermediate, Advanced or Master Certificate

and has:

ASSOCIATE DEGREE $  .58/hr.
BACHELORS DEGREE $  .87/hr.
MASTERS DEGREE $1.15/hr.

All college degrees must be issued by an approved institution of higher education which is duly accredited by one of the regional
accreditation agencies.  No mail order degree will be approved.

Monthly longevity pay is received by the Classified Employees of the City of Pearland in accordance with the Local Government Code, 
Chapter 141.032.  When Classified Employee is eligible, shift differential pay is $86.00 bi-monthly.

All overtime for any classification shall be paid in accordance with applicable State and Federal law.

17



CITY OF PEARLAND

FIRE PAY PLAN
FY 2015

Fire Certified Personnel (48/96)

MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM
2756 annual hours 2756 annual hours 2756 annual hours
Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly

F-1 Firefighter Firefighter $45,000 $16.3280 $56,250 $20.4100 $67,500 $24.4920

F-2 Driver/Operator     
Field Training Officer

Driver/Operator      
2nd Lieutenant $49,672 $18.0231 $62,089 $22.5288 $74,507 $27.0346

F-3 Lieutenant Lieutenant $54,828 $19.8940 $68,535 $24.8676 $82,242 $29.8411

F-4 Captain Captain $62,000 $22.4964 $77,500 $28.1205 $93,000 $33.7446

F-5 Battalion Chief Battalion Chief $70,000 $25.3991 $87,500 $31.7489 $105,000 $38.0987

Hourly rate or regular rate of pay based on 2756 Regular Hours (although scheduled for 2920 in total.)

Non-Fire Certified Personnel (48/96)

MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM
2080 annual hours 2080 annual hours 2080 annual hours
Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly

E-1 EMT EMT $21,798 $10.4798 $27,248 $13.0998 $32,697 $15.7197

E-3 EMT-Intermediate EMT-Intermediate $24,918 $11.9798 $31,148 $14.9748 $37,377 $17.9697

E-5 Paramedic Paramedic $30,534 $14.6798 $38,168 $18.3498 $45,801 $22.0197

E-7 EMS Lieutenant 2nd Lieutenant $33,696 $16.2000 $42,120 $20.2500 $50,544 $24.3000

E-9 EMS Captain Captain $39,247 $18.8688 $49,059 $23.5859 $58,871 $28.3031

Hourly rate or regular rate of pay based on 2080 Regular Hours (although scheduled for 2920 in total.)
Note: As the last employee in each "E" salary range is assigned to fire fighting duties or leaves the City the range will no longer exist.

Uniformed Administrative Personnel (40 hour work week)

MINIMUM MIDPOINT MAXIMUM
2080 annual hours 2080 annual hours 2080 annual hours
Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly

F-6
EMS Training Captain  
Logistics Captain  
Clinical Manager

Captain $62,000 $29.8077 $77,500 $37.2596 $93,000 $44.7115

F-7 Training Battalion Chief Battalion Chief $70,000 $33.6538 $87,500 $42.0673 $105,000 $50.4808

Hourly rate or regular rate of pay based on 2080 Regular Hours.

Salary 
Range Job Title Rank

Job Title Rank

Job Title Rank

Salary 
Range

Salary 
Range

18



GENERAL FUND - CHANGE LIST (FUND 10)

The purpose of the change list is to track all changes to the Proposed Budget since it was presented to Council on September 2.

FY2013-14 FY2014-15 DATE OF 
PROJECTED PROPOSED CHANGE

Preliminary Revenues: $63,245,053 $63,582,881
Changes to Preliminary Revenues:

Building Permit Processing Fee from $10 to $20 $110,000

Total Revenue Changes: $0 $110,000

Total Revenue with Changes: $63,245,053 $63,692,881

Preliminary Expenditures: $66,336,042 $67,410,359

Changes to Preliminary Expenditures:

Parks Mower Equipment (28,450) 9/3/2014
Business Analyst - Defer (57,477) 9/3/2014
Contingency Reduction (50,000) 9/3/2014
Pavement/Sidewalk (353,437) 9/3/2014
Parks Software (37,106) 9/4/2014
Policy Vacancy Savings (Police) (54,000) 9/4/2014
Pavement/Sidewalk 91,106 9/4/2014
Add 1 Sergeant/4 Officers to current 1 Sergeant in Patrol 599,364 9/9/2014

Total Change in Expenditures: 0 110,000

Total Expenditures with Changes: 66,336,042 67,520,359

Net Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses (3,090,989) (3,827,478)

Beginning Fund Balance $18,623,117 $15,532,128
Ending Fund Balance $15,532,128 $11,704,650

19



OVERVIEW

FY2014 FY2014 FY 2015
FY2013 AMENDED YEAR END PROPOSED

ACTUAL BUDGET PROJECTION BUDGET

REVENUES

Property Taxes $11,178,950 $11,818,335 $11,901,823 $13,197,208
Sales and Use Taxes 15,919,785 17,428,319 17,038,649 18,063,535
Franchise Fees 5,758,776 6,106,615 6,264,559 6,646,438
Licenses & Permits 2,988,859 2,877,117 3,642,823 3,922,331
Fines & Forfeitures 3,333,675 3,568,281 2,945,940 3,105,239
Charges for Service 12,567,692 13,175,835 12,828,870 13,984,727
Miscellaneous 717,581 595,362 2,329,940 611,309
Transfers in 3,764,560 3,709,547 3,865,462 2,975,094
Other Financing Sources 1,179,413 2,754,764 2,426,987 1,187,000

TOTAL REVENUES 57,409,291 62,034,175 63,245,053 63,692,881

EXPENDITURES

General Government 6,697,743 7,630,655 8,307,116 10,373,879
Public Safety 29,407,660 34,449,353 33,688,276 35,389,548
Community Services 3,312,707 3,953,705 3,936,686 2,949,771
Public Works 7,741,495 10,136,545 9,379,884 10,486,794
Parks & Recreation 7,224,818 8,641,990 8,239,889 6,773,623

Total Operating Expenditures 54,384,423 64,812,248 63,551,851 65,973,615
Transfers Out 1,973,712 1,386,903 2,784,191 1,546,744

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 56,358,135 66,199,151 66,336,042 67,520,359
Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses 1,051,156 (4,164,976) (3,090,989) (3,827,478)

Beginning Fund Balance 17,571,961 18,623,117 18,623,117 15,532,128

Ending Fund Balance $18,623,117 $14,458,141 $15,532,128 $11,704,650

Policy - 2 months Recurring Oper. 9,660,155    9,450,047     10,438,413   
Fund Balance over Policy 4,797,986    6,082,081     1,266,236     

The General Fund provides the financing for all of the City of Pearland's basic services except water, sewer
and solid waste, which is accounted for through the Water & Sewer and Solid Waste Funds. The principal
sources of revenue include property taxes, sales and franchise taxes, licenses and permits, fines and
forfeitures, and charges for services. Expenditures are comprised of five major functional areas: Public
Works, Public Safety, General Government, Community Services, and Parks and Recreation. Public Safety
provides all emergency services to the citizens of Pearland and accounts for 53% of total operating
expenditures (excluding transfers). General Government includes departments such as Mayor and City
Council, City Manager, Finance, Legal and Human Resources. Expenditures include all personnel costs for
509.75 full-time employees and 141 part-time employees, utilities, fuel, park and right-of-way maintenance,
street lighting, just to name a few.  

GENERAL FUND - 10

FY 2015 PROPOSED BUDGET
SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCE

20



New 
Business 
Item No. 3 

3. Consideration and Possible Action – Second and Final Reading of
Ordinance No. 1358-11 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of
Pearland, Texas, amending non-development usage and service fees;
containing a savings clause, a severability clause and a repealer clause;
providing for publication and an effective date.



AGENDA REQUEST BUSINESS OF 

THE CITY COUNCIL CITY OF 

PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: September 29, 2014 ITEM NO.: 

DATE SUBMITTED: September 10, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY:  Claire Bogard PRESENTOR: Claire Bogard 

REVIEWED BY:  Jon R. Branson REVIEW DATE: September 11, 2014 

SUBJECT: Second and Final Reading of an Ordinance of the City Council of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, Amending Non-Development Usage and Service Fees; 
containing a savings clause, a severability clause and a repealer clause; providing 
for publication and an effective date 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance 1358-11 

FUNDING: Grant Developer/Other Cash 

Bonds To Be Sold Bonds- Sold L/P – Sold L/P – To Be Sold 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:  N/A  AMOUNT BUDGETED:  N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: PROJECT NO.: 
ACCOUNT NO.: 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: 
ACCOUNT NO.: 
PROJECT NO.: 

To be completed by Department: 
X Finance X Legal Ordinance X Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 

Annually, as part of the budget process, City staff rate necessary additions and/or changes in 
fees in order to cover the cost of service being provided as well as conduct a rate analysis as 
part of the water/sewer rate model.   Changes typically come about based on changes in 
contract pricing, such as the meters, increases to fees to comply with the Parks Revenue 
Management Plan, and new fees. 

Fee changes have been discussed as part of the budget process in budget workshops held in 
August and September.  The background material and rationale for all of these items have been 
and remain available on the budget section of pearlandtx.gov 

Ordinance No. 1358-11



 

The changes to the fees for fiscal year 2015 include: 
 
 

1. Changes to meters costs based on new meter pricing effective with contract renewal 
May 2014.  The City is already charging the new costs, just updating the fee schedule. 

 

2. Increases in the water and sewer rates, specifically on the volume side of the rate 
pursuant to the 4.63% revenue increase needed to fund the water/sewer system 
operations and meet debt coverage requirements for fiscal year 2015. 

 

3. Including the word “credit card” in the NSF/Returned Check area, as the City does 
on occasion receive a credit card denial. 

 

4. Adding a $25 per year resident Sr. Center membership, that is incorporated into the 
fiscal year 2015 budget to assist in paying for the direct cost of services. 

 

5. Removing rental fees associated with the Independence Park swimming pool as 
operations are now under a contractual agreement with a third party to operate the 
pool. 

 

6. Adding a section on Athletic Field Usage Fees pursuant to the Athletic Field Usage 
policy adopted on August 11, 2014; Resolution 2014-90; and as incorporated into the 
fiscal year 2015 budget. 

 

7. Removing section for advertising in Parks Brochures, as the cost is based on cost to 
the City as well as market demand. 

 

8. Removing the section on “Recreation Programs Cost Recovery Tier Plan” as the plan 
itself is not a “fee” but rather how to calculate the fee.  Parks is currently updating its 
cost recovery plan based on a cost of service review conducted in 2014. 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Consideration and approval of Ordinance 1358-11 amending non-development usage and 
service fees; containing a savings clause, a severability clause and a repealer clause; providing 
for publication and an effective date. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1358-11 

An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 

amending non-development usage and service fees; containing a 

savings clause, a severability clause and a repealer clause; providing 

for publication and an effective date. 

WHEREAS, various departments of the City charge fees for usage, permits, and 

other services not related to development; and 

WHEREAS, the organization of all such non-development fees into one ordinance 

enhances the efficiency of the fee amendment process and improves customer service; 

now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.    That the charges and fees contained in the attached Exhibit “A” are 

hereby adopted. 

Section 2. Savings. All rights and remedies which have accrued in favor of the 

City under this Chapter and amendments thereto shall be and are preserved for the benefit 

of the City. 

Section 3. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise 

unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a 

separate, distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity 

of the remaining portions thereof. 

Section 4. Repealer. All  ordinances  and  parts  of  ordinances  in  conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed but only to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. Publication and Effective Date. The City Secretary shall cause this 

Ordinance, or its caption, to be published in the official newspaper of the City of Pearland, 



ORDINANCE NO. 1358-11 

2 

 

 

 
 

upon passage of such Ordinance.  The Ordinance shall then become effective ten (10) 

days from and after its publication, or the publication of its caption, in the official City 

newspaper. 
 
 
 
 

PASSED  and  APPROVED  ON  FIRST  READING  this  the     day  of 
 

  , A. D., 2014. 
 
 
 
 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 

 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 

YOUNG LORFING 
CITY SECRETARY 

 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PASSED and APPROVED ON SECOND AND FINAL READING this the   day of 
 

  , A. D., 2014. 
 
 
 
 

TOM REID 
MAYOR 



ORDINANCE NO. 1358-11 

3 

 

 

 
 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 

YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



1  

Initial and 1
st 

Re-inspection $  0.00 

2
nd 

Re-inspection $75.00 

3rd Re-inspection and thereafter, each $200.00 

After hours Inspection $200.00 

 

FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
 

EMS 
Ambulance Application Fee $250.00 
Ambulance Permit Fee $100.00 

 
 
 

FIRE 
Re-inspection Fees 

 
 
 
 

 
(After 5:00pm Monday-Thursday; after 4:00pm 

on Friday, and on weekends) 
 
 
 

POLICE 
Accident Report $6.00 
(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Notarized Accident Report $8.00 

(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Clearance Letter $5.00 

(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Copies .10 per page 

 
Crafted Precious Metal Dealer License Fee $100.00 annually 

 
Alarm Permit: 

Residential Rates provided in 

Commercial Ordinance No. 569-3 

 
False Alarm Fee: 

Police Department (per occurrence after 5 per yr) Rates provided in 

Fire Department (per occurrence after 5 per yr) Ordinance No. 569-3 

 
UTILITY BILLING 
Delinquent Fees: 

First Time Reconnect $25.00 

Subsequent Reconnect Charges $50.00 

 
Connect Fee $30.00 



2  

Deposits: 

Commercial $200.00 + 2 months of garbage 

Residential Owner $100.00 

Residential 

Renter-low risk rating $150.00 

Renter-medium/high risk rating $225.00 

 
Residential Garbage Only $50.00 

Commercial Garbage Only 2 months of garbage 

 
Additional deposit for services terminated twice within six months 

Residential $75.00 

Commercial $150.00 plus 1 month of garbage 

 
Meter Cost: New Replacement 

 
New and Replacement 

5/8” $271.00 

1” $328.00 

 2” Displacement $633.00 

  2” Compound   $1,528.00 

3”   $8,555.00 

4”      $10,005.00 

6”        $13,402.00 

8” (6 x 8)        $14,605.00 

10”        $28,515.00 

12”        $29,693.00 

(subject to change based on contract pricing) 

New meters would also require deposit and connection fee 
 

 
 

Register Replacement $240.00 

Antenna Replacement based on cost 
 

 
 

Meter Testing: 

5/8 – ¾” Meter $60.00 

1” Meter $85.00 

1 ½” Meter $100.00 

 
2” – 8” Meters $150.00 

8” and above Meters $200.00 

 
Same Day New Service Connections $100.00 

Grease Traps $100.00/yr 



3  

Meter Inspection: 

Initial $35.00 

Re-inspection $35.00 

 
Temporary Fire Hydrant Meter $1500.00 

($75.00 non refundable) 

Temporary Fire Hydrant Location Change $50.00 

 
Additional Recycling Bin $8.00 

 
Temporary Water/Sewer Service for $50 for ten days, 2000 gallons and 

Residential Landlords/Property Managers connection 

 
*Water Base Charges 

Single Unit $11.98 

Multi-Unit $10.98 

 
*Water Volume 

Residential 

0-2,000 gallons  In  Base 

2,001-6,000 $3.16 

6,001-15,000 $3.96 

15,001-25,000  $4.75 

25,001+ $6.33 
 

*Commercial/Multi-Unit 

0-2,000 In Base 

2,001+ $3.96 
 
*Landscape 

0-2,000 In Base 

2,001+ $4.75 
 
*Sewer Base Charges for All $14.41 

 
*Sewer Volume 

0-2,000 In Base 

All Users $3.28 
 
Residential Wastewater Cap 

Standardized monthly billing amount (gallons) to be based on the average consumption 

of the months of December, January, February, which are typically billed in Jan, Feb, 

Mar, not to exceed 12,000 gallons.  Wastewater Cap would be adjusted each April. 

 
New Residents 

Default billing amount (gallons) of  6,000 gallons 



4  

 

Billing Adjustments 

Water adjustments may be given for leaks and sewer adjustment may be given as it 

applies to the setting of the Winter Quarter Average. See Ordinance 870-6 

 
Customer without metered water 

Default billing amount (gallons) of 10,000. 

 
*Customer outside City Limits 

*All charges for water and sewer service are at a rate of 1-1/2 times that existing in the 

City. 

 
Sewer Use Credit Program 
Application Fee $500 
Monthly Administrative Charge $  50 

Annual Testing Fee See Above 

If repairs are needed, in addition to the testing fee, there will be charges for labor 

and parts, plus retesting fee of $75.00 

Accounts opened for the purpose of the sewer use credit for sub-metering will not 

be required to put down a deposit nor billed water or sewer rates. 
 
 
 

 
FINANCE 
NSF or Returned Check/Credit Card Fee $25.00 

 

 
 

ENGINEERING 
Grading Permit $125.00 

 
PUBLIC WORKS 
Water/Sewer Tap Actual Cost, not less than $250 

 
CITY SECRETARY 
Copy Charge: (pursuant to State law, including but not limited to and as may be amended 
from time to time by State Statute) 

Paper                                                                                          $.10 

Oversize Paper                                                                           $.50 

Diskette                                                                                    $1.00 

Magnetic tape                                                                   Actual Cost 

Data Cartridge                                                                  Actual Cost 

Tape Cartridge                                                                 Actual Cost 

Rewritable CD (CD-RW)                                                        $1.00 

Non-rewritable CD (CD-R)                                                     $1.00 

Digital video disc (DVD)                                                         $3.00 



5  

JAZ Drive                                                                         Actual Cost 

Other electronic media                                                     Actual Cost 

VHS cassette                                                                            $2.50 

Audio cassette                                                                          $1.00 

Oversize paper copy                                                                   $.50 

Specialty paper                                                                 Actual Cost 

 
Labor charge $15.00/hr 

Overhead 20% of labor 

 
Alcohol Beverage Permit: 

BE – On Premise $150.00 

BQ – Wine & Beer Off-Premise $60.00 

BF – Off Premise $60.00 

BG-Wine&Beer On-Premise that hold a Food/Bev. Permit $175.00 
BL – Late Hours On-Premise $250.00 

PE – Charge $20.00 

LB – Late Hours Mixed Beverage $150.00 

RM – Mixed Beverage Restaurant $750.00 

 

Peddlers Permit 

Primary Permit Holder   $75.00 max of 3 months 

Assistant working under primary $5.00 / month for each assistant 

Surety Bond (required)  $1,000.00 
 

ANIMAL CONTROL 
1

st 
impound 

 
 

30.00 

2
nd 

impound 40.00 

3
rd 

impound 50.00 

Adoption unaltered 30.00 

Transportation 5.00 

Adoption altered with Rabies 87.00 

Adoption altered w/out Rabies 75.00 

Livestock impound per head 100.00 

2
nd 

impound 125.00 

3
rd 

impound 150.00 

Quarantine impound 40.00 

Daily board domestic 10.00 per day 
Daily board livestock 25.00 per day 

City License  

Altered one year 10.00 

3 year 30.00 

Un Altered one year 20.00 

3 year 60.00 

Replacement tag 5.00 

Dangerous Dog registration 50.00 



6  

Disposal Domestic Animals 

Up to 25 lbs 25.00 

26lbs to 60 lbs 50.00 

61 lbs and over 75.00 

Large animal contract 125.00 plus 

Euthanasia on demand 40.00 

Surrender of owned Pet 40.00 

Return check fee 25.00 

Cat carrier 5.00 

Collars 3.00 

Micro-chip implant $25.00 

Includes pet registration 

T-shirts 7.00 

Hats 7.00 

 
PARKS & RECREATION 

 
Non-resident fees Programs and Leagues 

Resident Fee Non-resident 
charge 

≤$50 + $20 

$51-$200 + $30 

≥$201 + $40 



7  

Non-resident fees for Household & Hazardous Waste  $80 per 100 pounds of HHW 

Non-resident fees for Electronic Waste $20 per 100 pounds of electronic waste 

Non-resident fee for Senior Center  $50/year 

Resident fee for Senior Center          $25/year  

Transportation fees for the Melvin Knapp Senior Center $2 round-trip (Specialty Trip) 

Banner Installation Fee $300 

Special Event Permit Fee $50 

Deposits 
 

 Deposit 

Centennial Park Pavilions $50 

Southdown Park Pavilion $50 

Independence Park Large Pavilion $200 

Independence Park Barbeque Shelter $100 

Independence Park Swimming Pool $100 

Gazebo at City Hall $50 

Westside Event Center Meeting 
Room 

$140 

Westside Event Center Banquet Hall $140 

Community Center $140 

Banner Installation $50 
 

Indoor rental cleaning Fee $180 

Administrative fee for rental cancellations $25 
 
 
 
 

Rental Fees 

Outdoor 

 Resident Non- 

Resident 

Centennial Park Pavilions $30/day $60/day 

Southdown Park Pavilion $30/day $60/day 

Independence Park Large Pavilion $130/day $200/day 

Independence Park Barbeque 

Shelter 

$60/day $120/day 

Gazebo at City Hall $30/day $60/day 

 

Indoor 

 Non- 

Profit 

Resident Non- 

Resident 
 

Westside Event Center  Meeting 

Room 

$50/hr $60/hr $70/hr 

Westside Event Center Banquet 

Hall 

$60/hr $85/hr $95/hr 

Community Center $37.50/hr $65/hr $85/hr 
 

 



8  

Athletic Field Usage Fees 

 
Recognized Sports Associations   

Deposit (Per Season)  Player Fee   Utility Fee 

$500 $10 Res  $20 Non-Res $150 Month 

 
Hourly Usage   

 Resident Non-Resident 

Field Fee     $15         $30 

Utility Fee     $15         $15 
 

Recreation Center and Natatorium Membership Fees 

Annual Membership with Contract 
Initiation Fee, for all $25 

Recreation Center & Natatorium 

 
Category Resident Rate 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Non-Resident 
Rate 

Adult $300 $450 

Additional person $150 $225 

Active Adult $210 $315 

Additional Active Adult $100 $150 

Household $600 $900 

Natatorium Only 

Individual $200 $300 

Household $400 $600 
 

 

Monthly Membership without Contract 
Recreation Center & Natatorium 

 
Category Resident Rate 

 
 
 
Non-Resident 
Rate 

Adult $32 $48 

Additional person $16 $24 

Active Adult $22 $33 

Additional Active Adult $11 $17 

Household $63 $95 

Natatorium Only 

Individual $21 $32 



9  

Household $42 $63 
 
 

Recreation Center and Natatorium Membership includes facilities, drop in child care, basic health and fitness classes 
 

Natatorium Only membership includes access to the natatorium only 

 
Trial Membership 

30 days for 
$30 

(one-time per 
individual) 

 
 
 

Daily Fees 
Individual 

18+ years of  Age           $8     
12-17 years of Age           $5 

   3-11 years of Age           $3                      

Family $12 
Child care $5 

 
 
 

Formulas used 

Non-resident Resident rate +50% 

Monthly fee Annual /12+ 25% 
 

 
Definitions 

Individual 12-59 years old 

Active Adult 60+ years old 

Household Up to 5 people residing in the same home 
Additional 
Person 

is an addition to an existing membership/fee. Must 
reside in the same house as primary 

Child 3-11 years old 

Family Limit of 5 people and maximum 2 adults 
 
 

Locker Rentals $100 per year or $10 per month 

(maximum rentals – 10 lockers in each locker room) 
 

 
 
 
 

Recreation Center Rental Rates 



10  

 

 Entire Recreation Facility includes the following: 
 

 
Non-Profit 

Membership 

Rate 
Resident 

(NM)  Nonresident (NM) 

 
Entire Rec Facility 

 
$225/hour 

 
$450/hour 

 
$675/hour 

 
$900/hour 

**Minimum 5 
hours 

 
One Full Court Hourly 

 
$40/hour 

 
$80/hour 

 
$120/hour 

 
$160/hour 

**Minimum 3 
hours 

 
Daily 

 
$400/day 

 
$800/day 

 
$1,200/day 

 
$1,600/day 

**Minimum 5 
hours 

 
Entire Gym Hourly 

 
$80/hour 

 
$160/hour 

 
$240/hour 

 
$320/hour 

**Minimum 5 
hours 

 
Daily 

 
$800/day 

 
$1,600/day 

 
$2,400/day 

 
$3,200/day 

**Minimum 5 
hours 

One Multipurpose/ 
Activity Room 

 
$33/hour 

 
$65/hour 

 
$98/hour 

 
$130/hour 

**Minimum 3 
hours 

Entire Multipurpose/ 
Activity Room 

 
$65/hour 

 
$130/hour 

 
$195/hour 

 
$260/hour 

**Minimum 3 
hours 

Kidz Korner, The Zone, Gymnasium, Multipurpose Room, Track, Activity Room, 

Racquetball 

Courts, 2
nd 

floor café area. 

 Day=12 hours 

 For Non-athletic Events in the Gymnasium the following fees apply: 

Floor Covering: $100/court per day 
 

 
 

Group Exercise Punch Cards 

20 Punch Card $50 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

# of Participants 
COP Security Fee 

(Paid directly to COP Security Officers at beginning of event) COP Custodial Fee* Event Staff 

 
 

Less than 75 
No security required if no admission is charged. 
1 @ $30/hour when admission is charged $100 per day $50 

 
 

75 - 250 
No security required if no admission is charged. 
1 @ $30/hour when admission is charged $200 per day $50 

251 - 500 2 @ $30/hour $350 per day $100 

501 - 1000 2 @ $30/hour $450 per day $150 

More than 1000 2 @ $30/hour $600 per day $200 

COP P&R Aquatics Supervision (CPO/AFO) Fee (500 + events only) $100 or $250 per day 

Timing System (One System) (If operator is included, then additional staff charges will apply)  $150 per day 

Timing System (Two Systems) (If operator is included, then additional staff charges will apply)  $200 per day 

Events Requiring 50-meter configuration will require an additional set-up fee   $150 

Special Note: 2 parking lot attendants are required for all events with an anticipated 500+ total attendance. Attendants are paid directly at $15 per hour. 

* Custodial fee includes the additional cleaning supplies and inventory to support the rental as well as any staff needed to manage the cleaning of 

restrooms, trash, stands, etc. 

 
* For large rental/meets (over 500+) an additional "Extra Heavy Cleanup/Restoration Fee" of $250 will be assessed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 



Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident (NM) Non‐Resident (NM)

$30/hour $40/hour $60/hour $80/hour
$20/hour $30/hour $45/hour $60/hour
$20/hour $30/hour $45/hour $60/hour

Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident Non‐Resident

$100/hour NA $150/hour $200/hour
$75/hour NA $100/hour $150/hour
$55/hour NA $75/hour $110/hour
$75/hour NA $110/hour $150/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour
$50/hour NA $75/hour $100/hour
$30/hour NA $45/hour $60/hour
$55/hour NA $80/hour $110/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour

Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident Non‐Resident

$4/hour NA $6/hour $8/hour
$11/hour NA $15/hour $22/hour
$7/hour NA $10/hour $14/hour
$5/hour NA $7/hour $10/hour
$5/hour NA $7/hour $10/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour

Deposit:

COP Security Fee

No security required if no admission is charged. 1
@ $55/ hour when admission is charged.

No security required if no admission is charged. 1
@ $55/ hour when admission is charged.

Less than 75 $50 per day $25 per day

76 to 250 $150 per day $25 per day

Admission Fees for selected General Athletic Events: Adults=$3, Student=$2, Childeren 7‐12=$1, Children 0‐6=No Charge
Admission Fees for selected CHAMPIONSHIP Level Athletic Events: Adults=$5, Student=$4, Childeren 7‐12=$2, Children 0‐6=No Charge
(Multi‐day events will have discounts made available on a case‐by‐case basis.)

Additional fees are assessed based on size, type, and duration of rental (see Section II)
II. Additional Associated Fees

Total Number of Participants
& Spectators

COP Custodial Fee *
(*subject to change)

Event Staff Fee
(Extra Lifeguards, etc.)

Requests for use of Natatorium space for events or activities that do not conform to one of the above catagories will be considered a "Special Event." In this case there will be a "case by case"
consideration and negotiations with the potential renter.

Membership rental rates will only be available for Short‐Term Non‐Athletic Rentals
Rental Formula = (base lane cost) x (number of lanes) x (number of hours) + (cost of lifeguards)

25% of Total Rental (Total Rental = Base lane useage + All Additional Fees assessed based on size and duration of event)

25 yd CC configuration (per lane / Max = 10 lanes)
25 yd/mt configuration (per lane/ Max = 8 lanes)
Diving Well Only  (5 lanes)

D. Special Event/Unique Situation Rentals

C. Athletic Long Term Rentals (Swim/Dive Team Water Polo Practices, etc.)
A Long‐term rental is defined as a rental for practices or any continued event longer than two (2) weeks in length. A "per‐lane participant limit" (10 participant per lane max) will be enforced.

Activity Pool only (per lane) (max 3 lanes)
50 Meter Pool + Activity Pool (per lane)
50 Meter Pool Configuration (per lane)

25 yd CC configuration (10 lanes) w/Add‐ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
25 yd/mt configuration (8 lanes)
25 yd/mt configuration (8 lanes) w/Add‐ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
Diving Well Only (5 lanes)

Entire Natatorium Facility (Pools + Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
50 Meter Pool + Activity Pool (Pool Use Only)
50 Meter Pool (Pool Use Only)
50 Meter Pool with Add‐Ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
25 yd CC configuration (10 lanes)

Meeting Room
Patio Area

B. Athletic Short Term Rental (Swim/Dive Meets, Water Polo Tournaments, etc.)
The Natatorium is capable of multiple configurations based on the need of the individual/organization renting the facility. (See Facility Information Form.)

NATATORIUM RENTAL RATES
A short term rental is defined as a rental ranging from 1 hour to 1 day in length.
A. "Non‐Athletic" Short Term Rental (Personal/Organizational, Meetings, etc. ‐ (Not Including "Parties")

Activity Pool



1 @ $55/hour

1 @ $55/hour

1 @ $55/hour

13

Some items will incur an additional cost to use during some events. Please ask facility staff for more information.
Special Note:   1 or 2 parking lot attendants are required for all events with an anticipated 500+ attendance. Rate is $15 per attendant per hour.
*Custodial Fee includes the additional cleaning supplies and inventory to support the rental, as well as any staff needed to manage the cleaning of restrooms, trash, stands, etc.
**For large rental/ meets (Over 500+) an additional "Extra Heavy Cleanup/Restoration Fee" of $250 * will be assessed.
* subject to change pending new Custodial Services Contract

Timing System (One System) (If Operator is included then an additional staff charge of $30 per hour will apply) $100 per day

Timing System (Two Systems) (If Operators are included then an additional staff charge of $60 per hour will apply) $200 per day

Events requiring any change from the usual 25‐yard cross‐course configuration will incur an additional setup fee. $150

More than 1000 $600 per day $100 per day

COP P&R Aquatics Supervision (CPO/AFO) Fee (500+ events only) $100 for events 1‐6 hours per day
$200 for events longer than 6 hours

251‐ 500 $350 per day $50 per day

501‐1000 $450 per day $75 per day



1 

Initial and 1
st 

Re-inspection $  0.00 

2
nd 

Re-inspection $75.00 

3rd Re-inspection and thereafter, each $200.00 

After hours Inspection $200.00 

FEE SCHEDULE 

RED-LINED VERSION 

EMS 
Ambulance Application Fee $250.00 
Ambulance Permit Fee $100.00 

FIRE 
Re-inspection Fees 

(After 5:00pm Monday-Thursday; after 4:00pm 

on Friday, and on weekends) 

POLICE 
Accident Report $6.00 
(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Notarized Accident Report $8.00 

(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Clearance Letter $5.00 

(As may be amended from time to time by State Statute) 

Copies .10 per page 

Crafted Precious Metal Dealer License Fee $100.00 annually 

Alarm Permit: 

Residential Rates provided in 

Commercial Ordinance No. 569-3 

False Alarm Fee: 

Police Department (per occurrence after 5 per yr) Rates provided in 

Fire Department (per occurrence after 5 per yr) Ordinance No. 569-3 

UTILITY BILLING 
Delinquent Fees: 

First Time Reconnect $25.00 

Subsequent Reconnect Charges $50.00 

Connect Fee $30.00 



2  

Deposits: 

Commercial $200.00 + 2 months of garbage 

Residential Owner $100.00 

Residential 

Renter-low risk rating $150.00 

Renter-medium/high risk rating $225.00 

 
Residential Garbage Only $50.00 

Commercial Garbage Only 2 months of garbage 

 
Additional deposit for services terminated twice within six months 

Residential $75.00 

Commercial $150.00 plus 1 month of garbage 

 
Meter Cost: New Replacement 

 
New and Replacement 

5/8” $27155.00 

1” $32812.00 

  2” Displacement   $633.00 

  2”  Compound $1,528760.00 

3” $8,555035.00 

4” $10,0059,390.00 

6” $13,40212,565.00 

8” (6 x 8) $14,60513,035.00 

10” $28,51526,690.00 

12” $29,69327,790.00 

(subject to change based on contract pricing) 

New meters would also require deposit and connection fee 
 

 
 

Register Replacement $240.00 

Antenna Replacement based on cost 
 

 
 

Meter Testing: 

5/8 – ¾” Meter $60.00 

1” Meter $85.00 

1 ½” Meter $100.00 

 
2” – 8” Meters $150.00 

8” and above Meters $200.00 

 
Same Day New Service Connections $100.00 

Grease Traps $100.00/yr 



3  

Meter Inspection: 

Initial $35.00 

Re-inspection $35.00 

 
Temporary Fire Hydrant Meter $1500.00 

($75.00 non refundable) 

Temporary Fire Hydrant Location Change $50.00 

 
Additional Recycling Bin $8.00 

 
Temporary Water/Sewer Service for $50 for ten days, 2000 gallons and 

Residential Landlords/Property Managers connection 

 
*Water Base Charges 

Single Unit $11.98 

Multi-Unit $10.98 

 
*Water Volume 

Residential 

0-2,000 gallons In Base 

2,001-6,000 $3.162.93 

6,001-15,000 $3.963.67 

15,001-25,000 $4.754.40 

25,001+ $6.335.86 
 

*Commercial/Multi-Unit 

0-2,000 In Base 

2,001+ $3.963.67 
 
*Landscape 

0-2,000 In Base 

2,001+ $4.754.40 
 
*Sewer Base Charges for All $14.41 

 
*Sewer Volume 

0-2,000 In Base 

All Users $3.283.03 
 
Residential Wastewater Cap 

Standardized monthly billing amount (gallons) to be based on the average consumption 

of the months of December, January, February, which are typically billed in Jan, Feb, 

Mar, not to exceed 12,000 gallons.  Wastewater Cap would be adjusted each April. 

 
New Residents 

Default billing amount (gallons) of  6,000 gallons 



4  

 

Billing Adjustments 

Water adjustments may be given for leaks and sewer adjustment may be given as it 

applies to the setting of the Winter Quarter Average. See Ordinance 870-6 

 
Customer without metered water 

Default billing amount (gallons) of 10,000. 

 
*Customer outside City Limits 

*All charges for water and sewer service are at a rate of 1-1/2 times that existing in the 

City. 

 
Sewer Use Credit Program 
Application Fee $500 
Monthly Administrative Charge $  50 

Annual Testing Fee See Above 

If repairs are needed, in addition to the testing fee, there will be charges for labor 

and parts, plus retesting fee of $75.00 

Accounts opened for the purpose of the sewer use credit for sub-metering will not 

be required to put down a deposit nor billed water or sewer rates. 
 
 
 

 
FINANCE 
NSF or Returned Check/Credit Card Fee $25.00 

 

 
 

ENGINEERING 
Grading Permit $125.00 

 
PUBLIC WORKS 
Water/Sewer Tap Actual Cost, not less than $250 

 
CITY SECRETARY 
Copy Charge: (pursuant to State law, including but not limited to and as may be amended 
from time to time by State Statute) 

Paper                                                                                          $.10 

Oversize Paper                                                                           $.50 

Diskette                                                                                    $1.00 

Magnetic tape                                                                   Actual Cost 

Data Cartridge                                                                  Actual Cost 

Tape Cartridge                                                                 Actual Cost 

Rewritable CD (CD-RW)                                                        $1.00 

Non-rewritable CD (CD-R)                                                     $1.00 

Digital video disc (DVD)                                                         $3.00 



5 

JAZ Drive      Actual Cost 

Other electronic media   Actual Cost 

VHS cassette  $2.50 

Audio cassette  $1.00 

Oversize paper copy         $.50 

Specialty paper        Actual Cost 

Labor charge $15.00/hr 

Overhead 20% of labor 

Alcohol Beverage Permit: 

BE – On Premise $150.00 

BQ – Wine & Beer Off-Premise $60.00 

BF – Off Premise $60.00 

BG-Wine&Beer On-Premise that hold a Food/Bev. Permit $175.00 
BL – Late Hours On-Premise $250.00 

PE – Charge $20.00 

LB – Late Hours Mixed Beverage $150.00 

RM – Mixed Beverage Restaurant $750.00 

Peddlers Permit 

Primary Permit Holder  $75.00 max of 3 months 

Assistant working under primary $5.00 / month for each assistant 

Surety Bond (required) $1,000.00 

ANIMAL CONTROL 
1

st 
impound 30.00 

2
nd 

impound 40.00 

3
rd 

impound 50.00 

Adoption unaltered 30.00 

Transportation 5.00 

Adoption altered with Rabies 87.00 

Adoption altered w/out Rabies 75.00 

Livestock impound per head 100.00 

2
nd 

impound 125.00 

3
rd 

impound 150.00 

Quarantine impound 40.00 

Daily board domestic 10.00 per day 
Daily board livestock 25.00 per day 

City License 

Altered one year 10.00 

3 year 30.00 

Un Altered one year 20.00 

3 year 60.00 

Replacement tag 5.00 

Dangerous Dog registration 50.00 



6 

Disposal Domestic Animals 

Up to 25 lbs 25.00 

26lbs to 60 lbs 50.00 

61 lbs and over 75.00 

Large animal contract 125.00 plus 

Euthanasia on demand 40.00 

Surrender of owned Pet 40.00 

Return check fee 25.00 

Cat carrier 5.00 

Collars 3.00 

Micro-chip implant $25.00 

Includes pet registration 

T-shirts 7.00 

Hats 7.00 

PARKS & RECREATION 

Advertising 

 Parks leisure Brochure- Actual Costs (will vary based on number of 

advertisements purchased) 

    Parks Web-Site- $25 per ad, per event for those businesses participating in 

the event ( limited to the Trick or Treat Trail and/or Hometown Christmas 

Parade events only). 

 Ad Space at Recreation/Natatorium – will vary based on size and number of 

banners/ads 

Recreation Program Cost Recovery Plan Per Tier 

Tier Benefits % of direct cost 
recovery 

% of indirect 
recovered 

1 Community as the whole 
benefits 

0-25% 0% 

2 Individuals receive direct 
benefit and community 

receives residual benefit 

100% 25% 

3 Individuals receive direct 
benefit 

150% 50% 

Non-resident fees Programs and Leagues 

Resident Fee Non-resident 
charge 

≤$50 + $20 

$51-$200 + $30 

≥$201 + $40 



7  

Non-resident fees for Household & Hazardous Waste  $80 per 100 pounds of HHW 

Non-resident fees for Electronic Waste $20 per 100 pounds of electronic waste 

Non-resident fee for Senior Center  $50/year 

Resident fee for Senior Center          $25/year  

Transportation fees for the Melvin Knapp Senior Center $2 round-trip (Specialty Trip) 

Banner Installation Fee $300 

Special Event Permit Fee $50 

Deposits 
 

 Deposit 

Centennial Park Pavilions $50 

Southdown Park Pavilion $50 

Independence Park Large Pavilion $200 

Independence Park Barbeque Shelter $100 

Independence Park Swimming Pool $100 

Gazebo at City Hall $50 

Westside Event Center Meeting 
Room 

$140 

Westside Event Center Banquet Hall $140 

Community Center $140 

Banner Installation $50 
 

Indoor rental cleaning Fee $180 

Administrative fee for rental cancellations $25 
 
 
 
 

Rental Fees 

Outdoor 

 Resident Non- 

Resident 

Centennial Park Pavilions $30/day $60/day 

Southdown Park Pavilion $30/day $60/day 

Independence Park Large Pavilion $130/day $200/day 

Independence Park Barbeque 

Shelter 

$60/day $120/day 

 Independence Park Swimming    

Pool  

 1-50 people   $70/hr   $100/hr  

 50-100 people   $90/hr   $120/hr  

 101-150 people   $110/hr   $140/hr  

 151-250 people   $150/hr   $180/hr  

Gazebo at City Hall $30/day $60/day 

Remove Independence Pool due to contractual agreement. 
 

 

 



8 

Indoor 

Non- 

Profit 

Resident Non- 

Resident 

Westside Event Center  Meeting 

Room 

$50/hr $60/hr $70/hr 

Westside Event Center Banquet 

Hall 

$60/hr $85/hr $95/hr 

Community Center $37.50/hr $65/hr $85/hr 

Athletic Field Usage Fees 

Recognized Sports Association 

Deposit (Per Season) Player Fee Utility Fee 

$500 $10 ® $20 (NR) $150 month 

Hourly Usage 

Resident Non-Resident 

Field Fee $15 $30 

Utility Fee $15 $15 

Recreation Center and Natatorium Membership Fees 

Annual Membership with Contract 
Initiation Fee, for all $25 

Recreation Center & Natatorium 

Category Resident Rate 
Non-Resident 
Rate 

Adult $300 $450 

Additional person $150 $225 

Active Adult $210 $315 

Additional Active Adult $100 $150 

Household $600 $900 

Natatorium Only 

Individual $200 $300 

Household $400 $600 

Monthly Membership without Contract 
Recreation Center & Natatorium 

Category Resident Rate 
Non-Resident 
Rate 



9  

Adult $32 $48 

Additional person $16 $24 

Active Adult $22 $33 

Additional Active Adult $11 $17 

Household $63 $95 

Natatorium Only 

Individual $21 $32 

  Household $42   $63 
 
 

Recreation Center and Natatorium Membership includes facilities, drop in child care, basic health and fitness classes 
 

Natatorium Only membership includes access to the natatorium only

 
Trial Membership 

30 days for 
$30 

(one-time per 
individual) 

 
 
 

Daily Fees 
Individual 

18+ years of  Age           $8     
12-17 years of Age           $5 

   3-11 years of Age           $3                      

Family $12 
Child care $5 

 
 
 

Formulas used 

Non-resident Resident rate +50% 

Monthly fee Annual /12+ 25% 
 

 
Definitions 

Individual 12-59 years old 

Active Adult 60+ years old 

Household Up to 5 people residing in the same home 
Additional 
Person 

is an addition to an existing membership/fee. Must 
reside in the same house as primary 

Child 3-11 years old 

Family Limit of 5 people and maximum 2 adults 
 
 

Locker Rentals $100 per year or $10 per month 

(maximum rentals – 10 lockers in each locker room) 
 

 
 

 

 

 



10 

Recreation Center Rental Rates 

 Entire Recreation Facility

includes the following: 

Non-Profit 

Membership 

Rate 
Resident 

(NM)  Nonresident (NM) 

Entire Rec Facility $225/hour $450/hour $675/hour $900/hour 
**Minimum 5 
hours 

One Full Court Hourly $40/hour $80/hour $120/hour $160/hour 
**Minimum 3 
hours 

Daily $400/day $800/day $1,200/day $1,600/day 
**Minimum 5 
hours 

Entire Gym Hourly $80/hour $160/hour $240/hour $320/hour 
**Minimum 5 
hours 

Daily $800/day $1,600/day $2,400/day $3,200/day 
**Minimum 5 
hours 

One Multipurpose/ 
Activity Room $33/hour $65/hour $98/hour $130/hour 

**Minimum 3 
hours 

Entire Multipurpose/ 
Activity Room $65/hour $130/hour $195/hour $260/hour 

**Minimum 3 
hours 

Kidz Korner, The Zone, Gymnasium, Multipurpose Room, Track, Activity Room, 

Racquetball 

Courts, 2
nd 

floor café area.

 Day=12 hours

 For Non-athletic Events in the Gymnasium the following fees apply:

Floor Covering: $100/court per day 

Group Exercise Punch Cards 

20 Punch Card $50 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

# of Participants 
COP Security Fee 

(Paid directly to COP Security Officers at beginning of event) COP Custodial Fee* Event Staff 

 
 

Less than 75 
No security required if no admission is charged. 
1 @ $30/hour when admission is charged $100 per day $50 

 
 

75 - 250 
No security required if no admission is charged. 
1 @ $30/hour when admission is charged $200 per day $50 

251 - 500 2 @ $30/hour $350 per day $100 

501 - 1000 2 @ $30/hour $450 per day $150 

More than 1000 2 @ $30/hour $600 per day $200 

COP P&R Aquatics Supervision (CPO/AFO) Fee (500 + events only) $100 or $250 per day 

Timing System (One System) (If operator is included, then additional staff charges will apply)  $150 per day 

Timing System (Two Systems) (If operator is included, then additional staff charges will apply)  $200 per day 

Events Requiring 50-meter configuration will require an additional set-up fee   $150 

Special Note: 2 parking lot attendants are required for all events with an anticipated 500+ total attendance. Attendants are paid directly at $15 per hour. 

* Custodial fee includes the additional cleaning supplies and inventory to support the rental as well as any staff needed to manage the cleaning of 

restrooms, trash, stands, etc. 

 
* For large rental/meets (over 500+) an additional "Extra Heavy Cleanup/Restoration Fee" of $250 will be assessed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11 



Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident (NM) Non‐Resident (NM)

$30/hour $40/hour $60/hour $80/hour
$20/hour $30/hour $45/hour $60/hour
$20/hour $30/hour $45/hour $60/hour

Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident Non‐Resident

$100/hour NA $150/hour $200/hour
$75/hour NA $100/hour $150/hour
$55/hour NA $75/hour $110/hour
$75/hour NA $110/hour $150/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour
$50/hour NA $75/hour $100/hour
$30/hour NA $45/hour $60/hour
$55/hour NA $80/hour $110/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour

Non‐Profit/School RCN Member Resident Non‐Resident

$4/hour NA $6/hour $8/hour
$11/hour NA $15/hour $22/hour
$7/hour NA $10/hour $14/hour
$5/hour NA $7/hour $10/hour
$5/hour NA $7/hour $10/hour
$25/hour NA $35/hour $50/hour

Deposit:

COP Security Fee

No security required if no admission is charged. 1
@ $55/ hour when admission is charged.

No security required if no admission is charged. 1
@ $55/ hour when admission is charged.

Less than 75 $50 per day $25 per day

76 to 250 $150 per day $25 per day

Admission Fees for selected General Athletic Events: Adults=$3, Student=$2, Childeren 7‐12=$1, Children 0‐6=No Charge
Admission Fees for selected CHAMPIONSHIP Level Athletic Events: Adults=$5, Student=$4, Childeren 7‐12=$2, Children 0‐6=No Charge
(Multi‐day events will have discounts made available on a case‐by‐case basis.)

Additional fees are assessed based on size, type, and duration of rental (see Section II)
II. Additional Associated Fees

Total Number of Participants
& Spectators

COP Custodial Fee *
(*subject to change)

Event Staff Fee
(Extra Lifeguards, etc.)

Requests for use of Natatorium space for events or activities that do not conform to one of the above catagories will be considered a "Special Event." In this case there will be a "case by case"
consideration and negotiations with the potential renter.

Membership rental rates will only be available for Short‐Term Non‐Athletic Rentals
Rental Formula = (base lane cost) x (number of lanes) x (number of hours) + (cost of lifeguards)

25% of Total Rental (Total Rental = Base lane useage + All Additional Fees assessed based on size and duration of event)

25 yd CC configuration (per lane / Max = 10 lanes)
25 yd/mt configuration (per lane/ Max = 8 lanes)
Diving Well Only  (5 lanes)

D. Special Event/Unique Situation Rentals

C. Athletic Long Term Rentals (Swim/Dive Team Water Polo Practices, etc.)
A Long‐term rental is defined as a rental for practices or any continued event longer than two (2) weeks in length. A "per‐lane participant limit" (10 participant per lane max) will be enforced.

Activity Pool only (per lane) (max 3 lanes)
50 Meter Pool + Activity Pool (per lane)
50 Meter Pool Configuration (per lane)

25 yd CC configuration (10 lanes) w/Add‐ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
25 yd/mt configuration (8 lanes)
25 yd/mt configuration (8 lanes) w/Add‐ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
Diving Well Only (5 lanes)

Entire Natatorium Facility (Pools + Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
50 Meter Pool + Activity Pool (Pool Use Only)
50 Meter Pool (Pool Use Only)
50 Meter Pool with Add‐Ons (Meeting Room + Ops Room + Patio)
25 yd CC configuration (10 lanes)

Meeting Room
Patio Area

B. Athletic Short Term Rental (Swim/Dive Meets, Water Polo Tournaments, etc.)
The Natatorium is capable of multiple configurations based on the need of the individual/organization renting the facility. (See Facility Information Form.)

NATATORIUM RENTAL RATES
A short term rental is defined as a rental ranging from 1 hour to 1 day in length.
A. "Non‐Athletic" Short Term Rental (Personal/Organizational, Meetings, etc. ‐ (Not Including "Parties")

Activity Pool



1 @ $55/hour

1 @ $55/hour

1 @ $55/hour

13

Some items will incur an additional cost to use during some events. Please ask facility staff for more information.
Special Note:   1 or 2 parking lot attendants are required for all events with an anticipated 500+ attendance. Rate is $15 per attendant per hour.
*Custodial Fee includes the additional cleaning supplies and inventory to support the rental, as well as any staff needed to manage the cleaning of restrooms, trash, stands, etc.
**For large rental/ meets (Over 500+) an additional "Extra Heavy Cleanup/Restoration Fee" of $250 * will be assessed.
* subject to change pending new Custodial Services Contract

Timing System (One System) (If Operator is included then an additional staff charge of $30 per hour will apply) $100 per day

Timing System (Two Systems) (If Operators are included then an additional staff charge of $60 per hour will apply) $200 per day

Events requiring any change from the usual 25‐yard cross‐course configuration will incur an additional setup fee. $150

More than 1000 $600 per day $100 per day

COP P&R Aquatics Supervision (CPO/AFO) Fee (500+ events only) $100 for events 1‐6 hours per day
$200 for events longer than 6 hours

251‐ 500 $350 per day $50 per day

501‐1000 $450 per day $75 per day



New 
Business 
Item No. 4 

4. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. 2014-121 –  A
Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Pearland, Texas, approving
and adopting the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2015-
2019. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of Resolution 2014-121 approving and adopting the Five-
Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 2015 - 2019.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

BACKGROUND 
The City has prepared the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) that covers 
Fiscal Year 2015 through Fiscal Year 2019.   

The development of the capital improvement program is a continual process and, 
consequently should be viewed as a working document.   While the document covers a 
five-year planning perspective, it is revised every year in order to accommodate new 
projects, reflect changes in ongoing projects, and extend the program another year.  
Improvements identified in years 2016 through 2019 are approved only on a planning 
basis and do not receive expenditure appropriation.  Cost estimates for years two 

AGENDA OF: 9/29/2014 ITEM NO.:  R2014-121

DATE SUBMITTED: 9/19/2014 DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: Finance 

PREPARED BY: Bobby Pennington PRESENTOR:  Trent Epperson 

REVIEWED BY:  Trent Epperson REVIEW DATE: September 23, 2014 

SUBJECT:   Resolution 2014-121 Approving and Adopting the Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Program 2015-2019 

EXHIBITS:   Resolution 2014-121 
 Fiscal Year 2015–2019 CIP 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: N/A PROJECT NO.: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: N/A 
PROJECT NO.: N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 



through five are also for planning purposes only, to be used in conjunction with the 
City’s Multi-Year Financial Forecast.  
 
Six project categories are incorporated in the CIP.  They include Drainage, Streets, 
Facilities, Parks, Water and Wastewater.  This CIP has been developed by staff and 
provides for a long-term program to meet the needs of a growing community and the 
goals of the City.  It addresses the needs of the City through responsible City 
government, with a comprehensive approach.   
 
The summary of the Five-Year CIP was reviewed with City Council at a workshop on 
August 11, 2014 and was included in the budget document that was handed out the end 
of July, totaling $419,292,794.  The only change to the Five-Year CIP, based upon 
discussion with City Council, was to remove the cost associated with Platinum LEED 
certification on the Nature Center in fiscal year 2017 in the amount of $250,000.  The 
revised Five-Year CIP totals $419,042,794. 
 
The complete Five-Year CIP is provided as an attachment.  The CIP will be available in 
the City Secretary’s Office as well as available on the City’s web-site for public access. 
 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The Five-Year CIP totals $419,042,794 and includes $55,134,653 that will be 
appropriated for Fiscal-Year 2014-2015 upon City Council adoption of the 2014-2015 
budget this evening.   
 
Of the $419.0 million CIP, $70.6 million, or 16.8%, is unfunded, as no funding source 
has been identified.  These projects may make up the City’s next bond referendum.  A 
total of $79.3 million is funded from the 2007 bond referendum, $22.5 million proposed 
from Certificates of Obligation, and $136.6 million is water/sewer bonds.   
 
As stated earlier, this document is a planning document and is subject to change.   
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-121 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
approving and adopting the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP) 2015-2019. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby adopts the Five-Year Capital 

Improvements Program (CIP) 2015-2019 attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ______day of ________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



City of Pearland 

2015 – 2019 
5-Year Capital Improvement Program 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
2015 - 2019 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
                                          PAGE 

 
INTRODUCTION ……………………………………………………..…………….…i-v 
 
SUMMARIES 
  Total Summary...………………………………………..………………...……1 
  FY 2015 CIP by Funding Source ...………………………………………….2-9 
             Project Detail Page Location.........................................................................10-12 
   
DRAINAGE PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary……………………………………………………....…..13 

Map.......……….………………………………………………………………14 
Project Detail…...…………………………………………………….……15-20 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
2015 - 2019 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                      PAGE 
PARKS PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary..........................................................................................21 
  Map....................................................................................................................22 
  Project Detail…………………………………….……………..……….…23-32 
 
FACILITIES PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary……………………………………...……………………33 
  Map.......……….………………………………………………………………34 
  Project Detail  ..............................................................................................35-42 
 
STREETS PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary..........................................................................................43 

Map.......……….………………………………………………………………44 
Project Detail...............................................................................................45-65 



CITY OF PEARLAND 
2015 - 2019 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

               PAGE 
WATER PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary……………………………………………………….......66 

Map....................................................................................................................67 
Project Detail................................................................................................68-85 

 
WASTEWATER PROJECTS 
  Five-Year Summary……………………………………………………….......86 

Map....................................................................................................................87 
Project Detail..............................................................................................88-102 

 
APPENDIX 
  Glossary of Terms....................................................................................103-104 



INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Pearland’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
has been developed in order to further our commitment to the 
citizens of Pearland by working to meet today’s needs, as well 
as those of the future. From work on underground water and 
sewer lines to more visible projects such as street paving and 
extensions, the five-year CIP addresses the needs of the City 
through responsible City Government with a comprehensive 
and cost-effective approach. 
 
What is a Capital Improvement?  A capital improvement is a 
major, non-routine expenditure for new construction, 
improvements to existing buildings, facilities, land, streets, 
storm sewers, and expansion of the City’s park system to 
name a few.   A capital improvement project has a relatively 
high monetary value ($100,000+), long-life expectancy, and 
results in the creation of an asset or extends the life of existing 
assets.  The cost of the capital improvement includes design, 
legal fees, land, operating equipment, furniture, construction, 
etc. that is necessary to put the asset into service.  A capital 
improvement project is not the purchase of a piece of 
equipment such as a fire truck, vehicle, etc. 
 
What are the benefits of a Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP)?  A long-term capital improvement program has many 
obvious benefits derived from its organized approach to 
planning projects.  The program can focus attention on 
community and City goals and needs, allowing projects to be 
prioritized based on need.  The CIP can be an effective tool for 
achieving goals set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, as 
well as the City’s various master plans.  Through proper 
planning, the need for bond referendums, bond issues or other 

revenue production measures can be foreseen and action can 
be taken to fund the projects as identified. 
 
CIP DEVELOPMENT PROCESS 
 
The development of a capital improvement program is a 
continual process and, consequently, should be viewed as a 
working document.  Therefore, while the document covers a 
five-year planning perspective, it is revised every year in order 
to accommodate new projects, reflect changes in ongoing 
projects, and extend the program an additional year.   
 
The first year of the plan is incorporated into the annual 
budget to appropriate funds.  Improvements identified in 
subsequent years are approved only on a planning basis 
and do not receive expenditure appropriation.  Cost 
estimates for years two through five are also for planning 
purposes only, to be used in conjunction with the City’s 
long-range financial plan for operations.   
 
As City projects related to Drainage, Streets, Parks and 
Facilities in the previous bond programs are completed, 
projects in future years are added in order to identify and 
quantify future needs.  These projects are typically added to 
the Five-Year CIP as an unfunded project.  These identified 
projects will then become a basis for the preparation of a 
future referendum.   
 
Projects included in the five-year CIP are either City managed 
projects or include just the City’s share of projects that will be 
managed by other agencies.  If an outside agency will be 
contributing funding directly to the City for a project that the 
City will manage, then that cost and funding are included in the 
project budget.   The Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 

i 
 



(CIP) includes all capital projects, which are to be financed in 
whole or in part from funds subject to control or appropriation 
by the City.  Therefore, the CIP includes bond appropriations 
(general obligation, certificates of obligation and revenue 
bonds), General Revenue – Cash, P.E.D.C., System 
Revenues – Cash, Impact Fees, Developer Contributions, and 
any Federal, State or private foundation grant funds received 
by the City for capital improvement projects. 

The City considers input from the citizens, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission, City staff members, and master plans in 
the Capital Improvement Program’s preparation. A project list 
is compiled, prioritized by year, and cost estimates assigned. 
The Finance Department also looks at the overall effect of 
projects, including the need to issue debt, potential impact on 
the tax rate, and operations and maintenance impact on the 
City. The City Council, through workshops, reviews the draft 
with any recommended changes incorporated into the final 
document. A final draft of the Five-Year CIP is then prepared 
for Council consideration and approval. Upon Council 
adoption, the five-year CIP document is reproduced and 
distributed for implementation of the program. 

2015-2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

The Five-Year Capital Improvement Program for 2015 to 2019 
totals $419,042,794. How is the Capital Improvement Program 
funded?  Funding for CIP projects are derived from various 
sources, including General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of 
Obligation, Water & Sewer Revenue Bonds, Impact Fees, 
General Revenues, System Revenues, P.E.D.C., Developer 
Contributions, County/MUD Contributions, Federal and State 
Highway Funds, and Grant Funds.  Projects identified as 
unfunded will be considered as part of a future bond 

referendum.  Uses of the funding include Drainage, Streets, 
Facilities, Parks, Water, and Wastewater projects.  

The graph on the following page provides a breakdown of the 
funding sources and uses. 

ii 



iii

General 
Revenue -

Cash
0%

Certificates of 
Obligation

5% General 
Obligation 

Bonds
19%

PEDC
1%

W/S Revenue 
Bonds
19%

System 
Revenue -

Cash
5%

Impact Fees -
Cash
0%

Impact Fees -
Debt
14%

Unfunded
17%

Other Funding 
Sources

20%

2015-2019 CIP
by

Funding Source - $419 Million

Parks
5%

Water/Sewer
39%

Drainage
5%

Streets
41%

Facilities
10%

2015-2019 CIP 
by 

Project Type - $419 Million



PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS 
 
DRAINAGE 
Drainage projects include the construction of storm sewers, 
detention ponds, and underground drainage, as well as 
associated culvert and ditch improvements.  These construction 
projects and improvements will help reduce the risk of 
repetitive flooding in residential areas and provide storage 
capacity. Major drainage improvements include Lower Kirby 
Urban Center Regional Detention, Cullen/FM518 Regional 
Detention Pond, Old Townsite Drainage, D.L. Smith Detention 
Pond, and Cowart Creek Diversion. 
 
PARKS 
Parks projects include the construction of Centennial Park 
Phase II, which will include the demolition of the existing 
soccer fields, the construction of two new lighted softball 
fields, the installation of a new picnic pavilion, and additional 
parking.  Funding is included for the land for Green Tee 
Terrace Trail, which will be a 10-foot hike and bike trail from 
the Pearland Eastside Library/City Hall to Barry Rose Road, 
along the Clear Creek Corridor and also for the land for the 
extension of the Shadow Creek Ranch Trail from east of Kirby 
Drive to Shadow Creek Ranch Park.  The design of 
Independence Park Phase I, which will include the 
reorientation of the entry into the park, relocation and upgrade 
of the existing playground, improvements to the existing 
pavilion, the construction of additional parking, an 
amphitheater for special events and landscaping is funded.  The 
Delores Fenwick Nature Center funding will be used to begin 
design on a 7,000 square foot building with an open air 
pavilion at one end that would include: 6 or 7 offices, 
restrooms, outdoor spray station and hose bibs, a classroom 
with a 50 seat capacity, and 400 square feet of storage. 
 

FACILITIES 
Facility projects include the reconstruction of Fire Station #2 
that will include the construction of approximately 10,700 
square feet of space to house personnel from Fire and EMS, 
including dorm space, kitchen and dining area, and exercise 
room.  The renovation of the City Hall Complex will 
accommodate space for personnel as a result of the City’s 
growth.  Floors will be remodeled to allow for department 
adjacencies and efficiencies, as well as modifications to 
existing space in the Community Center.  Also included in 
Facility projects are the renovation of Orange Street Service 
Center and the expansion of the Tom Reid Library 
approximately 11,500 square feet.  A library on the west side 
of town has been identified in the five year plan, though a 
funding source has yet to be identified. 
 
STREETS 
Street projects include pavement rehabilitation, which replaces 
sections of existing failed pavement, road extensions, widening 
and reconstruction of some of the major streets in the City to 
improve mobility, congestion, and ride-ability. Major street 
projects include Max and Fite Roads, McHard Road Extension 
from Mykawa to Cullen, Bailey Road from Veterans to FM 
1128, Regency Park Subdivision Paving, Hooper Road 
Extension, and Industrial Drive Realignment.  Grand 
Boulevard Reconstruction, and Hughes Ranch Rd. Expansion 
from Cullen to Stone have been identified as needs, however, a 
funding source has yet to be identified.  Sidewalk construction 
projects include Old Town Area Sidewalks and Safe Routes to 
School. 
 
WATER/WASTEWATER 
Water and Wastewater projects include the replacement and/or 
the construction of water and sewer lines, water wells, and 
treatment capability.  Major projects for water improvements 

iv 
 



include Surface Water Plant, AC Waterline Replacement, 
Water Meter Changeout, McHard Waterline, FM 1128 16” 
Waterline from Bailey Road to CR 100, Veterans Drive 16” 
Waterline from Bailey Road to CR 128, and Far NW Ground 
Storage Tank Expansion.  Wastewater projects include the 
expansion of the Far Northwest Wastewater Facility, McHard 
Road Trunk Sewer, rehabilitation of the Southdown 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, JHEC Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Expansion, Barry Rose Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion and Extension of trunk sewer along Veterans Drive.   

v 
 



USE 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL
DRAINAGE 4,376,200 6,574,724 6,270,742 5,045,536 22,267,202
PARKS 2,386,726 7,900,400 4,887,087 486,000 3,992,500 19,652,713
FACILITIES 14,143,154 1,056,840 8,684,145 2,429,536 15,096,250 41,409,925
STREETS 29,584,341 25,753,548 50,583,541 48,545,000 16,123,626 170,590,056
WATER 1,529,579 11,117,198 14,708,266 12,291,908 29,314,462 68,961,413
WASTEWATER 3,114,653 24,924,898 35,512,656 27,221,528 5,387,750 96,161,485
TOTAL 55,134,653$    77,327,608$    120,646,437$  96,019,508$    69,914,588$    419,042,794$     

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash 100,000 380,000 633,000 533,000 533,000 2,179,000
Certificates of Obligation 11,067,201 2,414,553 9,035,718 22,517,472
General Obligation Bonds 16,888,546 17,366,390 15,040,266 22,862,054 7,150,710 79,307,966
PEDC 1,408,500 1,767,000 2,528,000 5,703,500
W/S Revenue Bonds 2,143,400 17,506,286 24,259,597 18,753,739 15,383,337 78,046,359
System Revenue - Cash 1,031,653 3,875,713 4,208,763 4,908,625 6,625,000 20,649,754
Impact Fees - Cash 348,522 348,522
Impact Fees - Debt 12,650,987 19,034,939 14,216,039 12,693,875 58,595,840
Unfunded 1,166,800 26,124,207 16,538,221 26,808,666 70,637,894
Other Funding Sources 21,168,415 22,312,776 20,115,900 18,242,230 720,000 82,559,321
Less Projects Appropriated in Previous Year (1,502,834)
TOTAL 54,156,237$    79,440,505$    120,980,390$  96,053,908$    69,914,588$    419,042,794$     

Note: The totals do not tie by year as the City sometimes appropriates funds for GO Bond projects in one year
and then sells the bonds in the next year.

CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

TOTAL SUMMARY

1



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

GENERAL REVENUE - CASH

Project No. Project Name Amount
FACILITIES

FA1401 Fire Station #2 100,000                    

CASH TOTAL $100,000

2



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

Project No. Project Name Amount
PARKS

P50071 Centennial Park Ph II 223,064                    
PK1401 Shadow Creek Ranch Trail 23,147                      
PK1402 Green Tee Terrace Trail 21,037                      

Sub-Total $267,248
FACILITIES

F20002 Tom Reid Library Expansion 412,300                    
FA0904 City Hall Complex Renovations 4,397,699                 
FA1401 Fire Station #2 3,669,954                 
FA1404 Orange Street Service Center 2,120,000                 

Sub-Total $10,599,953
STREETS

TR0803 Old Town Area Sidewalks 200,000                    

Sub-Total $200,000
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION TOTAL $11,067,201

3



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Project No. Project Name Amount

DR0602 Cowart Creek Diversion 1,524,159                 
DR1302 Old Townsite Drainage 2,312,200                 

Sub-Total $3,836,359
PARKS

P20001 Independence Park Ph I 179,810                    
P20002 Shadow Creek Ranch Ph I 2,116,834                 
P20004 Delores Fenwick Nature Center 39,150                      
P50071 Centennial Park Ph II 1,504,936                 

Sub-Total $3,840,730
FACILITIES

F20002 Tom Reid Library Expansion 882,600                    

Sub-Total $882,600
STREETS

T08002 Bailey Road - Veterans to FM 1128 1,067,480                 
TR1201 Hughes Ranch Road (CR403) 200,000                    
TR1202 Fite Road 679,810                    
TR1205 Max Road 849,685                    
TR1402 Regency Park Subdivision Paving 2,766,600                 
TR1404 Kirby Drive Expansion 738,545                    
TR1405 McHard Road Extension 771,094                    
TR1501 Smith Ranch Road Extension (CR 94) 65,643                      
TR1502 Industrial Drive Realignment 1,190,000                 

Sub-Total $8,328,857
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS TOTAL $16,888,546

DRAINAGE

4



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

PEDC

Project No. Project Name Amount
STREETS

TR1406 Hooper Road Extension 1,184,500                 

Sub-Total $1,184,500
WATER

WA1403 Hooper Road Water Line 114,000                    

Sub-Total $114,000
WASTEWATER

WW1407 Hooper Road Sanitary Sewer 110,000                    

Sub-Total $110,000
PEDC TOTAL $1,408,500

5



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

W/S REVENUE BONDS

Project No. Project Name Amount
WATER

WA1503 Regency Park Subdivision 8" Water Line 579,230                    

Sub-Total $579,230
WASTEWATER

WW1503 Green Tee 1 to Riverstone Wastewater Diversion 324,170                    
WW1504 (JHEC) SWEC Filter and Bar Screen Improvements 1,240,000                 

Sub-Total $1,564,170
W/S REVENUE BONDS TOTAL $2,143,400

6



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

SYSTEM REVENUE - CASH

Project No. Project Name Amount
WATER

WA1203 Tom Bass Park Loop 178,922                    
WA1503 Regency Park Subdivision 8" Water Line 47,015                      
WA1505 FM 521 Waterline (Broadway to Mooring Pointer) 105,945                    

Sub-Total $331,882
WASTEWATER

WW1201 Southdown WWTP Rehabilitation 500,000                    
WW1406 McHard Rd Trunk Sewer 34,771                      
WW1501 Roy/Max/Garden Roads Basin Sewage System 165,000                    

Sub-Total $699,771
SYSTEM REVENUE - CASH TOTAL $1,031,653

7



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

IMPACT FEES - CASH

Project No. Project Name Amount
WATER

WA1203 Tom Bass Park Loop 348,522                    

Sub-Total $348,522
IMPACT FEES - CASH TOTAL $348,522

8



2015 PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE
OTHER FUNDING SOURCES

Project No. Project Name Amount
DRAINAGE

DR0602 Cowart Creek Diversion 75,841                      

Sub-Total $75,841
PARKS

P50071 Centennial Park Ph II 100,000                    
PK1401 Shadow Creek Ranch Trail 92,586                      
PK1402 Green Tee Terrace Trail 84,146                      

Sub-Total $276,732
FACILITIES

FA0904 City Hall Complex Renovations 48,201                      

Sub-Total $48,201
STREETS

T08002 Bailey Road - Veterans to FM 1128 8,072,520                 
TR1202 Fite Road 2,652,821                 
TR1205 Max Road 3,398,743                 
TR1404 Kirby Drive Expansion 250,000                    
TR1405 McHard Road Extension 3,084,375                 
TR1406 Hooper Road Extension 2,149,500                 
TR1501 Smith Ranch Road Extension (CR 94) 263,025                    

Sub-Total $19,870,984
WATER

WA1001 General Engineering/CIP Administration 50,000                      
WA1505 FM 521 Waterline (Broadway to Mooring Pointer) 105,945                    

Sub-Total $155,945
WASTEWATER

WW0901 Riverstone Ranch Oversizing 128,167                    
WW1201 Southdown WWTP Rehabilitation 40,545                      
WW1501 Roy/Max/Garden Roads Basin Sewage System 165,000                    
WW1502 Barry Rose WWTP Expansion 350,000                    
WW1506 Springfield Lift Station Abandonment 57,000                      

Sub-Total $740,712
OTHER FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL $21,168,415
GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDING SOURCES $54,156,237

CITY OF PEARLAND

9



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
PROJECT DETAIL PAGE LOCATION

Project No. Project Name Detail Page
DR0602 Cowart Creek Diversion 15
DR1103 Cullen/FM 518 Regional Detention Pond 16
DR1301 Lower Kirby Urban Cener Regional Detention 17
DR1302 Old Townsite Drainage 18
DR1701 PER for Future Bond Referendum 19
DR2002 D.L. Smith Detention Pond Expansion Phase I 20
P20001 Independence Park Phase I 23
P20004 Delores Fenwick Nature Center Phase I 24
P20008 JHEC Nature Trails 25
P50071 Centennial Park Phase II 26
PK1401 Shadow Creek Ranch Trail 27
PK1402 Green Tee Terrace Trail 28
PK1701 PER for Future Bond Referendum 29
PK1702 Trail Connectivity 30
PK1801 Sports Complex at Max Road Phase II 31
PK1901 Shadow Creek Ranch Park Phase II 32
F20002 Tom Reid Library Expansion 35
FA0904 City Hall Complex Renovations 36
FA1401 Fire Station #2 37
FA1402/FA1201 Hillhouse Road Annex Phase II 38
FA1404 Orange Street Service Center 39
FA1501 Fire Station #8 40
FA1701 Fire Station #1 41
FA1801 Shadow Creek Library 42
T08002 Bailey Road - Veterans to FM 1128 45
T20002 Old Alvin Road Widening (Plum Street to McHard Road) 46
TR0601 Mykawa Road Widening (BW8 to FM 518) 47

10



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
PROJECT DETAIL PAGE LOCATION

Project No. Project Name Detail Page
TR0803 Old Townsite Area Sidewalks 48
TR1201 Hughes Ranch Road (CR 403) 49
TR1202 Fite Road 50
TR1205 Max Road 51
TR1402 Regency Park Subdivision Paving 52
TR1404 Kirby Drive Expansion 53
TR1405 McHard Road Extension (Mykawa Road to Cullen Parkway) 54
TR1406 Hooper Road Extension 55
TR1407 SH288 Tollway 56
TR1501 Smith Ranch Road Expansion (CR 94) 57
TR1502 Industrial Drive Realignment 58
TR1601 Traffic Signal Intersection Improvements 59
TR1602 Safe Routes To School Improvements 60
TR1603 Park-N-Ride 61
TR1701 Old Alvin Road Rehabilitation 62
TR1702 PER for Future Bond Referendum 63
TR1703 Grand Boulevard Reconstruction 64
TR1801 Hughes Ranch Road Expansion 65
WA0812 Surface Water Plant 68
WA1001 General Engineering / CIP Administration 69
WA1203 Tom Bass Park Loop 70
WA1402 Southeast Water Plant 71
WA1403 Hooper Road Water Line 72
WA1502 AC Water Line Replacement 73
WA1503 Regency Park Subdivision 8" Water Line 74
WA1505 FM 521 Waterline from Broadway to Mooring Pointer 75
WA1601 Water Meter Changeout 76

11



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
PROJECT DETAIL PAGE LOCATION

Project No. Project Name Detail Page
WA1602 Hughes Ranch Road West 12" Water Line 77
WA1603 FM 1128 16" Waterline 78
WA1604 CR 100 Waterline 79

WA1605
Harkey Rd. from CR 100 to CR 128 & CR 128 from Harkey to 
Veterans 80

WA1606 Veterans Drive Bailey Road to CR 128 16" Waterline 81
WA1608 McHard Water Line Ph II 82
WA1701 Far NW GST Expansion 83
WA1702 Grand Boulevard Waterline - Old Townsite SE Quadrant 84
WA1801 Hughes Ranch Road East 12" Water Line 85
WW0901 Riverstone Ranch Oversizing 88
WW1201 Southdown (North Central) WWTP Rehabilitation 89
WW1405 Far NW WWTP Expansion 90
WW1406 McHard Road Trunk Sewer (Garden to Southdown WWTP) 91
WW1407 Hooper Road Sanitary Sewer 92
WW1501 Roy/Max/Garden Roads Basin Sewage System 93
WW1502 Barry Rose WWTP Expansion 94

WW1503
Green Tee 1 to Riverstone Wastewater Diversion
(Longwood Service Area Phase I) 95

WW1504 (JHEC) SWEC Filter and Bar Screen Improvements 96
WW1506 Springfield Lift Station Abandonment 97
WW1507 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 98
WW1601 Orange Mykawa Lift Station Retirement 99
WW1602 Relocation Mykawa/Scott Lift Station 100
WW1603 JHEC WWTP Expansion 101
WW1701 Veterans Drive Lift Station Service Area 102

12



Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

DR0602 Cowart Creek Diversion 1,600,000 1,600,000
DR1103 Cullen/FM 518 Detention Pond 464,000 3,858,000 4,322,000
DR1301 Lower Kirby Urban Center Regional Detention 1,767,000 2,528,000 2,145,000 6,440,000
DR1302 Old Townsite Drainage 2,312,200 826,800 3,139,000
DR1701 PER for Future Bond Referendum 1,000,000 1,000,000
DR2002 D.L. Smith Detention Pond Expansion Phase I 122,924 2,742,742 2,900,536 5,766,202

TOTAL 4,376,200$      6,574,724$      6,270,742$      5,045,536$      -$                 22,267,202$    

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds 3,836,359 4,657,724 3,742,742 2,900,536 15,137,361
P.E.D.C. 1,767,000 2,528,000 4,295,000
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenues - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources 75,841 2,145,000 2,220,841
Plus Bonds Sold in Prior Years 614,000
TOTAL 3,912,200$      6,424,724$      6,270,742$      5,045,536$      -$                 22,267,202$    

Note: The totals do not tie by year as the City sometimes appropriates funds for GO Bond projects in one year
and then sells the bonds in the next year.

CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

DRAINAGE

13



Lower Kirby Urban Center
Regional Detention

2016-2018

Cowart Creek Diversion
2015

D.L. Smith Detention Pond
Expansion Phase I

2016-2018

Old Townsite Drainage
2015-2016

Cullen / FM 518 Regional
Detention Pond

2015-2016

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Drainage

1:63,360 1 in = 1 milesor

D.L. Smith Detention Pond Expansion Phase I

Cowart Creek Diversion

Lower Kirby Urban Center Regional Detention

Old Townsite Drainage Cullen/FM 518 Regional Detention Pond

14



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$8,200 $8,200 $8,200 $8,200 $8,200

$8,200 $8,200 $8,200 $8,200 $8,200

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$4,650,000 $600,000 $500,000 $600,000 $600,000
$1,400,000 $1,646,894 $1,646,894 $1,646,894 $1,646,894

$15,021,276 $11,854,556 $10,254,556 $10,254,556 $1,600,000 $11,854,556
$0

$955,174 $615,000 $615,000 $615,000 $615,000
$22,026,450 $14,716,450 $13,016,450 $13,116,450 $1,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,716,450

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
$0

$8,726,159 $8,726,159 $7,102,000 $7,202,000 $1,524,159 $8,726,159
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$13,285,291 $5,975,291 $5,899,450 $5,899,450 $75,841 $5,975,291
$22,026,450 $14,716,450 $13,016,450 $13,116,450 $1,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,716,450

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  BCDD#4 in-kind services total $7.6 million:  $1,950,000 from T70061 in 2007; $1,249,450 from 
T70061 in 2008.  Reallocation from Town Ditch Bonds in 2010.  Reallocation from East Mary's in 2013.  Additional $100,000 in 2014 reallocated 
from Piper Drainage, which is no longer needed.  Reallocation from Cowart Creek - Fund 70 in 2015.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Cowart Creek Diversion and Regional Detention for the Bailey Road corridor between FM 1128 and Wells Road Phase II of this 
project scheduled for 2015 consists of regrading the north-south ditches along all of the roads between Harkey and Veterans 
from CR101 to CR100.  The ditch maintenance and improvement project entails re-grading the drainage ditches along Holland, 
Harkey, Wayne, Berry, McLean and Wellborn roads between CR 101 (Bailey Rd) and CR 100 as part of the cooperative drainage 
improvements for Bailey Road and the Cowart Creek Diversion.  Driveway culverts will also be replaced/reset at the proper 
elevation as necessary based on the hydraulic evaluation. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The basis of this diversion and detention project is to separate the drainage corridor out of the Bailey Road (FM1128 to Veterans) 
transportation corridor, thereby allowing for the development of both the ultimate transportation and drainage facilities in 
adequately sized, separate corridors.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Cowart Creek Diversion DR0602 1

No Yes (See Below)

15



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 $250,000
$264,000 $264,000 $264,000 $264,000 $264,000
$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $200,000 $150,000 $350,000

$3,110,000 $3,110,000 $3,110,000 $3,110,000
$0

$598,000 $598,000 $598,000 $598,000
$4,572,000 $4,572,000 $864,000 $250,000 $464,000 $3,858,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,572,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$4,572,000 $4,572,000 $864,000 $864,000 $3,708,000 $4,572,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$4,572,000 $4,572,000 $864,000 $864,000 $0 $3,708,000 $0 $0 $0 $4,572,000

Project Manager: Cuong Le

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Cullen/FM 518 Detention Pond DR1103 3

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
1 Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  Partial offset by regional detention fees.  Savings from E. Mary's & Town Ditch voter authorization for 
Drainage Projects.  Assumes BDD# 4 will maintain.  $864K is bonds already sold, construction pushed back to 2016.

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Construction
Equipment & Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Future storm water regional detention pond located at the southwest quadrant of FM 518/Cullen Parkway intersection.  The 
project will include construction of detention pond, existing ditch improvements and possible underground storm sewer 
improvements required to convey development runoff.  

This project was one of the highest priority projects from the City's Regional Detention Study conducted in 2010. The proposed 
detention pond will provide the required detention for future development of approximately 155 acres of undeveloped land, 
allowing future development along FM 518  without the need for individual detention ponds.  The development of this regional 
detention facility is a City Council goal.

No Yes (See Below)

16



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$1,386,000 $1,386,000 $1,386,000 $1,386,000

$650,000 $650,000 $650,000 $650,000 $650,000
$5,709,000 $5,709,000 $2,800,000 $655,000 $1,767,000 $1,142,000 $2,145,000 $5,709,000

$0
$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

$7,845,000 $7,845,000 $3,550,000 $1,405,000 $0 $1,767,000 $2,528,000 $2,145,000 $0 $7,845,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0

$4,295,000 $4,295,000 $1,767,000 $2,528,000 $4,295,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,550,000 $3,550,000 $3,550,000 $1,405,000 $2,145,000 $3,550,000
$7,845,000 $7,845,000 $3,550,000 $1,405,000 $0 $1,767,000 $2,528,000 $2,145,000 $0 $7,845,000

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Funds from Fund 200 - Regional Detention.  Projects are developer driven, funded by PEDC, 
reimbursed in the future from the two management districts based on property value on the ground.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
This project will provide regional storm water detention for the area bounded by BW8 to the north, Clear Creek to the south, Kirby 
Drive to the west, and SH288 to the east.  Based on preliminary studies, the system will consist of one detention pond near Clear 
Creek, combined with a widening of the TxDOT ditch to provide conveyance and storage between BW8 and Clear Creek.  The 
initial construction phase in FY2014 will consist of the inflow and outflow structures between the ditch and pond, which will 
provide approximately 95 acre feet of storage.  Subsequent projects will be developer driven. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This project was one of the highest priority projects from the City's Regional Detention Study conducted in 2010.  The concept is 
also supported by the Lower Kirby Urban Center Master Plan and Implementation Strategy.   The project will allow properties 
within the sub-watershed boundaries to contribute to the construction of the system or buy-in to the detention system in-lieu of 
constructing individual ponds on each property, increasing the amount of developable land.  The City has agreements in place 
with the Pearland Municipal Management District and the Lower Kirby Pearland Management District which will reimburse the 
City to construct the regional system.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Lower Kirby Urban Center Regional Detention DR1301 2

No Yes (See Below)

17



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000
$383,000 $383,000 $383,000 $383,000 $383,000

$2,756,000 $2,756,000 $1,929,200 $826,800 $2,756,000
$0
$0

$3,415,000 $3,415,000 $659,000 $276,000 $2,312,200 $826,800 $0 $0 $0 $3,415,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$3,239,000 $3,239,000 $483,000 $100,000 $2,312,200 $826,800 $3,239,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000 $176,000
$3,415,000 $3,415,000 $659,000 $276,000 $2,312,200 $826,800 $0 $0 $0 $3,415,000

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Reallocation of Town Ditch & Veterans/Walnut                                                                                                                                                                     

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
The City's Sub-Regional Detention Master Plan identified an area located within the City's Old Townsite as a potential location for 
a sub-regional detention pond. The 41-acre service area is located at the southwest corner of Walnut and Galveston and extends 
to SH35 and FM518, which is within the southeast quadrant of the Old Townsite.  The scope of the project will be to develop a 
drainage and detention plan for serving the area with a sub-regional detention pond and will include the development of a PER 
that determines pond location, pond size, and conveyance to the sub-regional facility. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The need for sub-regional detention has been a priority set by Council which led to the development of the Sub-Regional 
Detention Pond Master Plan.  One of the short-term priority projects was a pond located within the southeast quadrant of the Old 
Townsite.  Phase one focuses on the area located between Walnut St. and FM518.  Re-development of this portion of the Old 
Townsite has been difficult primarily because of the inability to construct on-site detention.  Implementation of this project will help 
alleviate that issue allowing for approximately 15 acres to develop and will also provide regional detention for the re-development 
or expansion of approximately 20 acres.  In addition to this, the detention pond will also serve and mitigate the impacts of the 
expansion of the roadway network within this portion of the Old Townsite.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Old Townsite Drainage DR1302 4

No Yes (See Below)

18



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION
FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS

PROJECT IMAGE

Projects

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

Project Manager: 

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Construction

TOTAL 
BUDGET CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Provide funding for preliminary engineering on future projects yet to be identified that would be funded with the City's next bond 
referendum. Preliminary engineering would tighten down scopes and provide for estimated construction dollars that would be 
needed to take a proposition to the voters.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
PER for Future Bond Referendum DR1701 6
PROJECT NAME

No Yes (See Below)

19



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$88,036 $88,036 $88,036 $88,036 $88,036
$0

$861,540 $861,540 $122,924 $738,616 $861,540
$12,684,592 $4,687,592 $1,932,083 $2,755,509 $4,687,592

$0
$217,070 $217,070 $72,043 $145,027 $217,070

$13,851,238 $5,854,238 $88,036 $88,036 $0 $122,924 $2,742,742 $2,900,536 $0 $5,854,238

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$88,036 $88,036 $88,036 $88,036 $88,036

$5,766,202 $5,766,202 $122,924 $2,742,742 $2,900,536 $5,766,202
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$7,997,000 $0
$13,851,238 $5,854,238 $88,036 $88,036 $0 $122,924 $2,742,742 $2,900,536 $0 $5,854,238

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:    In kind services totaling $7,997,000 from BDD #4 for future phases. Assumes BDD #4 will maintain.  

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase I of the project will expand the existing DL Smith detention facility by approximately 150 acre-feet.   The expansion will 
occur to the west of the existing McHard Road outfall ditch and south of the pipeline easement.  A future phase will add an 
additional 150 acre-feet of detention for further flood plain improvements and regional detention.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
In accordance with the City's Master Drainage Plan, there is a need for additional storage capacity along the Clear Creek 
Watershed to mitigate existing flooding and provide capacity for future development.  This expansion will lower the 100-year 
water surface elevation of Clear Creek, alleviate existing flood plain issues, accommodate future development along McHard 
Road between Old Alvin and Pearland Parkway, and be able to provide detention for the expansion of the University of Houston 
Clear Lake - Pearland Campus and other potential city facilities on D.L. Smith site.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
D. L. Smith Detention Pond Expansion Phase I DR2002 5

No Yes (See Below)

20



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

PARKS

Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

P20001 Independence Park Ph 1 179,810 1,906,803 1,522,460 3,609,073
P20004 Delores Fenwick Nature Center-Ph 1 158,000 736,026 1,389,627 2,283,653
P20008 JHEC Nature Trails 950,000 950,000
P50071 Centennial Park Ph 2 1,828,000 1,828,000
PK1401 Shadow Creek Ranch Trail 115,733 1,624,755 1,740,488
PK1402 Green Tee Terrace Trail 105,183 3,632,816 3,737,999
PK1701 PER for Future Bond Referendum 300,000 300,000
PK1702 Trail Connectivity 725,000 725,000
PK1801 Sports Complex at Max Road Ph 2 486,000 2,914,500 3,400,500
PK1901 Shadow Creek Ranch Park Ph 2 1,078,000 1,078,000

TOTAL 2,386,726$      7,900,400$      4,887,087$      486,000$         3,992,500$      19,652,713$    

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation 267,248 1,051,513 1,164,073 2,482,834
General Obligation Bonds 3,840,730 2,393,326 2,941,367 9,175,423
P.E.D.C.
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenues - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded 950,000 486,000 3,992,500 5,428,500
Other Funding Sources 276,732 4,206,058 200,000 4,682,790
Less Projects Appropriated in Previous Year (2,116,834)
TOTAL 4,384,710$      7,650,897$      5,255,440$      486,000$         3,992,500$      19,652,713$    

Note: The totals do not tie by year as the City sometimes appropriates funds for GO Bond projects in one year
and then sells the bonds in the next year.

21



Max Road Sports Complex
Phase II  2018-2019

Shadow Creek Ranch Trail
2015-2016

JHEC Nature Trails
2017

Shadow Creek Ranch
Park Phase II 

2019

Green Tee Terrace Trail
2015-2016

Delores Fenwick Nature Center
2015-2017

Trail Connectivity Phase III
2017

Centennial Park Phase II
2015

Independence Park Phase I
2015-2017

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Parks

1:63,360 1 in = 1 milesor

Green Tee Terrace Trail
JHEC Nature Trails
Shadow Creek Ranch Trail
Trail Connectivity Phase III

Centennial Park Phase II

Delores Fenwick Nature Center

Independence Park Phase I

Max Road Sports Complex Phase II

Shadow Creek Ranch Park Phase II

22



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$25,400 $52,323 $53,893
$764 $6,152 $6,152

$26,163 $58,475 $60,045
1.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$29,437 $29,437 $29,437 $29,437 $29,437
$0

$240,000 $240,000 $179,810 $60,190 $240,000
$3,069,073 $3,069,073 $1,816,613 $1,252,460 $3,069,073

$0
$300,000 $300,000 $30,000 $270,000 $300,000

$3,638,510 $3,638,510 $29,437 $29,437 $179,810 $1,906,803 $1,522,460 $0 $0 $3,638,510

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$368,510 $368,510 $29,437 $29,437 $339,073 $368,510

$3,270,000 $3,270,000 $179,810 $1,906,803 $1,183,387 $3,270,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,638,510 $3,638,510 $29,437 $29,437 $179,810 $1,906,803 $1,522,460 $0 $0 $3,638,510

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Independence Park Ph I P20001 2

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase I Improvements include a reorientation of the entry into the park, relocation and upgrade of the existing playground, 
improvements to the existing pavilion, the construction of additional parking, an amphitheater for special events and landscaping. 
Construction will be coordinated with the Trail Phase III project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Independence Park is one of the oldest and most recognized parks that the City owns.  According to the park utilization survey 
conducted with the master plan, this park had the second highest utilization of all City parks.  Most of the current amenities at the 
park are outdated or in bad condition and are in need of replacement.  This project was approved by voters in the 2007 Bond 
Program.  The Master Plan lists improvements to this park as a high priority.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
 ¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

No Yes (See Below)

23



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$84,104 $173,255
$48,125 $87,875
$40,140

$172,369 $261,130
3.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
$0

$158,000 $158,000 $158,000 $158,000
$1,928,153 $1,928,153 $736,026 $1,192,127 $1,928,153

$0
$197,500 $197,500 $197,500 $197,500

$2,308,653 $2,308,653 $25,000 $25,000 $158,000 $736,026 $1,389,627 $0 $0 $2,308,653

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000

$2,283,653 $2,283,653 $39,150 $486,523 $1,757,980 $2,283,653
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,308,653 $2,308,653 $25,000 $25,000 $39,150 $486,523 $1,757,980 $0 $0 $2,308,653

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Delores Fenwick Nature Center P20004 5

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
The project will include a 7,000 sq ft building with an open air pavilion at one end that would include: environmental educational 
displays, demonstration gardens, interpretive exhibits, 6 or 7 offices, restrooms, outdoor spray station and hose bibs, a classroom 
with a 50 seat capacity, 400 sq ft of storage and grass crete parking. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
There is a great need in the community to educate the public on the benefit of recycling, green space and trees. This project 
would give Pearland a unique opportunity to showcase JHEC as a learning opportunity for the entire community.  Children/adults 
would be able to come and take classes and learn about the environment in a hands-on setting.  This would be the office for the 
KPB staff and provide an opportunity to showcase the entire concept of utilizing one site as multi purposing for parks, recreation, 
detention, education, recycling, and environmental park.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Possible grant funding in the amount of $500,000 from HGAC.                                                                                                                                                                 

No Yes (See Below)

24



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$52,323 $53,893
$3,058 $3,058

$18,725
$74,106 $56,951

1.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$63,066 $63,066 $63,066 $63,066 $63,066
$1,205,000 $1,205,000 $475,000 $475,000 $730,000 $1,205,000

$70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000
$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000

$1,488,066 $1,488,066 $538,066 $538,066 $0 $0 $950,000 $0 $0 $1,488,066

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$950,000 $950,000 $950,000 $950,000
$538,066 $538,066 $538,066 $538,066 $538,066

$1,488,066 $1,488,066 $538,066 $538,066 $0 $0 $950,000 $0 $0 $1,488,066

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
JHEC Nature Trails (Formerly Nature Center Ph II) P20008 6

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Project includes 2 miles of 8 ft  trails,  being a combination of crushed granite and concrete in low lying areas, boardwalk, 
pedestrian bridge, fishing pier, picnic tables, benches, trash receptacles, drinking fountain, interpretive signage, and a paddle 
craft launching area.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The overall vision for this particular area was to provide an area that provides access to nature in a suburban setting, provide for 
recreation opportunities and provide a facility for environmental/nature education and awareness.   It will also be a showcase 
facility displaying the multi-use of both a detention pond and water treatment plant effluent to create a usable park and open 
space for the community.  Because appropriate grant money became available through the County coupled with trails appearing 
as a number one priority in citizen surveys for many years, the City has proceeded with acting on the vision of creating the trail 
portion of the project using the money made available.  

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) grant funding in the amount of $475,000.  Applying for 
Restore Act funds, if funded project will move forward.

No Yes (See Below)

25



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
$18,000 $18,000 $18,000 $18,000 $18,000

$56,966 $76,045 $76,118 $76,118 $76,118

$56,966 $76,045 $76,118 $76,118 $76,118

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$207,000 $207,000 $207,000 $207,000 $207,000
$495 $495 $495 $495 $495

$147,000 $147,000 $147,000 $147,000 $147,000
$1,828,000 $1,828,000 $1,189,858 $1,828,000 $1,828,000

$0
$183,800 $183,800 $183,800 $183,800 $183,800

$2,366,295 $2,366,295 $1,728,153 $538,295 $1,828,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,366,295

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$495 $495 $495 $495 $495
$223,064 $223,064 $223,064 $223,064

$2,042,736 $2,042,736 $1,727,658 $537,800 $1,504,936 $2,042,736
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$2,366,295 $2,366,295 $1,728,153 $538,295 $1,828,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,366,295

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Centennial Park Ph II P50071 1

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase II of Centennial Park includes the demolition of the existing soccer fields, the construction of two new lighted softball fields, 
the installation of a new picnic pavilion and additional parking for the complex.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Once the Max Road Sports Complex is completed, youth and adult soccer will move from Centennial Park to Max Road where 
the program can be expanded.  The existing soccer fields will be demolished and converted to lighted softball fields.  Additional 
softball fields will allow for the expansion of the girls softball program.  Adult softball will ultimately move to the Shadow Creek 
Ranch Complex once completed to make room for girls softball.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  Park Zone 7.

No Yes (See Below)

26



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$4,170 $5,560 $5,560

$4,170 $5,560 $5,560

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$115,733 $115,733 $115,733 $115,733
$194,970 $194,970 $194,970 $194,970 $194,970

$1,624,755 $1,624,755 $1,624,755 $1,624,755
$0
$0

$1,935,458 $1,935,458 $194,970 $194,970 $115,733 $1,624,755 $0 $0 $0 $1,935,458

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$38,994 $38,994 $38,994 $38,994 $38,994
$348,098 $348,098 $23,147 $324,951 $348,098

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,548,366 $1,548,366 $155,976 $155,976 $92,586 $1,299,804 $1,548,366
$1,935,458 $1,935,458 $194,970 $194,970 $115,733 $1,624,755 $0 $0 $0 $1,935,458

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Shadow Creek Ranch Trail PK1401 3

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Extension of a 10-foot hike and bike trail from the future Shadow Creek Ranch Park site along Clear Creek to the existing trail 
approximately 1,300 feet east of Kirby Drive.  Project will include benches, bike racks, trail signage, trash receptacles, water 
fountains, and shade structures.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Parks and Recreation Plan that was adopted by Council in December of 2005 lists the hike and bike trails as the number 
one priority for acquisition and development.  This project is included in the 2013-2014 TIP and will be 80% federally funded.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Transportation Improvement Program funds in the amount of $1,548,366; City must provide 20% 
matching funds.                                                                                                                                                                     

No Yes (See Below)

27



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$2,930 $5,860 $5,860

$2,930 $5,860 $5,860

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$105,183 $105,183 $105,183 $105,183
$435,937 $435,937 $435,937 $435,937 $435,937

$3,632,816 $3,632,816 $3,632,816 $3,632,816
$0
$0

$4,173,936 $4,173,936 $435,937 $435,937 $105,183 $3,632,816 $0 $0 $0 $4,173,936

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$20,487 $20,487 $20,487 $20,487 $20,487
$747,599 $747,599 $21,037 $726,562 $747,599

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,405,850 $3,405,850 $415,450 $415,450 $84,146 $2,906,254 $3,405,850
$4,173,936 $4,173,936 $435,937 $435,937 $105,183 $3,632,816 $0 $0 $0 $4,173,936

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Green Tee Terrace Trail PK1402 4

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Extension of a 10-foot hike and bike trail from the Pearland Library/City Hall to Barry Rose Road along the Clear Creek Corridor.  
Project includes benches, bike racks, trail signage, trash receptacles, water fountains, shade structures, and a pedestrian bridge 
over Clear Creek.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Parks and Recreation Plan that was adopted by Council in December 2005, lists the hike and bike trails as the number one 
priority for acquisition and development.  This project is included in the 2013-2014 TIP and will be 80% federally funded.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Transportation Improvement Program funds in the amount of $3,339,150; City must provide 20% 
matching funds.  Zone 11 $9,000 and Zone 10 $57,500

No Yes (See Below)

28



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$300,000 $300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$300,000 $300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $0 $300,000

Project Manager: Projects

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Provide funding for preliminary engineering on future projects yet to be identified that would be funded with the City's next bond 
referendum. Preliminary engineering would tighten down scopes and provide for estimated construction dollars that would be 
needed to take a proposition to the voters.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
PER for Future Bond Referendum PK1701 7

No Yes (See Below)

29



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$53,651 $58,850
$7,807 $7,807

$61,458 $66,657
1.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$125,000 $125,000 $125,000 $125,000
$600,000 $600,000 $600,000 $600,000

$0
$0

$725,000 $725,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $725,000 $0 $0 $725,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$525,000 $525,000 $525,000 $525,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000
$725,000 $725,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $725,000 $0 $0 $725,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Trail Connectivity Phase III PK1702 8

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Implement phases of the Hike and Bike Master Plan.  Phase III is scheduled in 2017 and will run from SH35 along the south side 
of Walmart to West of Old Alvin Rd connecting with an existing trail that runs east of Old Alvin to Clear Creek. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Parks and Recreation Plan that was adopted by Council in December of 2005 lists the hike and bike trails as the number 
one priority for acquisition and development.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Texas Parks and Wildlife Trails Grant Funding - $200,000.                                                                                                                                                                      

No Yes (See Below)

30



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$97,000 $97,000 $97,000 $97,000
$0

$389,000 $389,000 $389,000 $389,000
$3,238,000 $3,238,000 $2,428,500 $2,428,500

$0
$486,000 $486,000 $486,000 $486,000

$4,210,000 $4,210,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $486,000 $2,914,500 $3,400,500

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$4,210,000 $4,210,000 $486,000 $2,914,500 $3,400,500
$0

$4,210,000 $4,210,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $486,000 $2,914,500 $3,400,500

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Sports Complex at Max Road Ph. 2 PK1801 9

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Proposed improvements include addition of six international sized (11 vs.11) soccer fields, and pavilion.  Approximately 1-3 fields 
will be lighted and the park will be located inside of a detention facility. The  parking lot will be expanded, doubling the existing 
available parking spaces.  The sports complex will have a total of 12 fields, 4-6 of those fields will be lighted.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
There is a significant need for game soccer fields and sports fields in the City.  With the development of this facility Centennial 
Park will be able to be converted to a facility for youth softball that will allow the youth soccer program, youth softball program and 
the youth baseball program to expand as the population in the community increases.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: CIP

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Future Bond Referendum.  Construction continues in 2020.

No Yes (See Below)

31



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$216,000 $216,000 $216,000 $216,000
$0

$862,000 $862,000 $862,000 $862,000
$7,186,000 $7,186,000 $0

$0
$1,078,000 $1,078,000 $0
$9,342,000 $9,342,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,078,000 $1,078,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$9,342,000 $9,342,000 $1,078,000 $1,078,000
$0

$9,342,000 $9,342,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,078,000 $1,078,000

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Shadow Creek Ranch Park Ph. II PK1901 10
PROJECT NAME

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Phase II project elements based on updated Parks Master Plan.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Parks and Recreation Master Plan calls for a multipurpose sports complex in this area of the community to serve the 
anticipated growth of the area. 

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Construction

TOTAL 
BUDGET CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Future Bond Referendum.  Construction to be allocated in 2020 and 2021.

Project Manager: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION

Cara Davis

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

No Yes (See Below)

32



Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

F20002 Tom Reid Library Expansion 3,807,300 3,807,300
FA0904 City Hall Complex Renovations 4,445,900 4,445,900
FA1401 Fire Station #2 3,769,954 3,769,954
FA1402/FA1201 Hillhouse Road Annex PH 2 240,000 1,579,000 1,819,000
FA1404 Orange Street Service Center 2,120,000 2,120,000
FA1501 Fire Station #8 816,840 5,792,645 6,609,485
FA1701 Fire Station #1 1,312,500 1,525,786 2,838,286
FA1801 Shadow Creek Library 903,750 15,096,250 16,000,000

TOTAL 14,143,154$    1,056,840$      8,684,145$      2,429,536$      15,096,250$    41,409,925$    

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash 100,000 100,000
Certificates of Obligation 10,599,953 1,056,840 7,371,645 19,028,438
General Obligation Bonds 882,600 2,512,400 3,395,000
P.E.D.C.
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenues - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded 1,312,500 2,429,536 15,096,250 18,838,286
Other Funding Sources 48,201 48,201
TOTAL 11,630,754$    3,569,240$      8,684,145$      2,429,536$      15,096,250$    41,409,925$    

Note: The totals do not tie by year as the City sometimes appropriates funds for GO Bond projects in one year
and then sells the bonds in the next year.

CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FACILITIES

33



Fire Station 2
2015

Fire Station 8
2016-2017

Tom Reid Library Expansion
2015

Fire Station 1
2017-2018

Orange Street Service Center
2015

City Hall Complex Renovations
2015

Hillhouse Road Annex Phase II
2016-2017

Shadow Creek Library
2018-2019

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Facilities

1:63,360 1 in = 1 milesor

Shodow Creek Library

Orange Street Service Center

Fire Station 8

City Hall Complex Renovations

Fire Station 1

Fire Station 2

Hillhouse Road Annex Phase II

Tom Reid Library Expansion

34



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$90,382 $90,382 $90,382 $90,382

$90,382 $90,382 $90,382 $90,382

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$35,260 $35,260 $35,260 $35,260 $35,260
$0

$230,400 $230,400 $15,000 $215,400 $230,400
$3,303,900 $3,303,900 $3,303,900 $3,303,900

$0
$288,000 $288,000 $288,000 $288,000

$3,857,560 $3,857,560 $35,260 $50,260 $3,807,300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,857,560

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$447,560 $447,560 $35,260 $35,260 $412,300 $447,560

$3,395,000 $3,395,000 $882,600 $2,512,400 $3,395,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
$3,857,560 $3,857,560 $35,260 $50,260 $1,294,900 $2,512,400 $0 $0 $0 $3,857,560

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Tom Reid Library Expansion F20002 4
PROJECT NAME

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

The library expansion will increase the now 20,584 sf building by 11,542 sf for an overall floor plan area of 32,126 sf.  This 
expansion will create new areas in the library such as a bookstore, children's story time room, teen zone, computer labs and 
additional office/storage space.  Renovations and enlargements of existing areas such as the circulation desk and book stacks 
are also included.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The significant growth of Pearland has created a need for a larger children's area and adult meeting room to conduct activities, 
more stack area for books, and improved computer access.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Construction

TOTAL 
BUDGET CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  From Fund 50

Project Manager: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION

Cara Davis

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

No Yes (See Below)

35



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$40,945 $40,945 $40,945 $40,945 $40,945
$0

$400,000 $400,000 $232,007 $400,000 $400,000
$4,065,938 $4,065,938 $135,352 $55,938 $4,010,000 $4,065,938

$75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
$360,900 $360,900 $360,900 $360,900

$4,942,783 $4,942,783 $408,304 $496,883 $4,445,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,942,783

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$4,859,230 $4,859,230 $372,952 $461,531 $4,397,699 $4,859,230

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$83,553 $83,553 $35,352 $35,352 $48,201 $83,553
$4,942,783 $4,942,783 $408,304 $496,883 $4,445,900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,942,783

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Remaining Fund balance, Funds 50 and 201.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
The existing Community Center was constructed in 1983 and City Hall in 1986.  Departmental Space Programming beginning in 
2007, was completed in 2014. This program incorporates the remodel of approximately 23,110 square feet of the former 
Community Center for Community Development and Finance & UB departments, renovations to the HVAC, Electrical and 
Plumbing systems and the installation of a sprinkler system for that building. It includes the remodel of 27,800 square feet in City 
Hall, the replacement of HVAC systems, including modifications to the Council Chambers, Administration, City Secretary, Legal, 
HR and Receptionist spaces and will include security and safety (exterior lighting) improvements for both buildings.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Increased demands for secure public contact a more effective and efficient use of existing space for Community Development.  
Finance Department growth and specifically related activities require consolidation of the personnel and those activities in a 
single building.  Greater public access is provided by moving the Administration and City Secretary to the first floor of City Hall 
and efficiencies are created by moving Legal and Communications into proximity with Admin.  Current HVAC equipment is long 
past the useful life expectancy and requires replacement.  Remodeling the existing facilities will provide space for staff growth 
through build-out and can be performed at less than one third the cost of building a new facility.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
City Hall Complex Renovations FA0904 2

No Yes (See Below)

36



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$829,503 $854,388 $880,020 $906,421
$84,796 $84,796 $84,796 $84,796

$914,299 $939,184 $964,816 $991,216
10.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$145,660 $145,660 $145,660 $145,660 $145,660
$321,000 $321,000 $321,000 $321,000 $321,000

$3,175,444 $3,175,444 $3,175,444 $3,175,444
$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$494,510 $494,510 $494,510 $494,510

$4,236,614 $4,236,614 $466,660 $466,660 $3,769,954 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,236,614

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$4,136,614 $4,136,614 $466,660 $466,660 $3,669,954 $4,136,614

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$4,236,614 $4,236,614 $466,660 $466,660 $3,769,954 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,236,614

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Construction of a 10,726 square foot station to house one 4-person Engine Crew, one 4-person Ladder Crew and one 2-person 
Ambulance Crew.  Station 2 will include 10 dorm rooms, three restrooms with showers, a kitchen dining area, a Captain's and a 
Lieutenant's office, and an exercise room.  The equipment area will include 3-80 feet deep drive-thru apparatus bays, a bunker 
gear storage area, medical supply storage, and EMS decontamination area.  Land has been acquired at the northeast corner of 
Fite and Harkey.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Rebuild/Relocate Fire Station 2 to accommodate a 24-hour operation and include EMS housing.  This existing fire station is 
almost 40 years old.  The location of the facility will help maintain response time and distances.  There is no space for crews to 
stand-by for short-term when other stations are responding to calls or for an extended period during a storm.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Fire Station #2 FA1401 1

No Yes (See Below)

37



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$56,570 $56,570

$56,570 $56,570

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$31,685 $31,685 $31,685 $31,685 $31,685
$0

$190,000 $190,000 $250,000 $190,000 $190,000
$1,464,000 $1,464,000 $1,464,000 $1,464,000

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000 $15,000
$150,000 $150,000 $50,000 $50,000 $100,000 $150,000

$1,850,685 $1,850,685 $331,685 $31,685 $0 $240,000 $1,579,000 $0 $0 $1,850,685

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$1,819,000 $1,819,000 $300,000 $240,000 $1,579,000 $1,819,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$31,685 $31,685 $31,685 $31,685 $31,685
$1,850,685 $1,850,685 $331,685 $31,685 $0 $240,000 $1,579,000 $0 $0 $1,850,685

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   2014 funding reallocated to new Orange Street service center project.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase II will be fully defined after development of a business plan, approval by City Council, and completion of programming for 
the Hillhouse site.  Conceptually, Phase II includes a equipment and material storage facilities, and a small expansion of office 
space for Public Works/Parks maintenance crews. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Property was acquired in 2004 for a city facility.  This work will make best use of the property while reducing time spent by 
employees in traveling to the service center for fuel, lockers, and equipment.   Funds from FY 2013 fund a study to look at both 
the Hillhouse and Orange Street Public Works sites to determine future use of those sites. 

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hillhouse Road Annex Phase II FA1402/FA1201 5

No Yes (See Below)

38



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$240,000 $240,000 $240,000 $240,000
$1,820,000 $1,820,000 $1,820,000 $1,820,000

$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000
$200,000 $200,000 $50,000 $150,000 $200,000

$2,410,000 $2,410,000 $0 $290,000 $2,120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,410,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$2,410,000 $2,410,000 $290,000 $2,120,000 $2,410,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,410,000 $2,410,000 $0 $290,000 $2,120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,410,000

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Public Works facilities on East Orange and Old Alvin requires updating in order to meet the demands on this facility.  Fleet 
Maintenance facility requires the addition of fluids storage and handling equipment, the remodel of office and parts storage and 
the addition of a bulk fluids storage area.  The storage yard requires completion of the paving to provide all weather access and 
clean safe operations,  addition of covered pipe and bulk material storage areas and covered equipment storage.  Remodel 
Public Works Admin building and adjacent offices and remodel old EMS and Fire Marshal buildings for division staff offices. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Orange Street facility has not been updated in over ten years.  Yard facilities lack covered storage areas to protect stored 
materials and the hydraulic systems of heavy equipment.  Departmental administrative staff levels have changed and grown over 
this period and staff are being officed out of poorly constructed facilities in the attached areas of the Admin building or in 
makeshift offices throughout the yard area.  Remodel of office facilities will allow consolidation of division superintendents and 
support staff at this facility.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Orange Street Service Center FA1404 6

No Yes (See Below)

39



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$214,376 $883,231 $909,728 $937,020
$33,059 $132,235 $132,235 $132,235

$1,900,000
$2,147,435 $1,015,466 $1,041,963 $1,069,255

10.0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$48,900 $48,900 $6,800 $6,800 $42,100 $48,900
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
$457,900 $457,900 $274,740 $183,160 $457,900

$4,694,485 $4,694,485 $4,694,485 $4,694,485
$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000
$765,000 $765,000 $765,000 $765,000

$6,616,285 $6,616,285 $6,800 $6,800 $0 $816,840 $5,792,645 $0 $0 $6,616,285

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$6,616,285 $6,616,285 $6,800 $6,800 $816,840 $5,792,645 $6,616,285

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$6,616,285 $6,616,285 $6,800 $6,800 $0 $816,840 $5,792,645 $0 $0 $6,616,285

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Fire Station #8 FA1501 3

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Construction of approximately 15,000 sq. ft. fire station designed to house two 4 person engine crews, one 4 person ladder crew 
and one 2 person ambulance crew.  The station will include 14 dorm rooms, 4 restrooms with showers a kitchen/ dining area a 
day room, a captain's office and Lieutenant's office, a conference/ training room, an EMS decontamination area and an exercise 
room along with storage areas for bunker gear, medical supplies.  The facility will be constructed to 140 mph 3 second gust wind 
load standards and will include four 80 feet deep drive through equipment bays and adequate parking for full staffing on 24/7 
operation.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Provide Fire and EMS services at a location that will improve response times.  In addition, the new station will accommodate a 24-
hour operation and will add EMS housing. This station is based on the Fire Station Location Plan approved in February 2012.  
Fire Station #8 is a combination of previously proposed Fire Station #8 and Fire Station #9.  Fire Station #8 may be located in the 
vicinity of Shadow Creek Parkway and Reflection Bay Drive.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 

No Yes (See Below)

40



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$312,500 $312,500 $312,500 $312,500
$2,080,575 $2,080,575 $1,000,000 $1,080,575 $2,080,575

$75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
$370,211 $370,211 $370,211 $370,211

$2,838,286 $2,838,286 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,312,500 $1,525,786 $0 $2,838,286

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,838,286 $2,838,286 $1,312,500 $1,525,786 $2,838,286
$0

$2,838,286 $2,838,286 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,312,500 $1,525,786 $0 $2,838,286

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Part of next bond referendum.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Construction of approximately 8,500 sq-ft. station to house one 4-person Engine Crew and one 2-person EMS Ambulance Crew. 
Station will include 6 dorm rooms, 2 restrooms with showers, a kitchen dining area, a dayroom, a station command office, and 
exercise room. Equipment area will consist of 2-80 foot deep drive-thru apparatus bays, a bunker gear storage area, medical 
supply storage, and an EMS decontamination area.  Facility will be located on McHard Road near Pearland Parkway.  The 
building will be designed to add a third 80-foot deep apparatus bay in the future.  

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Replaces a station that will be approximately 48 years old at a location that will improve response times.  In addition, the new 
station will better accommodate a 24-hour operation and will add EMS housing.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Fire Station #1 FA1701 7

No Yes (See Below)

41



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$66,102

$66,102

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$160,000 $160,000 $160,000 $160,000
$0

$1,062,500 $1,062,500 $743,750 $318,750 $1,062,500
$13,000,000 $13,000,000 $13,000,000 $13,000,000
$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

$777,500 $777,500 $777,500 $777,500
$16,000,000 $16,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $903,750 $15,096,250 $16,000,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$16,000,000 $16,000,000 $903,750 $15,096,250 $16,000,000
$0

$16,000,000 $16,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $903,750 $15,096,250 $16,000,000

Project Manager: 

Project's Approval Date: 

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Design and Construct a new permanent County Library facility on the west side totalling approximately 30,000 square feet.  
Project will include the building, specialized mechanical HVAC systems, staff work and break spaces, both public and staff 
parking, exterior security lighting, security and fire alarm and fire fighting systems and  library furnishings.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
In late 2012 the City initiated construction of a temporary (7 to 10 year) County Library Annex in commerical storefront space off 
of Broadway and Business Center Drive.  This consisted of approximately 6000 square feet.  The facility has experienced 
substantial patronage from residents within the west end of the city.  Currently the City and County are planning a 4000 square 
foot expansion for this facility to accommodate high demand.  The new library would provide a permanent home for this facility 
and be sized to accommodate growing demands from citizens throughout the county.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Shadow Creek Library FA1801 8

No Yes (See Below)

42



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

STREETS

Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

T08002 Bailey Road - Veterans to FM 1128 9,140,000 18,244,345 27,384,345
T20002 Old Alvin Rd Widening (Plum Street to McHard Road) 1,094,500 4,600,000 2,024,715 7,719,215
TR0601 Mykawa Road Widening (BW8 to FM 518) 2,707,318 10,262,032 10,111,911 23,081,261
TR0803 Old Town Area Sidewalks 200,000 200,000 100,000 500,000
TR1201 Hughes Ranch Road (CR 403) 200,000 3,972,600 16,690,400 20,863,000
TR1202 Fite Road 3,332,631 3,332,631
TR1205 Max Road 4,248,428 4,248,428
TR1402 Regency Park Subdivision Paving 2,766,600 2,766,600
TR1404 Kirby Drive Expansion 988,545 988,545
TR1405 McHard Road Extension (Mykawa Road to Cullen Parkway) 3,855,469 20,824,047 13,825,364 38,504,880
TR1406 Hooper Road Extension 3,334,000 3,334,000
TR1407 SH288 Tollway
TR1501 Smith Ranch Road Expansion (CR 94) 328,668 916,803 82,167 3,656,852 4,984,490
TR1502 Industrial Drive Realignment 1,190,000 1,190,000
TR1601 Traffic Signal Intersection Improvements 353,000 353,000 353,000 353,000 1,412,000
TR1602 Safe Routes to School Improvements 900,000 900,000 900,000 900,000 3,600,000
TR1603 Park-N-Ride 1,166,800 6,364,000 10,000,000 17,530,800
TR1701 Old Alvin Road Rehabilitation 175,000 1,458,750 1,633,750
TR1702 PER for Future Bond Referendum 500,000 500,000
TR1703 Grand Boulevard Reconstruction 793,109 2,741,502 3,534,611
TR1801 Hughes Ranch Road Expansion 747,500 2,734,000 3,481,500

TOTAL 29,584,341$     25,753,548$     50,583,541$     48,545,000$     16,123,626$     170,590,056$   

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash 380,000 633,000 533,000 533,000 2,079,000
Certificates of Obligation 200,000 306,200 500,000 1,006,200
General Obligation Bonds 8,328,857 7,802,940 8,356,157 19,961,518 7,150,710 51,600,182
PEDC 1,184,500 1,184,500
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded 1,166,800 23,847,509 13,489,002 7,719,916 46,223,227
Other Funding Sources 19,870,984 16,097,608 17,212,475 14,595,880 720,000 68,496,947
Less projects appropriated in previous year
TOTAL 29,584,341$     25,753,548$     50,549,141$     48,579,400$     16,123,626$     170,590,056$   

Note: The totals do not tie by year as the City sometimes appropriates funds for GO Bond projects in one year
and then sells the bonds in the next year.

43



Max Road
2015

Fite Road
2015

Smith Ranch Road 
Expansion (CR 94)

2015-2018

Bailey Rd / Veterans to FM 1128
2015-2016

Kirby Dr Expansion
2015

Regency Park Subdivision Paving
2015

Hooper Road Extention
2015

Annual Traffic Signal Improvements
Business Center at Discovery Bay

2016-2019 Mykawa Rd Widening
2017-2019

Old Alvin Rd Widening
2017-2019

Old Alvin Rd
Rehabilitation

2017-2018

Old Town Area Sidewalks
2015-2017

Industrial Drive Realignment
2015

Grand Boulevard Reconstruction 
2017-2018

Hughes Ranch (CR 403)
Reconstruction

2015-2017

Hughes Ranch Expansion
2018-2019

McHard Road Extension
2015, 2017-2018

SH 288 Tollway
2015

Park-N-Ride
2016-2018

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Streets

1:63,360 1 in = 1 milesor

Hooper Road Expansion
SH 288 Tollway
Industrial Drive Realignment
Bailey Road Improvement

Grand Boulevard Reconstruction
Hughes Ranch Road Expansion
Hughes Ranch Road Reconstruction
Kirby Drive Expansion

Max Road Widening
Mykawa Road Widening
Old Alvin Road Rehabilitation
Old Alvin Road Widening

Smith Ranch Road Expansion
McHard Road Extension
Fite Road Extension
Old Town Area Sidewalks

Park-N-Ride
Regency Park Subdivision Paving
Annual Traffic Signal
2016 - Business Center at Discovery Bay

44



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$25,886 $76,773 $76,773

$25,886 $76,773 $76,773

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$2,528,005 $2,528,005 $2,528,005 $2,528,005 $2,528,005
$2,334,725 $2,334,725 $2,334,725 $2,334,725 $2,334,725

$28,309,003 $28,309,003 $1,064,658 $1,064,658 $9,000,000 $18,244,345 $28,309,003
$0

$140,000 $140,000 $140,000 $140,000
$33,311,733 $33,311,733 $5,927,388 $5,927,388 $9,140,000 $18,244,345 $0 $0 $0 $33,311,733

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$9,606,376 $9,606,376 $4,890,027 $4,890,027 $1,067,480 $3,648,869 $9,606,376
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$23,705,357 $23,705,357 $1,037,361 $1,037,361 $8,072,520 $14,595,476 $23,705,357
$33,311,733 $33,311,733 $5,927,388 $5,927,388 $9,140,000 $18,244,345 $0 $0 $0 $33,311,733

TOTAL 
BUDGET

TOTAL 
BUDGET 2016

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION

Impact on operating budget

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay

FTE Staff Total
COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

2015

System Revenue - Cash

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

2017 2018

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  $1.4M of GO Drainage bonds from the Cowart Creek Diversion project will be used to upsize the box 
culvert in this project. This will result in decreasing the cost of the Cowart Creek Project by approximatly $2.6M.  HGAC TIP Funds in the amount of 
$21,795,476 for construction.  20% City match required.  Other Funding Sources includes bonds already sold - Fund 202 thru $1,037,361 2014 and 
$805,296 in 2015.  $67,224 from Sidewalk Fund in 2015.

TOTAL SOURCES

Project Manager: 

Project's Approval Date: 

Cara Davis

3/26/2014

Total Expense

CITY 
APPROP.

FUNDED 
BUDGET

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying
Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES
FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES

PREFERENCE ORDERPROJECT #

Four lane boulevard segment will provide traffic an additional east/west connector to major highways, accommodate increasing 
school traffic, and complete drainage improvements along this area of the Cowart Creek corridor.  This project is included in the 
City's Thoroughfare Plan and was approved by voters in the 2007 Bond election.

Bailey Road will be improved to a four-lane concrete curb and gutter boulevard from approximately 1,000 feet west of FM 1128 to 
Veterans Drive, a distance of 2.76 miles.  The project includes the full build out of the Bailey Intersections.  

4

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION

Total Revenue
Fiscal Year

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME
T08002Bailey Road - Veterans to FM 1128

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
No Yes (See Below)

45



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$4,807

$4,807

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$261,189 $261,189 $261,189 $261,189 $261,189
$550,000 $550,000 $550,000 $550,000
$544,500 $544,500 $544,500 $544,500

$6,550,753 $6,550,753 $651,538 $651,538 $4,600,000 $1,299,215 $6,550,753
$0

$725,500 $725,500 $725,500 $725,500
$8,631,942 $8,631,942 $912,727 $912,727 $0 $0 $1,094,500 $4,600,000 $2,024,715 $8,631,942

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$261,189 $261,189 $261,189 $261,189 $261,189

$8,119,215 $8,119,215 $400,000 $400,000 $1,094,500 $4,600,000 $2,024,715 $8,119,215
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$251,538 $251,538 $251,538 $251,538 $251,538
$8,631,942 $8,631,942 $912,727 $912,727 $0 $0 $1,094,500 $4,600,000 $2,024,715 $8,631,942

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Reconstruction of approximately 1.0 mile of Old Alvin Rd from Plum St to McHard Rd from a 2-lane asphalt to a 4-lane undivided 
curb and gutter roadway.  East side from McHard to Knapp to have 6' sidewalks.  Funds allocated in 2013 was used for drainage 
adjacent to the Old Alvin Water line project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This proposed roadway was part of the 2007 Bond Referendum and will provide another north-south route between McHard 
Road and FM518.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Old Alvin Road Widening (Plum Street to McHard Road) T20002 15
PROJECT NAME

No Yes (See Below)

46



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$43,017

$43,017

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$108,723 $108,723 $108,723 $108,723 $108,723
$895,200 $895,200 $895,200 $895,200

$1,812,118 $1,812,118 $1,812,118 $1,812,118
$19,627,603 $19,627,603 $9,800,000 $9,827,603 $19,627,603

$0
$746,340 $746,340 $462,032 $284,308 $746,340

$23,189,984 $23,189,984 $108,723 $108,723 $0 $0 $2,707,318 $10,262,032 $10,111,911 $23,189,984

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$108,723 $108,723 $108,723 $108,723 $108,723

$18,094,204 $18,094,204 $2,706,177 $10,262,032 $5,125,995 $18,094,204
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$4,985,916 $4,985,916 $4,985,916 $4,985,916
$1,141 $1,141 $1,141 $1,141

$23,189,984 $23,189,984 $108,723 $108,723 $0 $0 $2,707,318 $10,262,032 $10,111,911 $23,189,984

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Mykawa Road Widening (BW8 to FM 518) TR0601 14

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Construct approximately 3 miles of 4-lane concrete curb and gutter divided boulevard section roadway, including storm sewers, 
outfalls and detention, traffic signals and related items.  A detailed Drainage Study, Environmental Assessment, and 95% 
Construction Plans were created for the segment between BW8 and McHard Rd from a previous design effort.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This proposed roadway is included in the City's Thoroughfare Plan and the 2007 Bond Program to alleviate traffic headed south 
from the Beltway 8 to FM 518.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Potential PEDC funding.  Remaining authorization applied to this project.  Funds from Traffic Fund.
Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

47



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$900,000 $900,000 $500,000 $500,000 $100,000 $200,000 $100,000 $900,000

$0
$0

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $500,000 $500,000 $200,000 $200,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$500,000 $500,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $100,000 $500,000
$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000
$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $500,000 $500,000 $200,000 $200,000 $100,000 $0 $0 $1,000,000

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Old Town Area Sidewalks TR0803 17
PROJECT NAME

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Enclose ditches and install sidewalks in the Old Town area between Houston St. and Grand Ave., from FM 518 to Orange St. N. 
Houston and E. Orange will be completed in 2015.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Sidewalks are part of and constructed in coordination with the Old Townsite Master Plan.  In order to install sidewalks without 
acquiring additional right of way, the roadside ditches must be enclosed.  There are currently no sidewalks in the Old Town area; 
the work described here includes work we expect to complete within the next five years. The Old Town Drainage Project in the 
northeast quadrant is complete.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

No Yes (See Below)

48



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$10,697 $47,786 $47,786

$10,697 $47,786 $47,786

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$1,065,000 $1,065,000 $1,065,000 $1,065,000 $1,065,000

$216,000 $216,000 $16,000 $16,000 $200,000 $216,000
$20,805,000 $20,805,000 $342,000 $342,000 $3,772,600 $16,690,400 $20,805,000

$0
$235,000 $235,000 $35,000 $35,000 $200,000 $235,000

$22,321,000 $22,321,000 $1,458,000 $1,458,000 $200,000 $3,972,600 $16,690,400 $0 $0 $22,321,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$5,538,163 $5,538,163 $1,367,453 $1,367,453 $200,000 $3,970,710 $5,538,163
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$16,690,400 $16,690,400 $16,690,400 $16,690,400
$92,437 $92,437 $90,547 $90,547 $1,890 $92,437

$22,321,000 $22,321,000 $1,458,000 $1,458,000 $200,000 $3,972,600 $16,690,400 $0 $0 $22,321,000

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hughes Ranch Road (CR 403) TR1201 7

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Reconstruction of CR403 from Cullen to Smith Ranch Road from a two lane asphalt open ditch roadway to a four lane concrete 
curb and gutter boulevard for a distance of 2 miles.  Brazoria County will be completing the design, environmental clearance, and 
relocating the utilities.   The project includes approximately 13,000 LF of Noise Barrier. Installation of additional water line 
infrastructure will be constructed in coordination with this project to fill in the gaps of the current system.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The roadway will provide enhanced safety and access to Dawson High School located on Cullen Blvd. and enhance access to 
SH 288 and the SH288 Tollway, in conformance with the City Thoroughfare Plan.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  City or County future bond referendum.  Other includes $90,547 from Traffic Fund in 2013.  To be 
submitted to HGAC for 2015 TIP Funds.  $1,890 from Sidewalk Fund in 2016. Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

49



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$3,662 $13,286 $13,286 $13,286 $13,286

$3,662 $13,286 $13,286 $13,286 $13,286

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$733,284 $733,284 $733,284 $733,284 $733,284
$3,566,196 $3,566,196 $233,565 $233,565 $3,332,631 $3,566,196

$0
$134,000 $134,000 $134,000 $134,000 $134,000

$4,433,480 $4,433,480 $1,100,849 $1,100,849 $3,332,631 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,433,480

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$872,221 $872,221 $192,411 $192,411 $679,810 $872,221
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,561,259 $3,561,259 $908,438 $908,438 $2,652,821 $3,561,259
$4,433,480 $4,433,480 $1,100,849 $1,100,849 $3,332,631 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,433,480

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Fite Road TR1202 2

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

An extension of Fite Road approximately 2,500 feet east of McLean, running adjacent to Centennial Park, tying into Veterans 
Drive.  The project includes four lanes, undivided, of concrete curb and gutter including storm sewers, outfalls and detention, a 
traffic signal at McLean Road and other related improvements.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This extension will reduce the large amount of traffic that is currently diverted to Walnut Street, which is primarily residential.  The 
completion of this segment will allow traffic to continue on Fite beyond its current termination point, which will improve 
transportation efficiency and safety.  The roadway is heavily used as an alternative route to FM 518 and serves residential, 
commercial, and school traffic.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  HGAC TIP Funds in the amount of $3,536,157.   20% City match required.  Includes $25,102 from 
the Traffic Fund in 2013.                                                                                                                                                                   

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

No Yes (See Below)

50



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$8,193 $26,886 $26,886 $26,886 $26,886

$8,193 $26,886 $26,886 $26,886 $26,886

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000
$406,000 $406,000 $406,000 $406,000 $406,000
$654,000 $654,000 $654,000 $654,000 $654,000

$4,543,773 $4,543,773 $295,345 $295,345 $4,248,428 $4,543,773
$0

$658,844 $658,844 $658,844 $658,844 $658,844
$6,462,617 $6,462,617 $2,214,189 $2,214,189 $4,248,428 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,462,617

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,302,123 $1,302,123 $452,438 $452,438 $849,685 $1,302,123
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$5,160,494 $5,160,494 $1,761,751 $1,761,751 $3,398,743 $5,160,494
$6,462,617 $6,462,617 $2,214,189 $2,214,189 $4,248,428 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,462,617

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Max Road TR1205 1

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Widen Max Road from the future Hughes Ranch alignment and connecting with Reid Boulevard, just west of the Food Town 
shopping center.  The roadway will be four lanes, divided, with concrete curb and gutter, including storm sewers, outfalls and 
detention.  A traffic signal will be installed at the intersection of Hughes Ranch Road and Max Road, and a new bridge will be 
constructed over Hickory Slough.  A 10-ft multi-use path will be incorporated on the west side of the roadway from Hughes Ranch 
to Broadway per the Trail Master Plan.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
New residential development in the area, as well as the development of the City's Sports Complex adjacent to the proposed 
project, increase the demand for reliable access to the area.  Improvements to this roadway will reduce maintenance, improve 
mobility, and increase public safety.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  HGAC TIP Funds in the amount of $5,160,494.  20% City match required                                                                                

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

No Yes (See Below)

51



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$245,161 $245,161 $245,161 $245,161 $245,161
$2,305,500 $2,305,500 $2,305,500 $2,305,500

$0
$461,100 $461,100 $461,100 $461,100

$3,011,761 $3,011,761 $245,161 $245,161 $2,766,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,011,761

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$3,011,761 $3,011,761 $245,161 $245,161 $2,766,600 $3,011,761
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,011,761 $3,011,761 $245,161 $245,161 $2,766,600 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,011,761

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Regency Park Subdivision Paving TR1402 8

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Replace all concrete paving within Regency Park Subdivision.  Project will include an evaluation of the existing drainage system 
within the subdivision, and recommendations to improve drainage.  Replacement of existing water line infrastructure throughout 
the neighborhood will be done in coordination with this project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Regency Park is the oldest concrete-paved subdivision in the City.  Currently, the pavement condition throughout the subdivision 
has become increasingly unacceptable.  Because of the nature of the failures, it is not fiscally efficient to replace individual 
concrete slabs.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 
Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

52



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$8,613 $17,226 $17,226 $17,226

$8,613 $17,226 $17,226 $17,226

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$269,000 $269,000 $235,000 $269,000 $269,000
$1,710,545 $1,710,545 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $710,545 $1,710,545

$0
$278,000 $278,000 $278,000 $278,000

$2,257,545 $2,257,545 $1,235,000 $1,269,000 $988,545 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,257,545

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,998,545 $1,998,545 $1,226,000 $1,260,000 $738,545 $1,998,545
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$259,000 $259,000 $9,000 $9,000 $250,000 $259,000
$2,257,545 $2,257,545 $1,235,000 $1,269,000 $988,545 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,257,545

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Kirby Drive Expansion TR1404 5

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Four lanes of Kirby Drive exist from Broadway to the Pearland Town Center north entrance.  Two lanes continue south to CR 59.  
The limits of this project include extending the remaining two lanes from the Pearland Town Center entrance to CR 59.  The 
proposed cross section is concrete curb and gutter with sidewalks.  The Kirby Drive Water Line project will occur in coordination 
with this project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Expansion of Alvin ISD with two schools in the area will require improved and greater access for traffic circulation.  This project 
fills a gap between Broadway and CR 59.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  Other includes $9,000 from Traffic Fund  and Alvin ISD for traffic signal.
Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

53



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$47,650 $103,533

$47,650 $103,533

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000
$3,855,469 $3,855,469 $3,855,469 $3,855,469
$2,350,195 $2,350,195 $2,350,195 $2,350,195 $2,350,195

$34,563,411 $34,563,411 $20,738,047 $13,825,364 $34,563,411
$0

$86,000 $86,000 $86,000 $86,000
$41,155,075 $41,155,075 $2,650,195 $2,650,195 $3,855,469 $0 $20,824,047 $13,825,364 $0 $41,155,075

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$8,574,544 $8,574,544 $530,039 $530,039 $771,094 $4,364,047 $2,909,364 $8,574,544
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$32,580,531 $32,580,531 $2,120,156 $2,120,156 $3,084,375 $16,425,600 $10,950,400 $32,580,531
$41,155,075 $41,155,075 $2,650,195 $2,650,195 $3,855,469 $0 $20,789,647 $13,859,764 $0 $41,155,075

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
McHard Road Extension (Mykawa Road to Cullen Parkway) TR1405 3

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

A new extension of approximately 3.5 miles of McHard Road, from Cullen Parkway to Mykawa Road, constructing a 4-lane, 
concrete, curb and gutter, divided roadway with raised medians.  Includes storm sewers, outfalls and detention, traffic signals, 
sidewalks and related items.  This project will be coordinated with the McHard Road Trunk Sewer extension and McHard Road 
Water Line Extension.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This project is in accordance with the City's Thoroughfare Plan to alleviate traffic on FM518 by providing an alternate east/west 
route between SH288 and SH35.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  HGAC TIP Funds in the amount of $32,580,531.  20% City match required.                                                                                                                                                                     

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

No Yes (See Below)

54



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$87,000 $87,000 $87,000 $87,000

$390,000 $390,000 $390,000 $390,000
$2,597,000 $2,597,000 $2,597,000 $2,597,000

$0
$650,000 $650,000 $650,000 $650,000

$3,724,000 $3,724,000 $0 $390,000 $3,334,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,724,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0

$1,324,000 $1,324,000 $139,500 $1,184,500 $1,324,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,400,000 $2,400,000 $250,500 $2,149,500 $2,400,000
$3,724,000 $3,724,000 $0 $390,000 $3,334,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,724,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hooper Road Extension TR1406 11

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Extension of Hooper Road from Beltway 8 for approximately 3,200 LF to the south property line of MHI.  Work will include 
concrete curb and gutter, streetlights, sidewalks, landscaping and irrigation.  Storm sewer, detention, associated water and 
sanitary sewer insfrastructure will be included as well.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Provide a roadway designed to handle the truck traffic associated with the industrial traffic in the Lower Kirby Area.  The project 
will be funded by the PEDC and through a developer agreement.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: 

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   PEDC (25%) and developer agreement (75%).  Streetscape at $524,000 funded 100% by PEDC.

No Yes (See Below)

55



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Manager: N/A

Project's Approval Date: 

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Construction of a four-lane tollway (two lanes in each direction) within the existing median of the SH288 corridor from County 
Road 58 in Brazoria County to US59 near downtown Houston.  The existing lanes will remain free lanes.  The Harris County 
segment will be managed and constructed by TxDOT and the Brazoria County segment will be managed and constructed by the 
Brazoria County Tollroad Authority.  The project will include entrances and exits within Pearland north of FM518 and direct 
access from a T-ramp at Hughes Ranch Road on the east and Discovery Bay Drive on the west.  The Harris County segment 
may include eight (8) direct connectors.  Construction is projected to start in 2015.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The SH288 corridor has become very congested with the significant growth in Brazoria County and southern Harris County.  A 
traditional highway expansion would not be possible for many years based on existing state funding levels.  Providing additional 
lanes with a tollway project will significantly accelerate completion of the highway expansion.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
SH288 Tollway TR1407 N/A

No Yes (See Below)

56



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$5,593 $21,186 $21,186 $21,186

$5,593 $21,186 $21,186 $21,186

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$816,803 $816,803 $816,803 $816,803
$328,668 $328,668 $328,668 $328,668

$3,291,238 $3,291,238 $3,291,238 $3,291,238
$0

$547,781 $547,781 $100,000 $82,167 $365,614 $547,781
$4,984,490 $4,984,490 $0 $0 $328,668 $916,803 $82,167 $3,656,852 $0 $4,984,490

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$996,809 $996,809 $65,643 $183,361 $16,433 $731,372 $996,809
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,987,681 $3,987,681 $263,025 $733,442 $65,734 $2,925,480 $3,987,681
$4,984,490 $4,984,490 $0 $0 $328,668 $916,803 $82,167 $3,656,852 $0 $4,984,490

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Smith Ranch Road Extension (CR 94) TR1501 6

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Expansion of Smith Ranch Road from 2-lanes of asphalt into 4-lanes, divided, with raised medians, concrete curb and gutter, 
landscaping, and storm sewer.  Limits are from Hughes Ranch Road to 2,040 ft north of Broadway.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Continued increase in new development will increase traffic on this roadway.  A strong demand for better access to this area calls 
for the expansion of this roadway.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Includes HGAC TIP funds in the amount of $3,987,590.  20% City match required.  Funding from the 
Traffic Improvement Funds totals $91 in 2015.                                                                                                                                                                     Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

57



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$1,563 $3,126 $3,126 $3,126

$1,563 $3,126 $3,126 $3,126

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$28,000 $28,000 $28,000 $28,000
$0

$124,000 $124,000 $124,000 $124,000
$890,000 $890,000 $890,000 $890,000

$0
$148,000 $148,000 $148,000 $148,000

$1,190,000 $1,190,000 $0 $0 $1,190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,190,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,190,000 $1,190,000 $1,190,000 $1,190,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,190,000 $1,190,000 $0 $0 $1,190,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,190,000

Project Manager: Skipper Jones

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Reconstruct Industrial Drive approximately 950 feet to align directly opposit each side of SH 35.  Each side will include tapers to 
create dedicated left turn lanes and right through option lanes.  Pavement will be three lanes wide tapering to the existing two 
lane roadway. Realignment will require drainage adjustments to both sides of SH35 including culverts and safety end treatments 
as well as modifications to drainage ditches in the area.  Pipeline relocation/ mitigation will be required.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
TxDOT has secured safety funding to add a turn lane on SH 35 at this intersection.  They will also conduct a traffic signal warrant 
study to determine if a signal is necessary.  In order for TxDOT to move forward with these improvements East and West 
Industrial Drive must realign to eliminate the existing off-set.  The completed project will provide a safer intersection.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Industrial Drive Realignment TR1502 10

No Yes (See Below)

58



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$180,000 $180,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $180,000
$1,162,000 $1,162,000 $290,500 $290,500 $290,500 $290,500 $1,162,000

$0
$70,000 $70,000 $17,500 $17,500 $17,500 $17,500 $70,000

$1,412,000 $1,412,000 $0 $0 $0 $353,000 $353,000 $353,000 $353,000 $1,412,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$1,059,000 $1,059,000 $353,000 $353,000 $353,000 $1,059,000
$306,200 $306,200 $306,200 $306,200

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$46,800 $46,800 $46,800 $46,800
$1,412,000 $1,412,000 $0 $0 $0 $353,000 $353,000 $353,000 $353,000 $1,412,000

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Traffic Signal Intersection Improvements TR1601 13

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

The City encounters intersections that are in need of signalization as we continue to grow in population not necessarily due to a 
new development.  We need to be able to have annual projects that enable us to address the traffic congestion and safety needs 
caused by the unsignalized intersection if not improved.  Funds in 2016 to be used for a traffic signal at Business Center Drive 
and Discovery Bay.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Through the 2013 citizens survey, it was made apparent that the citizens are concerned with traffic and congestion issus.  This 
project will allow us a funded project to address their concerns and the needs of the City to maintain or improve mobility 
effeciency throughout the City, while improving safety. We collect prorata fees from developers which pay for a portion of 
intersection improvements.  

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  Traffic Fund
Project Manager: TBD

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

59



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$432,400 $432,400 $108,100 $108,100 $108,100 $108,100 $432,400
$2,881,840 $2,881,840 $720,460 $720,460 $720,460 $720,460 $2,881,840

$0
$285,760 $285,760 $71,440 $71,440 $71,440 $71,440 $285,760

$3,600,000 $3,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $900,000 $900,000 $900,000 $900,000 $3,600,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$720,000 $720,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $720,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,880,000 $2,880,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $2,880,000
$3,600,000 $3,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $900,000 $900,000 $900,000 $900,000 $3,600,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  Applying for Safe Routes to School grant funding through HGAC Transportation Enhancement 
Projects.  Grant funding 80%, City match 20%.

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

As identified in the Safe Routes to School Plan, sites may include the installation of sidewalks, drainage improvements, roadway 
widening, crosswalk enhancements/improvements and other traffic improvments.  City staff is working to prioritize and produce 
cost estimates that will include detailed scopes of work required and a project schedule.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Facilitate safe pedestrian mobility to schools and encourage reduced driving, traffic calming and other safety measures.  
Locations are to be coordinated with the Safe Routes to School Study.  Grant funds to be applied for.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Safe Routes to School Improvements TR1602 9
PROJECT NAME

No Yes (See Below)

60



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$366,800 $366,800 $366,800
$800,000 $800,000 $800,000

$1,464,000 $1,464,000 $1,464,000
$14,000,000 $4,000,000 $10,000,000 $14,000,000

$400,000 $400,000 $400,000
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000

$17,530,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,166,800 $6,364,000 $10,000,000 $0 $17,530,800

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$17,530,800 $1,166,800 $6,364,000 $10,000,000 $17,530,800
$0

$17,530,800 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,166,800 $6,364,000 $10,000,000 $0 $17,530,800

Project Manager: 

Project's Approval Date: 

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Based on 80/20 split the City share will be $3,506,160.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
The SH288- Brazoria County Park & Ride project was identified in the 2003 METRO Solutions plan for managing traffic 
congestion on the SH288 corridor.  The proposed 15.6 acre site is located along the east right of way of SH288 south of Hughes 
Ranch Road and west of Smith Ranch Road.  As currently proposed, the facility would consist of three bus bays, parking for 1000 
vehicles and include pedestrian facilities and bicycle accommodations.  The site was purchased in November, 2011 at the cost of 
$3.97 million dollars by METRO and an Environmental study was completed in July, 2011, providing a Categorical Exclusion for 
the site. METRO has withdrawn from the project and wishes to divest the land for $800,000 totaling their share of the 80/20 split 
with federal funding.  
PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
SH288 has become a heavily traveled corridor during morning and afternoon peaks.  Traffic ADT's will likely continue to grow 
even after the toll lanes are completed in 2016/17 due largely to economic growth in the southern county area.  Originally, the 12 
bus service for weekdays projected an annual fare revenue of $772,000 with 228,600 annual riders and was considered to be 
better than average patronage.  A feasibility and funding study is underway with results expected in November, 2014.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Park-N-Ride TR1603 12

No Yes (See Below)

61



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$6,750 $9,000

$6,750 $9,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000
$1,167,000 $1,167,000 $1,167,000 $1,167,000

$0
$291,750 $291,750 $291,750 $291,750

$1,633,750 $1,633,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $1,458,750 $0 $1,633,750

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,633,750 $1,633,750 $175,000 $1,458,750 $1,633,750
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,633,750 $1,633,750 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $1,458,750 $0 $1,633,750

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 
Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Rehabilitate pavement and widen subgrade to 26 feet, widen pavement from 21 to standard 24 feet for the length of 3150 linear 
feet from McHard Road to Knapp Road.  Install sidewalks, drainage, and turn lanes.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Rehabilitate and widen Old Alvin Road from McHard to Knapp Road. Install sidewalks, drainage, and turn lanes.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Old Alvin Road Rehabilitation (McHard to Knapp) TR1701 16

No Yes (See Below)

62



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$500,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$500,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,000 $0 $0 $500,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 
Project Manager: Projects

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Provide funding for preliminary engineering on future projects yet to be identified that would be funded with the City's next bond 
referendum. Preliminary engineering would tighten down scopes and provide for estimated construction dollars that would be 
needed to take a proposition to the voters.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
PER for Future Bond Referendum TR1702 18

No Yes (See Below)

63



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$3,510 $7,020

$3,510 $7,020

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$97,703 $97,703 $97,703 $97,703
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000
$195,406 $195,406 $195,406 $195,406

$2,228,561 $2,228,561 $2,228,561 $2,228,561
$0

$512,941 $512,941 $512,941 $512,941
$3,534,611 $3,534,611 $0 $0 $0 $0 $793,109 $2,741,502 $0 $3,534,611

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,534,611 $3,534,611 $793,109 $2,741,502 $3,534,611
$0

$3,534,611 $3,534,611 $0 $0 $0 $0 $793,109 $2,741,502 $0 $3,534,611

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Grand Boulevard Reconstruction TR1703 19

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Reconstruct approximately 1,300 feet of Grand Boulevard from Broadway to Walnut Street from one lane each direction to a 
Boulevard with one lane each direction with angled parking.  A water line will be constructed in coordination with this project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This proposal will implement the goals and objectives of the Old Townsite Plan.  This proposal will be critical for the success of 
the City of Pearland's Old Townsite.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  P.E.D.C. could fund costs associated with optional upgrades in lieu of standard specifications (street 
parking, back of curb pavers, stamped concrete crosswalks, and decorative lights), subject to review and approval of the Board, $1,242,224.                                                                                                                                                                     Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

64



PROJECT IMAGE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$397,500 $397,500 $397,500 $397,500
$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000

$2,334,000 $2,334,000 $2,334,000 $2,334,000
$0

$400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000
$3,481,500 $3,481,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $747,500 $2,734,000 $3,481,500

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,481,500 $3,481,500 $747,500 $2,734,000 $3,481,500
$0

$3,481,500 $3,481,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $747,500 $2,734,000 $3,481,500

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hughes Ranch Road (Cullen to Stone Rd) TR1801 20

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

An expansion of Hughes Ranch Road from Cullen Parkway to Stone Road, approximately 3300lf.  Includes 4-lanes undivided 
concrete curb and gutter, sidewalks, and drainage.  A new water line will be constructed in coordination with this project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
In conformance with the City's Thoroughfare Plan, this roadway will provide enhanced safety and access to Dawson High School, 
SH 288, and the Max Road Sports Complex. Project will complete the improvements between current construction from Stone to 
Max Rd and anticipated improvements between SH288 and Stone.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

FUNDING SOURCES TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 
Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

PROJECT NAME

Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

Construction

No Yes (See Below)

65



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

WATER

Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

WA0812 Surface Water Plant 2,500,000 5,002,700 22,000,000 29,502,700
WA1001 General Engineering / CIP Administration 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 200,000
WA1203 Tom Bass Park Loop 527,444 527,444
WA1402 Southeast Water Plant 233,625 1,766,962 2,000,587
WA1403 Hooper Road Water Line 114,000 114,000
WA1502 AC Water Line Replacement 1,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 6,000,000
WA1503 Regency Park Subdivision 8" Water Line 626,245 626,245
WA1505 FM 521 Waterline (Broadway to Mooring Pointer) 211,890 1,232,010 1,443,900
WA1601 Water Meter Changeout 2,625,000 2,625,000 2,625,000 2,625,000 10,500,000
WA1602 Hughes Ranch Road West 12" Water Line 428,000 609,400 1,037,400
WA1603 FM 1128 16" Waterline 210,384 1,092,000 1,302,384
WA1604 CR 100 Waterline 463,450 2,371,210 2,834,660

WA1605
Harkey Rd. from CR100 to CR128 & CR 128 from Harkey to 
Veterans 468,296 2,070,704 2,539,000

WA1606 Veterans Dr. Bailey Rd. to CR 128 16" Waterline 509,296 2,070,704 2,580,000
WA1608 McHard Water Line Phase II 4,130,762 4,130,762
WA1701 Far NW GST Expansion 305,050 2,171,900 2,476,950

WA1702
Grand Boulevard Waterline - Old Townsite Southeast 
Quadrant 14,198 133,683 147,881

WA1801 Hughes Ranch Road East 12" Water Line 75,000 922,500 997,500
TOTAL 1,529,579$       11,117,198$     14,708,266$     12,291,908$     29,314,462$     68,961,413$     

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC 114,000 114,000
W/S Revenue Bonds 579,230 5,020,386 5,957,009 3,662,300 13,689,462 28,908,387
System Revenue - Cash 331,882 2,375,713 3,227,525 4,908,625 4,625,000 15,468,745
Impact Fees - Cash 348,522 348,522
Impact Fees - Debt 2,895,386 3,076,009 2,085,950 11,000,000 19,057,345
Unfunded 14,198 133,683 147,881
Other Funding Sources 155,945 825,713 2,433,525 1,501,350 4,916,533
TOTAL 1,529,579$       11,117,198$     14,708,266$     12,291,908$     29,314,462$     68,961,413$     

66



14

9

2

6

1

10

11

12

13

7
16

4

17

3

9

15

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Water

1:63,360 1 in = 1 m ilesor10   FM 1128 16" Wa terline....................................................
11   CR 100 Wa terline............................................................
12   Ha rkey Rd Wa terline from  CR 100 to  CR 128 a nd
-      CR 128 from  Ha rkey to Vetera ns....................................
13   Vetera ns Dr Ba iley Rd to CR 128 16” Wa terline.............
14   Mc Ha rd Wa terline Ph a se II.......................................................
15   Fa r North west Ground Stora g e Ta nk Expa nsion.............
16   Gra nd Boulev a rd Wa terline – O ld Townsite Q ua dra nt.....
17   Hug h es Ra nc h  Roa d Ea st 12" Wa terline........................

2016-2017
2016-2017
2016-2017
2016-2017

2016
2017-2018
2017-2018
2018-2019

1     Surfa c e Wa ter Pla nt..........................................................
2     Tom  Ba ss Pa rk Loop..................................................................
3     South ea st Wa ter Pla nt.......................................................
4     Hooper Roa d Wa terline..............................................................
5     AC Wa terline Repla c em ent (not sh own)...........................
6     Reg enc y Pa rk 8" Wa terline........................................................
7     FM 521 Wa terline..............................................................
8     Wa ter Meter Ch a ng eout (not sh own)................................
9     Hug h es Ra nc h  Roa d West 12" Wa terline.........................

2017-2019
2015

2018-2019
2015

2016-2019
2015

2015-2016
2016-2019
2016-2017

67



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
$2,427,640 $2,427,640 $2,427,640 $2,427,640 $2,427,640
$4,966,846 $4,966,846 $464,146 $464,146 $4,502,700 $4,966,846

$49,820,861 $49,820,861 $1,733,661 $1,733,661 $18,000,000 $19,733,661
$116,500 $116,500 $16,500 $16,500 $16,500

$13,615,500 $13,615,500 $34,000 $34,000 $500,000 $500,000 $4,000,000 $5,034,000
$72,947,347 $72,947,347 $4,675,947 $4,675,947 $0 $0 $2,500,000 $5,002,700 $22,000,000 $34,178,647

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$36,473,673 $36,473,673 $3,316,000 $3,316,000 $1,250,000 $2,501,350 $11,000,000 $18,067,350
$0
$0

$33,612,377 $33,612,377 $1,250,000 $1,250,000 $1,000,000 $11,000,000 $13,250,000
$0

$2,861,297 $2,861,297 $109,947 $109,947 $1,250,000 $1,501,350 $2,861,297
$72,947,347 $72,947,347 $4,675,947 $4,675,947 $0 $0 $2,500,000 $5,002,700 $22,000,000 $34,178,647

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Surface Water Plant WA0812 9

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase I began  with the purchase of property for the plant. Interim work to protect erosion of neighboring property was 
constructed in 2010. In FY 2017, plant design will begin with a schedule to have the plant online in 2022. 10 MGD surface water 
plant is Phase I of ultimate 20 MGD plant.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Water Model Update completed in 2007 recommended the completion of the Surface Water Plant in 2015.  Due to the 
economy, growth has slowed down as compared to the original assumptions of water use.  The timing for the Surface Water 
Plant was evaluated when the Water Model was updated in 2012.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Skipper Jones

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance and reallocation of $109,947 from City of Houston Waterline.  This project 
carries over to 2021.  Project 7 in 2013 impact fee update.                                     

No Yes (See Below)

68



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$566,078 $566,078 $366,078 $366,078 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $566,078
$0

$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000
$0

$716,078 $716,078 $516,078 $516,078 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $716,078

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$441,078 $441,078 $291,078 $291,078 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $441,078
$0
$0
$0

$275,000 $275,000 $225,000 $225,000 $50,000 $275,000
$716,078 $716,078 $516,078 $516,078 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 $716,078

Project Manager: TBD

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Funding for updates to the water and wastewater models.  Fund 301 Fund balance.                                                                                                                                                                       

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
This project provides services necessary for the entire CIP and not project specific but is specific to the water or wastewater 
projects.  The Wastewater and Water Models will be updated and any special studies will be completed as necessary. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Wastewater Model was last updated in 2007 and a partial update to the Water Model in 2012, and most of the high priority 
projects identifed at that time have been completed.  Additionally the model updates will ensure that projects included in the CIP 
are based upon priority and the special studies will include cost estimates for the projects.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
General Engineering/CIP Administration WA1001 1

No Yes (See Below)

69



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$9,600 $9,600 $9,600 $9,600 $9,600

$59,000 $59,000 $59,000 $59,000 $59,000
$488,890 $488,890 $59,483 $59,483 $429,407 $488,890

$0
$139,554 $139,554 $41,517 $41,517 $98,037 $139,554
$697,044 $697,044 $169,600 $169,600 $527,444 $0 $0 $0 $0 $697,044

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$279,922 $279,922 $101,000 $101,000 $178,922 $279,922
$348,522 $348,522 $348,522 $348,522

$0
$0

$68,600 $68,600 $68,600 $68,600 $68,600
$697,044 $697,044 $169,600 $169,600 $527,444 $0 $0 $0 $0 $697,044

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Tom Bass Park Loop WA1203 3

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To install approximately 950 feet of 12" waterline to loop from the termination of the existing waterline along the feeder road of 
BW 8 through Tom Bass Park, connecting to the Lakes of Country Place subdivision.  Approximately 1,250 feet of 12" waterline 
completed by Public Works in 2012.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Looping of the distribution system per the water model in a location where we have a 12" main that dead ends along the Beltway.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 67 Fund Balance 

No Yes (See Below)

70



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$263,625 $263,625 $30,000 $233,625 $263,625
$1,575,462 $1,575,462 $120,000 $1,455,462 $1,575,462

$0
$311,500 $311,500 $311,500 $311,500

$2,150,587 $2,150,587 $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $233,625 $1,766,962 $2,150,587

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,766,962 $1,766,962 $1,766,962 $1,766,962
$233,625 $233,625 $233,625 $233,625

$0
$0
$0

$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000
$2,150,587 $2,150,587 $0 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $233,625 $1,766,962 $2,150,587

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Southeast Water Plant Improvements WA1402 13

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
In FY14 the water well at the southeast water production facility was taken off line due to its higher than acceptable levels of 
organic magnesium.  Elevated levels of  organic magnesium cause taste, odor and appearance issues though the water product 
itself remains safe for consumption.  This project will install a distribution line at the facility that will improve water quality by 
providing adequate water flow within the tank which will significantly reduce or eliminate the odor, taste and appearance issues.  
The project also includes the installation of green sand filter, automatic backwash control, a 30,000 gallon backwash equalization 
tank, disposal pumps, 4" backwash line.  Funding in FY 2014 is for re-piping and reconfiguration of elevated storage to alleviate 
stagnation.
PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The City of Pearland has maintained a log of customer complaints regarding "dirty water''. Complaints regarding brown/rusty 
colored water that would indicate problems with iron and manganese have been consistently occurring in the winter months.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:  

No Yes (See Below)

71



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,200,000 $1,200,000 $110,000 $110,000 $200,000 $200,000 $620,000
$13,000,000 $13,000,000 $890,000 $890,000 $1,800,000 $1,800,000 $5,380,000

$0
$0

$14,200,000 $14,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $6,000,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$3,600,000 $3,600,000 $600,000 $600,000
$10,600,000 $10,600,000 $1,000,000 $400,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $5,400,000

$0
$0
$0
$0

$14,200,000 $14,200,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $6,000,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
AC Water Line Replacement WA1502 10

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Replace approximately 50 miles of failing AC water lines (over 30 years old) in the City with PVC water lines.  The project will 
replace the water line infrastructure in the following locations over a period of years - Corrigan Subdivision, Old Towne, 
Summerset / Shrine, Country Place, Green Tee, Westminster, Brookside Acres, Shadycrest, Creek View, Parkview, Wood 
Creek, Heritage Green, Clear Creek Estates, Twin Creek Woods.   In 2016, the City will start in the Old Town area and work out 
from there laying approximately 58,000 LF of pipe annually.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
AC water line has a failure rate significantly higher than that of comparable and like sized PVC.  This project will in time replace 
the failing AC infrastructure with more robust PVC which was not prevalent in the industry at the time the AC lines were installed.  
The AC lines are responsible for a higher percentage of work orders per foot than comparable PVC lines and require an 
inordinate amount of resources to maintain relative to PVC.  The projects will also provide the opportunity to resolve dead end 
water line issues in the effected areas which will improve water quality.     

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Project to carryover to 2020.

No Yes (See Below)

72



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$47,015 $47,015 $47,015 $47,015
$484,230 $484,230 $484,230 $484,230

$0
$95,000 $95,000 $95,000 $95,000

$626,245 $626,245 $0 $0 $626,245 $0 $0 $0 $0 $626,245

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$579,230 $579,230 $579,230 $579,230
$47,015 $47,015 $47,015 $47,015

$0
$0
$0
$0

$626,245 $626,245 $0 $0 $626,245 $0 $0 $0 $0 $626,245

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of 8" water line throughout the Regency Park Subdivision.  Existing lines in the neighborhood are Ac Pipe and are 
deteriorating.  They will be left in place to avoid the added cost of containment, removal and proper disposal.  This project will be 
done in coordination with the Regency Park Subdivision Paving & Drainage Project.

C

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Existing lines in this subdivision are AC Pipe, deteriorating and are placed along the back of the properties, making it difficult for 
maintenance.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Regency Park Subdivision 8" Water Line WA1503 5

No Yes (See Below)

73



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000
$91,000 $91,000 $91,000 $91,000

$0
$23,000 $23,000 $23,000 $23,000

$128,000 $128,000 $0 $14,000 $114,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0

$128,000 $128,000 $14,000 $114,000 $128,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$128,000 $128,000 $0 $14,000 $114,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,000

Project Manager: TBD

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   PEDC

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of approximatey 3,200 LF of 8" PVC water line from Beltway 8, south along Hooper Road.  The project will be 
constructed with the Hooper Road Extension project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Provide water service in the Lower Kirby Area currently not served.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hooper Road Water Line WA1403 6

No Yes (See Below)

74



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$45,630 $45,630 $45,630 $45,630
$75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
$91,260 $91,260 $91,260 $91,260

$1,003,860 $1,003,860 $1,003,860 $1,003,860
$0

$228,150 $228,150 $228,150 $228,150
$1,443,900 $1,443,900 $0 $0 $211,890 $1,232,010 $0 $0 $0 $1,443,900

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$616,005 $616,005 $616,005 $616,005
$105,945 $105,945 $105,945 $105,945

$0
$616,005 $616,005 $616,005 $616,005

$0
$105,945 $105,945 $105,945 $105,945

$1,443,900 $1,443,900 $0 $0 $211,890 $1,232,010 $0 $0 $0 $1,443,900

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
FM 521 Waterline (Broadway to Mooring Pointer) WA1505 4

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
7,500 feet of 16" water line along Almeda Rd from Broadway to Mooring Pointer.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Looping of transmission lines based on the City's water model.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance

No Yes (See Below)

75



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$10,500,000 $10,500,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $10,500,000
$0

$10,500,000 $10,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $10,500,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,125,000 $2,125,000 $2,125,000 $2,125,000
$8,375,000 $8,375,000 $500,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $8,375,000

$0
$0
$0
$0

$10,500,000 $10,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $2,625,000 $10,500,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Water Meter Changeout WA1601 8

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Change out of approximately 33,000 water meters and drive-by reading system with a wireless remote read and addition of 
Customer Portal Technology.  The change out will include, remote antennae, meters, external antennae on meter lids, 
installation, hardware and software, and vaults as needed.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
AWWA standards recommends that residential meters be replaced when over 10 years old or more than 1.0 mill gallons have 
passed through the meter.  By 2017 approximately 22,000 meters in Pearland will be older than 10 years old or have 1.0 mill. 
gallons that has passed through the meters.  The AWWA stardard is based on .25 gallons per min.  The newer meters will 
register .03 gallons per minute, thus measuring more water, increasing revenues and reducing water loss.  Newer technology will 
allow for remote turn on's and offs and capture water and loss associated with a given area.  Customer expectations are also 
higher wanting information more readily to view (graphs, etc.) and the customer portal would provide.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Utility Billing

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:                                                                                                                                                             

No Yes (See Below)

76



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$78,000 $78,000 $78,000 $78,000
$803,400 $803,400 $350,000 $453,400 $803,400

$0
$156,000 $156,000 $156,000 $156,000

$1,037,400 $1,037,400 $0 $0 $0 $428,000 $609,400 $0 $0 $1,037,400

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$518,700 $518,700 $214,000 $304,700 $518,700
$0
$0

$518,700 $518,700 $214,000 $304,700 $518,700
$0
$0

$1,037,400 $1,037,400 $0 $0 $0 $428,000 $609,400 $0 $0 $1,037,400

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of approximately 5200' of 12" water line along Hughes Ranch Road from CR 94 to Cullen Parkway.  This water line 
connection will be done in coordination with the Hughes Ranch Road Expansion from CR 94 to Cullen Parkway.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
There is currently several missing sections of water line totaling approximately 5200' along Hughes Ranch Road.  The water line 
will connect existing City lines to acquired MUD water lines.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hughes Ranch Road West 12" Water Line WA1602 7

No Yes (See Below)

77



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$40,450 $40,450 $40,450 $40,450
$89,034 $89,034 $89,034 $89,034
$80,900 $80,900 $80,900 $80,900

$890,000 $890,000 $890,000 $890,000
$0

$202,000 $202,000 $202,000 $202,000
$1,302,384 $1,302,384 $0 $0 $0 $210,384 $1,092,000 $0 $0 $1,302,384

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$546,000 $546,000 $546,000 $546,000
$105,192 $105,192 $105,192 $105,192

$0
$0
$0

$651,192 $651,192 $105,192 $546,000 $651,192
$1,302,384 $1,302,384 $0 $0 $0 $210,384 $1,092,000 $0 $0 $1,302,384

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
FM 1128 16" Waterline WA1603 14

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To install approximately 5,300 feet of 16-inch water line along FM 1128 (Manvel Rd) from Bailey Rd. to CR100.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will loop the system from Veterans to FM1128 for pressure and fire protection based on 2007 Water Model Update and is 
developer driven.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Project 8 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

78



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$87,800 $87,800 $87,800 $87,800
$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000
$175,650 $175,650 $175,650 $175,650

$1,932,100 $1,932,100 $1,932,100 $1,932,100
$0

$439,110 $439,110 $439,110 $439,110
$2,834,660 $2,834,660 $0 $0 $0 $463,450 $2,371,210 $0 $0 $2,834,660

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,185,605 $1,185,605 $1,185,605 $1,185,605
$231,725 $231,725 $231,725 $231,725

$0
$700,605 $700,605 $700,605 $700,605

$0
$716,725 $716,725 $231,725 $485,000 $716,725

$2,834,660 $2,834,660 $0 $0 $0 $463,450 $2,371,210 $0 $0 $2,834,660

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Project 9 in 2013 impact fee update.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To install approximately 13,160 feet of 16-inch water line along CR 100 from Veterans Dr. to FM 1128 (Manvel Rd).

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will supply water for future development along this corridor based on the 2007 Water Model update, projected growth for 
2017 demand and is developer driven.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
CR 100 Waterline WA1604 15

No Yes (See Below)

79



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$69,870 $69,870 $69,870 $69,870
$223,426 $223,426 $223,426 $223,426
$175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000

$1,778,500 $1,778,500 $1,778,500 $1,778,500
$0

$292,204 $292,204 $292,204 $292,204
$2,539,000 $2,539,000 $0 $0 $0 $468,296 $2,070,704 $0 $0 $2,539,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352
$234,148 $234,148 $234,148 $234,148

$0
$1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352

$0
$234,148 $234,148 $234,148 $234,148

$2,539,000 $2,539,000 $0 $0 $0 $468,296 $2,070,704 $0 $0 $2,539,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Harkey Rd. Waterline from CR100 to CR128 & CR128 from Harkey to Veterans WA1605 16

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To install approximately 13,300 feet of 12-inch waterline from Harkey Rd/CR100 south to CR128 then east to Veterans Dr.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will loop the system between Harkey Rd. and Veterans from CR100 to CR128 for pressure and fire protection based on 
2007 Water Model Update for 2016 demand and is developer driven.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cara Davis

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Project 10 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

80



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$66,296 $66,296 $66,296 $66,296
$268,000 $268,000 $268,000 $268,000
$175,000 $175,000 $175,000 $175,000

$1,778,500 $1,778,500 $1,778,500 $1,778,500
$0

$292,204 $292,204 $292,204 $292,204
$2,580,000 $2,580,000 $0 $0 $0 $509,296 $2,070,704 $0 $0 $2,580,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352
$254,648 $254,648 $254,648 $254,648

$0
$1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352 $1,035,352

$0
$254,648 $254,648 $254,648 $254,648

$2,580,000 $2,580,000 $0 $0 $0 $509,296 $2,070,704 $0 $0 $2,580,000

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Project 11 in 2013 impact fee update.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To install approximately 5,300 feet of 16-inch water line on Veterans Dr. from Bailey Rd, south to CR 100 and continue an 
additional 5,300 feet with a 12-inch line from CR 100 to CR 128.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will supply to the city limits and ETJ south of Bailey Rd. for future development based on 2007 Water Model Update for 2017 
demand and is developer driven.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Veterans Dr. Bailey Rd. to CR 128 16" Waterline WA1606 17

No Yes (See Below)

81



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($375,000) ($750,000) ($750,000)

($375,000) ($750,000) ($750,000)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
$3,830,762 $3,830,762 $3,830,762 $3,830,762

$0
$200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

$4,130,762 $4,130,762 $0 $0 $0 $4,130,762 $0 $0 $0 $4,130,762

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,065,381 $2,065,381 $2,065,381 $2,065,381
$0
$0

$2,065,381 $2,065,381 $2,065,381 $2,065,381
$0
$0

$4,130,762 $4,130,762 $0 $0 $0 $4,130,762 $0 $0 $0 $4,130,762

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

Purchased water from the City of Houston Connection at Alice Street will reduce by approximately $750,000/year.

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Phase II extends from Cullen Parkway to Mykawa a total of 17,340 linear feet.  This portion of the project is timed to coincide with 
Right of Way approval and acquisition for the McHard Road project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will be a second continuous connection between the east and west sides of the City. It will allow for more efficient water flow, 
better fire protection and the movement of water from the expanded Alice Street Water Plant.  This will reduce monthly average 
payments for water supplied to the west side from the Far North West plant where purchase prices are much higher.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
McHard Rd. 16" Waterline Phase II WA1608 2

No Yes (See Below)

82



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$60,086

$60,086

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$76,250 $76,250 $76,250 $76,250
$0

$228,800 $228,800 $228,800 $228,800
$1,691,700 $1,691,700 $1,691,700 $1,691,700

$0
$480,200 $480,200 $480,200 $480,200

$2,476,950 $2,476,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $305,050 $2,171,900 $0 $2,476,950

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,085,950 $1,085,950 $1,085,950 $1,085,950
$152,525 $152,525 $152,525 $152,525

$0
$1,085,950 $1,085,950 $1,085,950 $1,085,950

$0
$152,525 $152,525 $152,525 $152,525

$2,476,950 $2,476,950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $305,050 $2,171,900 $0 $2,476,950

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Far Northwest Ground Storage Tank Expansion WA1701 12

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of a third 1.66 MGD ground storage tank, a second 15,000 gallon pressure tank, and related piping and controls.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This expansion will be for future developments outside of Shadow Creek Ranch.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Project 14 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

83



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$14,198 $14,198 $14,198 $14,198
$108,835 $108,835 $108,835 $108,835

$0
$24,848 $24,848 $24,848 $24,848

$147,881 $147,881 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,198 $133,683 $0 $147,881

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$147,881 $147,881 $14,198 $133,683 $147,881
$0

$147,881 $147,881 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,198 $133,683 $0 $147,881

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Grand Boulevard Waterline - Old Townsite Southeast Quadrant WA1702 11

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
This project is estimated to replace 1300 lf of 8" water line, fire hydrants, service connections, and main line valves along Grand 
Boulevard.  Construction will be completed in conjunction with the reconstruction of Grand Blvd.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Existing waterlines in the Old Town area are a hodgepodge of galvanized steel, ductile iron, AC, and PVC.  In many cases, sizes 
and locations of pipe are unknown.  Valves do not generally exist in necessary areas.  This has created havoc within the Old 
Townsite southeast quadrant.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources: 

No Yes (See Below)

84



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$75,000 $75,000 $75,000 $75,000
$772,500 $772,500 $772,500 $772,500

$0
$150,000 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000
$997,500 $997,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000 $922,500 $997,500

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$997,500 $997,500 $75,000 $922,500 $997,500
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$997,500 $997,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $75,000 $922,500 $997,500

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of approximately 3,300 LF of 12" water line, extending along Hughes Ranch Road from Cullen Parkway to Max Road, 
near the Sports Complex.  This water line extension will be completed in coordination with the Hughes Ranch Road Expansion 
from Cullen to Stone Road.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The water line extension will tie dead end water line on Max Road into the transmission line on Cullen.  Existing lines along Max 
and this segment of Hughes Ranch Road are MUD lines, 980LF of this line would be in the ETJ and will not extended by future 
development.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hughes Ranch Road East 12" Water Line Phase II WA1801 18

No Yes (See Below)

85



CITY OF PEARLAND
2015 - 2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

WASTEWATER

Project No. Project Name 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

WW0901 Riverstone Ranch Oversizing 128,167 163,452 291,619

WW1201
Southdown (North Central) WWTP Rehabilitation - WWM 
Project 31A 540,545 540,545

WW1405 Far NW WWTP Expansion 19,014,000 10,500,000 29,514,000
WW1406 McHard Rd Trunk Sewer (Garden to Southdown WWTP) 34,771 4,616,440 4,651,211
WW1407 Hooper Road Sanitary Sewer 110,000 110,000

WW1501
Roy/Max/Garden Roads Basin Sewage System - WWM 
Project 12 330,000 2,321,800 2,651,800

WW1502 Barry Rose WWTP Expansion 350,000 1,000,000 12,816,650 14,166,650

WW1503
Green Tee 1 to Riverstone Wastewater Diversion 
(Longwood Service Area Phase 1) 324,170 324,170

WW1504 (JHEC) SWEC Filter and Bar Screen Improvements 1,240,000 1,240,000
WW1506 Springfield Lift Station Abandonment 57,000 400,000 457,000
WW1507 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 5,000,000

WW1601
Orange Mykawa Lift Station Retirement - 
WWM Project 33 119,945 481,238 601,183

WW1602 Relocation Mykawa/Scott LS - WWM Project 5 505,701 2,719,878 3,225,579
WW1603 JHEC WWTP Expansion - WWM Project 29A 400,000 2,200,000 19,197,250 3,387,750 25,185,000
WW1701 Veterans Drive Lift Station Service Area - WWM Project 11 1,178,450 7,024,278 8,202,728

TOTAL 3,114,653$      24,924,898$    35,512,656$    27,221,528$    5,387,750$      96,161,485$    

SOURCE OF FUNDS 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC 110,000 110,000
W/S Revenue Bonds 1,564,170 12,485,900 18,302,588 15,091,439 1,693,875 49,137,972
System Revenue - Cash 699,771 1,500,000 981,238 2,000,000 5,181,009
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt 9,755,601 15,958,930 12,130,089 1,693,875 39,538,495
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources 740,712 1,183,397 269,900 2,194,009
TOTAL 3,114,653$      24,924,898$    35,512,656$    27,221,528$    5,387,750$      96,161,485$    

86



3

1

2
13

12

9

8

5

7

6

4

10

14

15

CITY OF PEARLAND
0 1 20.5

Miles

M A P  P R E P A R E D :  A U G  2 0 1 4
C I T Y  O F  P E A R L A N D  G I S  D E P A R T M E N T

This product is for informational purposes and may not have been
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying
purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed
2015 - 2019 CIP
Wastewater

1:63,360 1 in = 1 milesor1     Riverstone Ranch Oversizing...........................................................
2     Southdown WWTP Rehabilitation (WWM Project 31A)............................
3     Far NW WWTP Expansion..............................................................
4     McHard Road Trunk Sewer.............................................................
5     Hooper Road Sanitary Sewer....................................................................
6     Roy/Max/Garden Rds Basin Sewage System (WWM Project 12)...
7     Barry Rose WWTP Expansion.........................................................
8     Green Tee 1 to Riverstone Wastewater Diversion......................................

2015-2016
2015

2016-2017
2015, 2017

2015
2015-2016
2015-2017

2015

9     JHEC Filter and Bar Screen Improvements................................................
10   Springfield Lift Station Abandonment....................................................
11   Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation (not shown)........................................
12   Orange Mykawa Lift Station Retirement (WWM Project 33)................
13   Relocation Mykawa/Scott Lift Station (WWM Project 5).....................
14   JHEC WWTP Expansion (WWM Project 29A)..................................
15   Veterans Dr Lift Station Service Area (WWM Project 11)...................

2015
2015-2016
2016-2019
2016-2017
2016-2017
2016-2019
2017-2018

87



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($12,300) ($16,400) ($16,400)

($12,300) ($16,400) ($16,400)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$407,921 $407,921 $356,398 $356,398 $25,633 $25,890 $407,921
$271,688 $271,688 $65,592 $65,592 $102,534 $103,562 $271,688

$0
$34,000 $34,000 $34,000 $34,000

$713,609 $713,609 $421,990 $421,990 $128,167 $163,452 $0 $0 $0 $713,609

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$296,778 $296,778 $296,778 $296,778 $296,778
$0
$0
$0

$416,831 $416,831 $125,212 $125,212 $128,167 $163,452 $416,831
$713,609 $713,609 $421,990 $421,990 $128,167 $163,452 $0 $0 $0 $713,609

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Riverstone Ranch Oversizing WW0901 2

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Oversizing of the Riverstone Ranch development's sewer infrastructure in order to incorporate into the City's larger system.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This project accomplishes a portion of the overall plan developed in the Longwood Wastewater Basin study to eliminate the need 
for an expansion or long-term operation of the Longwood Wastewater Treatment Plant.  This project also eliminates three lift 
stations in the Green Tee Subdivision.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Engineering

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   $43,222 in 2013 from WW0902 - Longwood Lift Station Replacement project.  Fund 42 fund 
balance.

No Yes (See Below)

88



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$54,897 $54,897 $54,897 $54,897 $54,897
$0

$61,950 $61,950 $61,950 $61,950 $61,950
$443,370 $443,370 $443,370 $443,370

$0
$97,175 $97,175 $97,175 $97,175

$657,392 $657,392 $116,847 $116,847 $540,545 $0 $0 $0 $0 $657,392

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$519,212 $519,212 $19,212 $19,212 $500,000 $519,212
$0
$0
$0

$138,180 $138,180 $97,635 $97,635 $40,545 $138,180
$657,392 $657,392 $116,847 $116,847 $540,545 $0 $0 $0 $0 $657,392

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Southdown (North Central) WWTP Rehabilitation -WWM Project 31A WW1201 3

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Rehabilitate influent lift station wet well, replace pump discharge piping within the wet well, retrofit and rehab the two existing 
Parkson rotating fine screens, replace sludge airlift pump boxes in aeration basins with stainless steel, install process Water 
Sprayer Assembly at existing clarifier, drain clarifier and replace corner sweeps on clarifier mechanism; install stamford baffles on 
square clarifiers, repair sand filter.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Extend the life of the Southdown WWTP and improve operations.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:    Fund 67 Fund Balance                                                                                                                                                                    

No Yes (See Below)

89



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$180,258 $240,344

$180,258 $240,344

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$414,000 $414,000 $250,000 $414,000 $414,000
$0

$4,000,000 $4,000,000 $2,150,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000
$25,000,000 $25,000,000 $7,000,000 $16,500,000 $8,500,000 $25,000,000

$0
$5,000,000 $5,000,000 $486,000 $2,514,000 $2,000,000 $5,000,000

$34,414,000 $34,414,000 $9,400,000 $4,900,000 $0 $19,014,000 $10,500,000 $0 $0 $34,414,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$17,207,000 $17,207,000 $6,832,000 $1,032,000 $10,925,000 $5,250,000 $17,207,000
$0
$0

$13,339,000 $13,339,000 $8,089,000 $5,250,000 $13,339,000
$0

$3,868,000 $3,868,000 $2,568,000 $3,868,000 $3,868,000
$34,414,000 $34,414,000 $9,400,000 $4,900,000 $0 $19,014,000 $10,500,000 $0 $0 $34,414,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Far NW WWTP Expansion WW1405 1

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Growth rates within the service area has increased both average daily flows and the biological loading contained in the plant’s 
influent requiring construction of a 4 mgd treatment capacity expansion.  The project includes the design, permitting and 
construction upgrades of the lift station, headworks, addition of four continuous flow 1mgd basins modifications to the existing 
basins to create two additional 1 mgd continuous flow basins, new filtration and UV disinfectant systems, expansion of the sludge 
holding tanks, addition of two belt press dewatering systems, a new non-potable water system and new SCADA control for a total 
plant capacity of 6 mgd.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The existing plant reached 75% of its rated capacity in 2013.  TCEQ rules require that operators begin design once a plant 
reaches 75% capacity for a period of three consecutive months.  Plant design, permitting and construction are scheduled to 
complete in late 2017.  Current flows require a doubling of existing capacity but with the addition of flows from the Southdown 
plant, planned to occur around 2024, and the inclusion of the flows from development in the Lower Kirby area a full 6 mgd 
expansion provides better economies of scale at this point in time.  In addition, a smaller expansion would require a second 
expansion to start within two years of completing this expansion.  

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Andrea Brinkley

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 and Fund 44 Fund Balance.  Waste water project 7 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

90



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$486,261 $486,261 $451,490 $451,490 $34,771 $486,261
$3,595,900 $3,595,900 $3,595,900 $3,595,900

$0
$1,020,540 $1,020,540 $1,020,540 $1,020,540
$5,102,701 $5,102,701 $451,490 $451,490 $34,771 $0 $4,616,440 $0 $0 $5,102,701

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,516,580 $2,516,580 $225,745 $225,745 $2,290,835 $2,516,580
$34,771 $34,771 $34,771 $34,771

$0
$2,325,605 $2,325,605 $2,325,605 $2,325,605

$0
$225,745 $225,745 $225,745 $225,745 $225,745

$5,102,701 $5,102,701 $451,490 $451,490 $34,771 $0 $4,616,440 $0 $0 $5,102,701

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
McHard Rd Trunk Sewer (Garden to Southdown WWTP) WW1406 6

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Install, along McHard Rd, approximately 4,500 feet of 24" trunk sewer from Cullen to Southdown WWTP; 5,800 feet of 18" trunk 
sewer from Cullen to Max Road; and approximately  4,000 lf of 15" trunk sewer from Max Road to Garden Road.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This project will provide gravity sewer and is called for in the wastewater model.  Extends Southdown service area to the east, 
picking up areas not currently served by City system. 

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Waste water project 8 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

91



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$13,000 $13,000 $13,000 $13,000
$96,000 $96,000 $96,000 $96,000

$0
$14,000 $14,000 $14,000 $14,000

$123,000 $123,000 $0 $13,000 $110,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0

$123,000 $123,000 $13,000 $110,000 $123,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$123,000 $123,000 $0 $13,000 $110,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $123,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Hooper Road Sanitary Sewer WW1407 9

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Installation of approximately 3,200 LF of 8" sewer from Beltway 8, south along Hooper Road.  The project will be constructed with 
the Hooper Road Extension project.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Provide sewer service in the Lower Kirby Area currently not served.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: TBD

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

No Yes (See Below)

92



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($10,933) ($16,400) ($16,400)

($10,933) ($16,400) ($16,400)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$85,000 $85,000 $85,000 $85,000

$245,000 $245,000 $245,000 $245,000
$1,808,500 $1,808,500 $1,808,500 $1,808,500

$0
$513,300 $513,300 $513,300 $513,300

$2,651,800 $2,651,800 $0 $0 $330,000 $2,321,800 $0 $0 $0 $2,651,800

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,160,900 $1,160,900 $1,160,900 $1,160,900
$165,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000

$0
$1,160,900 $1,160,900 $1,160,900 $1,160,900

$0
$165,000 $165,000 $165,000 $165,000

$2,651,800 $2,651,800 $0 $0 $330,000 $2,321,800 $0 $0 $0 $2,651,800

Project Manager: Jennifer Lee

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balances  

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
This project proposes approximately 4,940 feet of 18" trunk sewer along Broadway St. from Food Town's Lift Station to O'Day 
Rd, approximately 1,300 feet of 15" trunk sewer along Garden Rd from Broadway to the lift station and 1,200 feet of 12" sewer 
line along Roy / Max Rd from Broadway to Hickory Slough. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This project will eliminate modeled overflows and two existing lift stations (Food Town's, Garden Rd.) and serve areas that are 
currently not serviced.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Roy/Max/Garden Roads Basin Sewage System - WWM Project 12 WW1501 5

No Yes (See Below)

93



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$126,181 $168,241

$126,181 $168,241

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000
$0

$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
$9,983,250 $9,983,250 $9,983,250 $9,983,250

$0
$2,833,400 $2,833,400 $2,833,400 $2,833,400

$14,166,650 $14,166,650 $0 $0 $350,000 $1,000,000 $12,816,650 $0 $0 $14,166,650

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$6,633,325 $6,633,325 $6,633,325 $6,633,325
$500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

$0
$6,183,325 $6,183,325 $6,183,325 $6,183,325

$0
$850,000 $850,000 $350,000 $500,000 $850,000

$14,166,650 $14,166,650 $0 $0 $350,000 $1,000,000 $12,816,650 $0 $0 $14,166,650

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Barry Rose WWTP Expansion WW1502 4

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Complete a Preliminary Engineering Report to evaluate the timing and alternatives to expand the Barry Rose WWTP Plant from 
the existing 3.1 mgd to 4.5 mgd to serve expanding population in this service area.  Ultimately expansion would take plant to 8 
mgd.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The TCEQ rules require the initiation of engineering and financial planning to upgrade a wastewater treatment plant when the 
flows reach 75% of the plant capacity.  The plant is currently treating approximately 50% of the capacity.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Skipper Jones

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:    Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Waste water project 2 in 2013 impact fee update.                

No Yes (See Below)

94



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$64,200 $64,200 $64,200 $64,200
$230,500 $230,500 $230,500 $230,500

$0
$29,470 $29,470 $29,470 $29,470

$324,170 $324,170 $0 $0 $324,170 $0 $0 $0 $0 $324,170

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$324,170 $324,170 $324,170 $324,170
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$324,170 $324,170 $0 $0 $324,170 $0 $0 $0 $0 $324,170

Project Manager: Jameson Appel

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Decommission lift station pump at corner of Country Club Dr. and Golfcrest, convert to manhole and install approximately 2200 
feet of 8 to 10 inch gravity line to receiving manhole in first phase of Riverstone Ranch oversizing.  This includes approximately 
80 feet of bored installation, 3 manholes to 12 feet deep coring manholes, sand bedding backfill grade and hydro-mulch.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This is the first of three projects within Green Tee designed to remove wastewater flows from the Longwood Wastewater 
Treatment Plant through diversion to the Riverstone Ranch Oversized system.  (Longwood Phase 2 was scheduled out of 
sequence for 2014) When completed this and two additional diversion projects within the subdivision will remove 870 equivalent 
sewer connections from Longwood Plant reducing inflow there by 8.9%

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Green Tee 1 to Riverstone Wastewater Diversion (Longwood Service Area Phase 1) WW1503 7

No Yes (See Below)

95



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$40,000 $40,000 $40,000 $40,000
$1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000 $1,200,000

$0
$0

$1,240,000 $1,240,000 $0 $0 $1,240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,240,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,240,000 $1,240,000 $1,240,000 $1,240,000
$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$1,240,000 $1,240,000 $0 $0 $1,240,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,240,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
(JHEC) SWEC Filter and Bar Screen Improvements WW1504 8

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
This project will provide for another filtration mechanism at the John Hargrove Environmental Center JHEC / SWEC waste water 
treatment plant.  Presently the plant use three filters to manage its daily loading.  The additional filter system will enable the 
operators to take a portion of the plant off line when needed to perform maintenance as needed.  The current configuration of 
three filters does not accommodate for this and therefore prohibits frequent and needed maintenance of the system.  The project 
will also address deficiencies with the bar screen mechanism which is not and has not been operating properly.  It is in need of 
replacement.   A new compactor / washer will also be included in this project.     

JUSTIFICATION
As currently configured, the JHEC / SWEC waste water treatment plant is not flexible enough to accommodate frequent and 
needed maintenance.  This project will allow for that and enable the operators to maintain the plant in a more effective manner.  
The new bar screen will enable the plan to remove more solids at the head works and therefore provide better effluent.  

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   

No Yes (See Below)

96



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($2,050) ($8,200) ($8,200) ($8,200)

($2,050) ($8,200) ($8,200) ($8,200)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$57,000 $57,000 $57,000 $57,000
$400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000

$0
$0

$457,000 $457,000 $0 $0 $57,000 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $457,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000
$0
$0
$0
$0

$57,000 $57,000 $57,000 $57,000
$457,000 $457,000 $0 $0 $57,000 $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $457,000

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 301 fund balance

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Convert the Springfield lift station into a manhole and gravity flow all wastewater 1,300 feet south to the Park Village Lift station 
on the east side of McLean. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The pump at this facility is currently above ground centrifugal pumps that have been in service for 30+ years.  The rehab of these 
facilities would be costly and consist of submersible pump replacements with guide rail systems, raising wet well top to a higher 
elevation, relining wet well and upgrading the control panels.  It is less costly to convert these facilities to gravity flow manholes.      

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Springfield Lift Station Abandonment WW1506 14

No Yes (See Below)

97



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0

$1,300,000 $1,300,000 $34,000 $110,000 $110,000 $110,000 $200,000 $564,000
$13,800,000 $13,800,000 $306,194 $890,000 $890,000 $890,000 $1,800,000 $4,776,194

$0
$0

$15,100,000 $15,100,000 $0 $340,194 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $5,340,194

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$11,259,806 $11,259,806 $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000
$3,500,000 $3,500,000 $1,000,000 $500,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000

$0
$0
$0

$340,194 $340,194 $340,194 $340,194
$15,100,000 $15,100,000 $0 $340,194 $0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $5,340,194

Project Manager: Public Works

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Interest from TWDB funds.  Project will carryover to 2020.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
To replace failing waste water lines over thirty years of age in the following areas over a period of years - Corrigan Subdivision, 
Old Towne, Summerset/Shrine, Country Place, Green Tee, Westminster, Brookside Acres, Shadycrest, Creek View, Parkview, 
Wood Creek, Heritage Green, Clear Creek Estates, Twin Creek Woods.   

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Through analysis of Public Works work order history and institutional knowledge, the waste water lines in these older areas are 
responsible for the majority of line breaks and service interruptions in Pearland.  This project will address the areas with the most 
frequent failures and improve system reliability for the residents.  You will note that the list of project locations is the same as that 
listed for water line rehabilitation.  It is recommended that both projects are done simultaneously to limit construction impacts to 
the residents.  

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation WW1507 15

No Yes (See Below)

98



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($4,100) ($8,200) ($8,200)

($4,100) ($8,200) ($8,200)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$27,167 $27,167 $27,167 $27,167 $27,167
$53,968 $53,968 $53,968 $53,968 $53,968
$38,810 $38,810 $38,810 $38,810 $38,810

$423,024 $423,024 $423,024 $423,024
$0

$58,214 $58,214 $58,214 $58,214
$601,183 $601,183 $119,945 $0 $0 $119,945 $481,238 $0 $0 $601,183

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0
$0

$481,238 $481,238 $481,238 $481,238
$0
$0
$0

$119,945 $119,945 $119,945 $119,945 $119,945
$601,183 $601,183 $119,945 $0 $0 $119,945 $481,238 $0 $0 $601,183

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Orange Mykawa Lift Station Retirement - WWM Project 33 WW1601 12

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Abandonment of lift station and installation of new 12-inch gravity sewer line along Mykawa from Orange to Walnut for 
approximately 3,386 feet. To be completed in coordination with Mykawa Road construction.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
Retirement of an old lift station that pumps wastewater three times before sending to the plant.  In addition, this lift station will 
require a major rehabilitation within the next five years. The project will also eliminate an inverted siphon gravity line and remove 
the existing lines from being in conflict with the drainage for the Mykawa Road project.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 67 Fund Balance        

No Yes (See Below)

99



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($2,050) ($8,200) ($8,200)

($2,050) ($8,200) ($8,200)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$147,496 $147,496 $147,496 $147,496 $147,496
$158,578 $158,578 $158,578 $158,578
$358,205 $358,205 $358,205 $358,205 $358,205

$2,227,217 $2,227,217 $2,227,217 $2,227,217
$0

$334,083 $334,083 $334,083 $334,083
$3,225,579 $3,225,579 $505,701 $0 $0 $505,701 $2,719,878 $0 $0 $3,225,579

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$2,719,878 $2,719,878 $2,719,878 $2,719,878
$0
$0

$505,701 $505,701 $505,701 $505,701 $505,701
$0
$0

$3,225,579 $3,225,579 $505,701 $0 $0 $505,701 $2,719,878 $0 $0 $3,225,579

Project Manager: Cuong Le

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Mykawa Rd not all funded yet.

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
Replacement of the existing lift station, a new 12" force main, approximately 2,500 feet, from Mykawa to SH35 and a new 8 - 12" 
gravity line, approximately 3,430 feet along Mykawa from Scott Street to Shank. Project will be coordinated with Mykawa Rd. 
construction.

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
The Mykawa-Scott basin has heavy I/I based on pump run time.  Rehabilitation of the basin with the above improvements will 
reduce flow to the Barry Rose WWTP, reduce surcharging in the McHard 24" trunk sewer, and eliminate one lift station. The 
project will also remove the existing line from underneath the future widening of Mykawa Road.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Relocation Mykawa Scott LS - WWM Projects 5 WW1602 11

No Yes (See Below)

100



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

$80,115

$80,115

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000
$0

$2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000
$17,748,000 $17,748,000 $15,085,800 $2,662,200 $17,748,000

$0
$5,037,000 $5,037,000 $200,000 $4,111,450 $725,550 $5,037,000

$25,185,000 $25,185,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000 $2,200,000 $19,197,250 $3,387,750 $25,185,000

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$12,592,500 $12,592,500 $10,898,625 $1,693,875 $12,592,500
$0
$0

$12,192,500 $12,192,500 $2,200,000 $8,298,625 $1,693,875 $12,192,500
$0

$400,000 $400,000 $400,000 $400,000
$25,185,000 $25,185,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000 $2,200,000 $19,197,250 $3,387,750 $25,185,000

PROJECT NAME PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
JHEC WWTP Expansion - WWM Project 29A WW1603 10

FTE Staff Total

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE
A 2-mgd expansion to the existing 4 mgd wastewater treatment plant that will increase the wastewater treatment capacity to 6-
mgd facility at the John Hargrove Environmental Center. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This 2-mgd expansion is based on growth projections for the JHEC WWTP service area and additional flows that will be diverted 
to the JHEC WWTP from the Longwood Service Area.  Current flows are at 55% to 60% of capacity.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense

Design/Surveying

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL
Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way

Construction
Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

System Revenue - Cash

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 

TOTAL

TOTAL 
BUDGET

General Revenue - Cash
Certificates of Obligation
General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds

Project Manager: TBD

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:    Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Waste water project 10 in 2013 impact fee update.

No Yes (See Below)

101



2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

($8,200) ($16,400)

($8,200) ($16,400)

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$365,000 $365,000 $365,000 $365,000
$73,450 $73,450 $73,450 $73,450

$740,000 $740,000 $740,000 $740,000
$5,471,378 $5,471,378 $5,471,378 $5,471,378

$0
$1,552,900 $1,552,900 $1,552,900 $1,552,900
$8,202,728 $8,202,728 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,178,450 $7,024,278 $0 $8,202,728

ESTIMATED
THRU 2014

$0
$0
$0
$0

$4,101,364 $4,101,364 $908,550 $3,192,814 $4,101,364
$0
$0

$3,831,464 $3,831,464 $3,831,464 $3,831,464
$0

$269,900 $269,900 $269,900 $269,900
$8,202,728 $8,202,728 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,178,450 $7,024,278 $0 $8,202,728

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PROJECT IMAGE

FY PROJECTED ALLOCATIONS
PROJECT COSTS ALLOCATION

Jennifer Lee

2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

General Revenue - Cash

TOTAL 
BUDGET

FY PROJECTED FUNDING SOURCES
CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015 2016

Project's Approval Date: 3/26/2014

General Obligation Bonds
PEDC
W/S Revenue Bonds
System Revenue - Cash
Impact Fees - Cash
Impact Fees - Debt
Unfunded
Other Funding Sources1 - 
TOTAL SOURCES
¹Explain & Identify Type of Other Sources:   Fund 42 Fund Balance.  Waste water project 6 in 2013 impact fee update.

Project Manager: 

Certificates of Obligation

Equipment and Furniture
Contingency
TOTAL COSTS

FUNDING SOURCES

Construction

Elimination of two Lift Stations in 2017 at an estimated amount of $25,000.

TOTAL 
BUDGET CITY 

APPROP.
FUNDED 
BUDGET 2015

Prelim. Engineering Report
Land/Right of Way
Design/Surveying

2016 2017 2018 2019 PROJECT 
TOTAL

COST AVOIDANCE/PAYBACK PERIOD EXPLANATION

This project extends the trunk sewer south along Veterans Dr. as far as Dare Rd., providing gravity sewer service as follows: 
approximately 1,600 feet of 12" line, 16,680 feet of 18" line, and 4,920 feet of 24" line. 

PROJECT JUSTIFICATION
This will allow gravity sewer for development south of Bailey Rd. and eliminate two lift stations (Park Village and Springfield).  
This project will be developer driven.

INCREMENTAL OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE COSTS 
Impact on operating budget

Fiscal Year
Total Revenue
Personnel Services
Operation & Maintenance
Capital Outlay
Total Expense
FTE Staff Total

PROJECT # PREFERENCE ORDER
Veterans Drive Lift Station Service Area - WWM Project 11 WW1701 13
PROJECT NAME

No Yes (See Below)

102



-A- -F-

AC – An acronym meaning Asbestos Concrete. FM – An acronym meaning Farm-to-Market.
ADA – An acronym meaning American Disabilities Act. FNW – An acronym meaning Far North West.
ADF – An acronym meaning Average Daily Flow. FTE - An acronym meaning Full-Time Equivalent.
APPROP- An abbreviation meaning Appropriation. FY - An acronym meaning Fiscal Year.
AC-FT - Acre Feet

-G-
-B-

GEC - An acronym meaning General Engineering Consultant.
BCDD # 4 – An acronym meaning Brazoria County Drainage District #4 GCWA – An acronym meaning Gulf Coast Water Authority.
BC MUD # 4 – An acronym meaning Brazoria County Municipal GO – An acronym meaning General Obligation.
 Utility District #4

-H-
BW – An acronym meaning Beltway.

HCFCD – Harris County Flood Control District.
-C- HDPE – An acronym meaning High Density Polyethylene.

HGAC – An acronym meaning Houston-Galveston Area Council.
CAT - An abbeviation meaning Category. HVAC – An acronym meaning Heating, Ventilation, and Air
CDBG – An acronym meaning Community Development Block Grant.  Condition.
CIAD – Coastal Impact Assistance Program.
CIP – An acronym meaning Capital Improvement Program. -I-
CMAQ - Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
CO – An acronym meaning Certificates of Obligation. I/I – An acronym meaning Inflow and Infiltration.
CR – An acronym meaning County Road. IH - An acronym meaning Interstate Highway.

-E- -J-

EMS – An acronym meaning Emergency Medical Service.
EOC – An acronym meaning Emergency Operations Center.
ESA - An acronym meaning Environmental Site Assessment. -K-
EST - An acronym meaning Elevated Storage Tank.
ETJ - An acronym meaning Extraterritorial Jurisdiction. KPB - An acronym meaning Keep Pearland Beautiful.

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

BNSF – An acronym meaning Burlington Northern Santa Fe (Railroad).

JHEC – An acronym meaning John Hargrove Environmental Center.

103



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

-L- -S-

LF - An acronym meaning Linear Feet. SBR - An acronym meaning Sequential Batch Reactor.
LEED - Leadership in Energy & Environmental Design SCADA – An acronym meaning Supervisory Control and Data 

 Acquisition.
-M- SWEC – An acronym meaning Southwest Environmental Center.

SF – An acronym meaning Square Feet.
M - Million. ST – Street.
MEP – An acronym meaning Mechanical, Electrical, and Plumbing.
MGD – An acronym meaning million gallons per day. -T-
MUD – An acronym meaning Municipal Utility District.

TCEQ – An acronym meaning Texas Commission of Environmental 
-N-  Quality.

TIP – An acronym meaning Transportation Improvement Program.
NOI - an acronym meaning Notice of Intent. TOC – Traffic Operations Center

TXDOT – An acronym meaning Texas Department of Transportation.
-P-

-U-
PD - An acronym meaning Planned Development.
PEDC – An acronym meaning Pearland Economic Development 
Corporation. UDC – An acronym meaning Unified Development Code.

PER – An acronym meaning Preliminary Engineering Report. UHCL – An acronym meaning University of Houston Clear Lake.
PISD – An acronym meaning Pearland Independent School District.
PSB – Public Safety Building -V-
PVFD – An acronym meaning Pearland Volunteer Fire Department.

VOIP - An acronym meaning Voice Over Internet Protocol.
-R-

-W-
ROW – An acronym meaning Right-Of-Way.
RD - Road WWM – An acronym meaning Waste Water Model.

WWTP – An acronym meaning Waste Water Treatment Plant.

104



New 
Business 
Item No. 5 

5. Consideration and Possible Action – First Reading of Ordinance No.
1507 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas,
finding that the City has established Guidelines and Criteria for Granting
Tax Abatement pursuant to Resolution No. R2013-14; designating and
describing a Reinvestment Zone (to be known as Reinvestment Zone #26)
generally located at the intersection of McHard Road and SH35,  in
accordance with the Property Redevelopment and Tax Abatement Act;
finding that the improvements sought are feasible and practical and would
be a benefit to the land to be included in the zone and the municipality
after the expiration of the Tax Abatement Agreement; authorizing the City
Manager to sign tax abatement agreements when approved by the City
Council; having a savings clause and a severability clause; and an
effective date.



Ordinance No. 1507





















New 
Business 

Item No. 6 
6. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-117 – A

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing
the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Amended Development
Agreement with MHI Compressor International Corporation and MHI
Compressor Manufacturing, LLC.



Revised 2007-01-09 

AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In June 2013, the Pearland Economic Development Corporation (PEDC) began working with 
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries (MHI) on its search for a site to manufacture compressors and 
mechanical steam drive turbines.  In late 2013 MHI acquired and held a groundbreaking at its 
26-acre site in the Lower Kirby area just south of CSI and began construction in May of 2014. 
Because of the heavy weight of the compressors and turbines coming and going from the 
facility, the need to reconstruct Hooper Road from its site north to the Beltway frontage road 

AGENDA OF: 09/29/2014 ITEM NO.: Resolution No. R2014-117  
and R2014-119

 DATE SUBMITTED: 09/23/2014 DEPARTMENT OF ORIGIN: PEDC 

 PREPARED BY: Matt Buchanan PRESENTOR: Matt Buchanan 

REVIEWED BY: Matt Buchanan REVIEW DATE: 09/23/2014 

SUBJECT:   Resolution No. R2014-117: A Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter 
into an Amended Development Agreement with MHI Compressor International 
Corporation and MHI Compressor Manufacturing, LLC. 

Resolution No. R2014-119:  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Pearland, Texas, authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into a 
Letter Financing Agreement with the Lower Kirby Municipal Management 
District and Engineering Service Agreements with LJA Engineering, Inc. 
associated with the Hooper Road Reconstruction Project.  

EXHIBITS: 1. R2014 –117;  2.  Amendment to Development Agreement;  3. R2014 -
119 ;    4. Letter Financing Agreement; 5. Engineering Services Agreements

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED: $566,724 AMOUNT BUDGETED: $3,962,000 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE: $3,962,000 PROJECT NO.: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: 301-0000-565-01-00 and 050-0000-565-01-00 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.: N/A 
PROJECT NO.: N/A 
To be completed by Department: 

  Finance   Legal   Ordinance   Resolution 



Revised 2007-01-09 

was identified early on in the process.    Hooper Road is a two-lane asphalt road and will be 
utilized by MHI as the truck entrance for its permitted loads.     

In May of 2014 MHI entered into a Development Agreement with the City where it agreed to 
share with the City in cost of financing the reconstruction of Hooper Road.  The Development 
Agreement addresses the financing of Hooper Road and multiple site development issues that 
were negotiated and agreed to between MHI and staff.  The City will be reimbursed the amount 
financed from the Lower Kirby Pearland Municipal Management District (LKMMD).  The City, on 
behalf of the LKMMD, will contract for the design and construction of the improvements, 
including paving, drainage and detention, water, sewer, lighting and streetscape.     

MHI and the City have agreed to share in financing the cost of the paving, drainage and 
detention and lighting with MHI paying 75% and the City paying 25%.  The City is funding 100% 
of the water, sanitary sewer and streetscape improvements.    MHI provided the City its portion 
of the engineering and design work when it executed the agreement and will fund its portion of 
the construction improvements when it expands the facility, exceeds a specified number of 
permitted loads entering or exiting the site, or no later than March 31, 2017.  The total estimated 
cost of the improvements is $3.9M with MHI funding $2.4M and the City funding $1.5M. 

PEDC will provide up to $1.7M to the City for the City’s portion of the estimated cost of the 
Hooper Road reconstruction.    The Cost Sharing/Reimbursement Agreement was approved by 
the PEDC Board of Directors, after they conducted a public hearing, at their February 27th 
meeting and by the City on May 19th.  

We have two resolutions for City Council’s consideration regarding amending the Development 
Agreement between the City and MHI, consideration of a Letter of Financing Agreement (LFA) 
between the City and LKMMD and consideration of a proposal for engineering and design 
services with LJA Engineering Inc. The resolutions are as follows: 

1- Amendment to MHI Agreement – R2014-117 

MHI has requested amendments to the development agreement regarding the trigger event and 
timing of its contribution to Hooper Road.   Staff is recommending that we amend the 
Development Agreement to defer the payment due on October 7th 2014 to July 31, 2015.   This 
later date we believe will coincide with the completion of the engineering and the start of 
construction.    

2- Financing Agreement with LKMMD and Engineering Services Agreements – R2014-119 

In March of 2014 the City entered into a financing agreement with the LKMMD and the Pearland 
Management District #1 which outlined the process by which the City and Districts will work 
together to finance infrastructure in the Lower Kirby area.    The City and Districts will agree, on 
a case by case basis, for the City to provide advance funding to the Districts in order to facilitate 
development. When the City and Districts agree to a specific project they will enter into a “Letter 
Financing Agreement” (LFA) for each individual project prior to funding, design and construction 
of improvements.   

Attached you will find a LFA for the reconstruction of Hooper Road that has been approved by 
the LKMMD.   Also attached are contracts with LJA Engineering for $566,724 for engineering 
services.    The contract is in two separate proposals because of the need to separate the 
water, sanitary sewer and drainage facilitates from the roadway as these costs will be 
reimbursed by LKMMD from separate bond issuances.    



Revised 2007-01-09 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Consideration and approval of the resolution approving an Amendment to the Development  
Agreement with MHI Compressor International Corporation and MHI Compressor 
Manufacturing, LLC and authorizing the City Manager to execute the amendment. 

Consideration and approval of a resolution for the reconstruction of Hooper Road approving a 
Letter Financing Agreement with Lower Kirby Pearland Municipal Management District and an 
Engineering Services agreements with LJA Engineering, Inc. and authorizing the City Manager 
to execute the agreements.    



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-117 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into an Amended 
Development Agreement with MHI Compressor International 
Corporation and MHI Compressor Manufacturing, LLC. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That the City, MHI Compressor International Corporation and MHI 

Compressor Manufacturing, LLC. previously entered into the Development Agreement and 

attached hereto. 

Section 2. That the parties to the Development Agreement desire to amend the 

terms of said Agreement. 

Section 3. That certain Amended Development Agreement, a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby 

authorized and approved. 

Section 4. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest an Amended Development Agreement. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

_________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



    AMENDMENT TO 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Amendment (hereinafter “Amendment”) is made between the City of 

Pearland, Texas (hereinafter “City”), and MHI Compressor International and MHI 

Compressor Manufacturing, LLC (hereinafter, collectively “MHI”) to amend that 

Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) between the City and MHI effective May 

27
th

, 2014.

1. Amended Terms. The City and the MHI hereby agree that Section 4.2 c) 

Competitive Bidding, of the Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, is amended as 

follows:  

The parties to the Agreement acknowledge that a Trigger Event occurred 

on September 22, 2014 when MHI applied for a building permit for a 

portion of Phase II of the Project. As a result of the Trigger Event, MHI’s 

is currently obligated to pay the full Participation Amount to the City on 

or before October 7, 2014. In consideration of the anticipated 

construction schedule for the Road Improvements, City hereby authorizes 

MHI to delay payment of the full Participation Amount to the City until 

July 31, 2015. In consideration for the City’s agreement to delay 

payment of the full Participation Amount, MHI shall deliver to the City, 

within five (5) days following the execution of this Amended Agreement, 

a new or amended letter of credit issued by a bank reasonably satisfactory 

to the City securing MHI’s obligation to pay the full Participation 

Amount based on the delayed payment referenced herein. MHI’s failure 

to secure an amended letter of credit as required by this Amendment shall 

be deemed a Trigger Event and the City shall retain its rights to secure 

immediate payment of the full Participation Amount under the current 

letter of credit. 

2. Agreement to Remain in Force. Other than the provisions of the Agreement 

expressly amended herein, the Agreement, including other provisions of Section 4.2 c) 

not amended, shall remain in full force and its enforceability shall be unaffected by this 

Amendment. 

EXECUTED and EFFECTIVE as of the _______ day of ______________, 2014. 



CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

By: _______________________________________ 

Clay Pearson 

City Manager 

MHI COMPRESSOR 

MANUFACTURING, LLC 

By: _______________________________________ 

      Gampa I. Bhat 

Title: ___________________________ 

MHI COMPRESSOR 

INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION 

By: _________________________________ 

       Gampa I. Bhat 

Title: ________________________________ 



New 
Business 
Item No. 7 

7. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-119 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, authorizing
the City Manager or his designee to enter into a Letter Financing
Agreement with the Lower Kirby Municipal Management District and
Engineering Service Agreements with LJA Engineering, Inc. associated
with the Hooper Road Reconstruction Project.



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-119 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 

authorizing the City Manager or his designee to enter into a Letter 

Financing Agreement with the Lower Kirby Municipal Management 

District and Engineering Service Agreements with LJA Engineering, Inc. 

associated with the Hooper Road Reconstruction Project. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1. That certain Letter Financing Agreement by and between the City of 

Pearland and the Lower Kirby Municipal Management District, a copy of which is attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for all purposes, is hereby authorized and 

approved. 

Section 2. Those certain Engineering Service Agreements, by and between the 

City and LJA Engineering, Inc., copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibits “B” and “C” 

and made a part hereof for all  purposes, are hereby authorized and approved.  

Section 3. That the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute 

and the City Secretary to attest the Letter Financing Agreement and Engineering Service 

Agreements attached hereto. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the _____ day of _________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-119 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 











CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into upon final execution by and between the City of Pearland, on 
behalf of the Lower Kirby Municipal Management District("CITY") and LJA Engineering, Inc. 
("CONSULTANT"). 

The CITY engages the CONSULTANT to perform professional services for a project known and 
described as Hooper Road Extension ("PROJECT"). (Project # TR1406) 

SECTION I - SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 

The CONSULTANT shall perform the following professional services to CITY standards and in 
accordance with the degree of care and skill that a professional in Texas would exercise under 
the same or similar circumstances: 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide engineering services to serve Hooper Road 
reconstruction with water, sanitary sewer, and drainage facilities .  See Exhibit A, 
attached, for a detailed SCOPE OF WORK and PROJECT schedule. The 
PROJECT schedule shall be submitted in digital and hard copy form in the 
Microsoft Project for Windows format. 

B. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit a detailed opinion of estimated cost 
of the PROJECT. 

C. The CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY (through its employee 
handbook) considers the following to be misconduct that is grounds for 
termination of a CITY employee: Any fraud, forgery, misappropriation of funds, 
receiving payment for services not performed or for hours not worked, 
mishandling or untruthful reporting of money transactions, destruction of assets, 
embezzlement, accepting materials of value from vendors, or consultants, and/or 
collecting reimbursement of expenses made for the benefit of the CITY.  The 
CONSULTANT agrees that it will not, directly or indirectly; encourage a CITY 
employee to engage in such misconduct. 

D. The CONSULTANT shall submit all final construction documents in both hard 
copy and electronic format.  Plans shall be AutoCAD compatible and all other 
documents shall be Microsoft Office compatible.  The software version used shall 
be compatible to current CITY standards.  Other support documents, for example, 
structural calculations, drainage reports and geotechnical reports, shall be 
submitted in hard copy only. All Record Drawings electronic files shall be 
submitted to the CITY in TIF format. 

E. The CONSULTANT recognizes that all drawings, special provisions, field survey 
notes, reports, estimates and any and all other documents or work product 
generated by the CONSULTANT under the CONTRACT shall be delivered to the 
CITY upon request, shall become subject to the Open Records Laws of this State.  

Design   1 of 6     D1. Revised 1/14 

















Design  1 of 4  D10. Revised 12/11 

EXHIBIT A 

UTILITIES SCOPE OF DESIGN SERVICES 

FOR 

Hooper Road Extension 



Design  2 of 4  D10. Revised 12/11 

BASIC SERVICES: The Consultant shall render the following professional 

engineering services to the OWNER in connection with the construction of the 

Project. 

Preliminary Design Phase Services 

1. Data Collection

a) Attend Design Kick-Off meeting with City.

i. Review City informational resources and make arrangements to

obtain these.

ii. Discuss objectives of project and adjacent projects.

b) Procure such additional data as required through other services and/or

sub consultants.

c) Provide survey (metes, bounds & topo) info

d) Geotechnical data as required.

e) Environmental if required.

2. 

Design Phase Services 

a) Prepare Construction Plans and Specifications

b) Cost Estimates

i. Submit for review detailed construction plans at 60% & 90%

(along with specifications form at 60% - include bid form &

completed “front end documents” at 90%).

ii. Submit 60% & 90% plans to Utility companies and coordinate

work for relocation or service changes, if required.

iii. Coordinate with external regulatory and permitting agencies,

including but not limited to TCEQ, TXDOT, Brazoria DD #4 &

Harris County Flood Control & USACE (US Army Corp of

Engineers).



Design  3 of 4  D10. Revised 12/11 

iv. Provide Traffic Control plan and SWP3 plans and specifications, if

required.

v. Submit plans for City Engineer’s signature.

vi. Prepare bid sets for distribution via the City’s e-bid system.

Bid Phase Services 

1. Bid Phase Services

a. Provide Notice to Bidders (NTB) and list of bid items to the Project

Manager in an electronic form appropriate for the e-bid system

format. City is responsible for advertising.

b. Provide electronic copy of bid-ready plans to the City for the e-bid

system.

c. Chair pre-bid meeting and attend Bid Opening

d. Respond in writing to questions from bidders and prepare addenda,

coordinate with City as necessary.

e. Assist with design of Bid Proposal*

f. Prepare Engineer’s Recommendation of Award Letter that includes

the following required content:

i. Check for math errors and reconcile any mathematical

discrepancies

ii. Review for unbalance bid items

iii. Certified Bid Tabulation including Engineer’s estimate

iv. Review of contractor’s financial standing and references

provided

v. Explanation of discrepancies between the Engineer’s

estimate and bids

vi. Recommendation to award

2. Attend City Council meeting and recommendation for award of Contract

for Construction.

3. Produce and transmit to selected contractor five (5) sets of plans and

project manuals in hard copy, and one electronic format copy to Project



Design  4 of 4  D10. Revised 12/11 

Manager, in a format ready for execution with City’s Notice of Intent to 

Award (NOI) (PM/CM)  

*This is the use of bid strategies to attain lowest possible prices for work, use of

alternatives, etc. 

Construction Phase Services 

4. Construction Phase Services

a. Construction Administration

i. Attend pre-construction meeting to provide information &

answer questions

ii. If needed attend monthly progress meetings with CM/PM,

Contractor & City of Pearland

iii. Review & comment on Construction’s submittals, RFIs,

RCOs including coordination with CM/PM on Change

Directives & Change Orders using the City of Pearland’s Pro

Trak system

iv. Provide interpretive guidance for Contractor, CM/PM in

resolution of problems

v. Coordinate with CM/PM to review progress of work for

Substantial Completion; with production of punch list;

substantiation that items are completed; and issue both

Certificate of Substantial Completion & Final Acceptance

vi. Provide Record Drawings from Contractor’s asbuilts in (PDF

format) and an AutoCAD file (.dwg), or compatible .dxf file

Definition: 

1) As-Builts “redlines”: Contractor’s record of field changes to the work in line,

grade & elevation 

2) Record Drawings: Engineer’s incorporation of contractor’s As-Builts



Design  1 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

EXHIBIT A 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT/PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

FOR 

Hooper Road Extension 

& 

Water, Sewer and Drainage 



Design  2 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

BASIC SERVICES: Construction Manager(s) shall render the following 

professional services to the OWNER in connection with the construction of 

the Project. 

1. Pre-Construction

1.1. Attend Pre-Bid Meeting; provide feedback to as necessary, such 

as: tracking and recording questions for the Engineer’s written 

response, clarifying the Owner’s expectations for the project and 

the project execution. 

1.2. Chair Pre-Construction Meeting 

1.2.1. Schedule and conduct the pre-construction meeting; 

record and disseminate minutes from pre-construction 

meeting. 

1.2.2. Utilize the City’s Pro-Trak system: set 

communications protocol and contract administration 

procedures, establish progress meeting schedule and 

submittal schedule. 

1.2.3. Provide agenda for meeting: Key milestone dates, 

pay application procedures, schedule, public 

notification issues and procedures, utility coordination 

issues, traffic control, permitting, property owner 

notification and coordination, temporary facilities, 

contractor’s use of City’s Pro-Trak system, etc. 

2. Construction Administration and Management Services

2.1. Act as the City’s on-site representative administering the contract 

for construction and providing overall project oversight, maintain 

record of decisions and changes made. 

2.2. Meetings: Schedule and conduct construction progress meetings; 

record minutes from construction progress meetings and distribute 



Design  3 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

via Pro-Trak to: City Project Manager, Design Engineer and 

contractor throughout the duration of the project. 

2.2.1. Schedule meetingsas necessary , , to review the 

following: work progress and schedule, outstanding 

issues, status of submittals and responses shop 

drawings unforeseen issues and changes to the work. 

2.2.2. Coordinate additional meetings as necessary to 

discuss and resolve problems and provide guidance 

in a timely manner. 

2.2.3. Coordinate/monitor the following: utility relocation 

activities for compliance, utility installation verification, 

reporting, record management and as-built drawings. 

2.2.4. Attend all utility coordination, construction, and 

scheduling meetings. 

2.2.5. Obtain copy of ROW permit and prints from Public 

Works in order to monitor progress of utility relocation 

per permit/plan. 

2.3. Manage Construction 

2.3.1. All final documentation is required in electronic/digital 

format, utilizing Pro-Trak as is feasible. 

2.3.2. As field problems arise, notify the Design Engineer 

and City Project Manager of proposed solutions to 

resolve problems. 

2.3.3. Review and update as-built documents regularly with 

contractor. 

2.3.4. Monitor and ensure adherence to approved project 

baseline schedule.  Review contractor’s schedule 

monthly, ensure compliance with City’s intended 

schedule, and provide recommendations as needed 

to retain and regain schedule if needed.   



Design  4 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

2.3.5. Recommend alternate project sequencing/scheduling 

to keep project on schedule. 

2.3.6. Prepare monthly summary report of construction 

activities with outstanding issues outlined for review. 

Monthly progress information associated with the 

project will be submitted to the Project Manager for 

review and approval. 

2.3.7. Record weather conditions on jobsite daily. 

2.4. Coordinate work of contractor with external agencies and utility 

companies. Coordinate contractor’s operations with regard to other 

City contracts and construction as well as with property owners for 

planned service outages, street closures, and access control issues 

to properties including notifications. 

2.4.1. Verify construction conformance and compliance with 

TCEQ, NOI and NOT. 

2.4.2. Verify construction conformance with permitted 

activities such as: City of Pearland permits, U.S. Army 

Corps of Engineers permits, TxDOT roadway permits, 

and any Railroad agreements. 

2.5. Maintain records of all decisions, actions and activities with regard 

to construction operations via the City’s Pro-Trak system(i.e. 

Change Orders, RFIs and responses, Submittals and responses, 

Request for Proposals, correspondence, SWPPP inspections.) 

3. Construction Inspection Services

3.1. Provide part-time on-site technical observation of Contractor’s 

activities to verify and ensure all work materials, structures, 

equipment and workmanship comply with the Contract Documents 

including Addenda, and Change Orders.  Verify and ensure that 

Contractor maintains good construction practices and professional 



Design  5 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

standards prevailing in the local City, County, and State of Texas. 

Utilize City’s Pro-Trak system for all inspection reports. 

3.1.1. Notify the City if Contractor’s work is not in 

compliance with the Contract Documents or 

specifications. Notify the Design Engineer of any 

failure of the Contractor to take measures to repair 

and bring work in compliance. 

3.1.2. Issue Advisory Notices to Contractor for work that is 

not in compliance with approved construction 

documents. 

3.1.3. Issue Non-Compliance Reports to Contractor if non-

conforming work is not brought into compliance or if 

plan of action to bring work into compliance is not 

conducted in timely manner. 

3.1.4. Inspect and observe the materials and equipment 

being incorporated into the work to assure that they 

are handled, stored and installed in accordance with 

the Contract Documents and specifications. Report to 

the City regarding these activities. 

3.2. Identify, record and notify Design Engineer of any problems or 

failures to meet performance requirements in a timely manner to 

minimize delay in the progress of the project, make 

recommendation(s) for appropriate solution to the City and Design 

Engineer.  

3.3. Prepare and maintain daily progress log or daily construction 

reports, photographs, records and track quantities installed that day 

utilizing the City’s Pro-Trak system.   

3.4. Ensure contractor reviews and approves daily reports and 

quantities. 

3.5. Verify contractor has obtained necessary permits and is 

maintaining any Traffic Control, public notification and Storm Water 



Design  6 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

Pollution Prevention Plans, facilities, equipment or arrangements in 

accordance with contract documents. 

3.6. Attend and participate in progress meetings. 

3.7. Create contacts for your record for: names, addresses, telephone 

numbers and email of all contractors, subcontractors, sub 

consultants and major suppliers of material and equipment; store in 

City’s Pro-Trak system. 

3.8. Immediately notify the City and Design Engineer in the event of an 

on-site accident. Record and note conditions, activities and 

witnesses to the event. 

3.9. Maintain Resolution Log and respond to citizen complaints in Pro-

Trak system. 

Consult with City and Design Engineer in advance of scheduled 

major work operations, tests, inspections or start of important 

phases of project. 

4. Pay Applications

4.1. Pay applications will be generated by the City’s Pro-Trak system 

based on quantities approved in the daily reports..  Review and 

verify quantities provided by contractor for all work in compliance 

with contract documents. 

4.1.1. Review work conducted daily on daily inspection 

reports and material installed measurements 

submitted by contractor; verify work conducted and 

bid item quantities via Pro-Trak; meet monthly to 

review pay estimate and quantities with contractor 

4.1.2. Review progress pay application with Design 

Engineer for approval or revision prior to submittal to 

City. 



Design  7 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

4.1.3. Finalize pay application with signatures from 

Contractor, Engineer and Construction Manager 

certifying quantities and amounts via Pro-Trak. 

4.1.4. Notify City when all electronic signatures are 

completed in the Pro-Trak system for invoice 

processing. 

4.1.5. Track and record requests for rain or other delays 

with potential to add to Contract Time in Daily Reports 

in Pro-Trak. 

4.1.6. Provide an independent quantity forecast bid items to 

identify potential quantity over-runs as part of pay 

estimate review. 

4.2. Upon completion of the work, prepare a final progress payment 

including a balancing change order zeroing out all unused 

quantities utilizing Pro-Trak. Identify and add additional quantities 

and make any approved changes to the Contract Time. 

4.2.1. Review and coordinate with Design Engineer to 

provide Engineer’s recommendation for Substantial 

Completion or Final Acceptance. (See Close-out 

Section) 

5. Document Control

5.1. Utilize the City’s Pro-Trak system to: receive, route, track and log 

all Contractor communications, Submittals, Change Orders, RFIs, 

Pay Applications and Citizen Complaint/Resolution Log; 

communicate with Contractor the status of submittal reviews; 

review submittal and RFI log in Pro-Trak to ensure timely 



Design  8 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

responses; notify City, Contractor and Design Engineer of time 

critical issues.  

5.1.1. Respond to RFIs when such response does not 

require the Engineer’s opinion or expertise or 

direction from City. 

5.1.2. Assemble and maintain notes, comments, sketches 

and supportive data relative to the Project to facilitate 

the revision of drawings to conform to the final as-built 

conditions. Review Contractor’s record keeping 

periodically to ensure completeness, timeliness and 

progress. 

6. Change Orders

6.1. Prepare and issue request for proposals in a timely manner via Pro-

Trak.  Review RFP and contractor proposal for additional work with 

City and Design Engineer for approval.  Ensure the status of RFP 

and Responses from Contractor, City and Design Engineer are 

logged and tracked in the Pro-Trak system.  

6.2. Provide recommendation on technical matters as an advocate for 

the City. Evaluate Contractor’s response/proposal for merit, cost, 

time, accuracy and price practicality. Negotiate with Contractor on 

City’s behalf if required. 

6.3. Prepare Change Order and documentation including signatures of 

Contractor, Engineer and Construction Manager for delivery to City. 

7. Testing Laboratory and Results

7.1. Coordinate testing laboratory activities with Contractor’s activities. 

Review test reports for compliance with Contract Documents. Log, 

track and retain test reports in Pro-Trak. Review results with 

Contractor. Monitor any corrective action and re-testing for 

compliance.  Maintain compliance with City’s specifications 



Design  9 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

7.1.1. Review lab test reports and log any failures. 

7.1.2. Review Invoicing from Laboratory to daily activities. 

8. Project Completion and Close out

8.1. A. Provide list of deliverables for substantial completion walk 

through/inspection.  Schedule and conduct project walk through 

upon receipt of Contractor’s notification of substantial completion. 

Include City, Design Engineer and others as directed. Prepare a list 

of non-conforming work based on visual inspections via Pro-Trak.  

Record and monitor contractor’s corrective efforts and schedule.  

Schedule final completion inspection for any remaining corrections. 

B. Coordinate and obtain Design Engineer’s signature and seal on 

Substantial Completion certificate and Final Completion and 

Acceptance certificate via Pro-Trak. 

8.2. Review and compile any Operation and Maintenance documents 

required from the Contractor – forward to Engineer for review.  

Ensure Contractor’s closeout documents are uploaded to Pro-Trak. 

Review for completeness and accuracy, including; affidavits of final 

payment, final pay estimates, as built records, redlines and 

drawings.  Once received, notify the Design Engineer and City 

when completed. 

8.2.1. Upon completion of close out items, provide 

recommendation for City’s Substantial 

Completion/Final Acceptance certificate. 

8.2.2. Provide indexed project files,redline plans and asbuilt 

or record drawings to City via Pro-Trak. 

8.3. Conduct Project Close-Out Meeting. 

8.4. Prepare and recommend final payment application. (Prepare job 

record logs transmittals, and correspondence reports in an 

organized file for delivery to City.)  



Design  10 of 10  D5. Revised 01/12 

8.5. Consult with City on any potential Warranty items requiring repair or 

replacement. 

9. Warranty Period

9.1. Schedule, arrange and coordinate a One Year Walk-through of the 

project to review status of the work 30 days prior to expiration of the 

One Year Maintenance period.  

9.2. Provide staff to conduct and participate in the warranty inspections. 

9.3. Prepare list of non conforming work for presentation to the City, 

Design Engineer and Contractor via Pro-Trak. 

  9.4. Oversee repairs for non conforming work with Contractor. 

  9.5. Submit final report on completed warranty repairs via Pro-Trak. 



CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT is entered into upon final execution by and between the City of Pearland, on 
behalf of the Lower Kirby Municipal Management District ("CITY") and LJA Engineering, Inc. 
("CONSULTANT"). 

The CITY engages the CONSULTANT to perform professional services for a project known and 
described as Hooper Road Extension ("PROJECT"). (Project # TR1406) 

SECTION I - SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 

The CONSULTANT shall perform the following professional services to CITY standards and in 
accordance with the degree of care and skill that a professional in Texas would exercise under 
the same or similar circumstances: 

A. The CONSULTANT shall provide engineering services for paving and 
appurtenances to Hooper Road extension.  See Exhibit A, attached, for a detailed 
SCOPE OF WORK and PROJECT schedule. The PROJECT schedule shall be 
submitted in digital and hard copy form in the Microsoft Project for Windows 
format. 

B. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit a detailed opinion of estimated cost 
of the PROJECT. 

C. The CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY (through its employee 
handbook) considers the following to be misconduct that is grounds for 
termination of a CITY employee: Any fraud, forgery, misappropriation of funds, 
receiving payment for services not performed or for hours not worked, 
mishandling or untruthful reporting of money transactions, destruction of assets, 
embezzlement, accepting materials of value from vendors, or consultants, and/or 
collecting reimbursement of expenses made for the benefit of the CITY.  The 
CONSULTANT agrees that it will not, directly or indirectly; encourage a CITY 
employee to engage in such misconduct. 

D. The CONSULTANT shall submit all final construction documents in both hard 
copy and electronic format.  Plans shall be AutoCAD compatible and all other 
documents shall be Microsoft Office compatible.  The software version used shall 
be compatible to current CITY standards.  Other support documents, for example, 
structural calculations, drainage reports and geotechnical reports, shall be 
submitted in hard copy only. All Record Drawings electronic files shall be 
submitted to the CITY in TIF format. 

E. The CONSULTANT recognizes that all drawings, special provisions, field survey 
notes, reports, estimates and any and all other documents or work product 
generated by the CONSULTANT under the CONTRACT shall be delivered to the 
CITY upon request, shall become subject to the Open Records Laws of this State.  

Design   1 of 6     D1. Revised 1/14 

















 

Design                                                            1 of 6                                                   D6. Revised 1/12 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRANSPORTATION SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

FOR 

 

Hooper Road Extension 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Design  2 of 6  D6. Revised 1/12 

BASIC SERVICES: The Consultant shall render the following professional 

engineering services to the OWNER in connection with the construction of the 

Project.  

1. Preliminary Phase Services

a. Attend meetings with City & external agencies including County,

State & Federal entities, as required, to identify & solicit necessary

information.

b. Gather City’s existing information

c. Provide or Procure additional information as required from

i. Surveyor & Base plans

ii. Geotechnical Consultants

iii. Environmental Consultants if needed

iv. Record drawing and/or As-Builts information from previously

constructed utilities

v. Data Submit Preliminary Design data Design

Recommendation & review of Design Alternatives

vi. Alignment & Topographic Surveys in accordance with City

Standards

vii. Draft Geotechnical report with bore location logs & pavement

design recommendations

viii. Draft environmental study Phase 1 site assessment &

Preliminary Jurisdictional Wetlands Determination and

schedule USACE verification; if required, Preliminary

Mitigation plan; if required,

ix. Prepare 30% construction drawings

1. Drainage Study Report: Drainage Area maps with

developed area flow calculations and preliminary



 

Design                                                            3 of 6                                                   D6. Revised 1/12 

Drainage Design in accordance with HCFCD and/or 

as applicable BDD4 requirements 

2. Preliminary Horizontal & Vertical Alignment in Plan & 

Profile format 

x. Preliminary parcel map per additional services Part 1: 

1. existing easements & right of way 

2. proposed easements & right of way 

3. requirements with owner’s information 

4. parcel owner’s information 

5. existing improvements  

6. existing permanent improvements within 25’ of 

proposed ROW 

xi. Identify utility conflicts & notify utilities 

xii. Prepare a preliminary Engineer’s estimate 

xiii. Attend monthly progress/update meetings 

d. Submit Final Report  

i. Prepare written response to City’s review comments 

ii. Make revisions to report & resubmit for final approval 

iii. Submit final report when all comments are addressed 

 

2. Final Design Phase Services 

a. Prepare final plans details specifications and cost estimate in 

accordance with City of Pearland’s Design Criteria Manual (DCM) 

i. prepare detailed construction drawings, specifications and 

construction bid packages for the proposed Projects 

ii. attend monthly progress/update meetings at the City 

 



Design  4 of 6  D6. Revised 1/12 

iii. including roadway geometrics, pavement, drainage,

sidewalks, pavement markings, traffic signals, utilities, and

other design elements as necessary

iv. provide work sequencing plans – coordinated with other

work and other local projects

v. provide two (2) sets plans and specifications and estimates

to City for review at 60% & 90%; provide written

comments/resolution to City revisions/comments

vi. submit 60% & 90% plans to utility company’s for

coordination of utility relocating; coordinate with City on

formal notifications

vii. coordinate with utility companies & pipeline companies to

identify conflicts & schedule relocations

viii. coordinate submittals for review & acquire approvals of all

permits including and not limited to: TxDOT, Railroads,

USACE, Nationwide or Individual permits (if required) &

County Drainage Districts

ix. coordinate with private developments & other public entity

engineer’s for adjoining work/projects

x. prepare bid sets in pdf for distribution via the City’s e-bid

system; including Plans, Specifications, Bid Proposal,

(utilizing City Standard Details + Specs; for details &

specification sections the City does not have, submit

proposed supplement specs) Submit to City for signatures

xi. prepare Engineer’s estimate



 

Design                                                            5 of 6                                                   D6. Revised 1/12 

3. Bid Phase Services 

a. Provide Notice to Bidders (NTB) and list of bid items to the the City 

in an electronic form appropriate for the e-bid system format. City is 

responsible for advertising. 

b. Provide electronic copy of bid-ready plans to the the City for the e-

bid system. 

c. Chair pre-bid meeting and attend Bid Opening 

d. Respond in writing to questions from bidders and prepare addenda, 

coordinate with the City  as necessary. 

e. Assist with design of Bid Proposal* 

f. Prepare Engineer’s Recommendation of Award Letter that includes 

the following required content: 

i. Check for math errors and reconcile any mathematical 

discrepancies 

ii. Review for unbalance bid items 

iii. Certified Bid Tabulation including Engineer’s estimate  

iv. Review of contractor’s financial standing and references 

provided 

v. Explanation of discrepancies between the Engineer’s 

estimate and bids 

vi. Recommendation to award 

4. Attend City Council meeting and recommendation for award of Contract 

for Construction. 

5. Produce and transmit to selected contractor five (5) sets of project 

manuals ready for execution with City’s Notice of Intent to Award (NOI) 

(CM/PM) 

*This is the use of bid strategies to attain lowest possible prices for work, use of 

alternatives, etc. 

 

 

6. Construction Phase Services 



Design  6 of 6  D6. Revised 1/12 

a. Construction Administration

i. Attend pre-construction meeting to provide information &

answer questions

ii. If needed attend monthly progress meetings with Project

Manager/Construction Manager, Contractor & City of

Pearland as needed

iii. Review/approve & comment on Contractor’s submittals,

RFIs, Contractor Proposals, Request for Change Orders

(RCO) including coordination with Construction Manager on

Proposals & Change Orders using the City of Pearland’s

Pro-Trak system.

iv. Provide interpretive guidance for Contractor, CM/PM in

resolution of problems as needed

v. Issue both the Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance

(PM/CM)

vi. Provide Record Drawings from Contractor’s asbuilts in (PDF

format) and an AutoCAD file (.dwg), or compatible .dxf file

Definition: 

1) As-Builts “redlines”: Contractor’s record of field changes to the work in line,

grade & elevation 

2) Record Drawings: Engineer’s incorporation of contractor’s As-Builts



New 
Business 
Item No. 8 

8 City Council Policy Discussion Regarding Approach to requested In-
City Municipal Utility Districts for developers’ rebate of portion of property 
tax. 



New Business No. 8













































New 
Business 
Item No. 9 

9. Consideration and Possible Action – Resolution No. R2014-118 – A
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, directing
staff to prepare a service plan for the proposed annexation of 12.29 acres
located on the west side of County Road 48, west of Southern Trails
Subdivision and approximately 2000 feet south of  Broadway Street.



RESOLUTION NO. R2014-118 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Pearland, Texas, 
directing staff to prepare a service plan for the proposed annexation 
of 12.29 acres located on the west side of County Road 48, west of 
Southern Trails Subdivision and approximately 2000 feet south of 
Broadway Street. 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  That the City Council hereby directs staff to prepare a service plan 

for the proposed annexation of the property more particularly described in exhibits “A” 

and “B” attached hereto. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this ______day of ________________, 

A.D., 2014. 

________________________________ 
TOM REID 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
YOUNG LORFING, TRMC 
CITY SECRETARY 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

______________________________ 
DARRIN M. COKER 
CITY ATTORNEY 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

AGENDA OF: September 29, 2014 ITEM NO.:    

DATE SUBMITTED: September 22, 2014 DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 

PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao PREPARED BY: Johnna Matthews 

REVIEWED BY:  Matt Buchanan        REVIEW DATE:  September 23, 2014 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. R2014-118 - A Resolution of the City Council of the 
City of Pearland, Texas, directing staff to prepare a service plan for 
the proposed voluntary annexation of 12.29 acres located on the 
west side of County Road 48, west of Southern Trails Subdivision 
and approximately 2,000 feet south of Broadway Street. 

ATTACHMENTS:     Attachment 1:  Property Owner Request for Annexation 
    Attachment 2:  Surrounding Zoning Map 
    Attachment 3:  Aerial Map 
    Attachment 4:  FLUP Map 

EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 

To be completed by Department: 
    Finance     Legal  Ordinance   Resolution 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The subject property includes approximately 12.29 acres of land, of which the property 
owners are requesting consideration for annexation into the city.  Approximately 9.57 
acres is owned by Joe Laney; and approximately 2.72 acres is owned by John McMahan 
(See Attachment 1, Property Owner Request for Annexation).  The subject property is 
adjacent to an approximately 20-acre tract located west of the subject property, which is 
currently located within the city and is zoned Single-Family Estate (R-E).  The applicant 
is working with homebuilders to rezone the 20-acre tract to Single-Family Residential 1 
(R-1).  Upon annexation of the subject property, the applicant will request a zone change 
to R-1, and combine it with the 20-acre tract for an R-1 single family cluster development. 

Resolution No. R2014-118



The applicant has also indicated the intention of adding the property to the boundaries of 
MUD 34, if annexed into the city.   
 
It is important to note that the annexation of the subject 12.29 acres will leave an 
unincorporated pocket of approximately 5.26 acres just north of the subject property, 
which would be surrounded by the corporate limits of the city of Pearland on all sides 
(See Attachment 2, Surrounding Zoning District Map).  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL:  Hold a discussion and give staff direction 
regarding the voluntary annexation of the approximately 12.29 acre property located on 
the west side of County Road 48 and west of Southern Trails Subdivision. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Attachment 1
Property Owner Request for Annexation



Scale 1:3,105
1 in = 259 ft
July 23, 2014 

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It 
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location

of property boundaries.





Scale 1:3,105
1 in = 259 ft
July 23, 2014 

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It 
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location

of property boundaries.





PUD

RE

CR 48CR 967

SOUTHERN VALLEY DR

IVY RUN LN

TRAIL HOLLOW DR

ORCHARD MILL LN
SHADY RUN LN

FLORAL PARK LN

SOUTHERN GREEN DR

HONEYSICKLE RD 2750

2818

2714

2770

2723

2710

2802

2819

2811

2807

2903

2342

2330

2334

2715

2803

2715B

2806

2334

2715

2723

2814

2711

3112

3386

3115

3384

3111

3203

3110
3110

3401

3410 3405

3400

3108

3405

3401

3113

3403

3409

3106

3405

3109
3107

3402

3407

3111

3402

3406

340734063404 3404

3107

3411

31093106
3104

3409

3108

3320

3407

3318

3406

3301

3202

3408
3410

3206
3204

2710

2402

2406

2802

3201

2710

12905

3305

3322

3404

3411

3101

3400

3102
3104

3409

12520

3401
3402

2710

3303

3403

3412

3402
3403

2710

12412

3201

3410

12903

12508

13100

3202

3201

3408

3408

3408 3404

12904

3413

12413

3406
3397

3103

3203

12415

12906

12501

12515

3211

3400

3301

12513

12518

12612

12501

3315

3205

3203

3203

12503

3304

3316

3308

3312

3106

3310

3314

3201

12413

12501

12506

12502

1250212507

12500

3105

12511

12504

12607

12514

12505

12608

1251212516

12411

12505

12506

12508

12607

3313

3302

12508

3214

12901

3210

12802

13002

3314

12904

3212
3205

12504

13004 12814

12502

12906

3208

13008

3318

12908
13006

12504

3316

12910
12808

12902

12506

12608

12605

12812

1250712606
1250813001 12602

12602

12810

12603
12504

12609

12915

3304

12604

12806

12606

12508

12610

3306

1250212509

12510

12503

12912

12510

12614

12916

12412

12506

12603

3207

12507

12601

3311

12605 12505

12914

12601

3204

3302

12602

3209

126043202

3207

3204 12606

12902

3206

3206

3211
3207

12620

3209

12603

3216 12617

3208

12506

12608

12804

3312

12610
12607

13105

12918

12605
12609

13002

126043205

12804

3209
3211

3305

12611
12612

12801

3307 3307

12613

3306

2770

3215

12605

3303

3213

12500

13001

12606
12610

1260113103

12615

12504

3305

3221 12612

12607

12616
12608

12602

3301

3309

13101

3219

12603

3217

13003

12811

12916

12913

12914

1291112909
12903 12805

1280312809

12806

12901

1281012818

13004

1281412910

13005

1290612902

13003

1300513011

13014 1300613012
13008

13010

13009
13012

13008

13109

2802

300330043009

3382

2806

12409

12409

12412

ZONING MAP
ANNEXATION
WEST SIDE OF CR 48 &
WEST OF SOUTHERN 
TRAILS SUBDIVISION

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 422 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Attachment 2



CR 48CR 967

SOUTHERN VALLEY DR

IVY RUN LN

TRAIL HOLLOW DR

ORCHARD MILL LN
SHADY RUN LN

FLORAL PARK LN

SOUTHERN GREEN DR

HONEYSICKLE RD 2750

2818

2714

2770

2723

2710

2802

2819

2811

2807

2903

2342

2330

2334

2715

2803

2715B

2806

2334

2715

2723

2814

2711

3112

3386

3115

3384

3111

3203

3110
3110

3401

34103409 3405

3400

3108

3405

3401

3113

3403

3409

3106

3408

3405

3109
3107

3402

3407

3111

3402

3406

340734063404 3404

3107

3411

31093106
3104

3409

3108

3320

3407

3318

3406

3301

3202

3408
3410

3206
3204

2710

2402

2406

2802

3201

2710

12905

3305

3322

3404

3411

3101

3400

3102
3104

12520

3401
3402

2710

3303

3403

3412

3402
3403

2710

12412

3201

3410

12903

12508

13100

3202

3201

3408

3408

3404

12904

3413

12413

3406
3397

3103

3203

12415

12906

12501

12515

3211

3400

3301

12513

12518

12612

12501

3315

3205

3203

3203

12503

3304

3316

3308

3312

3106

3310

3314

3201

12413

12501

12506

12502

1250212507

12500

3105

12511

12504

12607

12514

12505

12608

1251212516

12411

12505

12506

12508

12607

3313

3302

12508

3214

12901

3210

12802

13002

3314

12904

3212
3205

12504

13004 12814

12502

12906

3208

13008

3318

12908
13006

12504

3316

12910
12808

12902

12506

12608

12605

12812

1250712606
1250813001 12602

12602

12810

12603
12504

12609

12915

3304

12604

12806

12606

12508

12610

3306

1250212509

12510

12503

12912

12510

12614

12916

12412

12506

12603

3207

12507

12601

3311

12605 12505

12914

12601

3204

3302

12602

3209

126043202

3207

3204 12606

12902

3206

3206

3211
3207

12620

3209

12603

3216 12617

3208

12506

12608

12804

3312

12610
12607

13105

12918

12605
12609

13002

126043205

12804

3209
3211

3305

12611
12612

12801

3307 3307

12613

3306

2770

3215

12605

3303

3213

12500

13001

12606
12610

1260113103

12615

12504

3305

3221 12612

12607

12616
12608

12602

3301

3309

13101

3219

12603

3217

13003

12811

12916

12913

12914

1291112909
12903 12805

1280312809

12806

12901

1281012818

13004

1281412910

13005

1290612902

13003

1300513011

13014 1300613012
13008

13010

13009
13012

13008

13109

2802

300330043009

3382

2806

12409

12409

12412

AERIAL MAP
ANNEXATION
WEST SIDE OF CR 48 &
WEST OF SOUTHERN 
TRAILS SUBDIVISION

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 422 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Attachment 3



Low Density Residential

Parks

CR 48CR 967

SOUTHERN VALLEY DR

IVY RUN LN

ORCHARD MILL LN
SHADY RUN LN

FLORAL PARK LN

HONEYSICKLE RD

TRAIL RUN LN

2750

2818

2714

2770

2723

2710

2802

2819

2811

2807

2903

2342

2330

2334

2715

2803

2715B

2806

2334

2715

2723

2814

2711

3112

3386

3115

3384

3111

3203

3110
3110

3401

34103409 3405

3400

3108

3405

3401

3113

3403

3409

3106

3408

3405

3109
3107

3402

3407

3111

3402

3406

340734063404 3404

3107

3411

31093106
3104

3409

3108

3320

3407

3318

3406

3202

3408
3410

3206
3204

2710

2402

2406

2802

3201

2710

12905

3305

3322

3404

3411

3101

3400

3102
3104

12520

3401
3402

2710

3303

3403

3412

3402
3403

2710

12412

3201

3410

12903

12508

13100

3202

3201

3408

3408

3404

12904

3413

12413

3406
3397

3103

3203

12415

12906

12501

12515

3211

3400

3301

12513

12518

12612

12501

3205

3203

3203

12503

3304

3316

3308

3312

3106

3310

3314

3201

12413

12501

12506

12502

1250212507

12500

3301

3105

12511

12504

12607

12514

12505

12608

1251212516

12411

12505

12506

12508

12607

3313

3302

12508

3214

12901

3210

12802

13002

3314

12904

3212
3205

12504

13004 12814

12502

12906

3208

13008

3318

12908
13006

12504

12910
1280812902

12506

12608

12605

12812

1250712606
1250813001 12602

12602

12810

12603
12504

12609

12915

3304

12604

12806

12606

12508

12610

3306

1250212509

12510

12503

12912

12510

12614

12916

12412

12506

12603

3207

12507

12601

3311

12605 12505

12914

12601

3204

3302

12602

3209

126043202

3207

3204 12606

12902

3206

3206

3211
3207

12620

3209

12603

3216 12617

3208

12506

12608

12804

3312

12610
12607

13105

12918

12605
12609

13002

126043205

12804

3209
3211

3305

12611
12612

12801

3307
3309

3307

3208 12613

3306

2770

3213 3215

12605

33033216

3310

32133212

12500

3218

13001

12606
12610

1260113103

12615

12504

3305

3203

3311

3221 12612

12607

12616
12608

12602

3309

13101

3219

12603

3217

13003

3313

12811

12916

12913

12914

1291112909
12903 12805

1280312809

12806

12901

1281012818

13004

1281412910

13005

1290612902

13003

13005
13011

13014 1300613012
13008

13010

13009
13008

13010

13109

2802

300330043009

3382

2806

12409

12409

12412

FLUP MAP
ANNEXATION
WEST SIDE OF CR 48 &
WEST OF SOUTHERN 
TRAILS SUBDIVISION

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 422 feet
22 MAY 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

SITE

Attachment 4


	Agenda 
	Public Hearing - Reinvestment Zone
	Agenda Request
	Property Description 
	Map

	Consent Agenda A- Minutes
	July 21, 2014, Joint Public Hearing 
	August 25, 2014, Regular Meeting 
	September 2, 2014, Special Meeting 
	September 8, 2014, Special Meeting
	September 15, 2014, Special Meeting 

	Consent Agends B - Zone Change 2014-12Z Backs Brewery 
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 2000M-118
	Staff Memo
	Staff Report
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Future Land Use Map
	Notification Map
	Notification List
	Returned Notices


	Consent Agenda C - Zone Change 2014-13Z Town Center
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 2000M-119
	Staff Memo
	Staff Report
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map
	Future Land Use Map
	Notification Map
	Notification List
	Returned Notices
	Existing Sign Regulations


	New Business No. 1 Tax Rate
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 1505 

	New Business No. 2- Adoption of FY2015 Budget 
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance 1506
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C COP Salary Plan
	Exhibit C Police Pay Plan
	Exhibit C Fire Pay Plan
	General Fund Change List

	New Business No. 3 -  Fee Ordinance FY2015  
	Agenda Request
	Ordinance No. 1358-11
	Fee Schedule
	Natatorium Rates
	Fee Schedule - Red Lined Version
	Natatorium Rates

	New Business No. 4 - Five-Year CIP Adoption 
	Agenda Request- Five Year CIP 2015 - 2019
	Resolution No. 2014-121
	5 Year Capital Improvement Plan

	New Business No. 5 Reinvestment Zone 
	Agenda Request 
	Ordinance No. 1507
	Property Descriptions
	Aerial Map

	New Business No. 6 Amended Agreement with MHI Compressor 
	Agenda Request
	Resolution No. R2014-117 
	Exhibit "A" - Amendment  
	New Business No. 7 LFA with Lower Kirby Municipal District and LJA Engineering
	Resolution No. R2014-119
	Exhibit "A" - Financing Agreement
	Exhibit "B" - Engineering Water and Drainage	
	Exhibit "C" - Engineering Paving

	New Business No. 8 - In-City Municipal Utility Districts 
	Agenda Request
	Map- Undeveloped Properties
	Data- Property Information
	Previous Council Communications

	New Business No. 9 County Rd. 48 Annexation 
	1. Resolution No. R2014-118
	2. Agenda Request
	3. Property Owner Request for Annexation
	Annex Exhbit - Laney
	Annex Exhibit - McMahan
	Annexation Request - Laney
	Annexation Request - McMahan
	CR 48

	4. Surrounding Zoning Map
	5. Aerial Map
	6. FLUP Map




